
Town of Mount Desert
Board of Selectmen

Agenda

Regular Meeting
Monday, April 2, 2018

Location: Meeting Room, Town Hall, Northeast Harbor

Call to order at 6:30 p.m.

II. Public Hearing(s)
A. Liquor License Application — 123 MAINSTREETREST4 UK4NT LLC d/b/a 123

Maui Street; 123 Main Street, Northeast Harbor

III. Post Public Hearing
A. Approval ofLiquor License Application — 123 M1INSTREETRESL1URANT LLC

d/b/a 123 Main Street; 123 Main Sweet, Northeast Harbor

III. Minutes
A. Approval of minutes from March 5, 2018 meeting

B. Approval of nunutes from March 19, 2018 meeting

IV. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations
A. Appoint catherine Forthofèr as Seasonal Office Manager beginning in April at

$16.00 per hour
B. Resignation ofBeiUamin 0111ev as On-call Firefighter in order toflilfill the

Acting Full—Time Firefighter position

V. Consent Agenda (These Hems are considered routine. end thenffiire, lucy he passed by the Sdect,nen in one hianhe:
motion. Board in em hers in ey reni (lIe any item fir d&scu.vsion by requesting such actio,i prior to cm,siderario,, oft/rat porn on of the
agenda.)

A. Construction Schethiles for the Route 19$ work, Svh’an Drainage project, and
NE!! Main Street improvements

B. MRC memo dated March 28, 2018 regarding the Interim MSWDeliven’ to
Crossroads and JRL as ofApril 1, 2018

VI. Selectmen’s Reports

VII. Old Business
A. Finalize and Sign JVarrantfbrAnnual Tou’,z Meeting Mciv 2 & 3, 2018

VIII. New Business
A. SheWish Consen’arion Comnuttee requests appro val from the Board ofSelectmen

to amend the existing seasonal closure 25 dais earlier for transplanting activity
on 4/5/18

B. Citizen request for waiv ng interest on 2017 Property’ Tax for 28 Tamarack Lane
— Dongchun Jiang

C. Request to Authorize A Public Space Special Event Application to the
Neighborhood House for Annual Memorial Dciv Community BBQ scheduled May
28, 2018— Northeast Harbor Marina Green



Board of Se’ectmen Meeting Agenda April 2, 20 8

D. Request to Authorize A Public Space Special Event Application to the
Neighborhood Housefor Community Steel Drum Concert scheduled July 19,
2018 — Northeast Harbor Marina Green

E. Report on Station #2 Window Replacement Project (no action required)
F. Youth in Politics Proposcd Project
G. Municipal Officer Certffications of Official Text ofProposed Ordinances and

Amendments:
1. Alewife Ordinance
2. Amendments to the Solid Waste Ordinance
3. Amendments to the Town of Mount Desert Public Road Acceptance

Ordinance
4. Amendments to the Town ofMount Desert Land Use Zoning

Ordinance
5. Anzendnzents to the Town ofMount Desert Subdivision Ordinance
6. Moratorium Ordinance on Retail Maruana Establishments, Retail

Maruuana Stores, and Retail Marijuana Social Clubs

IX. Other Business
A. Such other business as may be legally conducted

X. Treasurer’s Warrants
A. Approve & Sign Treasurer ‘.s Warrant AP1859 in the amount of$114,246.54
B. Appi-ovc Signed Treasurer Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Wat-rants AP1857,

AP1858, and PR1821 in the amounts of$3,270.98 , $4,463.36, and 5100,528.14, Qrespectively
C. Acknowledge Treasurer’s School Board AP/Payroll Warrant 20 in the amount of

$181,922.22

XI. Executive Session
None Scheduled

XII. Adjournment

The next regularly scheduled meeting is at 6:30 p.m., Tuesday, April 17, 2018 in the Meeting
Room, Town Hall, Northeast Harbor

C
Page 2 of 2



SDNINVJHDIlSfld





BUREAU OF ALCOHOL BEVERAGES AND LOTTERY OPERATIONS
DIVISION OF LIQUOR LICENSING AND ENFORCEMENT
8 STATE HOUSE STATION, AUGUSTA, ME 04333-0008
10 WATER STREET, HALLOWELL, ME 04347
L: (207) 624-7220 FAX: (207) 287-3434

cMAIL INQUIRIES: MAINELlQUOR(EMAINE.GOV

License No:

Class: By:

Deposit Date:

Ann. Deposited:

Cash Ck Mo:

NEW application: rn Yes Il No
PRESENT LICENSE EXPIRES

INDICATE TYPE OF PRIVILEGE: MALT VINOUS C SPIRITUOUS

INDICATE TYPE OF LICENSE:

C HOTEL (Class l,II.III.IV)

C CLUB w1o Catering (Class V)

C TAVERN (Class IV)

C HOTEL. FOOD OPTIONAL (Class I-A)

C CLUB with CATERING (Class I)

C QUALIFIED CATERING

C CLASS A LOUNGE (Class X)

C BED & BREAKFAST (Class V)

C GOLF COURSE (Class l,II,Ill,IV)

REFER TO PAGE 3 FOR FEE SCHEDULE

ALL QUESTIONS MUST BE ANSWERED IN FULL
Corporation Name: Business Name (D/B/A)

j23 MAiPTe€€T 4cgANT, Qc 123 .MAu STREET
APPLICANT(S) —(Sole Propriewr) DOB: Physical Location:

Jok’ yNTh4 IC - L- ‘, 23 AAAiN ‘ST FEET
DOS: City/Town State Zip Code

TAcc cta.WJ 3-ii-fl k’Th!iitcAt MC
Address Maikng Address

3 Aj sr ? Wak
City/Town State Zip Code City/Town State Zip Code

Eo MA C -42- Nnw€iT 14M&. M
Telephone Number Fax Number Business Telephone Number Fax Number
£ho N/A 2&4-flz-’4iW wlA

Federal ID. # Seller Certificate #:

34. - i\o 22Ji-S orSalesTax#: \.}Cj 1-SO
Email Address: Website:
PleasePrint kraceL(€ l3O€k.Coni \23NCH.&M

I. Ifpremise is a Hotel or Bed & keakfast, indicate number of rooms available for transient guests:

2. State amount of gross income from period of last license: ROOMS S N (A FOOD S N LA LIQUOR S ii (A
jc

3. Is %1i&ta corporation, limited liability company or limited partnership? YES . NO C
If Yes. please complete the Corporate Information required for Business Entities who are licensees.

Do you own or have any interest in any another Maine Liquor License? Th Yes No
yes, please list License Number, Name, and physical location of any other Maine Liquor Licenses.

License Name of Business
(Use an additional sheet(s) if necessary.)

Physical Locacion City / Town

DIVISION USE ONLY

RESTAURANT (Class l,Il,lIl,IV) C RESTAURANT/LOUNGE (Class Xl)

C OTHER:

Requested inspection date: MA’q C( 2o i

If business is NEW or under new ownership, indicate starting date: . na ‘i, U L
Business hours: — IO.rh

n n......:... 0.... In flIfl



STATE OF MAINE

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL SERVICES

BUREAU OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES AND LOTTERY OPERATIONS
DIVISION OF LIQUOR LICENSING AND ENFORCEMENT Q8 S [A [F. Kni SE SiAno\

At GtS[A, MAnE 04333-0008
Tn nrIIoE: (207)623—7220

FA\: (207) 287-3333
E[IL I%Q1 wins: .tiINLI.iQi ()RlNI.INL.COV

NOTICE

To avoid any delay in the processing of your application and issuance of your liquor license,
please make sure that:

I. You completed the application in thIl. (Please allow us 30 days to process)

2. Application is signed by the owner(s), corporate officer(s).

3. The application is signed by the Town or City Municipal Officers or County Commissioners.

4. The license fee is coEect, you have included the $10.00 filing fee and the check is made out 0
to Treasurer, State of Maine.

5. Your room, food and liquor gross income for the year is filled in (if applicable).

6. A diagram of the premises to be licensed accompanies the application.

7. If business is located in an unorganized township, the application must be approved by the
County Commissioners and the $10.00 filing fee must be paid to them. Please be sure to
include a copy of the receipt of payment with your application.

8. Corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships must complete and submit the
Corporate Information Required for Business Entities who are Licensees.

9. If not a publicly traded entity, ownership must add up to 100%.

0



NOX5. Do you permit dancing or entertainment on the licensed premises? YES

6. If manager is to be employed, give name: tAC6’(
7. Business records are located at: n iZb ST

Is/are applicants(s) citizens of the United States? YES . NO C

11. Has/have applicant(s) or manager ever been convicted of any violation of the law, other then minor traffic violations,
of any State of the United States?

Name:

Offense:

YESC NO%.

Date of Conviction:

Location:

Disposition: (use additional sheet(s) if necessary)

12. Will any law enforcement official benefit financially either directly or indirectly in your license, if issued?
Yes C No . If Yes, give name:

________________________________________________________

13. Has/have applicant(s) formerly held a Maine liquor license?

14. Does/do applicant(s) own the premises? Yes ‘

YESD NO,K.

15. Describe in detail the premises to be licensed: (On Premise Diagram Required)

•1 ..

16. Does/do applicant(s) have all the necessan permits required by the State Department of Human Services?
YES NO U Applied for:

17. What is the distance from the premises to the NEAREST school, school dormitory, church, chapel or parish house,
measured from the main entrance of the premises to the main entrance of the school, school dormitory, church, chapel
or parish house by the ordinary course of travel?

Which of the above is nearest? Piti rZA_

V; P14iIE?_

Have you received any assistance financially or otherwise (including any mortgages) from any source other than your-
self in the establishment of yotir btisiness? YES C NO

9. Is/are applicant(s) residents of the State of Maine?

(ir.Vt i2b 3. A A

YES NO

10. List name, date of birth. and place of birth for all applicants, managers, and bar managers. Give maiden name, if married:
Use a separate sheet of paper if necessary.

Residence address on all of the above for previous 5 years (Limit answer to city & state

Name in Full (Print Clearly) DOB Place of Birth

jc34 5c’YWTON ic -c- £t&aL, M4
T-AcEy kw€ipiiAc’.i -ii -L1- Aye:5712, MA

f%n.MAtO

(Dmiu,,zp. M4
R4cEg

. NoZrH-ritr Faäia1.M

No U If No give name and address of owner:

‘-72’vN& BA<t. PLc .ca )4TlwittEb R_M’S
m xAer 6Arc

If YES, give details:



On Premise Rev. 10-20 17

The Division of Liquor Licensing & Enforcement is hereby authorized to obtain and examine all books, records and laK re
turns pertaining to the business, for which this liquor license is requested, and also such books, records and returns during the
year in which any liquor license is in effect. cC)
NOTE: “I understand that false slalemenis made on this form are punishable by law. Knowingly supplying false infor
mation on this form is a Class D offense under the Criminal Code, punishable by confinement of up to one year or by mone
tary fine of up to $2,000 or both.”

Dated at: AjaT , t,%1 &j on Iô
Town/CiLy. Slale ‘ Dale

Please sign in blue ink

Signaiure1otAplicant or Corporate Officer(s) Signature of Applicant or Corporate Officer(s)

*

______________________________

Print Name Print Name

FEE SCHEDULE

FILING FEE: (must be included on all applications) S 10.00 ‘

Class I Spirituous, Vinous and Malt $ 900.00
CLASS L: Airlines; Civic Auditoriums: Class A Restaurants: Clubs with catering privileges; Dining
Cars; GolfClubs; Hotels; Indoor Ice Skating Clubs; Indoor Tennis Clubs; Vessels; Qualified Caterers;
OTB.

Class 1-A Spirituous, Vinous and Malt, Optional Food (Hotels Only) $I,l00.OC )
CLASS 1-A: hotels only that do not serve three meals a day.

Class II Spirituous Only $ 550.00
CLASS 11: Airlines; Civic Auditoriums; Class A Restaurants; Clubs with catering privileges; Dining
Cars; GolfClubs; Hotels; Indoor Ice Skating Clubs; Indoor Tennis Clubs; and Vessels.

Class Ill Vinous Only
CLASS IH: Airlines; Civic Auditoriums; Class A Restaurants; Clubs with catering privileges;
Dining Cars; GolfClubs; Hotels; indoor Ice Skating Clubs; Indoor Tennis Clubs; Restaurants;
Vessels; Pool Halls; and Bed and Breakfasts.

Class IV Malt Liquor Only S 220.00
CLASS LV: Airlines; Civic Auditoriums; Class A Restaurants; Clubs with catering privileges;
Dining Cars; GoilCIubs; Hotels; Indoor Ice Skating Clubs; Indoor Tennis Clubs; Restaurants;
Taverns; Pool Halls; and Bed and Breakfasts.

Class V Spirituous, Vinous and Malt (Clubs without Catering, Bed & Breakfasts) $ 495.00
CLASS V: Clubs without catering privileges.

Class X Spirituous, Vinous and Malt — Class A Lounge $2,200.00
CLASS X: Class A Lounge

Class Xl Spirituous, Vinous and Malt — Restaurant Lounge $1,500.00
CLASS XI: Restaurant/Lounge; and OTB.

UNORGANIZED TERRITORIES $10.00 filing fee shall be paid directly to County Treasurer. All applicants in unor
ganized territories shall submit along with their application evidence of payment to the County Treasurer.



D. If an application is approved by the municipal officers or the county commissioners but the bureau finds.
after inspection of the premises and the records of the applicant, that the applicant does not qualify fbr the class of
license applied for, the bureau shall notify the applicant of that fact in writing. The bureau shall give the applicant
30 days to file an amended application for the appropriate class of license, accompanied h any additional license

( e. with the municipal officers or county commissioners, as the case may he. If the applicant fails to INc an
amended application nitl in 30 days. the original application must be denied by the bureau. The bureau shall notiR
the applicant in writing of its decision to deny the application including the reasons for the denial and the rights of
appeal of the applicant. [1995, c. 140, §5 (NEW) ] 2003, c. 213, §1 (AND) .3

2. Findings. In granting or denying an application, the municipal officers or the county commissioners shall
indicate the reasons for their decision and provide a copy to the applicant. A license may be denied on one or more
of the following grounds:

A. Conviction of the applicant of any Class A. Class B or Class C crime; 11987, c. 45, Pt. A, §4 (NEW)
B. Noncompliance of the licensed premises or its use with any local zoning ordinance or other land use ordi

nance not directly related to liquor control: [1987, c. 45, Pt .A, §4 (NEW) .1
C. Conditions of record such as waste disposal violations, health or safety violations or repeated parking or

traffic violations on or in the vicinity of the licensed premises and caused by persons patronizing or employed by
the licensed premises or other such conditions caused by persons patronizing or emploed by the licensed premises
that unreasonably disturb. interfere with or aflèct the ability of persons or businesses residing or located in the vi
cinity oldie licensed premises to use their property in a reasonable manner: 19%3, c. 730, §27 (AND)

D. Repeated incidents of record of breaches of the peace, disorderly conduct, vandalism or other violations of
law on or in the vicinity of the licensed premises and caused by persons patronizing or employed by the licensed
premises: [1983, c.592, §3 (AND)

E. A violation of any provision of this Title; [2009, c. 81, §1 (AND)

F. A determination by the municipal oflicers or county commissioners that the purpose of the application is to
circumvent the provisions of section 601; and [2009, c. 81, §2 (AND) .1

G. After September 1. 2010. server training, in a program certified by the bureau and required by local ordi
nec. has not been completed by individuals who serve alcoholic beverages. [2009, c. 81, §3 (NEW) .

2009, c. 81, §cl—3 (AND) .1
3. Appeal to bureau. Any applicant aggrieved by the decision of the municipal officers or county commis

sioners tinder this section may appeal to the bureau nithin 15 da’ s ol’ the receipt of the written decision of the mu
nicipal officers or count’ commissioners. The bureau shall hold a public hearing in the city. tonn or unincorpo
rated place where the premises are situated. In acting on such an appeal. the bureau may consider all licensure re
quirements and findings referred to in subsection 2.

A. r:3, c. 730, §27 (P) .1
B. lithe decision appealed from is an application denial. the bureau may issue the license only if it finds by

clear and convincing evidence that the decision was without justifiable cause. [1993, c.730, §27 (AND) .1
[1995,c.140,6(AND).j

4. No license to person who moved to obtain a license. [ 1987, c. 342, §32 (RP) .]
5. Appeal to District Court. Any person or governmental entity aggrieved by a bureau decision under this

section may appeal the decision to the District Court within 30 days oreceipt of the written decision of the bureau.
An applicant who flies an appeal or who has an appeal pending shall pay the annual license fee the applicant

would otherwise pay. Upon resolution of the appeal. if an applicant’s license renewal is denied, the bureau shall
refund the applicant the prorated amount of the unused license fee.

1995, c. 140, §7 (AND); 1999, C. 547, Pt. 2, §78 (AND); 1939, c. 547, Pt. B, §80 (AFF) .1

Please be sure to include the followinu with your application:
Completed the application and sign the form.
Signed check with correct license fee and filing fee.

(‘our local City or Towns signature(s) are on the forms.
e sure to include your ROOM, FOOD and LIQUOR gross income for the year (if applicable).

Enclose diagram for all businesses, auxiliary locations, extended decks and storage areas.
Complete the Corporate Information sheet for all ownerships except sole proprietorships.
If you have any questions regarding your application, please contact us at (2{)7) 624-7220.



All applications for NEW or RENEWAL liquor licenses must contact their Municipal Officials or the County Com
missioners in unincorporated places for approval and signatures for liquor licenses prior to submitting them to the
bureau.

All fees must accompany application, make check payable to the Treasurer, State of Maine.

This application must be completed and signed by the Town or City and mailed to:
Bureau of Alcoholic Beverages and Lottery Operations
Division of Liquor Licensing and Enforcement
8 State House Station, Augusta, ME 04333-0008.
Payments by check subject to penalty provided by Title 28A, MRS. Section 3-B.

TO STATE OF MAINE MUNICIPAL OFFICERS & COUNTY COMMISSIONERS:
Hereby certify that we have complied with Section 653 of Title 28-A Maine Revised Statutes and hereby approve

said application.

Dated at:

___________________________________________,

Maine

_______________________________________

City/Town (Counly)

On:

____________________________

Dale

The undersigned being: Municipal Officers C County Commissioners of the

o City 0 Town U Plantation 0 Unincorporated Place of:

______________________________________,

Maine

________ ____-

0
THIS APPROVAL EXPIRES INÔO DAYS

NOTICE - SPECIAL ATTENTION

§653. Hearings; bureau review; appeal

I. Hearings. The municipal officers or. in (he case of unincorporated places. the county commissioners of the
county in which the unincorporated place is located, may hold a public hearing for the consideration of applica
tions br new on—premises licenses and applications for transfer of location of existing on—premises licenses. The
municipal officers or county eomnussioners may hold a public hearing for the consideration of requests for renew
al of licenses, except that when an applicant has held a license for the prior 5 years and a complaint has not been
liled against the applicant within that time, the applicant may request a waiver of the hearing.

A. The bureau shall prepare and supply application forms. [1993, c. 730, §27 (AND) •1
B. The municipal oflicers or the county commissioners, as the case may be. shall provide public notice of any

hearing held tinder this section by caiLsing a notice. aL the applicant’s prepaid expense. staling the name and place
of hearing. to appear on at least 3 consecutive days belbre the date of hearing in a daily newspaper having general
circulation in the municipality where the premises are located or one eek before the date of the hearing in a
eekl newspaper having general circulation in the municipality where the premises are located. (1995, c
140, §1 (AND) .1

C. If the municipal oflieers or the county commissioners, as the case may he. fail to take linal action on an
application for a new on-premises license or transfer of the location of an existing on-premises license within 60
days of the filing of an application, the application is deemed approved and ready for action by the bureau. For
purposes of this pararaph. the date of filing of the application is the date the application is received by the mun’
ipal officers or county commissioners. This paragraph applies to all applications pending before municipal omct.
or county commissioners as of the effective date of this paragraph as well as all applications liled on or after the
effective date of this paragraph. This paragraph applies to an existing on-premises license that has been extended
pending renewal. The municipal ollicers or the county commissioners shall take final action on an on-premises li
cense that has been extended pending renewal within 120 days of the tiling of the application. [2003, c. 213,
§1 (AND).)



S

3

II
Zr r

H

‘--CD’

— —G

I7
It — —

I —;‘. —

I J

——I
‘II

ct
(p

:9

_____

U)
Il

— r

_& I

L
• :- •- ri

Ii
L.

I>

Sn

>

0
-a

—I’





Bureau ofAlcoholic Beverages and Lottety Operations
Division ofLiquor Licensing & Enforcement

DIVISION USE ONLY
2 State House Station, Augusta, ME 04333-0008

10 Water Street, Ha/lowell, ME 04347 U Approved

Tel; (207) 624-7220 Fax; (207) 287-3434 U Not Approved

Email Inquiries; goi’ BY:

ON PREMISE DIAGRAM

In an effort to clearly define your license premise and the area that consumption and storage of liquor is allowed.
The Division requires all applicants to submit a diagram of the premise to be licensed in addition to a completed
license application.

Diagrams should be submitted on this form and should be as accurate as possible. Be sure to label the areas of your
diagram including entrances, office area, kitchen, storage areas, dining rooms, lounges, function rooms, restrooms,
decks and all areas that you are requesting approval from the Division for liquor consumption.

cce A1 i-uczA_ ?L.4’Nc 4nALi-co



Division of Alcoholic Beverages and Lottery
Operations

_______

Division of Liquor Licensing and Enforcement

Corporate Information Required for
Business Entities Who Are Licensees

Questions I to 4 must match information on file with the Maine Secretary of State’s office. If you have questions
regarding this information, please call the Secretary of State’s oftice at (207) 624-7752.

Please clearly complete this form in its entirety.

I. Exact legal name:

2. Doing Business As, if any:

123 Mjri STREET

k2 )AAjN STEt

3. Date of filing with Secretary of State: e.htZ 2ñLr State in which you are formed:

4. If not a Maine business entity, date on which you were authorized to transact business in the State of Maine:

5. List the name and addresses for previous 5 years, birth dates, titles of officers, directors and list the percentag
ownership: (attach additional sheets as needed)

Date of Ownership
NAME ADDRESS (5 YEARS) Birth TITLE %

J’ /t’I 0-b-t’S lcc

%-i -b

0

4.)For Office Use Only: ii

License #: -

__________-

SOS Checked:

_____________

100% Yes D NoD

RP%1dkOaAtr. LLC

J

(Stock ownership in non-publicly traded companies must add up to 100%.)

6. If Co-Op # of members (list primary officers in the above boxes)



1 IS ?rki flP0- pu

Yes D No If Yes, Name:

___________

€

____________

Agency:

___________________________

q, Has any principal person involved in the entity ever been convicted of any violation of the law, other than minor
traffic violations, in the United States?

Yes ENo

9. If Yes to Question 8, please complete the following: (attached additional sheets as needed)

Name:

Date of Conviction:

Offense:

Location of Conviction:

Disposition:

Signature:

Submit Completed Forms to:

Bureau of Alcoholic Beverages
Division of Liquor Licensing and Enforcement
8 State House Station. Augusta. Me 04333-0008 (Regular address)
10 Water Street, Hallowell, ME 04347 (Overnight address)
Telephone Inquiries: (207) 624-7220 Fax: (207) 287-3434
Email Inquiries: MaineLiguor(thtvlaine.gov

Date

JoI4N Eoy,aTvr.i
Print Name of Duly Authorized Person



.4..‘4-. I.1•
-...I

‘I



M
ou

nt
D

es
er

t I
sl

an
de

r

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

SE
C

TI
O

N
1

•
PA

G
E

5

N
ot

e:
2
0
1
7
-l

eA
m

o
u
n
tw

as
$

41
3.

75
6

L
es

sA
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

R
ec

ei
pt

s:

ia
t

su
m

th
e

M
ou

nt
D

es
er

t
Is

la
nd

R
eg

io
na

l
C

an
yo

ve
r

55
15

,3
50

R
E

C
E

IV
E

D

E
x
p
en

d
it

u
re

s
fo

r
th

e
fi

sc
al

ye
ar

be
gi

nn
in

g
S

ta
te

S
ub

si
dy

$3
85

,0
00

T
ui

tio
n

SI
.5

00
,0

00

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

ho
ol

C
om

m
it

te
e

re
co

m
m

en
ds

$
13

5,
00

0
T

ui
tio

n
S

ur
ch

ar
ge

$1
50

,0
00

N
ot

e:
2
0
1
7
-l

aA
m

o
u
n
tw

as
$

12
5J

30
0

S
pe

c.
E

d.
T

ui
tio

n
$2

0,
00

0

XI
I

au
th

or
iz

e
a

to
ta

l
bu

dg
et

of
$1

0,
79

7,
21

8
A

O
S

#9
1

R
en

t
$7

,5
00

In
te

re
st

In
co

m
e

$4
,0

00

,b
at

su
m

M
ou

nt
D

es
er

t
Is

la
nd

R
eg

io
na

l
S

po
rt

s
E

ve
nt

s
R

ev
en

ue
$9

,0
00

g
pu

bl
ic

ed
uc

at
io

n
fr

om
gr

ad
e

9
to

gr
ad

e
12

D
ra

m
a

E
ve

nt
s

R
ev

en
ue

$8
,0

00
TH

E
T

O
W

N
O

P

in
di

ng
A

ct
an

d
to

se
e

w
ha

t
su

m
th

e
D

is
tr

ic
t

T
ra

ns
fe

r
fr

om
B

us
R

es
er

ve
-0

-
M

O
U

N
T

D
E

SE
R

T

to
th

e
to

ta
l

co
st

of
fu

nd
in

g
pu

bl
ic

ed
uc

at
io

n
B

ui
ld

in
g

R
en

ta
l

$7
50

ro
gr

am
s

an
d

S
er

vi
ce

s
Fu

nd
in

g
A

ct
in

ac
co

r-
T

ot
at

R
ec

ei
pt

s
52

.5
99

.6
00

on
15

68
51

cr
th

e
pe

ri
od

Ju
ly

1,
20

18
to

Ju
ne

L
oc

al
Ta

,
R

eq
ue

st
58

.1
97

.6
18

To
tr

an
sa

ct
an

y
ot

he
r

bu
si

ne
ss

w
hi

ch
m

ay
le

ga
lly

co
m

e
be

fo
re

sa
id

m
ee

ti
ng

.

,is
ed

(‘
D

is
tr

ic
tA

ss
es

sm
en

t
by

M
un

ic
ip

al
ity

)
H

E
R

E
O

F
FA

IL
N

O
T

to
m

ak
e

re
tu

rn
of

th
e

W
ar

ra
nt

w
ith

yo
ur

do
in

gs
th

er
eo

n
un

to

bo
r

51
.6

75
.4

27
th

e
S

ec
re

ta
ry

of
th

e
R

eg
io

na
l

Sc
ho

ol
C

om
m

itt
ee

,
on

or
be

fo
re

th
e

tim
e

of
sa

id
m

ee
tin

g.

)e
se

rt
$
t,

5
2
6
,5

0
4

es
t

H
ar

bo
r

$6
08

,2
71

G
iv

en
un

de
r

ou
r

ha
nd

s
at

B
ar

H
ar

bo
r

th
is

1
2

da
y

of
M

ar
ch

A
D

,,
20

18
.

it
$5

65
,0

64
D

is
tr

ic
t

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

ai
se

d
54

.3
15

.2
66

ln
gh

d
K

ad
w

na
r,

C
ha

ir
pe

rs
on

th
e

S
ch

oo
lD

is
tr

ic
t’

s
en

ab
lin

g
st

at
ut

e.

M
D

I
R

eg
io

na
l

Sc
ho

ol
C

om
m

itt
ee

xi
tio

n
to

th
e

to
ta

lc
as

to
f

fu
nd

in
g

pu
bl

ic
ed

u
ca

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_

di
al

P
ro

gr
am

s
an

d
S

er
vi

ce
s

F
un

di
ng

A
ct

is
th

e
V

er
no

n
S.

M
cF

ar
la

nd
,

Jr
.,

C
ha

ir
pe

rs
on

ni
m

um
am

ou
nt

th
at

th
e

di
st

ri
ct

m
os

t
ra

is
e

an
d

M
O

tH
S

D
is

tr
ic

t
T

ru
st

ee
s

a
w

ha
t

su
m

M
ou

nt
D

es
er

t
Is

la
nd

R
eg

io
na

l

e
b
t

s
e
r
v
i
c
e

p
r
e
v
i
o
u
s
l
y

a
p
p
r
o
v
e
d

b
y

t
h
e

D
i
s
t
r
i
c
t_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

n-
st

at
e

fu
nd

ed
po

rt
io

ns
of

sc
ho

ol
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n

u
n
d
s

a
p
p
r
o
p
r
i
a
t
e
d

a
s

t
h
e

l
o
c
a
l

s
h
a
r
e

o
f

M
o
u
n
t

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

th
e

to
ta

l
co

st
of

fu
nd

in
g

pu
bl

ic
ed

uc
at

io
n

fr
om

m
m

en
de

d:
$

59
9,

61
4

au
nt

of
m

on
ey

ne
ed

ed
fo

rt
he

an
nu

al
pa

ym
en

ts_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

is
lo

ng
-t

er
m

de
bt

fo
r

m
aj

or
ca

pi
ta

l
sc

ho
ol

co
n

z
t
s

t
h
a
t

a
r
e

n
o
t

a
p
p
m

v
e
d

f
o
r

s
t
a
t
e

s
u
b
s
i
d
y
.

T
h
e

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

io
te

rs
or

th
e

B
oa

rd
of

T
ru

st
ee

s,
as

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
.

M
em

be
rs

—
M

D
I

R
eg

io
na

l
Sc

ho
ol

C
om

m
itt

ee

ee
w

ha
t

su
m

M
ou

nt
D

es
er

t
Is

la
nd

R
eg

io
na

l

it
lo

ca
l

fu
nd

s
fo

r
sc

ho
ol

pu
rp

os
es

(R
ec

om
m

en
d:

A
T

w
e

C
op

y
A

tte
st

:

20
19

,w
hi

ch
ex

ce
ed

s
th

e
S

ta
le

’s
E

ss
en

ti
al

P
ro

id
:

$
3
2
2
2
7
3
8
)

as
re

qu
ir

ed
to

hi
nd

th
e

op
er

at
in

g

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_

m
m

th
ee

an
d

bo
ar

d
of

tr
us

te
es

.
R

es
id

en
t

P
ub

li
c

H
ea

ri
ng

N
ot

ic
e

T
he

B
oa

rd
of

S
el

ec
tm

en
w

ill
ho

ld
a

P
ub

li
c

F
le

ar
in

g
at

its

re
gu

la
r

m
ee

ti
ng

w
hi

ch
be

gi
ns

at
6:

30
p.

m
.,

M
on

da
y.

A
pr

il
2.

20
18

in
th

e
M

ee
ti

ng
R

oo
m

,T
ow

n
H

al
l,

2)
Se

n
S

tr
ee

t.
N

o
rt

h

ea
st

H
ar

bo
r

fo
r

th
e

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n
of

:

A
ne

w
li

q
u
o
r

li
ce

ns
e

fo
r

C
la

ss
II

I
V

in
ou

s
an

d
C

la
ss

IV
M

al
t

—
R

es
ta

ur
an

t
A

pp
lic

at
io

n

12
3

M
ai

n
St

re
et

R
es

ta
ur

an
t,

L
L

C
;

Jo
hn

B
oy

nt
on

&
T

ra
uc

y

A
be

rm
an

dl
b/

a
12

3
M

ai
n

St
re

et
.

12
3

M
ai

n
S

tr
ee

t,
N

or
th

ea
st

H
ar

bo
r,

M
E

—
To

w
n

of

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

B
ar

H
ar

b
o
r

PA
P

U
B

L
IC

N
O

T
IC

E

N
O

M
IN

A
T

IO
N

P
A

P
E

R
S

N
om

in
at

io
n

pa
pe

rs
ar

e
no

w
av

ai
la

bl
e

in
th

e
li

ar
H

ar
bo

r
T

ow
n

C
le

rl
’s

ot
lic

e
fo

r
th

e
fo

ll
ow

in
g

el
ec

te
d

of
fi

ci
al

s
w

ith
ex

pi
ri

ng

te
rm

s
of

Ju
ne

20
21

,

B
ar

H
ar

b
o
r

lb
w

n
C

ou
nc

il

T
w

o
se

at
s

T
hr

ee
ye

ar
te

rn
i

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

S
up

er
it

it
en

di
ng

S
ch

oo
l

C
om

m
it

te
e

O
ne

se
at

—
T

hr
ee

ye
ar

te
nu

M
ou

nt
D

es
er

t
ts

la
nd

S
ch

oo
l

D
is

tr
ic

t
T

ru
sl

ee

O
ne

se
at

T
hr

ee
ye

ar
te

nn

D
ea

dl
in

e
tb

r
fi

lin
g

no
m

in
at

io
n

pa
pe

rs
is

Fr
id

ay
,

A
pr

il
27

.

20
18

,
at

5:
01

)
p.

m
.

T
he

re
si

de
nt

s
of

B
ar

H
ar

bo
r

w
ilt

vo
te

tb
r

th
es

e
el

ec
te

d
of

fi
ci

al
s

at
th

ei
r

an
nu

al
to

w
n

w
ee

tin
u

on
.

T
u
es

da
y,

Ju
ne

12
.2

01
8.

w
oo

’J
ap

u8
lsi

pw
@

SU
A

RJ
nI

-
-

.

.
a4

oJ
T

sl
sr

a.
lq

S
O

e
i

Z
n

A
9

[
p
ic

X
-ç

pu
e

aj
X

js
ai

j
pn

h
Og

rn
j2

tn
dn

sa
u
u
n
j

s,
ss

pu
e

‘X
jj

ia
nq

pa
nX

-
on

P
IO

)f
D

P
T

4
SU

T
A

k
•

‘d
no

j8

.ia
pu

n-
pu

n-
01

,sX
oq

aq
i

ui

T
ow

n
ot

M
O

U
N

T
D

E
SE

R
T



U
0

0



z C m





Town of Mount Desert
2 Board of Selectmen
3 Regular Meeting
4 Monday, March 5,2018
5 Location: Meeting Room, Town Hall, Northeast Harbor
6
7 Present were Chairman John Macauley, Selectmen Wendy Litdefield, Matt Hart, Martha
8 Dudman, and Rick Mooers.
9

10 Town Manager Durlin Lunt. Town Clerk Claire Woolfolk. Treasurer Kathy Mahar, Fire
11 Chief Mike Bender, Tax Assessor Kyle Avila, Public Works Director Tony Smith, and
1 2 Harborrnaster John Lemoine were present.
13
14 Members of the public were also present.
15
16 1. Call to order at 6:00 p.m.
17 Chairman Macauley called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM.
18
19 II. Executive Session
20 A. Pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. 405(6) (A) review requestfrom employee for leave ui/hate!
21 pay.

22
23 MOTION: Selectman Dudman moved, with Selectman Littlefleld seconding, to go into
24 Executive Session. Motion approved 5-0.
25
26 The Board entered Executive Session at 6:00 PM.
27
28 III. Post Executive Session
29 A. Employee Leave Without Pay, action ifnecessary
30 The Board left Executive Session at 6:12 PM.
31
32 MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman Littlefleld seconding. to extend till
33 April 14, 2018 leave without pay to a Town employee. Motion approved 5-0.
34
35 IV. Public Hearings
36 A. May 7 & 8, 2018 Annual Town Meeting Proposed Warrant Articles for
37 Appropriation ofFunds, Ordinance Amendments, and Ordinances
38 Chairman Macauley stated the proposed warrant articles would be discussed later in the
39 meeting. He requested public comments. There were none.
40
41 B. Special Amusement Application from Glen Squit-es and Kelsea C’arr-Squires d/b/a
42 Abels Lobster Pount (Pure Ocean, LLC’,) 13 A be/s Lane, Mount Desert
43 Chairman Macauley asked for public comments. There were none.
44
45 C. Liquor License Application — Glen Squires and Kelsea €‘arr-Squires ri/b/a Abe/s
46 Lobster Pound (Pure C’oean, LL(’j 13 Abe/s Lane, Mount Desert

Chairman Maeauley asked for public comments. There were none.

Town ofMount Desert Board ofSelectmen Minutes, March 5, 2018
Page 1



2 MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman Hart seconding, closing the Public Q
3 Hearing. Motion approved 5-0.
4
5 V. Post Public Hearing
6 A. Approval ofSpecialAmusenient Application from Glen Squires and Kelsea ccxii-
7 Squires d/b/a Abets Lobster Found (Pure Ocean, LLC) 13 Abels Lane, Mount Desert
8
9 MOTION: Selectman Dudman moved, with Selectman Mooers seconding, approval of

10 Special Amusement Application from Glen Squires and Kelsea Carr-Squires d/b/a Abels
11 Lobster Pound (Pure Ocean, LLC) 13 Abels Lane, Mount Desert, as presented. Motion
12 approved 5-0.
13
14 B. Approval ofLiquor License Application from Glenn Squires and Kelsea carr
IS Squires d/b/a Abels Lobster Found (Pin-c Ocean, LLQ 13 Abets Lane, Mount Desert
16
17 MOTION: Selectman Hart moved, with Selectman Mooers seconding, approval of
IS Liquor License Application from Glenn Squires and Kelsea Car-Squires d/b/a Abels
19 Lobster Pound (Pure Ocean, LLC) 13 Abels Lane, Mount Desert. as presented. Motion
20 approved 5-0.
21
22 VI. Minutes
23 A. Approval ofMinutes from Fcbnta,y 20, 2018
24
25 MOTION: Selectman Hart moved, with Selectman Littlefield seconding, to approve the
26 February 20, 2018 Minutes as presented. Motion approved 3-0-2 (Dudman and Mooers
27 in Abstention).
28
29 B. Approval ofMinutes from Februrny 26. 2018
30
31 MOTION: Selectman Hart moved, with Selectman Dudman seconding, approval of the
32 Minutes of February 26, as presented. Motion approved 4-0-1 (Mooers in Abstention)
33
34 VII. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations
35 A. Appointment ofBenjamin Gilley as actingfill-time firefighter, effective March 6,
36 2018, and continuing through until May 14, 2018 at $1 7.00/hr.
37
38 MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman Littlefield seconding, appointment
39 of Benjamin Gilley as acting MI-time firefighter, effective March 6,2018, and
40 continuing through until May 14, 2018 at SI 7.00/hour, as presented. Motion approved 5-
41 0.
42
43 VIII. Consent Agenda
44 A. MRC Put Option Payments: memo dated March 2, 2018
45 B. League of Town Minutes from Februaty 27, 2018
46 C. Hancock Coun Planning commission letter ofintroduction: Februaty 15, 2018 0

Town ofMount Desen Board ofSelectmen Minutes, March 5, 2018
Page 2



1 MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman Hart seconding, approval of the
2 Consent Agenda as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
3
4 IX. Selectman’s Reports
5 There were no Selectman’s Reports.
6
7 X. Old Business
S A. Review and Votes on remaining I Variant Articles for May 7 and 8, 2018 Annual
9 Meeting

10 A review of the following V/arrant Articles was made:
ii Article 6: Shall an ordinance dated Mciv 8, 2018 and entitled ‘Amendments to the Solid
12 Waste Ordinance of the Tonii ofMount Desert’ be enacted
13
14 MOTION: Selectman Han moved, with Selectman Mooers seconding, recommending
15 passage of Article 6, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
16
17 Article 21: Shall the residents oft/ic Ton-ti ofMount Desert vote to accept Farnham s
18 Way and Sydney Way, both being private roads located in the Village ofSomesville off
19 the Beech Hill Road, approximately 1,040 feet in length and 320feet iii length,
20 respectively, and presently owned by the Island Housing Trust, and as requested by same
21 in their correspondence to the Town dated Februaty 9, 2018, as Public Roads, in
22 coqfonnance with the Towns Public Road Acceptance Ordinance as amended at the May
23 5, 2009 annual Town meeting andfurther, to authorize the Municipal Officers to execute

C 24 all things necessary or convenient to facilitate success/id completion of transferred
25 ownership of the roads from the Island Housing Trust to the Toni,.
26
27 MOTION: Selectman Hart moved, with Selectman Littlefield seconding, recommending
28 passage of Article 21, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
29
30 Article 22: Shall the residents of the Tow,z ofMount Desert vote to accept the existing
31 private sanitary sewer mains located in Farn/iani ‘s Way and Sidney’s Way as pith/ic
32 sanitary sen-er mains, a total length ofsewer mains being approxunatetv 1,200 feet, and
33 presently on-ned by the Island Housing Trust and as requested by same in their
34 correspondence to the Town dated February 9, 2018, as public sewers, and not including
35 any building sewers, with said acceptance based on i-riuen documentation dated January
36 7, 2009 provided to the Town from the pi-ofessional engineer of record i-esponsiblefbr
37 the design and construction monitoring of the installation of the sewer mains for
38 conformance to Toil’!? standards, with said documentation stating that the sen-er mains
39 meet the requirements of the existing Sen-er Ordinance as amended at the May 8, 2012
40 annual Town meeting and generally accepted engineering practice andfurther, to
41 authorize the Municipal Officers to execute all things necessary or convenient to
42 facilitate successful completion of the transfer of ownership of the sen-er mains from the
43 Island Housing Trust to the Town.
44
45 MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman Littlefield seconding,
46 recommending passage of Article 22, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.

Town ofMount Desert Board ofSelectmen Minutes, March 5, 2018
Page 3



2 Article 23: Shall the Town ofMount Desert be authorized to enter into an agreement with Q
3 (lie Maine Department of Transportation, in conjbrmance itith their Municipal
4 Partnership Initiatiieprogram,for technical and construction services related to
5 improvements ofState Route 198 beginning approxinzatelv 0.10 miles (528-feet)
6 northerly of its intersection with Sargent Drive the;z proceeding in a northerly direction
7 approximately 1.10 miles plus or minus on State Route 198 ending at or near a point in
8 State Route 198 at or southerly of its intersection with State Route 233, said beginning
9 and ending points shown on the attached project site map included herein in Appendix

10 (‘.2; with said itnprrn’ements to be completed in 2018—2019 and in accordance with the
11 Agreement including, bitt not necessarily being limited to, reclaiming (grinding and
12 leaving in place) the existing pavement, grading and compacting these materials,
13 consti-uction ofnew base and siuface pavement layers on the reclaimed materials,
14 construction offour-foot (4) wide extended shoulders on each side of the road, drainage
15 improvements and other typical roadway impi-mements associated with projects of this
16 kind, andfurther shall the Board ofSelectmen be authorized to execute any and all
1 7 contracts and documents and do any and all things necessaty or convenient to enter into
18 this agreement with (lie Maine Department of Transportation
19
20 MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman Littlefield seconding,
21 recommending passage of Article 23, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
77

23 Ankle 24: Shall the Town ofMount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation
24 bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $500000.00 tofitnd the
25 Town s 50%-50% cost sharc for construction of roadway improvements to Route 198 hi

26 accordance with the agreement with the Maine Department of Transportation described
27 in Article 23 above; andfurther shall the Board ofSelectmen be authot-ized to execute
28 any and all contracts and documents and do any and all things necessaiy or convenient
29 to issue the bonds or notes of the Town, which may be callable, and to accomplish the
30 project
3’
32 MOTION: Selectman Dudman moved, with Selectman Mooers seconding,
33 recommending passage of Article 24, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
34
35 Article 25: Shall the Town ofMount Desert be authorized to allocate any itnspentfhnds
36 originally appropriated in connection with the 201 7-2 018 State Route 198 Maine
37 Department of Transportation Municipal Partizershp Initiative approved at the Mar
38 201 7 Town Meeting to the work described in Article 23 and Article 24
39
40 MOTION: Selectman Hart moved, with Selectman Littlefleld seconding, recommending
41 passage of Article 25, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
42
43 Article 26: Shall the Town ofMount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation
44 bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $3, 963,485.00 to finance
45 professional technical and construction sen’ices associated with improvements to Main
46 Street located in the Village ofNortheast Harbor to improve the appearance, Q

Town ofMount Desert Board ofSelectmen Minutes. March 5, 20)8
Page 4



1 functionality and vitality of the Main Street area beginning at or near the intersection of

C 2 Main Street ui/h Stun,nit Road then continuing in a southerly direction along Main Street
3 ending at or near the intersection ofMain Street with Neighborhood Road, with said
4 bnprovetnents to be in general coifbrmance with the report preprn-ed by consultants to
5 the town entitled ‘Northeast Harbor Village Center Plan - Final Report “dated
6 December 19, 2016, further described in said report as At-ca 1.4 - Main Street and
7 generally described and illustrated in the site plan located in Appendix D Site P/au and
8 to include, but not necessarily be limited to improved sidewalks, grading, drainage,
9 ,-oathtaj’, utilities, including bun’ing the overhead utility wires, plantings, lighting and

1 0 other amenities and appurtenances required to complete the improvements, andfwther
11 shall the Board ofSelectmen be authot-ized to execute all things necessan’ or convenient
12 to issue the bonds or notes of the Town, which may be callable, and to accomplish the
13 Project
14
15 Selectman Hart thanked those who have spent years in the planning of this project.
16
17 MOTION: Selectman Dudman moved, with Selectman Hart seconding recommending
18 passage of Article 26, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
19
20 Arick 27: Shall the Town ofMount Desert be authorized to issue general obligation
21 bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed 5645,000.00 to finance
22 professional technical and construction sen’ices associated with improvements to Sylvan
23 Road, Pine Road, Spruce Road and Tennis Club Road located in the Village ofNortheast

C 4 Harbor and generally described and illustrated in the site plan located in Appendix E
25 Site Plan to address surface and subsuifhce drainagefunctionality in the general at-ca to
26 include, but not necessarily being limited to, improved grading, drainage, catch basins,
27 stonn drain pipes. ,-oadwav surfaces and appurtenances required to complete the
28 improvements, and /hrther shall the Board ofSelectmen be authorized to execute all
29 things necessary or convenient to issue the bonds or ito/es of the Town, which may be
30 callable, and to accomplish the Project
31
32 MOTION: Selectman Han moved, with Selectman Littlefield seconding, recommending
33 passage of Article 27, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
34
35 Article 28: Shall the residents of the Town oJMoztnt Desert vote to authorize the use of
36 fimds that remain from those borrowedfrom the Maine Mimic%val Bond Bank through
37 the State ofMaine Revolving Loan Finid and administe,-ed by the Maine Department of
38 Environmental Protection for the upgrade to the Northeast Harbor wastewater treatment
39 plant in 2013-2014, with a remaining balance ofapproximately $53,000 andfor the
40 upgrade of the Bu-acy Cove uastewatem’ pumping station in 2016- 2017, with a remaining
41 balance ofapproximately $400,000 for a total amount of remainingfiunds of
42 approximately 5453,000 to finance professional technical and construction services
43 associated with improvements to the Town ‘s wastewater collection and conveyance
44 system, with said improvements being subject to review and authorization b the Maine
45 Department ofEnvironmental Protection, said improvements to include bitt not be limited
t6 to, and in no particular order ofpriority, and on a finds available basis, replacement of

Town ofMount Desert Board ofSelectmen Minutes, March 5, 2018
Page 5



an existing wastewater pumping station metal net itch circa 1970’s located off
2 Manchester Road in the Village ofNortheast Harbor nit/i a new precast concrete wet
3 itch in the same general area as the existing one; replacement oft/ic existing vitrified
4 clay circa 1970 c sanita,y sever pipe that conveys sewagefrom Sinclair Road to
5 Manchester Road en route to the wastewater treatment facility; and upgrading the
6 electronics control system at the Gilpatrick Cove wastewater pumping station and
7 associated appurtenances and incidentals to complete the improvements and, based on
8 recommendations to them by Public Works staff to authorize the Municipal Officers to
9 execute all things necessary or convenient tojacilitate success/id completion of/he

10 Izprovetnents
11
12 MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman Littlefield seconding,
13 recommending passage of Article 28, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
14
15 Article 32: To see if the Inhabitants of the Town ofMount Desert will vote to authorize
16 the Tax Collector to accept pre-payment ofproperty taxes, with no interest to be paid on
I 7 same.
18
19 MOTION: Selectman Moocrs moved, with Selectman Littlefield seconding,
20 recommending passage of Article 32, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
21
22 Article 39: Shall the lbu’,i ofMount Desert be authorized to appropriate an amount not
23 to exceed $100,000.00 from the Capital Gains Resen’e Account, #400-24202, in order to
24 retain professional services Jar planning, technical study/studies and design related to
25 roathvay improvements, including but not hinuted to, bicycle access and safety
26 improvements, to State Route 3 (Peabody Drive), between the intersection ofState Routes
27 198 and 3(’Pedder Comet) in the Village ofNortheast Harbor and the intersection of
28 the Stanley Brook Road and State Route 3 in the Village of’Seal Harbor; subject to the
29 Town s Bicycling Committee investigating alternatR’efimding sources including but not
30 limited to Private, State and Eederalfimding in an effort to reduce the Town
31 co,nnzitnzent of the aforementioned 5100,000.00for the Project with the understanding
32 that the Committee shall demonstrate good Jhith efforts to raiseJiindsfrom Others mid to
33 have i-eeeived written commitments from Othe,-s to provide fluids by the date certain of
34 December 31. 2018, with said ‘written commitments being documented by the Public
35 Works Director as the Committee’s liaison to the Board ofSelectmen and presented in
36 writing by the Public Works Director to the Board ofSelectmen, such that the Town ‘s
37 share of the cost ofthe Project shall be the ajorementioned $100,000.00 reduced by the
38 amount oJflmding the Committee has raised and obtained written commthnents for as
39 described above bitt in no case shall it exceed the aforementioned $100,000.00, and
40 flu’ther, shall the Board ofSelectmen of the Town be authorized to execute any and all
41 contracts and documents and do any and all things necessary or convenient to the
42 accomplishment of the Project. including to accept any gifts, grants or contributions to
43 the Town, including conditional gifts to the Town the sole condition ofwhich is that the
44 contributedfluids be dedicated to the Project
45

0
Town ofMount Desert Board ofSelectmen Minutes, March 5, 2018
Page 6



Selectman Hart inquired why the date mentioned was December31, 2018, as opposed to
the end of the fiscal year. Public Works Director Smith noted the earlier date was merely
to keep the project moving fonvard in a timely manner.

4

5 The work is still in the planning phase. Chairman Macauley asked how the Town would
6 acquire the necessary space along the roadway. Mr. Smith noted the Town would be
7 negotiating with the abutters.
S
9 MOTION: Selectman Littlefield moved, with Selectman Dudman seconding,

10 recommending passage of Article 39, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
11
12 Article 40: Shall the Toun ofMount Desert be authorized to appropriate an amount not
13 to exceed 590,000 froni the Capital Gains Reserve Account, #400-24202, to finance
14 professional technical and construction sen’ices associated with improvements to up to
1 5 seven pedestrian crosswalks located in the Villages ofNortheast Harbor, Pretty Marsh
16 and Somesi’ille and as shown on the site plan located in Appendix F Site Map to include,
1 7 bringing the crosswalks into general compliance with the appropriate regulatory
1 8 agencies and requirements ofsame, including bitt not necessarily being limited to, the
19 Maine Department of Transportation s publication ‘Maine DOT Guidelines on
20 Crosswalks “ and the Americans with Disabilities Act requirements for crosswalks ii’ith
21 said improvements to address, but not necessarily being limited to, improved access,
22 safety, effectiveness and appurtenances required to complete the improvements, and
23 further, shall the Board ofSelectmen be authorized to execute am’ and all contracts and
N documents and do all things necessary or convenient to accomplish the Project
25
26 MOTION: Selectman Dudman moved, with Selectman LittlefieLd seconding,
27 recommending passage of Article 40. as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
28
29 Article 41: Shall the Town ofMount Desert be authorized to approp-iate an amount not
30 to exceed 538.00000 from the Capital Gains Resen’e Account, #400- 24202, to finance
3 1 the professional evaluation of the Town s remaining crosswalks not desc,-ibed in Article
32 40 above, those being approximately 40 in nunther, located throughout the Town, to
33 assess them relative to factors including, but not necessarily limited to, accessibility,
34 safety, location and effectiveness, and to make recommendations for improi’eme,zts to the
35 crosswalks, and /1 n’ther to prepare designs of the recommended improvements to the
36 crosswalks, to prepare construction documents and to solicit competitive bids for the
37 improvements to address and to include bringing the crosswalks into general compliance
38 with the appropriate regulatory agencies and requirements ofsame, including but not
39 necessarily being lint ited to the Maine Department of Transportation spublication
40 “Maine DOT Guidelines on Crosswalks” and the Americans with Disabilities Act
41 requirements for crosswalks andfurther, shall the Board ofSelectmen be authorized to
42 execute any and all contracts and documents and do all things necessaty or convenient to
43 accomplish the Project
44
45 MOTION: Selectman Hart moved, with Selectman Mooers seconding, recommending
16 passage of Article 41, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.

Town ofMount Desert Board ofSelectmen Minutes, March 5, 2018
Page 7



2 Article 42: Shall the Town ofMount Desert be authorized to appropriate an amount not 0
3 to exceed $40,000.00 from the Capital Gains Reserve Account, #400- 24202, to finance
4 the evaluation and design of improvements to (lie Town ‘s infrasti-ucture within the
5 bounds ofa portion ofSummit Road located in the Village ofNortheast Harbor
6 beginning at or near its intersection with Main Street then proceeding westerly along
7 Swnmit Road ending at or near its intersection with (‘hurch Road with said
8 improvements including, but not necessarily limited to, the traveled way, sanitmy sewer
9 lines, storm water management and sidewalks, andfhrther shall the Board ofSelectmen

10 be authorized to execute any and all contracts and documents and do any and all things
11 necessa;y or convenient to accomplish the project?
12
13 MOTION: Selectman Littlefield moved, with Selectman Hart seconding, recommending
14 passage of Article 42, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
IS
16 Article 43: Shall the Town ofMount Desert be authorized to appropriate an amount not
17 to exceed $50, 000.00 from the Capital Gains Reserve Account, #400-24202 tofimd the
I 8 design and construction, including all materials, equipment and labor, of a subsurface
I 9 irrigation system, for the so-cal/ed Village Green and the lawii area adjacent to the
20 Yachtsman Faciliti both being located in the Village ofNortheast Harbor; and /hrther,
2! shall the Board ofSelectmen be authorized to execute any and all contracts and
22 documents and do any and all things necessary or convenient to accomplish the project?
23
24 MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman Hart seconding, rccommending
25 passage of Article 43, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
26
27 Article 45: To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Ton’,i ofMount Desert will vote to
28 raise and appropriate for Department 200 through 221 General Government —

29 Governing Body (‘Board ofSelectmen,), Town Management, Tou’,z Clerk, Registrar,
30 Elections, Planning Board, Finance, Treastu-et; Tax (‘ollector, Assessment, Code
31 Enforcement, Unallocated Funds, Human Resources, and Technology for the 2018—
32 2019 Town Budget.
33
34 Chairman Macauley inquired as to the breakdown of the amount. And specifically, how
35 much for the Governing Body’s Legal costs. Town Manager Lunt thought it was
36 approximately $5,000.00 allotted for the Governing Body’s legal expenses. He noted it
37 comprised several expenses.
38
39 MOTION: Selectman Mart moved, with Selectman Mooers seconding, recommending
40 passage of raising and appropriating $1,412,510.00 for Department 200 through 221
41 General Government - Governing Body (Board of Selectmen), Town Management. Town
42 Clerk, Registrar, Elections, Planning Board, Finance, Treasurer, Tax Collector,
43 Assessment, Code Enforcement, Unallocated Funds, Human Resources, and Technology
44 for the 2018—2019 Town Budget, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
45

0
Town ofMount Desert Board ofSelectmen Minutes, March 5, 2018
Page 8



Ankle 58: To see if the inhabitants of the Tou,z ofAioLnzt Desert will vote to increase the
proper/v tax levi’ limit by $70,412.00.

3
4 Town Manager Lunt noted that if the Board votes the budget with changes from how it’s
5 printed in the Warrant, then such a vote would be required.
6
7 MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman Littlefield seconding,
8 recommending passage of Article 58, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
9

10 Aricle 76: Shall an ordinance dated Mai’ 8. 2012 and entitled “Town ofMount Desert
11 ‘Marijuana Moratorium “ be enacted as follow in the Draft 1J’àrrant
12
13 Town Manager Lunt confirmed this was the edited draft. He noted that the legal nature
14 of a Moratorium is that it proves its necessity through stating risk. A Moratorium that
15 does not state risk really can’t be validated.
16
17 Mr. Lunt reminded the Board that this was merely the vehicle to get to an Ordinance.
18
19 MOTION: Selectman Dudman moved, with Selectman Hart seconding, recommending
20 passage of Article 76, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
21

B. Award of the construction contract for the State Route 3/198 MF1 Highway
Rehabilitation Project to RE. Jordan & Sons ofEllsworth, Maine at a cost of
$850, 783.50from Account Number 3000038-5 7710; grant authorization to Public Works
Director Tony Smith to execute the contract ii’ith RE. Jordan & Sotis on behafof the
Town and; authorize the expenditure of the remaining balance of$84,601.73 of G.E.
Johnston & .4ssociates $149, 000 engineering budget/br technical services related to the
completion ofthe project from Account Number 3000038-57710

29
30 MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman Hart seconding, award of the
31 construction contract for the State Route 3/198 MN Highway Rehabilitation Project to
32 R.F. Jordan & Sons of Ellsworth. Maine at a cost of 5850,783.50 from Account Number
33 3000038-57710; zrant authorization to Public Works Director Tony Smith to execute the
34 contract with R.F. Jordan & Sons on behalf of the Town and; authorize the expenditure of
35 the remaining balance of 584,601.73 of G.F. Johnston & Associates SI 49,000
36 engineering budget for technical sen’ices related to the completion of the project from
37 Account Number 3000038-577 10, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
38
39 C. Presentation and discussion of the Northeast Harbor Village Center
40 improvements P-oject bid ,-esults, including the recommendation by the citizen committee
41 ofrequesting the total project cost oIS3, 963,485 be included in the appropriate MaT’
42 2018 Town Meeting warrant article
43
44 Public Works Director Smith pointed out the bid summary was included in the Board
45 packets. RF Jordan was the low bidder. In an effort to lower the price of the project, the
46 Committee asked for a credit at the contractor’s request if the contractor can maintain

Town ofMount Desert Board ofSelectmen Minutes, March 5, 2018
Page 9



one-way southerly traffic during construction. The Committee opted to postpone
2 construction of the southerly park as well as the payers at the intersection of Sea St. and
3 Main St. These project deductions brings the price down to the project cost as noted.
4 Director Smith requests the project cost of S3.963,485 be included in the May2018 Town
5 Meeting Warrant contingent on availability of funding, and that RF Jordan be awarded
6 the contract for the bid amount of $2,193,900.00, contingent on availability of flrnding.
7 Director Smith noted each detail of this project has been closely reviewed and examined
8 to reach this price.
9

10 Tracy Abram stated that all the crosswalks and parks on Main Street appear to be located
11 in front of lots that Rising Tide Partners own. She stated this placement has erased
12 parking in front of these properties. She hoped there would be flexibility in relocating
13 those spaces. Director Smith noted the Committee has worked with the owner who is
14 aware of the design. The crosswalk by 131 Main St. was located near a fire hydrant so
15 the crosswalk is within the already existing setback created by the hydrant. Director
16 Smith realized there was no space that would meet with 100% approval of the property
17 owners. Placement of crosswalks is also in part due to design standards and safety
18 connected to the traffic shifting from 2-way to I-way traffic.
19
20 Mr. Smith noted that a number of business owners have asked about changes, and the
21 Committee will take another look at placement of the crosswalks.
77

23 Selectman Hart asked about the potential for new parking installed on Tracy Rd. and
24 connections between Tracy Rd. parking and Main St. being made. Director Smith
25 affirmed that parking on Tracy Rd. was part of Phase Two of the project. The intent is to
26 add more parking.
27
28 The timeframe for the work has not changed, despite the reductions in work noted by
29 Director Smith. There is no performance bonus. The project is scheduled to last two
30 winter construction seasons. There will be no construction during the period between
31 Memorial Day Weekend and the middle of October. The contractors will be penalized
32 should they delay beyond the two winter construction seasons agreed upon. Change
33 Orders will only be allowed should the circumstances surrounding it prove acceptable,
34 and test borings of the area have been done. This work does not include the Water
35 Company work.
36
37 Ms. Abram asked who would be maintaining the park planned for the area near 123 Main
38 St. She would like the park cleaned daily. Director Smith confirmed that the park would
39 have a daily trash pick-up each morning.
40
41 Given the expansions planned, there’s only a minimal number of parking spots lost to the
42 project.
43
44 D. Consideration ofaward of the constritdilon contract for (lie Northeast Harbor
45 VIllage (‘enter Improvements Project in the amount of52, 193.000 to R. P. Jordan & Sotis
46 ofEllsworth, conUngent on May 2018 Town Meeting approval ofprojectfimding. Q

Town ofMount Desert Board ofSelectmen Minutes. March 5, 2018
Page 10



2 MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman Littlefield seconding, awarding
3 the construction contract for the Northeast Harbor Village Center Improvements Project
4 in the amount of S2, 193,000 to R.F. Jordan & Sons of Ellswonh, contingent on May 201$
5 Town Meeting approval of project flrnding, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
6
7 K Discussion ofmobile vendor locations for 2018
S
9 Harbor Committee member Rick Savage referenced the plan created by CES. The

10 Committee was in agreement with the design and placement of two mobile vendors and
11 the weekly farmer’s market. There is off-road parking. Road space and parking space is
12 not being used. The Harbor Committee feels the traffic flow will be safer with this plan.
13 Electricity will be provided for the vendors, eliminating the need for generators. Stone
14 dust will be used, as opposed to asphalt. Farmer’s Market vendors will park in such a
15 way that access to their booths will be away from the traffic.
16
17 Selectman Dudman noted that five mobile vendors are currently allowed in the Town of
1$ Mount Desert. Two vendors have applied for this year, and a third has received an
19 application, but has not returned it. Discussion ensued regarding the question of two
20 versus three mobile vendors.
21

Restaurant owners in town felt the Town was unfairly supporting these businesses by
providing, at no cost, electricity hookups and space, when established businesses were
never provided such amenities. Their taxes are paying for their competition’s amenities.
Additionally, mobile vendors have a very low rent for their space. Local restaurant
owners had been assured food offered by the mobile vendors would offer a wider variety,
in order to offset the competition. The space on the harbor is a prime spot, and mobile
vendors only had to set up during the tourist season. They were free to leave once the
tourist season was over with none of the cost associated with a business in the off season.

30
3 Lengthy discussion of mobile vendors ensued.
32
33 It was noted the Town seemed to prefer a stationary site for the vendors, hence the
34 dedicated spot on the harbor.
35
36 Pricing for the proposed work will not be estimated until the final design is achieved and
37 approved. Once a Plan has been approved Director Smith can solicit cost estimates.
3$
39 Harbor Committee Member Chris Moore said that the plan for the harbor was created
40 primarily to address the farmer’s market concerns. Installing electrical hookups for the
41 mobile vendors was merely a way to help offset the noise complaints stemming from
42 generator use. Two is the limit of mobile vendors the Committee feels is acceptable, in
43 relation to public safety, attracting people, and traffic issues. Once this scenario is in
44 place for another year or two, the Town can better see how it’s working and what can be
45 improved on. Mr. Moore felt adding another mobile vendor at this juncture was
16 premature.

Town ofMount Desert Board ofSelectmen Minutes, March 5. 2018
Page 11



2 Je Miller asked whether there was a way to dictate the menus to ensure variety? 0
3 Chairman Macauley felt the Board would not get into the business of menu management.
4
5 The permits for a mobile vendor space are $250.00. The Board has the right to revisit the
6 cost.
7
S MOTION: Selectman Dudman moved, with Selectman Mooers seconding, to follow the
9 plan presented by Public Works Director Smith and the Harbor Committee, and cap the

10 number of food trucks at the harbor for this year at two.
Il
12 A sign at the harbor for the restaurants in town was requested. Selectman Dudman
13 thought there was a sign and a map directory at the marina.
14
IS Ms. Abrams asked why the Town had not been informed of the project cost. Director
16 Smith reiterated that once the Plan has been approved he can solicit cost estimates.
17
IS Selectman Hart suggested that in an effort to be prepared for any future change, the site
19 be prepared for up to three mobile vendors.
20
21 Restaurant owners inquired whcther they can apply for mobile vendor spots and, if they
22 are chosen in the lottery for vcndors, choose to leave the spots empty. The ordinance
23 reads that after seven consecutive days of non-use, a permit can be pulled and awarded to
24 someone else.
25
26 Motion approved 5-0.
27
28 XI. New Business
29 A. Request to aurhot-ize a Public Space Special Event Application to the MDI YMCA
30 for HalfIron Distance Tuiathalon scheduled Scprenther 30, 2018
31
32 MOTION: Selectman Hart moved, with Selectman Mooers seconding, authorization of a
33 Public Space Special Event Application to the MDI YMCA for Half Iron Distance
34 Triathalon scheduled September 30, 2018, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
35
36 B. Request authorization to use fimds from the Wastewater Equipment Resen’c
37 Account Number 4050500-24501 with a current balance ofapproximately S325. 745 to
38 purchase a Multiquip Whispenvatt DCA 45 551U4F, 45 kWportable emergency standby
39 generator on a single axle trailer from (‘MD Power Systems in Herinon, Maine for the
40 quoted price of$34,916
41
42 MOTION: Selectman Hart moved, with Selectman Littlefleld seconding authorization to
43 use hinds from the Wastewater Equipment Reserve Account Number 4050500-24501
44 with a current balance of approximately $325,745 to purchase a Multiquip Whisperwatt
45 DCA 45 SSIU4F, 45 kW portable emergency standby generator on a single axle trailer

Town u/Mount Desert Board ofSelectmen Minutes, March 5, 2018
Page 12



from CMD Power Systems in Hermon, Maine for the quoted price of $34,916, as
presented. Motion approved 5-0.

1

4 C. Req ties! to authorize (lie release and expenditure of59, 70000 to The Musson
5 Group from Bartlett (‘IF Line Acct. #64010300-24671 for the Reallgmnen! of the Bartlett
6 Landing Mooring Field
7
8 Harbomiaster Lemoine noted the amount was put out to bid with three vendors. Musson
9 Group and CF Jolmston bid as a team and came in as the low bid.

10
ii MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman 1-fart seconding, authorizing the
12 release and expenditure of $9,700.00 to The Musson Group from Bartlett OP Line Acct.
13 #64010300-24671 for the Realignment of the Bartlett Landing Mooring Field, as
14 presented. Motion approved 5-0.
15
16 D. Request to authorize the release and expenditure of54593.39 to I Finger’s
17 Weldingfrom the Northeast Harbor Reserve Acct. #64010100-24680 for the replacement
1 8 of a motor and hydraulic pump
19
20 It was noted the pump being replaced was a prototype. The replacement will be a heavier
21 pump. The contractor paid for the other one.
77

23 MOTION: Selectman Hart moved with Selectman Littlefield seconding, authorizing the
14 release and expenditure of $4,593.39 to Winger’s Welding from the Northeast Harbor
25 Reserve Acct. #64010100-24680 for the replacement of a motor and hydraulic pump, as
26 presented. Motion approved 5-0.
27
28 E. Request to authorize the release and expenditure of 56. 792.00 front account
29 54040300-24471 (‘Fire Equipment Reserve) for the purpose ofpurchasing a MSA Galaxy
30 GiL’ calibration system, which will include the Altair Pro Singles module
31
32 MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman Littlefield secondinu,
33 authorization of the release and expenditure of $6,792.00 from account 54040300-24471
34 (Fire Equipment Reserve) for the purpose of purchasing a MSA Galaxy GX2 calibration
35 system, which will include the Altair Pro Singles module as presented. Motion approved
36 5-0.
37
38 F. Request to authorize the release and expenditure of587,09 7.88from account
39 #4040300-244 71 (Fire Equipment Resen’ç) for the purpose ofpurchasing 30 sets of
40 structuralfirefighting gearfrom Bergeron Protective Cloth big
41
42 This expenditure is part of the CIP. As gear is starting to show wear, the expense was
43 moved up. There will be sufficient funds left in the account. Interior firefighters were
44 given the option of having two full sets of gear. It’s been shown that the risk of cancer is
45 higher in firefighters, due to the hazardous materials they are exposed to. An extra set of

Town ofMount Desert Board ofSelectmen Minutes, March 5, 2018
Page 13



gear can help lower that exposure. There were ten individuals that chose to have a
2 second set of gear.

4 MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman Hart seconding, authorization of
5 the release and expenditure of $87,097.88 from account #4040300-2447 1 (Fire
6 Equipment Reserve) for the purpose of purchasing 30 sets of structural firefighting gear
7 from Bergeron Protective Clothing as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
8
9 G. Presentation of the Citizen Transparency site

10 Treasurer Mahar presented on the Citizen Transparency website. It has been difficult to
II create a system where Board and committee members can access information with
12 financial soffivare, due to security and reporting issues.
13
14 Citizen Transparency is a Munis program. It is an online product that pulls from the
15 Town’s database. Ms. Mahar gave a brief overview of the system.
16
1 7 Information can be pulled from various departments, graphs and charts can be created. It
I 8 shows expenditures, in relation to the budget. Department breakdowns can be created,
19 down to the line item expenditures and vendors. Revenues can be reviewed the same
20 way. Spending over a certain period of time can be reviewed as well.
21
22 The system is web-based, so the public can access the information. The information is
23 updated weekly. The information is pulled from the Town’s information; however, it is
24 not linked. Personal information or othcr sensitive information cannot be accessed.
25
26 The cost of the program is estimated at $7500.00— a one-time payment. There have been
27 requests from the public for this kind of information.
28
29 Town Manager Lunt noted the Human Resources piece of the software system is
30 currently installed and being used by the Town. Treasurer Mahar reported that no one in
31 the State of Maine is currently using this Citizen Transparency site. As the information is
32 being pulled from the work the Town is doing, there is no real extra work involved for
33 Town employees.
34
35 No action was taken on this item.
36
37 H. Scholarship Recommendations
38
39 MOTION: Selectman Dudman moved, with Selectman Mooers seconding, the
40 Scholarship Recommendations as presented. (Horace and Mary Reynolds Stipend in the
41 amount of S 100.00; Frank F. Stanley Trust Scholarship in the amount of $100.00) Motion
42 approved 5-0.
43
44 L Dobbs Productions Inc. Request to use Public Access channel 2
45

0
Town ofMount Desert Board ofSelectmen Minutes, March 5, 2018
Page 14



MOTION: Selectman Dudman moved, with Selectman Hart seconding approval of the
2 request to use Public Access Charmel 2, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
3
4 XII. Other Business
5 There was no other business.
6
7 XIII. Treasurer’s Warrants
8 Tabled Motion from the Febntan’ 20, 2018 Minutes: Approve Signed TreasitreKs Pav,v//.
9 State Fees, & PR Benefit J1’znvnts AP1848, AP1849, and PR 1818 in the aniojoits of

10 527, 762.47, 51,3 73.25, and 597.171.16, respective/i’
11 MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman Dudman seconding, Approval of
12 Signed Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants API 848, API 849, and
13 PR1818 in the amounts of$27,762.47, $1,373.25, and $97,171.16, respectively, as presented.
14 Motion approved 4-0-1 (Littlefield in Abstention)
15
16 A. Approve & Sign Treasurers Warrant AP1853 in the aniou,zz of 5386,853.12
17 MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman Littlefield seconding, approval and
18 signature ofTreasurer’s Warrant AP1853 in the amount of S386,855.I2 as presented. Motion
19 approved 5-0.
20
21 B. Apptvi’e Signed Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warnmzs AP1851,
22 AP1852, and PR 1819 in the amounts of 52,447. 75, 56,662.84, and 599,719.32,
23 MOTION: Selectman Dudman moved, with Selectman Hart seconding, approval of Signed

__ 24 Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants AP1851, AP1852, and PR 1819 in
25 the amounts of $2,447.75. $6,662.84. and S99.7 19.32, respectively as presented. Motion
26 approved 4-0-1 (Littlefield in Abstention).
27
28 C. Acknoitledge Treasurer c Sc/zoo! Board AP/Pai’roll fVcuramzts 11 and 18 in i/ic’
29 amounts of520,236.44 and 572,489.48, respective/v
30 MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman Dudman seconding,
31 acknowledgement of Treasurer’s School Board AP/Payroll Warrants II and 18 in the
32 amounts of $20,236.44 and $72,489.48, respectively as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
33
34 XIV. Adjournment
35
36 MOTION: Selectman Hart moved, with Selectman Dudman seconding, adjournment.
37 Motion approved 5-0.
38
39 The meeting was adjourned at 7:55PM.
40 Respectthlly Submitted,
41
42
43
44 Wendy Littlefield, Secretary’
45

Town ofMount Desert Roan? ofSelectmen Minutes, March 5, 2018
Page 15



0

0

0



Town of Mount Desert
Board of Selectmen

Regular Meeting
Monday, March 19, 2018

Location: Meeting Room, Town Hall, Northeast Harbor
6
7 Present were Chairman John Macauley, Selectmen Man Hart. Rick Mooers, Wendy
8 Littlefield. and Martha Dudman.
9

10 Town Manager Durlin Lunt. Treasurer Kathy Mahar, Public Works Director Tony Smith, and
11 Town Clerk Claire Woolfolk were in attendance.
12
13 Members of the public were also present.
14
15 1. Call to order at 6:00 p.m.
16 Chairman Macauley called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM.
17
18 JI. Executive Session
19 A. Pu,ciuz,zt to JMRSA405 (6ftD,) Discussion regarding union negotiations with
20 Teamsters Local Union No. 340
21
22 MOTION: Selectman Rick Mooers moved, with Selectman Wendy Littlefield seconding. to
23 enter into Executive Session. Motion approved 4-0.

4Th
is... 25 Selectman Dudman joined the Session in progress.

26
27 MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman Littlefield seconding, to leave
28 Executive Session. Motion approved 5-0.
29
30 The Board left Executive Session at 6:28PM.
31
32 III. Public Hearing(s)
33 There were none scheduled.
34
35 IV. Minutes
36 No Minutes were presented.
37
38 V. Appointments/Recognitions/Resignations
39 A. Resignation ofJoev Chittenden from the Housing Authority as Tenant Representative
40
41 MOTION: Selectman Han moved, with Selectman Littlefield seconding, to accept the
42 resignation of Joey Chittenden from the Housing Authority as Tenant Representative as
43 presented and with many thanks. Motion approved 5-0.
44
45 VI. Consent Agenda
46 A. Departnzenz Reports: Wastewater (January and Feb-uaty,L Public Works (January
47 and Februrny,)

Town ofMount Desert Board ofSelectmen Minutes, March 19, 2018
Page 1



1 B. Hancock County Commissioners meeting minutes ofFebi-uaty 6 and February 12,
2 2018
3
4 MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman Littlefield seconding, acceptance of
5 the Consent Agenda as presented.
6
7 Selectman Dudman inquired about Gilpatdck Cove stonnwater. Public Works Director
8 Smith reported there was no cause for concern. Should the situation change, he would
9 apprise the Board.

I0
11 Motion approved 5-0.
12
13 VII. Selectman’s Reports
14 Chairman Macauley reported that CEO Kimberly Keene requested the ordinance relating to
15 Boarding Houses be removed from the Warrant. The Article will need to be formally
16 withdrawn.
17
18 MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman Hart seconding, to withdraw the
19 Article from the Warrant. Motion approved 5-0.
20
21 Selectman Mooers reported that the Planning Board hoped to explore the possibility of
22 licensing for rooming houses. This would offer some level of checks and balances.
23
24 VIII. Old Business
25 No Old Business was presented.
26
27 IX. New Business
28 It was agreed to take some of the New Business items out of order.
29
30 A. Presentation and rei’ieiv fFY 2(116-20)7 Audit I,v James UK Wadman, CPA
31
32 James Wadman reviewed the audit with the Board. Points in the audit he covered include:
ii

34 - Federal Funding has necessitated additional auditing, making the report thicker this year
35 than in years past.
36 - Pages 1 and 2 consist of the auditors’ Opinion Letter. This year, the opinion is
37 unmodified, meaning there were no exceptions requiring mention.
38 - Pages 3 through 9 are the Management’s Discussion and Analysis. The total ending fund
39 baLances were S 10,003,898.00. A portion of that, the General Unassigned Fund Balance,
40 was $2,893,357.00. This is the Surplus and represents approximately 18% of the cost of
41 expenses for the year.
42 - Financial Statements begin on Page LO of the audit. The initial numbers on pages 10 and
43 II are high because the figures include the Town’s fixed assets. Page 12 statements use
44 the same figures used to prepare the budget and are lower.
45 - Page 41 shows Budget versus Actual Operating Statement. This shows any budget
46 modifications made during the year. The budget intended to reduce the Surplus by
47 $400,000.00. The Surplus was actually increased by approximately $400,000.00. This
48 makes a favorable budget variance of approximately $800,000.00. (J

Town ofMount Desert Board ofSelectmen Minutes, March 19, 2018
Page 2



- Revenues exceeded budget by a little over $50,000.00. However, the biggest change ;vas
on the Expenditure side. Favorable Budget balances are at S629,000.00.

- Pages 42 and 43 cover Disclosures regarding participation in the Maine Public
Employees’ Retirement System. Looking at these estimated liabilities, they are
substantial. Eventually a ten-year comparison review will be created. Currently it shows
the liability is rising. Mr. Wadman noted these figures are a year behind in the Maine
System.

S
9 Selectman Mooers asked about the proportionate share of the net pension liability; it

10 appears to have doubled in three years. Was this a trend that would be recurring? Mr.
II Wadman noted the investment side and the actuary side both would have to be looked at,
12 and how they’re growing. Local contributions can used to offset and control these
13 liabilities. The figures are dependent on salaries, so as they change, so will the figures.
14
15 - The Participating Local Districts Plan is on page 44. At this point no one is taking action
16 or funding these figures, but they do bear watching. In the Notes it goes into detail about
17 the assumptions and estimations involved.
IS - On Page 49 is a statement of changes in unassigned fund balance in the Surplus. The
19 Town began the year with $2,479,562.00 and ended with $2,893,457.00. There is a
20 favorable budget variance of over $8 13,000.00, minus the $400,000.00 used to reduce
21 taxation.
22 - There are financial statements included for various reserve funds and CIP funds.
23 - Pages 64 through 73 refer to the Federal Funds. On Page 70 is the Schedule of Findings
24 and Question Cost. This is where Management Letter Comments will be found. There

are none included this year. which is an improvement.
26 - Page 2 of a handout Mr. Wadman presented, relates to Long-term Debt, Mount Desert’s
27 debt is between 16 and 17 milLion in total debt. In comparison to the State Valuation,
28 Mount Desert is at less than 1%. and well within any State statutes. It can be as high as
29 15%.
30
31 Chairman Macauley asked about the low-risk oddity. Mr. Wadman explained that in order to
32 qualify as a low-risk oddity for federal funding, the Town must have for the previous two
33 years federal funding audits and had no findings during those two years. Because Mount
34 Desert had no federal funding the previous two years, they can’t qualify as low-risk oddity.
35
36 B. Katelyn Bud! d/b/a The Fork & Table (Tasteflul Tides LLC) 102 Main Street,
37 Northeast Harbo,’ requestfor Liquor License Renewal

38
39 MOTION: Selectman Hart moved, with Selectman Mooers seconding, approval of Katelyn
40 Buell d’b/a The Fork & Table (Tasteful Tides LLC) 102 Main Street, Northeast Harbor
41 request for Liquor License Renewal, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.
42
43 C. Winter Spring Inc. cl/b/a Colonel’s Restaurant 143 Main Street, Northeast Harbor
44 request for Liquor License Renewal
45
46 MOTION: Selectman Hart moved, with Selectman Dudman seconding, approval of Winter
47 Spring thc. d/b/a Colonel’s Restaurant 143 Main Street, Northeast Harbor request for Liquor

License Renewal, as presented. Motion approved 5-0.

Town ofAfounr Desert Board ofSelectmen Minutes, March 19, 2018
Page 3



1 D. Dtcczission with Citizen Steven Smith concerning the past, present, andfuture of
2 Otter Creek
3
4 Otter Creek resident Steven Smith requested to know the status of the proposed mm-around
5 space at the bottom of the Town Landing in Otter Creek.
6
7 Public Works Director Tony Smith reported that he has begun discussions with Acadia
8 National Park regarding the turn-around. Follow up and a site visit are planned for the next
9 week or two. It was agreed that Public Works Director Smith was authorized to move

10 forward on this project.
11
12 Mr. Smith suggested Acadia National Park Superintendent Kevin Schneider report on the
13 Park’s stance on the proposed work. Public Works Director Smith felt it was premature to
14 ask the Park for a position. Now that the Public Works Director has been authorized to
1 5 pursue the work, he will follow up with the Park.
16
I 7 Otter Creek resident Dennis Smith commented on the estuary area. He stated the openings to
1 8 the causeway have changed over the years. They are no longer as big as they were.
19 Reclamation of these areas can be done, as evidenced by the removal of dams on rivers in
20 Maine. Steven Smith stated that there were several conservancy agencies in support of
21 cleaning up the estuary area.
77

23 Steven Smith voiced frustration at a lack of cooperation from Acadia National Park. He read
24 a letter he had written to the Board and Public in attendance. This letter is a part of the
25 Board’s packet.
26
27 Mr. Smith asked for comment from Acadia National Park Superintendent Kevin Schneider.
28
29 Chairman Macauley acknowledged that there were things out of the Park Superintendent’s
30 control. There are things that the Town is happy to support. But the Town can only support
3 I things that are appropriate and legal. The Turn-around and landing can be improved.
32 Perhaps some vista clearing can be done. But the Town must operate within parameters so
33 they don’t encroach on the Park’s bailiwick. The two entities must work together.
34
35 rfr. Smith requested water connected to the fish house. Mr. Smith referred to a drawing and
36 alleged that the Park has encroached on the Village of Otter Creek’s boundaries. This
37 encroachment has taken from the village quarrying opportunities, wood, and proper ingress
38 and egress. Mr. Smith stated the lack of stewardship in the woodland surrounding Otter
39 Creek has created a fire hazard. If the woods were maintained, there was no reason the
40 villagers couldn’t use cut wood from the area wood for themselves.
41
42 Superintendent Kevin Schneider spoke. He assured the Board that working with
43 communities is of the utmost importance to the Park. The Park has built trails to the
44 waterfront, completed ethnographic assessments to document the cultural history, and
45 worked with the Town to provide a boat launch. Superintendent Schneider was not aware of
46 the need for a mm-around. Acadia National Park is happy to work with any interested group.
47 Some of these issues could be solved by cooperating. A clear list of needs and prioritization
48 needs to be created.

Town ofMount Desert Board ofSelectmen Minutes, March 19, 2018
Page 4



2 Dennis Smith discussed the Otter Creek Causeway. He stated he had pictures from the 1930s
3 showing many fish that can no longer be found in the waters. Chairman Macauley noted the
4 causeway was a famous structure, and not a major river with dams that can be removed.
5 Some realistic expectations need to be agreed upon. He did not feel it was realistic to remove
6 the causeway. Mr. Smith felt it should be removed, and alleged that the estuary was built due
7 to illegal decisions and votes. The estuary is just as important as the major rivers. Mr. Smith
S stated the path that was built was at the expense of the road. Mr. Smith is not allowed to use
9 the road to access his property. Mr. Smith felt the Park will not cooperate, therefore he

10 insisted the Town write a letter to the Secretary of the Interior.
11
12 Public Works Director Smith and Chairman Macauley both agreed that a comprehensive list
13 of concerns and a committee to prioritize them should be the first step.
14
15 Town Manager Lunt stated he needed more information before a letter could be written. He
16 suggested getting a comprehensive list of concerns together, work to complete what can be
17 done, and write to the Secretary of Interior with the list of concerns that Superintendent
18 Schneider can’t help with. The list is the first step.
19
20 Selectman Mooers noted that the letter will have to reflect that a diligent effort has been
2 1 made to resolve the issues.
77

23 Mr. Smith agreed to pull a full list together.
24
25 E. Authorization to open Electronic Payments Bank Account
26
27 MOTION: Selectman Dudman moved, with Selectman Littlefield seconding, authorization
28 to open Electronic Payments Bank Account, as presented (I. Authorization to establish Non-
29 Profit Business Checking Account #8330077028 with Bar Harbor Bank and Trust Company for
30 Credit Card Payment transactions as stated in the attached Corporate Authorization Resolution,
3 1 and 2. Authorization for the Treasurer Kathryn Mahar and Deputy Treasurer Durlin Lunt Jr. to
32 be signatories on the account.). Motion approved 5-0.
33
34 X. Other Business
35 Treasurer Mahar pointed out that based on her analysis, another $100,000.00 could be taken
36 from the Town’s surplus for offsetting taxes. $400,000.00 has already been taken for this
37 year. It would bring the rate down to 14%, and remove the requirement to vote on the LD I.
38
39 MOTION: Selectman Dudman moved, with Selectman Mooers seconding, to authorize
40 using an additional $100,000.00 to offset taxes, as presented by Treasurer Mahar. Motion
41 approved 5-0.
42
43 XL Treasurer’s Warrants
44 A. Approve & Sign Treasurer’s Wanvnt AP1856 in the amount of$418,514.89
45
46 MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman Littlefield seconding, approval and
47 Signature of Treasurer’s Warrant AP1856 in the amount of $428,514.89, as presented.
48 Motion approved 5-0.

Town ofMount Desert Board ofSelectmen Minutes, March 19, 2018
Page 5



B. Approve Signed Treasurer s FavmlL State Fees, & PR Benefit IVanyznts AP1854, em
2 AP1855, and PR1820 in the amounts of $86,540.12, $1,432.25, and $88,659.88, respective/v
3
4 MOTION: Selectman Dudman moved, with Selectman Hart seconding, approval of signed
5 Treasurer’s Payroll, State Fees, & PR Benefit Warrants AP1854, AP1855, and PR1820 in the
6 amounts of 586,540.12, $1,432.25, and S88.659.88, respectively. As presented. Motion
7 approved 4-0-1 (Littlefield in Abstention).
8
9 C. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Sc/zoo! Board AP/Pavroll Warrants 19 in the amount of

10 $73,509.20
11
12 MOTION: Selectman Dudman moved, with Selectman Littlefield seconding
13 acknowledgement of the Treasurer’s School Board AP/Payroll Warrant 19 in the amount of
14 $73,509.20, as presented. Motion approved 4-0-1 (Macauley in Abstention).
15
16 XII. Adjournment
17 MOTION: Selectman Mooers moved, with Selectman Littlefield seconding, adjournment.
IS Motion approved 5-0.
19
20 The meeting was adjourned at 7:30 PM.
21
7

23 Respectfiuly Submitted,
24
25
26
27 Wendy Littlefield. Secretary
28

0
Town ofMount Desert Board ofSelectmen Minutes, Marc?, 19, 2018
Page 6



APPOINTMENTS

RECOG N ITIONS

RESIGNATIONS





/1 d?

itt
;; )_;J
“I

I

MEMO

To: Board of Selectmen and Town Manager
From: John LeMoine Harbonnaster
Re: Appointment of Catherine Forthofer as Part time marina office manager
Date: March 26, 2018

I would like to hire Catherine Forthofer to flit the Seasonal Office Manager Position. Catherine
has worked at the marina for the last three seasons. She has acquired the knowledge and
experience in the operations of the Marina and will he a great fit for the job.

Catherine would start part time in April as needed and transition to 40 hours a week in May.
Catherine Forthofer $16.00 per hour

Will you please place this appointment on the next available select hoard meeting?

Thank )OU

John LeMoine
Ilarhonnaster

Town ofMount Desert
John Lemoine, Harhonnaster

40 Harbor Drive. P.O. Box 237
Northeast Harbor, ME 04662-0248

‘4,

Telephoni 207-276-5737

Web Address
E-mail Address h;irhormastcpa_InLdescn.0r2

Fax 207-276-5711

wn .nitdesert.ortz

CUsencwoolfolk AppDatu LccalMicmsoft WindowsTemporaiy InccmctFilcs Content.0uEIook’R5SN0GJiCatie20lSdoc 32620



47

%,N /j’
\ _,

Michael Bender
Fire Chief
Mount Desert Fire Department
P0 Box 248
Northeast Harbor, Maine 04662

Mount Desert Fire Department
Michael Bender, Fire Chief
21 Sea Street. P.O. Box 248

Northeast Harbor, ME 04662-0248

Telephone 207-276-5111 Fax 207-276-5732
Web Address snw.mtdescaoru

flrechie1’i rntdecert.org

Please accept this letter as notification that I am resiing from my position as an On-Call
Firefighter with the Mount Dcsch Fire Department, effective March 6, 2018. This is so I cmi
accept a position as an Acting Full-Time Firefighter with the department. I understand that I
cmi request to be re-activated as an On-Call Firefighter when my position as an Acting Full
Time Firefighter ends, as long as I am in good standing with the department.

March 19, 2018

Dear Chief:

0

0

0

Sincerely,

Benjamin Gilley



n 0 z (‘
a m z 0 m z 0





Town Clerk

From: Tony Smith
?nt: Thursday, March 29, 2018 5:09 PM

To: Durlin Lunt
Cc: Town Clerk
Subject: Construction schedules

Please include this in the BOS consent agenda for April 2. Thank you.

Subject to approval at town meeting, we have potentially three infrastructure projects that will be constructed this year,
improvements to Route 198; the Sylvan Neighborhood drainage project and the Main Street improvements project.
Following is a list of the schedules for each project as of today:

1. Route 198: RF Jordan plans to start work in mid-April 2018 and finish the first week in June 2Q18, including all
paving. Work hours will likely be Monday to Friday and maybe some Saturdays; no Sundays; from 7:00 AM to
6:00 PM. This means no equipment, trucks etc. in operation before 7:00 and after 6:00.

2. Sylvan Drainage: MacQuinn would begin work in early June 2Q18 and finish in early September 2018, including
clean-up. Work hours likely the same as those for Route 198 shown above.

3. NEH Main Street improvements: The work is scheduled to be completed over two winter construction seasons,
2018-2019 and 2019-2020, to avoid impacting businesses and residents thru the summer months. Work is to
begin no earlier than October 15th and finish for the season and be done and cleaned up for the season before
Memorial Day weekend. Work hours are Monday thru Saturday, 7:00 AM to 6:00 PM; work is allowed all day
Saturday to account for the start and stop dates in October and May; no work on Sundays without permission;
This means no equipment, trucks etc. in operation before 7:00 and after 6:00.

As is typical, the schedules and daily work hours are subject to weather, unforeseen physical conditions, unplanned
circumstances, etc.

Thank you.

Tony Smith, Public Works Director
Chairman, Acadia Disposal District
Town of Mount Desert
P.O. Box 248
Northeast Harbor, Maine 04662
Tel. 207-276-5743
Fax. 207-276-5742
directormtdesert.or
God Bless America

1





— —
a 395 SQate Street
a Ellswurth, ia 04605
a www.mrcmahaerg

8g6-254-3507
207-664-1700 • Voice
207-664-20E9 • Fax

goinder@mrcmahte.org • E-Mail

MEMORANDUM
TO: All Joining Members
FROM: Greg Lounder, Executive Director

RE: Interim MSW Delivery to Crossroads and JRL as of April 1, 2018

DATE: 28 March2018

I am writing to provide final information regarding arrangements for all Joining Members to manage

MSW as of April 1,2018. The Fiberight/Coastal Facility in Hampden (“Coastal”) will not be available to
accept MSW on April 1 or for an interim period of up to 6 months.

As shown in the attachment, the MRC has identified approximately 39 Joining Members that are
capable of having their MSW delivered directly to the Crossroads Landfill and has helped another 10
Joining Members to arrange for MSW delivery through the use of nearby transfer stations. These
Joining Members are instructed to proceed with the arrangements to have MSW delivered to the
Crossroads Landfill as of April 1,2018, until further notice, and to comply with all applicable delivery
requirements of the Crossroads Landfill. Coastal and WMI are working together to ensure that the
Joining Members are invoiced appropriately and receive clear instructions for payment of the $70 per
ton tipping fee during the interim period.

For the remaining Joining Members, as shown in the attachment, the MRC has developed an
arrangement for interim MSW delivery involving use of the Juniper Ridge Landfill (iRIj. This

arrangement was reached with the consent of (WMI), our primary contracted back-up disposal facility
during the bypass period. Coastal, and JRL are working together to ensure that the Joining Members are
invoiced appropriately and receive clear instructions for payment of the $70 per ton tipping fee during
the interim period

We appreciate your patience and support while we reached an interim MSW delivery resolution. We
also appreciate your readiness to respond on short notice on this directive from the MRC regarding this
arrangement being made available for your community and we thank you for your continuing
cooperation during this time of transition. Please contact us at 664-1700 with questions.

ENSURING AFFORDABLE, LONG TERM,
ENVIRONMENTALLY SOUND DISPOSAL OF MSW



In
te

ri
m

W
as

te
D

el
iv

er
y

V
er

si
o
n

3
.0

-
M

ar
ch

27
,

E
ff

ec
ti

v
e

A
pr

il
1,

2
0
1
8

L
o

ca
ti

o
n

s

2
0
1
8

T
o
w

n
D

el
iv

er
y

P
o
in

t
T

o
w

n
D

el
iv

er
y

P
o
in

t
T

o
w

n
D

el
iv

er
y

P
o
in

t

A
bb

ot
C

ro
ss

ro
ad

s
A

lb
io

n
C

ro
ss

ro
ad

s
A

lto
n

JR
L

A
rr

o
st

o
o
k

C
ou

nt
y

M
il

li
n
o
ck

et
t

A
tk

in
so

n
C

ro
ss

ro
ad

s

B
an

go
r

JR
L

B
ar

H
ar

bo
r

C
ro

ss
ro

ad
s

B
el

fa
st

C
ro

ss
ro

ad
s

B
lu

e
H

il
l/

S
ur

ry
JR

L

B
o
o
th

b
ay

R
eg

io
na

l
C

ro
ss

ro
ad

s

B
o

w
er

b
an

k
C

ro
ss

ro
ad

s

B
u

ck
sp

o
rt

JR
L

B
ra

dl
ey

JR
L

B
re

w
er

JR
L

B
ro

ok
s

C
ro

ss
ro

ad
s

B
ro

w
nv

il
le

C
ro

ss
ro

ad
s

B
ur

li
ng

to
n

JR
L

C
ar

m
el

JR
L

C
en

tr
al

P
en

o
b

sc
o

t
JR

L

C
he

rr
yf

ie
ld

JR
L

C
h

es
te

r
M

il
li

no
ck

et
*

C
hi

na
C

ro
ss

ro
ad

s

C
li

ft
on

JR
L

C
or

in
na

C
ro

ss
ro

ad
s

C
ra

n
b
er

ry
Is

le
s

E
M

R
to

C
ro

ss
ro

ad
s

D
ed

h
am

JR
L

D
ex

te
r

C
ro

ss
ro

ad
s

D
ix

m
on

t
JR

L

D
ov

er
-

F
ox

cr
of

t
C

ro
ss

ro
ad

s

E
dd

in
gt

on
JR

L

E
xe

te
r

C
ro

ss
ro

ad
s

F
re

ed
o
m

C
ro

ss
ro

ad
s

F
ra

nk
li

n
JR

L

F
re

n
ch

b
o

ro
E

M
R

to
C

ro
ss

ro
ad

s

G
ar

la
nd

M
id

M
ai

ne
SW

A

G
ui

ll
or

d
M

id
M

ai
ne

SW
A

H
am

pd
en

JR
L

H
ol

de
n

JR
L

H
ud

so
n

JR
L

K
no

x
C

ro
ss

ro
ad

s

Le
e

M
il

li
no

ck
et

*

L
ev

an
t

M
id

M
ai

ne
SW

A

L
ow

el
l

JR
L

L
uc

er
ne

JR
L

M
ar

ia
vi

lle
JR

L

M
at

ta
w

am
ke

ag
M

ill
in

oc
ke

t*

M
ill

in
oc

ke
t

C
ro

ss
ro

ad
s

M
ilo

C
ro

ss
ro

ad
s

M
on

so
n

C
ro

ss
ro

ad
s

M
on

tv
il

le
C

ro
ss

ro
ad

s

M
t

D
es

er
t

EM
R

to
C

ro
ss

ro
ad

s

N
or

th
er

n
K

at
ah

di
n

C
ro

ss
ro

ad
s

O
ak

la
nd

C
ro

ss
ro

ad
s

O
ro

no
JR

L

O
tis

JR
L

P
al

m
yr

a
C

ro
ss

ro
ad

s

P
ar

km
an

C
ro

ss
ro

ad
s

P
is

ca
ta

qu
is

C
ou

nt
y

JR
L

P
le

as
an

t
R

iv
er

SW
D

JR
L

S
an

ge
rv

il
le

C
ro

ss
ro

ad
s

S
ea

rs
m

on
t

JR
L

S
eb

ec
C

ro
ss

ro
ad

s

S
he

rm
an

N
or

th
er

n
K

at
ah

di
n

S
or

re
nt

o
JR

L

S
ou

th
w

es
t

H
ar

bo
r

EM
R

to
C

ro
ss

ro
ad

s
Sp

ri
ng

fi
el

d
M

ill
in

oc
ke

t*

St
.

A
lb

an
s

C
ro

ss
ro

ad
s

S
te

ub
en

JR
L

Su
lli

va
n

JR
L

S
w

an
s

Is
la

nd
JR

L

T
ho

rn
di

ke
C

ro
ss

ro
ad

s

T
re

m
on

t
EM

R
to

C
ro

ss
ro

ad
s

T
re

nt
on

EM
R

to
C

ro
ss

ro
ad

s

T
ro

y
C

ro
ss

ro
ad

s

U
ni

ty
C

ro
ss

ro
ad

s

W
al

do
bo

ro
G

ro
up

C
ro

ss
ro

ad
s

U
ni

on
R

iv
er

SW
D

JR
L

V
as

sa
lb

or
o

C
ro

ss
ro

ad
s

V
er

on
a

Is
la

nd
JR

L

W
is

ca
ss

et
C

ro
ss

ro
ad

s



C r 0 w C ‘a
n z m



C

0

0



Town of Mount Desert

Annual Town Meeting Warrant
Fiscal Year 2018—2019

As presented atthe
Annual Town Meeting

May7&82018

(



Table of Contents

Warrant Committee Report.1

Warrant Committee 2

Greeting 3

Election of Moderator 3

Election of Municipal Officers 3

Non-Voter recognition 3

Animal Welfare 4

Ordinances 4

Gifts 17

Leases, Agreements, Easements, Deeds 17

Fiscal Policy 19

Municipal Revenue 25

Municipal Appropriations 27

Marina Proprietary Fund 30

Elementary School Appropriations 31

Moratorium 35

Appendix A: Solid Waste Ordinance 39

Appendix B: LUZO Amendments to Shoreland Zoning 75

Appendix C 1 & 2: Rt. 198 DOT Agreement and Map 91

Appendix D 1-4: Northeast Harbor Streetscape Plans 96

Appendix E 1 & 2: Sylvan Road Drainage Project 100

Appendix F 1 & 2: Crosswalks Project 102

2018-2019 Estimated Tax Rate 104

2018 Municipal PropertyTax Levy Limit Worksheet (LD 1) 105

Municipal Expenditure Budget

Municipal Aevenue Budget

Municipal Capital Improvement Plan

Marina Expenditure Budget

Marina Revenue Budget

Marina Capital Improvement Budget

Mount Desert Elementary School Department Budget



Warrant Committee Report

The 2016 Warrant Committee for Town of Mount Desert, presently consists of 22
registered voters of the Town, appointed for 3-year terms by the Board of
Selectmen. Only the Warrant committee has it recommendations for each Warrant
article printed on the Warrant each year. We are asked to consider each article
proposed by the Board of Selectmen, Planning Board, School Board, and on
occasion by a citizen initiated petition. We represent true citizen in-put in the
development of the budget and warrant articles; and Town Government functions
best when all the parts participate fully.

Membership is a responsibility and it is also educational and rewarding. Some of our
members have served for years and offer a historical perspective to our discussions;
new members offer fresh insight that helps us to make the best decisions, when we
vote of our recommendations on the Warrant Articles.

Our Town Charter requires that the Warrant Committee include at least 20
registered voters. The Warrant Committee encourages any registered voters to
consider applying to the Board of Selectman to join the Warrant Committee. The
Warrant Committee is not a year round commitment, most of meetings start in early
January and end by middle March with our votes on each Warrant Article, unless
there is a Special Town Meeting scheduled during the year. This year the Warrant
Committee made a formal request to the Board of Selectman to have our vote
counts be printed with each article in the Warrant, which was unanimously passed
by the Board of Selectman. Please note the vote count in this year’s Warrant.

The Warrant Committee was very active this year attending most Board of
Selectman meetings during the budget process and offering our insight on many
issues, including the proposed Marijuana Moratorium. The Committee heard
presentations from all the Department Heads, explaining their individual budgets and
answering specific questions by the Warrant Committee, MDES Principal Gloria
Delsandro budget presentation for the elementary school, along with MDES School
Board, School Superintendent Dr. Marc Gousse, and Nancy Thurlow the Business
Manager who can explain the funding formulas required by the State of Maine.

We want to thank the all Department Head’s, the entire staff of the Town Office,
Town Manager Durlin Lunt, Principal Gloria Delsandro, Superintendent’s office,
School Board, Planning Board, and all the residents and non-residences who
appeared before us this year. The staff of the Neighborhood House for allowing us to
host our Annual dinner which followed voting on the Warrant, and Chef Emily
Damon for catering the event with her amazing pizzas. Finally, all the members of
this year’s Warrant Committee, for devoting their time and commitment this process.

Co-Chairs
Phil Lichtenstein
Jerry Miller

May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 1



Warrant Committee 201 7-2018 ()
Phil Lichtenstein, Co-Chair

Jerry Miller, Co-Chair

Donna Beals
Gordon Beck
Ellen Brawley
Samuel Burr

Katrina Carter
Owen Craighead
Rodney Eason
William Ferm
Jesse Hartson
Brian Henkel
Ellen Kappes

Marina McGarr
Samuel McGee
Kathleen Miller

Tim Murphy
Frank Norris
SeAnn Norris ()Norris Reddish

Thomas Savage
Seth Singleton

0

May 8, 2018 - Warrant Page 2



Greeting

State of Maine

Hancock County, ss year

To: James K. Willis, Jr., a Constable in the Town of Mount Desert I
In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby required to notify and warn the
Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert, qualified by law to vote in Town affairs, to
assemble in the Somesville Fire House, 1157 Main Street, Mount Desert, Maine, on
Monday, the seventh day of May AD 2018 at seven-fifty o’clock in the forenoon, then
and there to act on Article 1; and immediately thereafter to act on Article 2 until eight
o’clock in the evening.

AND to notify and warn said voters to reconvene in the Kelley Auditorium, Mount Desert
Elementary School, 8 Joy Road, Northeast Harbor, Maine in said Town, on Tuesday,
the eighth day of May AD 2018 at six o’clock in the evening; then and there to act on
Articles x through xx; all of said Articles being set out below to wit:

Pursuant to Title 21-A, §759(7), absentee ballots will be processed at the polls on May
7, 2018 every half hour beginning at 9:00 AM.

Election of Moderator

Article 1. To elect a Moderator by written ballot.

Election of Municipal Officers

Article 2. To elect one member to the Board of Selectmen for a term of
three years, two members to the Mount Desert Elementary School Board for terms of three
years, one trustee to the Mount Desert Island Regional School District for a term of one year,
and one trustee to the Mount Desert Island Regional School District for a term of three
years.

Non-Voter Recognition

Article 3. To see if non-voters shall be allowed, when recognized, to
speak during the 2018 Annual Town Meeting.

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 3



Animal Welfare IC)
Article 4. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote
to approve an expenditure of $500.00 from the Animal Welfare Reserve Account #4040700-
24204 to Acadia Veterinary Hospital as a donation for the benefit of the Town of Mount
Desert Feral Cat Program.

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Ordinances

For Articles x through xx, an underline indicates an addition and a strikcthrough
indicates a deletion.

Article 5. Shall an ordinance dated May 8, 2018 and entitled ‘Town of
Mount Desert Alewife Ordinance” be enacted? The ordinance reads, in its entirety,
“Regulations for the taking of alewives and blue back herring shall be as follows: For the
year July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 there shall be no taking of Alewives and Blue Back
Herring in the Town of Mount Desert.”

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

0
Article 6. Shall an ordinance dated May 8, 2018 and entitled “Amendments to the
Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert” be enacted? See Appendix A (pg.
39)

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 7. Shall an ordinance dated May 8, 2018 and entitled “Amendments to
the Town of Mount Desert Public Road Acceptance Ordinance regarding street design and
construction standards” be enacted as follows?

Explanatoiy Note: This amendment will correct the reference to where the required
road standards can be found.

Public Road Acceptance Ordinance
As adopted May 5, 2009 Annual Town Meeting
Amended May 8, 2018 Annual Town Meeting

The Citizens of the Town of Mount Desert do ordain a Public Road Acceptance Ordinance
be adopted as follows:

May 8, 2018 - Warrant Page 4



WHEREAS, the Town has identified several private roads where maintenance including:
plowing, sanding, grading and bituminous repairs have been requested of the Town by the
private owners, and

WHEREAS, the Board of Selectmen have requested that private/public roads be identified
and listed along with an assessment of their condition, size, use, benefit to the public and
future need, and

WHEREAS, it is the intention of this ordinance to identify those private roads which by the
nature of their condition, use and location would be more appropriate with a “Public’
designation.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that to become “public”, a road or road section
must meet the following conditions:

1. The road must meet the “Street/Read Design and Construction Standards” of the
Mount Desert Land Uso Zoning Ordinancc (“LUZO”) Subdivision Ordinance, which
standards are currently listed in LUZO c. 6B.l8Section 5.14.

2. The current private owner(s) are willing to sign over all title, rights and responsibilities
without reservations to the 50’ wide, right of way. Legal costs of the deed to the own
shall be borne by the private owner(s).

1. The current private owner(s) shall ask the Public Works Director to certify in writing
to the Board of Selectmen that the above-stated conditions have been met.

2. The current private owner(s) shall provide to the Town Manager evidence of good
and marketable title in and to the proposed road in the form of an attorney’s title
opinion letter or a commitment for title insurance.

3. The Town Manager shall request from an attorney a letter certifying that said
attorney’s title opinion letter or said title insurance commitment sufficiently protects
the Town’s interests.

4. Upon receipt of the afore-mentioned two letters, the Selectmen will recommend the
request for “PubliC Designation as an article in the next succeeding regular Town
Warrant. Following Town Meeting approval, the Town of Mount Desert will accept
title and all future rights and responsibilities, including maintenance, repair and
replacement as necessary and the road shall be deemed “Public”. The Selectmen
may, at their option, agree to placing potential acceptance of a road on the warrant,
contingent on its reconditioning by the private owner(s) after approval by Town
Meeting and before becoming “Public”.

5. When a road is accepted by the Town Meeting as a “public” road, and after the deed
for the land beneath said road has been duly recorded at the Hancock County
Registry of Deeds, the road shall be placed on any “Road Inventory” regularly kept
by the Town.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED should the current owner(s) fail, or be
unwilling, to meet the above-stated conditions, then:

May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 5



1. The road shall remain private; C)
2. All repairs and maintenance of the road and its appurtenances shall be the

responsibility of the owner(s) at the sole cost of the owner(s);

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason
held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the
remaining portions of this Ordinance.

The effective date of this Ordinance is: May 5, 2009.

This Ordinance shall expire and be of no force or effect on May 7, 2024.

Planning Board recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 8. Shall an ordinance dated May 8, 2018 and entitled “Amendments to the
Town of Mount Desert Land Use Ordinance regarding amendments to Conditional Use
Permits” be enacted as follows?

Explanatory Note: This amendment allows the CEO to approve minor amendments to
Conditional Use Permits and clarifies that the requirements for an application and
approval for other amendments are the same as they are for the original application.

2.4 Conditional Uses. Conditional uses may be permitted only after review and
approval by the Planning Board — except where the Code Enforcement Officer is
authorized under the Standards of Section 5.6 to authorize minor changes in the
placement and size of improvements for an approved conditional use permit — and only
if specific provisions for such conditional uses are made in this Ordinance. The
Standards of Section 6A and the applicable standards of Section 6B and 6C of this
Ordinance shall apply at all times.

3.4 Permitted, Conditional, and Excluded Uses by District:

All land use activities, as indicated in the following table, shall conform with all of the
applicable land use standards in Sections 6.A., 6.B., and 6.C. The district designation
for a particular site shall be determined from the Official Land Use Zoning map.

P Use allowed without a permit (but the use must comply with all applicable land use
standards
C Use allowed with conditional use approval from the Planning Board, except
where the code enforcement officer may authorize minor changes in the
placement and size of improvements for an approved conditional use permit
X Use is prohibited
CEO Use allowed with a permit from the code enforcement officer

SECTION 5 CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL

C

May 8,2018-Warrant Page 6



5.6 Amendment

An amendment to a Conditional Use Approval may bo issued by tho Planning Board

1. in conformity with the procedural and substantive roguiromonts set forth in
Section GA and the applicable standards of Section 68 and 6C.

2. on finding that there have been signcant changes of condWons or
an

3. when justified by a statement of findings of fact and reasons.

No proposed or existing building, premise or land use authorized as a conditional
use may be established, enlarged, modified, structurally altered, or otherwise
changed from that approved in the conditional use permit, unless such amendment
is authorized in accordance with the standards and procedures set forth in this
Ordinance, and the conditional use permit and approved site plan are amended
accordingly.

Minor changes. The Code Enforcement Officer may authorize minor changes in
the placement and size of improvements for an approved conditional use permit if
the Code Enforcement Officer determines that the changes are consistent with the
findings made by the Planning Board in connection with the approval of the
conditional use permit and the standards of Section 6 of the Land Use Ordinance.
The Code Enforcement Officer must also make a separate determine whether the
minor changes are consistent with the standards of Section 6 of the Land Use
Ordinance.

Other Changes. Changes to an approved conditional use permit, other than minor
changes in the placement and size of improvements, shall require amendment to
the conditional use permit by the Planning Board. The requirements for application
and approval of a conditional use permit amendment shall be the same as the
requirements for original application and approval.

Planning Board recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 9. Shall an ordinance dated May 8, 2018 and entitled “Amendments to
the Town of Mount Desert Land Use Ordinance to allow the CEO to approve 1 and 2 family
dwellings and accessory structures in the Village Commercial and Shoreland Commercial”
be enacted as follows?

Explanatory Note: This amendment will allow the CEO to approve I and 2 family
residential dwellings and accessory structures in the Village Commercial and
Shoreland Commercial Zones.

3.4 Permitted, Conditional, and Excluded Uses by District:

All land use activities, as indicated in the following table, shall conform with all of the
applicable land use standards in Sections 6.A., GB., and 6.C. The district designation for a

May 8, 2018 - Warrant Page 7



particular site shall be determined from the Official Land Use Zoning map.

P Use allowed without a permit (but the use must comply with all applicable land
use standards

C Use allowed with conditional use approval from the Planning Board
X Use is prohibited
CEO Use allowed with a permit from the code enforcement officer

VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL ONE
VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL TWO
RESIDENTIAL ONE
RESIDENTIAL TWO
SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL ONE
SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL TWO
SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL THREE
SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL FIVE
RURAL OR WOODLAND TWO
RURAL OR WOODLAND THREE
VILLAGE COMMERCIAL
SHORELAND COMMERCIAL
RESOURCE PROTECTION
CONSERVATION
STREAM PROTECTION

Section 3.4 Permitted! Conditional, and Excluded Uses by District

VR1
VR2
Ri
R2
SRi
SR2
S R3
S R5
RW2
RW3
VC
SC
RP
C
SP

See table of uses on following pages

LAND USE: Districts

0

0

0

RESIDENTIAL

Dwelling 1 & 2 CEO CEO CEO(d) CEO CCEO GQQ(d) C C8 C4
family

. . C C C C C X C X X
Dwelling,_Multiple

Accessory
Residential Dwelling CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO C C C8 C4
Unit

Accessory CEO CEO CEO CEO CCEO CCEO C C8 C4
structures including
structural additions

May 8,2018-Warrant Page 8



LAND USE: Districts

SR1 I
I SR2’ I

VRI RI SR3
RW2

VC Sc c RP SPVR2 R2 RW3,
. 5R5,

and guest houses(C)

Cluster and i C C X C1 C X X 1X X
Workforce I I
Subdivisions I_______

C X X X X X XIX X
Mobile Home Park I I

(c) A separate garage is an accessory structure. A separate garage with a dwelling unit shall be
deemed a dwelling unit.
Id) See Section GB.10.3 (Lots)

Planning Board recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes: 0 Nays)

Article 10. Shall an ordinance dated May 8, 2018 and entitled ‘Amendments to
the Land Use Zoning Ordinance to Correct Errors in Consistency with State Mandated
Shoreland Zoning be enacted as follows? See Appendix B (pg. 75)

Explanatory Note: This Article amends the Land Use Zoning Ordinance in specific
matters to be consistent with mandatory State Shoreland Zoning Rules as required by
the Maine Department of Environmental Protection as to those matters.

Planning Board recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (9 Ayes: 2 Nays)

Article 11. Shall an ordinance dated May 8, 2018 and entitled “Amendments to
the Town of Mount Desert Land Use Ordinance and Town of Mount Desert Subdivision
Ordinance regarding Minimum Area Per Dwelling Unit in Village Commercial District’ be
enacted as follows?

Explanatory Note: This amendment will create a minimum area per dwelling unit in
the Village Commercial District. For example, a legally established lot of 3500 square
feet with public sewer could have up to 3 dwellings units.

Section 3.5 Dimensional Requirements for Districts: minimum area, width of lots, setbacks,
etc.

May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 9



C

0

NOTES:

(p) For lots within the Village Commercial District that have public sewer, the minimum lot

0

DISTRICTS RW2 RW3 Sc C
see Note (g)

see Nate (e), see Note (U for
(f) and (g) those properties

that are within the
shoreland zone

DIMENSIONS (b) (h1)

MINIMUM LOT AREA:
A. with public sewer 2 acres 3 acres 5000 sq ftn i acre 3 acres
B. without public sewer 2 acres 3 acres I acre I acre 3 acres

C. Cluster Subdivision 1 acre 1.5 acres see note (g) N/A N/A
w/sewer

D, Cluster Subdivision w/o 1 acre 1.5 acres see note (g) N/A N/A
sewer

E. Worlcforce Subdivision
State State see note (g) N/A NIA

* See Note (k) Minimum Minimum
** See Note

in)
MINIMUM WIDTH OF LOTS:
Shore Frontage NA NA N/A 100ff. 250 ft.

SETBACKS FROM:
normal high waler line of a
water body (stream), tributary 75 ft. 75 ft. 75 ft. 75 ft. 75 ft.
stream or upland edge of a
wetland

N/A N/A N/A N/A lOOft.(n)
Great Ponds (n)

60 ft. 60 ft. 10 ft. or-U- ft. 25ff. 50 ft.
public or private roa& from edge of

public
properly Iines 25 ft. 25 ft. sidewalk 5 ft 25 ft.

see Note (c)

see Note (d) 5 11(o)

MAxIMUMLOTc0vERAGE 15% 15% 75% 70% 15%

30ff 30ff. N/A 101 30ff.
MINIMUM DISTANCE
BETWEEN PRINCIPAL
BUILDINGS

area required for each dwelling unit on a single lot is 1000 sguare feet.

May8, 2018-Warrant Page 10



Town of Mount Desert Subdivision Ordinance
Section 3.5 Dimensional Requirements for Districts: minimum area, width of lots, setbacks,
etc.

DISTRICTS RW2 RW3 vc Sc c
see Note (g)

see Note (e), see Note (f) for

(U and (g) those properties
that are within the
shoreland zone

DIMENSIONS (b) (h1)

MINIMUM LOT AREA:
A. with public sewer 2 acres 3 acres 5,000 sq ftY 1 acre 3 acres
B. without public sewer 2 acres 3 acres 1 acre 1 acre 3 acres

C. Cluster Subdivision 1 acre 1.5 acres see note (g) N/A N/A
w/sewer*

D. Cluster Subdivision W/O 1 acre 1 .5 acres see note (g) N/A N/A
sewer

E. Workforce Subdivision*
State State see note (g) N/A N/A

See Note (k) Minimum Minimum ** See Note

(ni
MINIMUM WIDTH OF LOTS:
Shore Frontage NA NA N/A 100 ft. 250ff.

SETBACKS FROM:
normal high water line of a
water body (stream), tributary 75 ft. 75 ft. 75 ft. 75 ft. 75 ft.
stream or upland edge of a
wetland

N/A N/A N/A N/A lOOft.(n)
Great Ponds (n)

60 ft. 60 ft. 10 ft. or-0-ft. 25ff. 50ff.
public or private road* from edge of

public
property lines 25 ft. 25 ft. sidewalk 5 ft. 25 ft.

see Note (c)

see Note (d) 5 ft.(o)

MAXIMUMLOTCOVERAGE 15% 15% 75% 70% 15%

30ff 30ff. N/A loft. 30ff.
MINIMUM DISTANCE
BETWEEN PRINCIPAL
BUILDINGS

NOTES:

May 8, 2018 - Warrant Page 11



(p) For lots within the Village Commercial District that have Qublic sewer, the minimum lot
area required for each dwelling unit on a single lot is 1000 square feet

Planning Board recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (10 Ayes; 1 Nay)

Article 12. Shall an ordinance dated May 8, 2018 and entitled “Amendments to
the Town of Mount Desert Land Use Ordinance regarding standards for residential uses in
the Shoreland Commercial District” be enacted as follows?

Explanatory Note: This amendment will change the requirements of Footnote Oso
that the requirement that residential uses meet the adjacent residential district
standards only applies in the Shoreland Commercial District.

Section 3.5 Dimensional Requirements for Districts: minimum area, width of lots, setbacks,
etc.

C

vCDISTRICTS RW2 RW3 Sc c
see-Note-ffi)

see Note see Note (t) for
(e), (fi and those properties
(g) that are within the

shoreland zone

DIMENSIONS (b) (h1)

MINIMUM LOT AREA:
A. with public sewer 2 acres 3 acres 5.000 sq ft. 1 acre 3 acres
B. without public sewer 2 acres 3 acres 1 acre 1 acre 3 acres

c. Cluster Subdivision w/sewer 1 acre 1.5 acres 5000 sci. ft.-ee N/A N/A
D. Cluster Subdivision w/o sewer 1 acre 1.5 acres nete-{g) N/A N/A

State State State Minimum N/A N/AE. Workforce Subdivision
Minimum Minimum see-note-()• See Note (k) 5000 s.

nff)

MINIMUM WIDTH OF LOTS:
Shore Frontage NA NA N/A 100 ft. 250 ft.

0

0
May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 12



SETBACKS FROM:
normal high water line of a water ft 75 ft. 75 ft.

body (stream), tributary stream or
upland edge of a wetland

N/A N/A N/A N/A 100 ffjn)

Great Ponds (n)
60ff. 60ff. 10ff.or-0-ft, 25Th 50ff.

public or private road from edge of
public sidewalk

property Iinest 25 ft. 25 ft. 5 ft. 25 ft.

* see Note (c) ft.(o)

see Note (d)

MAXIMUM LOT cOVERAGE 15% 15% 75% 70% 15%

30ff 30Th N/A lOft. 30ff.
MINIMUM DISTANCE BETWEEN
PRINCIPAL BUILDINGS

NOTES:

(b) Refer to setback as defined in Section 8.

(c) Measured from edge of road surface, or edge of legally established right of way if no
road exists.

(d) In all districts restrictions on setback of structures from property lines may be varied or
nullified by written agreement with the abutting property owner. Said agreement or a
copy of said agreement showing signatures shall be filed at the Municipal Office.

(e) The minimum Sc setback from shoreline is 75 feet except for functionally water-
dependent structures.

(f) Within the shoreland zone: No new lot shall be created except in conformity with all of
the requirements of this Ordinance for the district in which it is located. In addition to
shore frontage, refer to Section 6B.10.4.3 for the required minimum lot width. For the
required measurements, refer to shore frontage and minimum lot width in Section 8.

(g) Primary residential use in a Shoreland commercial District must meet the dimensional
requirements of the adjacent residential district. This requirement does not apply to
projects that include covenants held by a qualified workforce housing entity.

Planning Board recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 13. Shall an ordinance dated May 6, 2018 and entitled Amendments to
the Town of Mount Desert Land Use Ordinance add lots in the Village Commercial District to
Footnote 0” be enacted as follows?

May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 13



Explanatory Note: This amendment will add lots in the Village Commercial to
Footnote 0 which will permit them to have a 0-foot side setback.

Section 3.5 Dimensional Requirements for Districts: minimum area, width of lots,
setbacks, etc.

NOTES:

(o) Setback from property lines in Village Commercial

New or newly renovated structures on the following lots and any future subdivision of
said lots may have a -0- foot side-setback if constructed in accordance with the
current editions of the NFPA 101 Life Safety Codes & NFPA 5000 Building
Construction and Safety Code, Maine State adopted codes, except on the side where
affected lots abut structures whose primary use is residential. Rear setbacks are
unaffected.

Tax Map 024: Lots 063-002, 073
through 081, 081-001, 082 through
086, 088 through
090, 102, 104, 106 through 108, &
109-003/109-004 Tax Map 026:
Lots 004-001, 004-002, 008-002, &
057 through 063. (Added May 3,
2011)

Tax Map 024: Lots 64 through 072
(added May 8, 2018)

Planning Board recommends
passage

__________ _____ ________________

Warrant Committee recommends
passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

I OvervlewMap

A V Iflibict

____

Parc*4 with C tnt 3.th.ck
=——.-- IrdEW

May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 14



Article 14. Shall an ordinance dated May 8, 2018 and entitled ‘Amendments to
the Town of Mount Desert Land Use Ordinance regarding the normal high-waterline setback
from Map 009, Lot 120-010-001” be enacted as follows?

Explanatory Note: Map 9, Lot 120-10-I is a newly created loL The lot was created
from Map 9, Lot 120-10 which has a 100-foot setback from a great pond. This
amendment adds this standard to the new loL

Section 3.5 Dimensional Requirements for Districts: minimum area, width of lots, setbacks,
etc.

NOTES:

(n) The setback from the normal high-water line of a great pond is 100 feet, except for
these lots where the setback is 75 feet, indicated below.

Map-Lot IDs for 75 ft. setback Map-Lot IDs for 100 ft. setback

Long Pond & Echo Lake:
All Lots

Little Round Pond: Little Round Pond:
012-018 012-015-001
012-019 012-020
012-01 9-001

Round Pond: Round Pond:
011-120 011-90
011-122 011-118
011-123 011-119
011-124
012-013

Little Echo Lake; Little Echo Lake:
009-098 009-1 07
009-099 009-120-010
009-100 009-1 20-01 0-001
009-101 009-120-011
009-1 02 009-097

009-1 07-003

Planning Board recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 15. ‘Amendments to the Town of Mount Desert Land Use Ordinance
regarding Animal Husbandry and Animal Husbandry 2” be enacted as follows?

May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 15



Explanatory Note: This amendment would make the animal husbandry standards
below applicable to all districts.

65 SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR ACTIVITIES AND LAND USES.

65.18. Animal Husbandry & Animal Husbandry 2 in the Village Commercial and
Shoreland Commercial Districts

1. Permit Required. A building permit is required for the construction of a henhouse
and chicken pen.

2. Number and Type of Chickens Allowed.

1. The maximum number of chickens allowed is six (6) per lot regardless of how
many dwelling units are on the lot. In the case of residential condominium
complexes without individually owned back yards, the maximum number of
chickens allowed is six (6) per complex.

2. Only female chickens are allowed. There is no restriction on chicken species.

3. Non-Commercial Use Only. Chickens shall be kept as pets and for personal use
only; no person shall sell eggs or engage in chicken breeding or fertilizer production
for commercial purposes.

4. Enclosures.

1. Chickens must be kept in an enclosure or fenced area at all times. During
daylight hours, chickens may be allowed outside of their chicken pens in a
securely fenced yard. Chickens shall be secured within the henhouse during non-
daylight hours.

2. Enclosures must be clean, dry, and odor-free, kept in a neat and sanitary
condition at all times, in a manner that will not disturb the use or enjoyment of
neighboring lots due to noise, odor or other adverse impact.

5. Odor. Odors from chickens, chicken manure, or other chicken-related substances
shall not be perceptible at the property boundaries.

6. Predators, Rodents, Insects, and Parasites. The property owner shall take
necessary action to reduce the attraction of predators and rodents and the potential
infestation of insects and parasites. Chickens found to be infested with insects and
parasites that may result in unhealthy conditions to human habitation shall be
removed by the Animal Control Officer.

7. Waste Storage and Removal. Provision must be made for the storage and removal
of chicken manure. All stored manure shall be covered by a fully enclosed structure
with a roof or lid over the entire structure. No more than three (3) cubic feet of
manure shall be stored. All other manure not used for composting or fertilizing shall
be removed. In addition, the henhouse, chicken pen and surrounding area must be

May 8, 2018-Warrant Page 16



kept tree from trash and accumulated droppings. Uneaten feed shall be removed in a
timely manner.

Planning Board recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Gifts

Article 16. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote
to authorize the Board of Selectmen to accept Conditional Gifts (MRSA 30-A, §5654),
Unconditional Gifts (MRSA 30-A §5655), equipment, proceeds from sale of fire equipment or
funds on behalf of the Municipal Fire Department. It is understood that any funds received
will be placed in the Fire Equipment Reserve Fund.

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Leases, Agreements, Easements, Deeds

Article 17. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote
to authorize the Board of Selectmen to lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the
Northeast Harbor Marina to the Ticket Booth operators for a term of one (1) year beginning
July 1, 2018 under such terms and conditions as the Board of Selectmen, in its sole
discretion, deems to be in the best interests of the Town.

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 18. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote
to authorize the Board of Selectmen, to lease a portion of the so-called Visitor Center at the
Northeast Harbor Marina to the Mount Desert Chamber of Commerce for a term of one (1)
year beginning July 1, 2018 under such terms and conditions as the Board of Selectmen, in
its sole discretion, deems to be in the best interests of the Town.

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (10 Ayes; 0 Nays: 1 Abstention)

Article 19. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will
authorize the Board of Selectmen, to negotiate and enter into an agreement with the
Neighborhood House Club, Inc. for management and maintenance of the municipal
swimming pool, under such terms and conditions as the Board of Selectmen, in its sole
discretion, deems to be in the best interests of the Town.

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 17



Article 20. Shall the residents of the Town of Mount Desert (the Town)
vote to accept Farnham’s Way and Sydney’s Way, both being private roads located in the
Village of Somesville off the Beech Hill Road, approximately 1,040 feet in length and 320
feet in length, respectively, and presently owned by the Island Housing Trust, and as
requested by same in their correspondence to the Town dated February 9, 2018, as Public
Roads, in conformance with the Towns Public Road Acceptance Ordinance as amended at
the May 5, 2009 annual Town meeting and further, to authorize the Municipal Officers to
execute all things necessary or convenient to facilitate successful completion of the transfer
of ownership of the roads from the Island Housing Trust to the Town.

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (9 Ayes; 0 Nays; 2 Abstentions)

Article 21. Shall the residents of the Town of Mount Desert (the Town)
vote to accept the existing private sanitary sewer mains located in Farnham’s Way and
Sydney’s Way as public sanitary sewer mains, a total length of sewer mains being
approximately 1,200 feet, and presently owned by the Island Housing Trust and as
requested by same in their correspondence to the Town dated February 9, 2018, as public
sewers, and not including any building sewers, with said acceptance based on written
documentation dated January 7, 2009 provided to the Town from the professional engineer
of record responsible for the design and construction monitoring of the installation of the
sewer mains for conformance to Town standards, with said documentation stating that the
sewer mains meet the requirements of the existing Sewer Ordinance as amended at the
May 8, 2012 annual Town meeting and generally accepted engineering practice and further,
to authorize the Municipal Officers to execute all things necessary or convenient to facilitate
successful completion of the transfer of ownership of the sewer mains from the Island
Housing Trust to the Town.

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (9 Ayes; 0 Nays; 2 Abstentions)

Article 22. Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to enter into an
agreement with the Maine Department of Transportation (the Agreement), a copy of which is
included herein in Appendix C.1 (the Agreement), in conformance with their Municipal
Partnership Initiative program, for technical and construction services related to
improvements of State Route 198 beginning approximately 0.10 miles (528-feet) northerly of
its intersection with Sargeant Drive then proceeding in a northerly direction approximately
1.10 miles plus or minus on State Route 198 ending at or near a point in State Route 198 at
or southerly of its intersection with State Route 233, said beginning and ending points shown
on the attached project site map included herein in Appendix C.2 (Site Map); with said
improvements to be completed in 2018-2019 and in accordance with the Agreement
including, but not necessarily being limited to, reclaiming (grinding and leaving in place) the
existing pavement, grading and compacting these materials, construction of new base and
surface pavement layers on the reclaimed materials, construction of four4oot (4’) wide
extended shoulders on each side of the road, drainage improvements and other typical
roadway improvements associated with projects of this kind, and further shall the Board of
Selectmen be authorized to execute any and all contracts and documents and do any and all

May 8, 2018 - Warrant Page 18



things necessary or convenient to enter into this agreement with the Maine Department of
Transportation? SeeAppendix C.1 TheAgreement (warrant pg. 91) andAppendix C.2
Site Map (warrant pg. 95).

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Fiscal Policy

Article 23. Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general
obligation bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $500,000.00 (five
hundred thousand dollars) to fund the Town’s 50%-50% cost share for construction of
roadway improvements to Route 198 in accordance with the agreement with the Maine
Department of Transportation described in Article 22 above; and further shall the Board of
Selectmen be authorized to execute any and all contracts and documents and do any and all
things necessary or convenient to issue the bonds or notes of the Town, which may be
callable, and to accomplish the project?

FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

1. Total Town Indebtedness
A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid: $15,533,751.63
B. Bonds authorized and unissued: $ 0.00
C. Bonds to be issued under this Town Meeting Article $ 500,000.00

TOTAL $16,033,751.63
2. Costs
At an estimated interest rate of 4.69% for a term of 20 years, the estimated costs of this
bond issue will be:

Principal $ 500,000.00
Interest $ 231,480.78
Total Debt Service $ 731,480.78

3. Validity
The validity of the bonds is not affected by any errors in the above estimates. If the actual
amount of the total debt service for the bond issue varies from the estimate, the ratification
by the voters is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond issue is not affected by
reason of the variance.

Treasurer,Town of Mount Desert, Maine

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 24. Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to allocate any
unspent funds originally appropriated in connection with the 201 7-2018 State Route 198

May 8,2018-Warrant Page 19



Maine Department of Transportation’s Municipal Partnership Initiative approved at the May
2017 Town Meeting to the work described in Article 22 and Article 23, above?

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 25. Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general
obligation bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $3,963,485.00 to
finance professional technical and construction services associated with improvements to
Main Street located in the Village of Northeast Harbor (the Project) to improve the
appearance, functionality and vitality of the Main Street area beginning at or near the
intersection of Main Street with Summit Road then continuing in a southerly direction along
Main Street ending at or near the intersection of Main Street with Neighborhood Road, with
said improvements to be in general conformance with the report prepared by consultants to
the town entitled Northeast Harbor Village Center Plan - Final Report” dated December 19,
2016, further described in said report as Area 1A - Main Street and generally described and
illustrated in the site plan located in Appendix D Site Plan and to include, but not necessarily
be limited to improved sidewalks, grading, drainage, roadway, utilities, including burying the
overhead utility wires, plantings, lighting and other amenities and appurtenances required to
complete the improvements, and further shall the Board of Selectmen be authorized to
execute all things necessary or convenient to issue the bonds or notes of the Town, which
may be callable, and to accomplish the Project? See Appendix D 1-4 (pg. 96)

FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
1. Total Town Indebtedness

A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid: $15,533,751.63
B. Bonds authorized and unissued: $ 0.00
C. Bonds to be issued under this Town Meeting Article $ 3,963,485.00

TOTAL $19,497,236.63
2. Costs
At an estimated interest rate of 4.69% for a term of 20 years, the estimated costs of this
bond issue will be:

Principal $3,963,465.00
Interest $1,791,748.44
Total Debt Service $5,755,233.44

3. Validity
The validity of the bonds is not affected by any errors in the above estimates. If the actual
amount of the total debt service for the bond issue varies from the estimate, the ratification
by the voters is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond issue is not affected by
reason of the variance,

Treasurer, Town of Mount Desert, Maine

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 20



Article 26. Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to issue general
obligation bonds or notes of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $645,000.00 to
finance professional technical and construction services associated with improvements to
Sylvan Road, Pine Road, Spruce Road and Tennis Club Road located in the Village of
Northeast Harbor (the Project) and generally described and illustrated in the site plan located
in Appendix E Site Plan to address surficial and subsurface drainage functionality in the
general area to include, but not necessarily being limited to, improved grading, drainage,
catch basins, storm drain pipes, roadway surfaces and appurtenances required to complete
the improvements, and further shall the Board of Selectmen be authorized to execute all
things necessary or convenient to issue the bonds or notes of the Town, which may be
callable, and to accomplish the Project? See Appendix E 1-2 (pg. 100)

FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

1. Total Town Indebtedness
A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid: $15,533,751.63
B. Bonds authorized and unissued: $ 0.00
C. Bonds to be issued under this Town Meeting Article $ 645,000.00

TOTAL $16,178,751.63
2. Costs
At an estimated interest rate of 4.69% for a term of 20 years, the estimated costs of this
bond issue will be:

Principal $ 645,000.00
Interest $ 291.58t22
Total Debt Service $ 936,581.22

3. Validity
The validity of the bonds is not affected by any errors in the above estimates. If the actual
amount of the total debt service for the bond issue varies from the estimate, the ratification
by the voters is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond issue is not affected by
reason of the variance.

a.
Treasurer, Town of Mount Desert, Maine

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 21



C
FINANCIAL STATEMENT - TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

(If Articles 23, 25 and 26 are Approved in Total)

1. Total Town Indebtedness
A. Bonds outstanding and unpaid: $15,533,751.63
B. Bonds authorized and unissued: $ 0.00
C. Bonds to be issued under Town Meeting $ 5,108,485.00

Articles 23, 25, & 26 TOTAL $20,642,236.63

2. Costs
At an estimated interest rate of 4.69% for a term of 20 years, the estimated costs of this
bond issue will be:

Principal $5,108,485.00
Interest $2,314,810.44
Total Debt Service $7,423,295.44

3. Validity
The validity of the bonds is not affected by any errors in the above estimates. If the actual
amount of the total debt service for the bond issue (or Amortization) varies from the
estimate, the ratification by the voters is nevertheless conclusive and the validity of the bond
issue is not affected by reason of the variance.

a.
Treasurer, Town of Mount Desert, Maine

Article 27. Shall the residents of the Town of Mount Desert vote to
authorize the use of funds that remain from those borrowed from the Maine Municipal Bond
Bank (MMBB) through the State of Maine Revolving Loan Fund (SRF) and administered by
the Maine Department of Environmental Protection (MDEP) for the upgrade to the Northeast
Harbor wastewater treatment plant in 2013-2014, with a remaining balance of approximately
$53,000 (fifty-three thousand dollars) and for the upgrade of the Bracy Cove wastewater
pumping station in 2016- 2017, with a remaining balance of approximately $400,000 (four
hundred thousand dollars) for a total amount of remaining funds of approximately $453,000
(four hundred and fifty-three thousand dollars) to finance professional technical and
construction services associated with improvements to the Town’s wastewater collection and
conveyance system, with said improvements being subject to review and authorization by
the Maine Department of Environmental Protection (MDEP), said improvements to include
but not be limited to, and in no particular order of priority, and on a funds available basis,
replacement of an existing wastewater pumping station metal wet well circa 1970’s located
off Manchester Road in the Village of Northeast Harbor with a new precast concrete wet well
in the same general area as the existing one; replacement of the existing vitrified clay circa
1970’s sanitary sewer pipe that conveys sewage from Sinclair Road to Manchester Road
enroute to the wastewater treatment facility; and upgrading the electronics control system at

May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 22



the Gilpatrick Cove wastewater pumping station and associated appurtenances and
incidentals to complete the improvements and, based on recommendations to them by
Public Works staff, to authorize the Municipal Officers to execute all things necessary or
convenient to facilitate successful completion of the improvements.

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 28. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote
to authorize the Board of Selectmen to accept and expend on behalf of the Town additional
state, federal and other funds (including unconditional gifts of money) received during the
fiscal year 2018-2019 for Town purposes, provided that such additional funds do not require
expenditure of local funds not previously appropriated.

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 29. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote
to approve July 1, each year, as the date on which all taxes shall be due and payable
providing that all unpaid taxes on September 1, of each year, shall be charged interest at an
annual rate of 8% (percent) per year. (Tax Club members are exempt within the terms and
conditions of the TownE Tax Club AgreemenL)

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 30. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote
to authorize the Tax Collector to enter into a standard “tax club” agreement with taxpayers
whereby: (1) the taxpayer agrees to pay specified monthly payments to the Town based on
the taxpayer’s estimated and actual tax obligation for current year property taxes (real estate
and/or personal); (2) the Town agrees to waive interest on timely payments; (3) the Town
authorizes the Tax Collector to accept payment of taxes prior to commitment of taxes; (4) the
agreement automatically terminates if two consecutive payments are missed and the
taxpayer thereupon becomes subject to the same due date and interest rate as other,
nonparticipating taxpayers; (5) only taxpayers who are current on their property tax
obligations may participate; and (6) interested taxpayers shall apply annually for participation
by the date shown on the application, date and application format to be determined by the
Tax Collector.

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 23



Article 31. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote
to authorize the Tax Collector to accept pre-payment of property taxes, with no interest to be
paid on same.

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 32. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote
to set the interest rate to be paid by the Town for abated taxes that have been paid, at the
rate of 4% (percent) per year.

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 33. To see if the inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote
to authorize expenditures to pay any tax abatements granted by the Assessor, Board of
Assessment Review, or Board of Selectmen together with any interest due thereon from the
Town, during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018, in an aggregate amount not to exceed
the property tax commitment overlay.

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 34. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote
to authorize the Board of Selectmen to dispose by public bid of Town-owned property, other
than real property, with a value of ten thousand doltars ($10000.00) or less under such
terms and conditions as it deems advisable.

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 35. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote
to authorize the Board of Selectmen to sell at public auction or by advertised sealed bid, and
to convey titles obtained under tax deeds and under deeds of conveyance to the Inhabitants
of the Town any land and/or buildings, including trailers, in lieu of payment of taxes except
that the Selectmen have the power to authorize redemption.

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 24



Article 36. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote
to authorize the Board of Selectmen to contract for services, in amounts not to exceed
appropriation for same, under such terms and conditions as it deems advisable.

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Municipal Revenue

Article 37. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote
to transfer Five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000. 00) from the Undesignated Fund
Balance Account #100-38300 to reduce the 2018—2019 tax commitment.

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 38. Shall the Town of Mount Desert (the Town) be authorized to
appropriate an amount not to exceed $100,000.00 (one hundred thousand dollars) from the
Capital Gains Reserve Account, #400-24202, in order to retain professional services for
planning, technical study/studies and design (the Project) related to roadway improvements,
including but not limited to, bicycle access and safety improvements, to State Route 3
(Peabody Drive), between the intersection of State Routes 198 and 3 (Pedder’s Corner) in
the Village of Northeast Harbor and the intersection of the Stanley Brook Road and State
Route 3 in the Village of Seal Harbor; subject to the Town’s Bicycling Committee (the
Committee) investigating alternative funding sources including but not limited to Private,
State and Federal (Others) funding in an effort to reduce the Town’s commitment of the
aforementioned $100,000.00 (one hundred thousand dollars) for the Project with the
understanding that the Committee shall demonstrate good faith efforts to raise funds from
Others and to have received written commitments from Others to provide funds by the date
certain of December31, 2018, with said written commitments being documented by the
Public Works Director as the Committee’s liaison to the Board of Selectmen and presented
in writing by the Public Works Director to the Board of Selectmen, such that the Town’s
share of the cost of the Project shall be the aforementioned $100,000.00 (one hundred
thousand dollars) reduced by the amount of funding the Committee has raised and obtained
written commitments for as described above but in no case shall it exceed the
aforementioned $100,000.00 (one hundred thousand dollars), and further, shall the Board of
Selectmen of the Town be authorized to execute any and all contracts and documents and
do any and all things necessary or convenient to the accomplishment of the Project,
including to accept any gifts, grants or contributions to the Town, including conditional gifts to
the Town the sole condition of which is that the contributed funds be dedicated to the
Project?

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

May 8, 2018 - Warrant Page 25



Article 39. Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to appropriate
an amount not to exceed $90,000 from the Capital Gains Reserve Account, #400-24202,
to finance professional technical and construction services associated with improvements to
up to seven (7) pedestrian crosswalks located in the Villages of Northeast Harbor, Pretty
Marsh and Somesville and as shown on the site plan located in Appendix F Site Map to
include, bringing the crosswalks into general compliance with the appropriate regulatory
agencies and requirements of same, including but not necessarily being limited to, the Maine
Department of Transportation’s publication ‘Maine DOT Guidelines on Crosswalks” and the
Americans with Disabilities Act requirements for crosswalks with said improvements to
address, but not necessarily being limited to, improved access, safety, effectiveness and
appurtenances required to complete the improvements, and further, shall the Board of
Selectmen be authorized to execute any and all contracts and documents and do all things
necessary or convenient to accomplish the Project? See Appendix F 1-2 (pg. 102)

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes: 0 Nays)

Article 40. Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to appropriate
an amount not to exceed $38,000.00 from the Capital Gains Reserve Account, #400-
24202, to finance the professional evaluation of the Town’s remaining crosswalks not
described in Article 39 above , those being approximately 40 (forty) in number, located
throughout the Town, to assess them relative to factors including, but not necessarily limited
to, accessibility, safety, location and effectiveness, and to make recommendations for
improvements to the crosswalks, and further to prepare designs of the recommended
improvements to the crosswalks, to prepare construction documents and to solicit
competitive bids for the improvements to address and to include bringing the crosswalks into
general compliance with the appropriate regulatory agencies and requirements of same,
including but not necessarily being limited to the Maine Department of Transportation’s
publication “Maine DOT Guidelines on Crosswalks” and the Americans with Disabilities Act
requirements for crosswalks and further, shall the Board of Selectmen be authorized to
execute any and all contracts and documents and do all things necessary or convenient to
accomplish the Project?

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 41. Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to appropriate
an amount not to exceed $40,000.00 from the Capital Gains Reserve Account, #400-
24202, to finance the evaluation and design of improvements to the Town’s infrastructure
within the bounds of a portion of Summit Road located in the Village of Northeast Harbor
beginning at or near its intersection with Main Street then proceeding westerly along Summit
Road ending at or near its intersection with Church Road with said improvements including,
but not necessarily limited to, the traveled way, sanitary sewer lines, storm water
management and sidewalks, and further shall the Board of Selectmen be authorized to
execute any and all contracts and documents and do any and all things necessary or
convenient to accomplish the project?

Board of Selectmen recommends passage C
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes: 0 Nays)

May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 26



Article 42. Shall the Town of Mount Desert be authorized to appropriate
an amount not to exceed $50,000.00 from the Capital Gains Reserve Account, #400-
24202 to fund the design and construction, including all materials, equipment and labor, of a
subsurface irrigation system, for the so-called Village Green and the lawn area adjacent to
the Yachtsman Facility, both being located in the Village of Northeast Harbor; and further,
shall the Board of Selectmen be authorized to execute any and all contracts and documents
and do any and all things necessary or convenient to accomplish the project?

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (11 Ayes; 0 Nays)

APPROPRIATION FROM CAPITAL GAINS RESERVE ACCOUNTSUMMARY
(If Article 38 through Article 42 are Approved in Total)

Article
Article
Article
Article
Article

38 Bicycle Access & Safety
39 Crosswalk Construction
40 Crosswalk Evaluation
41 Summit Rd Evaluation & Design
42 Village Green Irrigation
Total Appropriation Requested

$100,000.00
$ 90,000.00
$ 38,000.00
$ 40,000.00
$ 50,000.00
$318,000.00

Article 43. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert
will vote to raise and/or appropriate as Revenue through Excise Taxes, Service Fees and
miscellaneous sources for the 2018—2019 Town Budget.

Board of Selectmen recommends
Warrant Committee recommends

$1,129,462.00
$1,129,462.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Municipal Appropriations

Article 44. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 200 through 221 General Government —

Governing Body (Board of Selectmen), Town Management, Town Clerk, Registrar,
Elections, Planning Board, Finance, Treasurer, Tax Collector, Assessment, Code
Enforcement, Unallocated Funds, Human Resources, and Technology for the 2018—2019
Town Budget.

Gov. Body (Bd of Selectmen): $34,550.00
Town Clerk: $115,132.00
Elections: $4,441.00
Finance: $89,937.00
Tax Collector: $16,463.00
Code Enforcement: $156,682.00
Human Resources: $5,000.00

Board of Selectmen recommends
Warrant Committee recommends

Town Management $337, 782.00
Registrar: $1,188.00
Planning Board: 349,760.00
Treasurer: $120,198.00
Assessment $131,131.00
Unallocated: $118,650.00
Technology: $231,596.00

$1,412,510.00
$1,412,510.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 27



Article 45. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 300 General Assistance Support for the
2018—2019 Town Budget.

Board of Selectmen recommends $5,000.00
Warrant Committee recommends $5,000.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 46. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 350 Rural Wastewater Support for the 2018
—2019 Town Budget.

Board of Selectmen recommends $187,900.00
Warrant Committee recommends $187,900.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 47. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert
will vole to raise and appropriate for Department 406 Street Lights for the 2018—2019 Town
Budget.

Board of Selectmen recommends $30,850.00
Warrant Committee recommends $30,850.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays) (J

Article 48. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 401 and 408 Public Safety — Pohce and
Communications (Dispatch), 405 Shellfish and 407 Animal Control for the 2018— 2019 Town
Budget.

Police: $825,747.00 Communications: $367,885.00
Shellfish: $3,806.00 Animal Control: $2,513.00

Board of Selectmen recommends $1,199,951.00
Warrant Committee recommends $1,199,951.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 49. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 403, 404 and 409 Public Safety — Fire
Department, Hydrants, and Emergency Management for the 2016— 2019 Town Budget.

Fire: $595,896.00 Hydrants: $273,500.00 Emergency Management: $1. 000.00

Board of Selectmen recommends $870,396.00
Warrant Committee recommends $870,396.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

May 8, 2018 - Warrant Page 28



Article 50. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 501 515, 520 and 525 Public Works -

Roads, Waste Management, Buildings & Grounds, Parks & Cemeteries, and 530
Environmental Sustainability for the 2018—2019 Town Budget.

Roads: $1, 709,383.00 Buildings/Grounds: $219,909.00
Parks/Cemeteries: $45,592.00 Waste Management: $589,645.00

Environmental Sustainability: $20,000.00

Board of Selectmen recommends $2,584,529.00
Warrant Committee recommends $2,584,529.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 51. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 505 and 506 Sewer Operations and
Wastewater Treatment for the 2018 — 2019 Town Budget.

Sewer Capital: $0.00 Sewer Operation: $628,955.00

Wastewater Treatment
Northeast Harbor Plant: $140,750.00 Somesville Plant: $56,000.00
Seal Harbor Plant: $104,958.00 Otter Creek Pump Station: $29,500.00

Board of Selectmen recommends $960,163.00
Warrant Committee recommends $960,163.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 52. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 605 Recreation (Public Pool —Utilities &
Maintenance) for the 2018—2019 Town Budget.

Board of Selectmen recommends $5,900.00
Warrant Committee recommends $5,900.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 53. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 701 Economic/Community Development for
the 2018 —2019 Town Budget.

Board of Selectmen recommends $44,000.00
Warrant Committee recommends $44,000.00 (13 Ayes; 2 Nays)

Article 54. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 801 Debt Service for the 2018—2019 Town
Budget.

Board of Selectmen recommends $1,444,014.00
Warrant Committee recommends $1,444,014.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 29



Article 55. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 851 Libraries1 Village Improvement
Societies, Recreation, and Public/Social Service Agencies for the 2018—2019 Town
Budget.

Libraries: $33,500.00 Village Improvement Societies: $54,000.00
Recreation: $89, 750.00 Public/Social Service Agencies: $156,711.00

Board of Selectmen recommends $333961.00
Warrant Committee recommends $333,961.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 56. To see what sum the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert
will vote to raise and appropriate for Department 991 Capital Improvement Plan transfers for
the 2018—2019 Town Budget.

Board of Selectmen recommends $560,621.00
Warrant Committee recommends $560,621.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Written Ballot required for Article 57

Article 57. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote
to increase the property tax levy limit by $0.00. (Estimated Tax Rate and LD I Worksheet
pgs. 104-106).

Explanation: The State Legislature passed a “tax reform” law known as LD#1. This bill
created a maximum municipal tax levy based upon this year’s tax, plus an allowance
for inflation and the Town’s tax base growth due to new construction. However, LD#1
allows Mount Desert voters to increase that tax cap with the approval of a simple
majority of the voters at Town Meeting. The only requirement is that a secret vote
must be taken by written ballot.

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends passage (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Marina Proprietary Fund

Article 58. To see if the Inhabitants of the Town of Mount Desert will vote
to ratify the Board of Selectmen’s approval of the Marina Proprietary Fund budget.

Revenue: $674,643.00 Expense: $674,643.00

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee makes no recommendation (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

0
May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 30



Elementary School Appropriations

Note: Articles 59 through 69 authorize expenditures in cost center

Article 59. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Regular
Instruction for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019.

Note: 2017-l8Amount was $1,611,607.00

School Board recommends $1,608,542.00
Warrant Committee recommends $1,608,542.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 60. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Special
Education for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019.

Note: 2017-18 Amount was $732,392

School Board recommends $867,896.00
Warrant Committee recommends $867,896.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 61. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Career
and Technical Education for the fiscal year beginning July 1. 2018 and ending June 30,
2019.

Note: 2017-18 Amount was $0.00

School Board recommends $0.00
Warrant Committee recommends $0.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 62. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Other
Instruction for the fiscal year beginning July 1,2018 and ending June 30, 2019.

Note: 2017-18 Amount was $61,764.00

School Board recommends $63,267.00
Warrant Committee recommends $63,267.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 63. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Student
& Staff Support for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019.

Note: 2017-18 Amount was $401,849.00

School Board recommends $413,855.00
Warrant Committee recommends $413,855.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 31



Article 64. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for System
Administration for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019.

Note: 2017-16 Amount was $77,011.00

School Board recommends $87,393.00
Warrant Committee recommends $87,393.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 65. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for School
Administration for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019.

Note: 2017-18 Amount was $241,553

School Board recommends $236,783.00
Warrant Committee recommends $236,783.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 66. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for
Transportation & Buses for the fiscal year beginning July 1 • 2018 and ending June 30, 2019.

Note: 201 7-18 Amount was $171,356.00

School Board recommends $181,224.00
Warrant Committee recommends S181,224.00.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 67. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for
Facilities Maintenance forthe fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019.

Note: 2017-18 Amount was $523,289

School Board recommends $513,574.00
Warrant Committee recommends $513,574.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 68. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for Debt
Service and Other Commitments for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June
30, 2019.

Note: 2017-18 Amount was $363,950.00

School Board recommends $348,430.00
Warrant Committee recommends $348,430.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Article 69. To see what sum the School Board will be authorized to expend for All
Other Expenditures for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019.

Note: 2017-18 Amount was $63,000.00

May 8, 2018 - Warrant Page 32



School Board recommends $68,000.00
Warrant Committee recommends $68000.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Notes: Articles 59— 69 authorize a total budget of $4,388,964.00

2017-18 Amount was $4,253,831.00

Note: Articles 70—72 raise funds for the Proposed School Budget

Hand Count

Article 70. To see what sum the voters of the Town of Mount Desert will appropriate for
the total cost of funding public education from kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the
Essential Programs and Services Funding Act (Recommend $1999403.00) and to see what
sum the voters of the Town of Mount Desert will raise as the Town’s contribution to the total
cost of funding public education from kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential
Programs and Services Funding Act in accordance with the Maine Revised Statutes, Title
20-A, section 15688 for the period July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019.

School Board recommends $1,758,558.00
Warrant Committee recommends $1,758,558.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Explanation: The Town of Mount Deserts contribution to the total cost of funding
public education from kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential
Programs and Services Funding Act is the amount of money determined by state law
to be the minimum amount that a municipality must raise in order to receive the full
amount of state dollars.

Hand Count

Article 71. To see what sum the voters of the Town of Mount Desert will raise and
appropriate for the annual payments on debt service previously approved by the legislative
body for non-state-funded school construction projects, non-state funded portions of school
construction projects and minor capital projects in addition to the funds appropriated as the
local share of the Town of Mount Desert’s contribution to the total cost of funding public
education from kindergarten to grade 12 for the period July 1, 2018 and ending June 30,
2019.

School Board recommends $348,430.00
Warrant Committee recommends $348,430.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Explanation: Non-state-funded debt service is the amount of money needed for the
annual payments on the Town of Mount Deserts long-term debt for major capital
school construction projects and minor capital renovation projects that are not
approved for state subsidy. The bonding of this long-term debt was approved by the
voters on November 6, 2001.

May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 33



Written Ballot Vote Required for Article 72

Article 72. To see what sum the voters of the Town of Mount Desert will raise and
appropriate in additional local funds for school purposes (Recommend: $1901 ,507.00) for
the period July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019, which exceeds the State’s Essential
Programs and Services allocation model by (Recommend: $1,901 ,507.00) as required to
fund the budget recommended by the school Board.

The School Board recommends $1,901,507.00 for additional local funds and gives the
following reasons for exceeding the State’s Essential Programs and Services funding model
by $1,901,507.00: The State funding model underestimates the actual costs to fully fund
the 201 8-2019 budget.

The Warrant Committee recommends (15 Ayes; 0 Nays) $1,901,507.00 for additional local
funds and gives the following reasons for exceeding the State’s Essential Programs and
Services funding model by $1,901,507.00: The State funding model underestimates the
actual costs to fully fund the 2018—2019 budget.

Explanation: The additional local funds are those locally raised funds over and
above the Town of Mount Deserts local contribution to the total cost of funding public
education from kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and
Services Funding Act and local amounts raised for the annual payment on non-state
funded debt service that will help achieve the Town of Mount Deserts budget for
educational programs.

Notes: Articles 70, 71, & 72 raise a total town appropriation of $4,008,495.00

201 7-18 Total Town Appropriation was $3, 790,149

Note: Article 73 summarizes the proposed school budget and does not authorize any
additional expenditures

Hand Count

Article 73. To see what sum the voters of the Town of Mount Desert will authorize the
School Board to expend for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019
from the Town’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education from kindergarten to
grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act, non-state-
funded school construction projects, additional local funds for school purposes under the
Maine Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15690, unexpended balances, tuition receipts,
state subsidy and other receipts for the support of schools.

Note: 2017-16 Total Budget was $4,253,631.00

School Board recommends $4,388,964.00
Warrant Committee recommends $4,368,964.00 (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

0

May 6, 2016- Warrant Page 34



Article 74. In addition to the amount in Articles 59 —73, shall the School Board be
authorized to expend such other sums as may be received from state or federal grants or
programs or other sources during the fiscal year 2018-2019 for school purposes provided
that such grants, programs or other sources do not require the expenditure of other funds
not previously appropriated?

Current Year Totals: $115,872.00

School Board recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends (15 Ayes; 0 Nays)

Moratorium

Article 75. Shall an ordinance dated May 8, 2018 and entitled “Town of Mount
Desert Marijuana Moratorium” be enacted as follows?

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT MORATORIUM ORDINANCE ON RETAIL MARIJUANA
ESTABLISHMENTS, RETAIL MARIJUNA STORES, AND RETAIL MARIJUANA SOCIAL

CLUBS

WHEREAS, the ‘Marijuana Legalization Act” has become law in Maine, codified in
the Maine Revised Statutes in Title 7, chapter 417; and

WHEREAS, the Marijuana Legalization Act (the “Act”) authorizes municipalities to
regulate the number of retail marijuana stores and the location and operation of retail
marijuana social clubs and retail marijuana establishments, including retail marijuana stores,
retail marijuana cultivation facilities, retail marijuana products manufacturing facilities, and
retail marijuana testing facilities, as those terms are defined in the Act, as well as providing
the option to prohibit the operation of retail marijuana social clubs and retail marijuana
establishments, including stores, cultivation facilities, manufacturing facilities, and testing
facilities, within their jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Act will not limit the privileges or rights afforded by the
Maine Medical Use of Marijuana Act (22 M.R.S.A. § 2421 — 2430-B) to qualifying patients.
primary caregivers, or registered dispensaries, including cultivation facilities associated with
any of those classifications; and

WHEREAS, the current ordinances of the Town of Mount Desert (the “Town”) do not
include any regulations related to retail marijuana stores, retail marijuana establishments, or
retail marijuana social clubs under the proposed new Act; and

WHEREAS, the unregulated location and operation of retail marijuana
establishments, retail marijuana stores, and retail marijuana social clubs within the Town of
Mount Desert raises legitimate and substantial questions about the impact of such
establishments, stores, and social clubs on the Town, including questions about the
compatibility of retail marijuana establishments, retail marijuana stores, and retail marijuana
social clubs with existing uses and development in residential, commercial, and industrial
zoning districts; the potential adverse health and safety effects of retail marijuana

May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 35



establishments, retail marijuana stores, and retail marijuana social clubs on the community if
not properly regulated; the possibility of illicit sale and use of marijuana and marijuana
products to minors and misuse of marijuana and marijuana products by those who would
abuse the uses authorized under the Act; potential criminal activity associated with the
cultivation, manufacturing, sale, and use of marijuana and marijuana products for non-
medicinal purposes and the potential increased burden on the Town’s police and fire
departments; and the adequacy of the Town’s streets and infrastructure to accommodate
the additional traffic and/or population that may result from the presence of retail marijuana
establishments, retail marijuana stores, or retail marijuana social clubs; and

WHEREAS, the possible effect of the location and operation of retail marijuana
establishments and/or retail marijuana stores and/or retail marijuana social clubs within the
Town has potentially serious implications for the health, safety, and welfare of the Town and
its residents; and

WHEREAS, the Town needs time to review the Act and to review its own ordinances
and regulations to determine the implications of future proposed retail marijuana
establishments and/or retail marijuana stares and/or retail marijuana social clubs to develop
reasonable ordinances and regulations governing the location and operations of such
establishments and stores and social clubs to address the concerns cited above: and

WHEREAS, the Town’s current ordinances are insufficient to prevent serious public
harm that could be caused by the unregulated development of retail marijuana
establishments and retail marijuana stores and retail marijuana social clubs and other uses
authorized by the Act, thereby necessitating a moratorium; and

WHEREAS, the Town, under its home rule authority, its police power generally,
and under 30-A MRSA., chapter 187, subchapter 3 (“land use regulation”), as provided
by the Maruana Legalization Act, or as otherwise provided by current law, has the
authority to impose reasonable restrictions, conditions, and limitations on such retail
marijuana establishments and retail marijuana stores and retail marijuana social clubs;
and

WHEREAS, the Selectboard, the Town Staff, the Ordinance Review Committee, and
the Planning Board, with the professional advice and assistance of the Chief of the Police
Department, shall study the Town’s current ordinances to determine the land use and other
regulatory implications of retail marijuana establishments and retail marijuana stores and
retail marijuana social clubs and consider what locations, if any, and conditions of approval,
if any, might be appropriate for such uses; and

WHEREAS, a moratorium is necessary to prevent an overburdening of public
facilities that is reasonably foreseeable as the result of retail marijuana establishments and
retail marijuana stores and retail marijuana social clubs and other uses authorized by the
Act, being located in the Town; and

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that such a study, review, and development of
recommended ordinance changes will take at least one hundred and eighty (180) days from
the date the Town enacts this Moratorium Ordinance on retail marijuana establishments and
retail marijuana stores and retail marijuana social clubs;

0

May 8, 2018 - Warrant Page 36



NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Town Meeting of the Town of Mount
Desert, that the following Moratorium Ordinance on retail marijuana establishments and
retail marijuana stores and retail marijuana social clubs be, and hereby is, enacted, and, in
furtherance thereof, the Town Meeting does hereby declare a moratorium on the location,
operation, or licensing of any retail marijuana social clubs and any retail marijuana
establishments, including retail marijuana stores, retail marijuana cultivation facilities, retail
marijuana products manufacturing facilities, and retail marijuana testing facilities, within the
Town.

This Moratorium Ordinance shall take effect on the date of its enactment by the
Town Meeting, and shall be applicable as of that date. The moratorium shall remain in
effect for one hundred and eighty (180) days from the effective date of this Ordinance,
unless extended, repealed, or modified, for the express purpose of drafting an amendment
or amendments to the Town’s current ordinances to protect the public from health and
safety risks including, but not limited to, compatibility of retail marijuana establishments,
retail marijuana stores, and retail marijuana social clubs with existing and permitted uses in
residential, commercial, and industrial zoning districts; the correlation of retail marijuana
establishments, retail marijuana stores, and retail marijuana social clubs with medical
marijuana cultivation facilities and dispensaries, all as defined in the Act; the potential
adverse health and safety effects of retail marijuana establishments and retail marijuana
stores and retail marijuana social clubs on the community if not properly regulated; the
possibility of illicit sale and use of marijuana and marijuana products to minors and misuse
of marijuana and marijuana products by those who would abuse the uses authorized under
the new law; criminal activity associated with the cultivation, manufacturing, sale, and use of
marijuana and maruuana products for non-medicinal purposes and the potential increased
burden on the public safety agencies serving the Town in responding to the same; and the
adequacy of the Town’s infrastructure to accommodate the additional traffic and/or
population that may result from the presence of retail marijuana establishments or retail
marijuana stores or retail marijuana social clubs in the Town.

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall apply to retail marijuana
stores and retail marijuana social clubs and retail marijuana establishments, including retail
marijuana stores, retail marijuana cultivation facilities, retail marijuana products
manufacturing facilities, and retail marijuana testing facilities, as those terms are defined by
the Act, codified at 7 M.R.S.A. § 2442 (36), (38), (39), (40), and (41), that may be proposed
to be located within the Town on or after the effective date of this Ordinance; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that notwithstanding the provisions of 1 M.R.S.A. §
302 or any other law to the contrary, this Ordinance, when enacted, shall govern any
proposed retail marijuana establishments or retail marijuana stores or retail marUuana social
clubs for which an application for a building permit, Certificate of Occupancy, site plan, or
any other required approval has not been submitted to and granted final approval by the
Code Enforcement Officer, Planning Board, or other Town official or board prior to the
applicability date of this Ordinance; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that no person or organization shall develop or
operate a retail marijuana establishment or retail marijuana store or retail marijuana social
club within the Town on or after the effective date of this Ordinance without complying with
whatever ordinance amendment or amendments the legislative body may enact as a result
of this Moratorium Ordinance; and

May 8,2018-Warrant Page 37



BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that during the time this Moratorium Ordinance is in
effect, no officer, official, employee, office, or board of the Town shall accept, process,
approve, deny, or in any other way act upon any application for a license, building permit, or
any other type of land use approval or permit and/or any other permits or licenses related to
a retail marijuana establishment or retail marijuana stores or retail marijuana social club; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that during the time this Moratorium Ordinance is in effect, no
person or organization shall develop or operate a business that engages in retail or
wholesale sales of products or merchandise for which a substantial portion of its business is
to prepare, cultivate, distribute, or ingest marijuana or retail or wholesale sales of such
products or merchandise of the kind that are commonly offered for sale or used at so-called
head shops, retail marijuana social clubs, or retail marijuana establishments, including,
without limitation, water pipes, hashish pipes, glass pipes, pipe screens, bongs, vaporizers,
scales, rolling papers, hydroponic equipment, and grow lights and general tobacco products
in so-called smoke shops; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that those provisions of the Town’s ordinances that
are inconsistent or conflicting with the provisions of this Ordinance, are hereby repealed to
the extent that they are applicable for the duration of the moratorium hereby ordained, and
as it may be extended as permitted by law, but not otherwise; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that if retail marijuana establishments or retail
marijuana stores or retail marijuana social clubs are established in violation of this
Ordinance, each day of any continuing violation shall constitute a separate violation of this
Ordinance, and the Town shall be entitled to all rights available to it in law and equity,
including, but not limited to, fines and penalties, injunctive relief, and its reasonable
attorney’s fees and costs in prosecuting any such violations; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that should any section or provision of this Ordinance
be declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such a declaration shall not
invalidate any other section or provision.

Board of Selectmen recommends passage
Warrant Committee recommends (13 Ayes; 2 Nays)

(End of May 5, 2018 - Warrant Articles)

0
May 8, 2018- Warrant Page 38



Appendices
An underline indicates an addition and a strikcthrough indicates a deletion.

Appendix A (Article 6; Pg.4)

SOLID WASTE ORDINANCE
of the

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

ENACTED MAY 6, 2014
Revised and Enacted May 8, 2018

SECTION 1: AUTHORITY

This Ordinance is created under the authority granted to the Town of Mount Desert (hereinafter
the “Town”) by Title 38 M.R.S.A., §1301 et seq. (the Maine Hazardous Waste, Septage and
Solid Waste Management Act) and the Town’s home rule authority pursuant to the Maine
Constitution and 30-A M.R.S. § 3001 et seq.

SECTION 2: PURPOSE

2.1. To protect the health, safety and general well-being of the citizens of the Town.

2.2. To enhance and maintain the quality of the environment, conserve natural resources and
prevent water and air pollution by providing a comprehensive, rational and effective means of
regulating the disposal of solid waste.

2.3 To recognize that the use of single use plastic bags typically provided by vendors is not an
environmentally sound use of resources and residents of and visitors of-and to the Town shall
cthvc are striving to use alternate means such as reusable cloth bags and other reusable items
to collect and transport their goods.

2.3. To control poNd waste in the Town by establishing limitations, prohibiting certain acts
causing solid waste problems and to enforce the provisions of this Ordinance.

2.4. To encourage and expand solid waste recycling and waste reduction.

2.5. To control solid waste in the Town by establishing limitations, prohibiting certain acts
eausthg generating solid waste problems and to enforce the provisions of this Ordinance.

2.6. To control the costs of solid waste management to the taxpayers of the Town.

SECTION 3: DEFINITIONS

3.1. Terms used in this Ordinance that are defined in 38 M.R.S.A. §1303-C as may be amended
from time to time, shall have the meaning prescribed in §1303-C and that meaning shall be
controlling, notwithstanding any contrary definition in the Ordinance or in any dictionary. The
§1303-C definitions are set forth in Appendix A to this Ordinance; Appendix A shall be updated
regularly (at least annually). Any word not otherwise defined shall have its customary dictionary

May 8, 2018 - Warrant Page 39



meaning.

This Ordinance provides the following definitions:

Acceptable Waste - solid waste (as defined herein) that is capable of processing at the Town’s
designated processing facility and/or otherwise handled by the Town’s solid waste collection
service.

Authorized Individual - means any person, partnership, corporation or other entity that either
owns, rents, leases (on a permanent or temporary basis) a dwelling or operates a commercial
establishment in Town.

Agricultural Solid Wastes - wastes produced from the raising of plants and animals for food,
including manure, plant stalks, hulls and leaves.

Ash - residue, including cinders and fly ash from the burning of solid fuels for cooking and
heating, and from on-site incineration of refuse materials.

Bulky Objects - abandoned vehicles, stoves and refrigerators, large furniture, tree trunks,
stumps and brush.

Commercial Solid Wastes - wastes that originate in wholesale, retail, or service establishments,
such as office buildings, stores, markets, theaters, hotels and warehouses.

Construction and Demolition Debris (CDD) - solid waste resulting from construction, remodeling,
repair, and demolition of structures, and as specifically defined in 38 MRS § 1303-C (see
Appendix A attached).

EMR - Eastern Maine Recycling located in Southwest Harbor, Maine, is a licensed solid waste
transfer station that also provides solid waste recycling services.

Fiberight dba Coastal Resources of Maine, LLC - Fiberight is a licensed facility located in
Hampden, Maine. licensed by the Maine DEP for solid waste processing.

Garbage - every accumulation of waste (animal, vegetable, and/or other matter) that results
from the preparation, processing, consumption, dealing in, handling, packing, canning, storage,
transportation, decay or decomposition of meats, fish, fowl, birds, fruits, grains or other animal
or vegetable matter (including but not by way of limitation, used food containers and all
putrescible or easily decomposable waste animal or vegetable matter that is likely to attract flies
or rodents), except (in all cases) any matter included in the definition of bulky waste,
construction and demolition debris, dead animals, hazardous waste, rubbish or stable mailer.

Green Wood - land clearing debris that is reasonably free of soil material and rock and bark,
shavings, slash, and plant and vegetable matter from gardens and landscapes.

Hazardous Waste/ Universal Waste — shall be as defined by 38 MRS. §1303-C (Appendix A
attached).

Industrial Waste - wastes generally discarded from industrial operations or derived from
manufacturing processes but not including a) hazardous waste or b) special waste which by
reason of its composition, characteristics or other properties is not ordinarily acceptable for

May 8, 2018 Warrant-- Page 40



disposal at sites licensed for disposal of municipal solid waste. Excluded special waste shall
include, but not be limited to friable asbestos and oil-contaminated soil.

Municipal Wastes - the combined residential and commercial wastes generated within the
Town.

Non-Resident - a person who does not reside in or pay property taxes to the Town.

PERC Penobscot Energy Recove’ Company is a licensed waste to energy facility located in
Orrirntnn Maine that nrevides solid wactc disposal scR’ices.

Refuse — a broad term and is synonymous with “solid waste” and shall be defined as any of a
wide variety of solid materials as well as some liquids in containers, which are discarded or
rejected as being spent, useless, worthless, or in excess.

Resident - a person who resides in or occupies a residential property and/or pays property taxes
to the Town.

Residential Waste - waste generated in houses, apartments and other dwelling units, including
paper, cardboard, beverage and food cans, plastics, food wastes, and glass containers.

Sewerage Treatment Wastes - screenings, grease, scum and grit from the Town of Mount
Desert Publicly Owned Treatment Works.

Q
Solid Waste—waste as defined in 38 MRS § 1303-C (see Appendix A attached).

Special Wastes- waste as defined in 38 MRSA 1303-C (see Appendix A attached)

Tipping Fee - the fee charged to the Town by a facility such as EMR, PERC, etc. or Fiberight,
etc. for transport or disposal of solid waste.

Unacceptable Waste - solid waste of a type that municipalities are authorized to regulate under
38 MRS § 1305, as amended, and that are prohibited at EMR (for transport to the Town’s
designated acceptable waste processing facility) or at that designated waste processing facility.

Wood Waste - means brush, lumber, bark, wood chips, shavings, slabs, edgings, slash,
sawdust, and wood from production rejects that are not mixed with other solid or liquid waste.
For the purpose of this definition, “lumber” is entirely made of wood and is free from metal,
plastics, and coatings. Wood Waste does not include painted wood or pressure treated wood.
These would be included with Construction and Demolition Debris, as defined. Wood Waste
also does not include Green Wood, as defined.

SECTION 4: REGULATED ACTIVITY

4.1. The accumulation, collection, transportation and disposal of acceptable wastes and
unacceptable wastes generated within the Town shall be regulated in the following manner:

4.1.1 All acceptable waste generated within the Town shall be deposited roadside at locations
designated by the Town in appropriate containers and collected by the Town or appropriate
licensed commercial hauler.

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 41



4.1.2 All unacceptable waste, including hazardous waste, special waste, hazardouc universal
waste, CDD waste, hot loads, and certain wood wastes, shall be subject to the Materials
Disposal Restrictions set forth in Section 4.3 below and shall be handled by licensed firms and
deposited at licensed facilities out of Town consistent with Section 4.2 below. Violations of this
Section 4 shall be subject to enforcement under Section 8 and related provisions of this
Ordinance.

4.2. General Requirements

4.2.1. All solid waste shall be handled and disposed in accordance with this Ordinance.

4.2.2. The Board of Selectmen shall have the authority to restrict or modify the disposal of all
types and volumes of solid waste, if deemed in the best interests of the Town.

4.2.3. No person, partnership or corporation, shall dispose of any refuse on any public property
or roads except as allowed by this ordinance.

4.3. Materials Disposal Restrictions

The following waste materials or containers of waste materials as described below shall not be
handled or disposed within the boundaries of the Town:

4.3.1. Materials classified as hazardous waste in 38 MRS § 1303-C (see Appendix A attached)
unless:

• Within a Town sanctioned public collection event or effort, if handled by a person or firm
licensed to handle and transport hazardous waste and if disposed at a facility licensed
for hazardous waste disposal outside the Town; or

• Handled and transported by a commercial entity licensed to handle and transport
hazardous waste if taken to a licensed facility outside the Town.

4.3.2. Materials classified as universal waste by 38 MRS § 1303-C (see Appendix A attached)
unless:

• Within a Town sanctioned public collection event or effort, if handled by a person or firm
licensed to handle and transport universal waste and if disposed at a facility licensed for
universal waste disposal outside the Town; or

• Handled and transported by a commercial entity licensed to handle and transport
universal waste if taken to a licensed facility outside the Town.

4.3.3. Ash at a combustible temperature or other hot loads.

4.3.4. Trees, limbs of trees, or tree trunks more than 4 inches in diameter and/or 3 feet in length
or stumps except by a commercial entity licensed to handle and transport woody waste and
disposed at a licensed wood waste facility outside the Town

4.3.5. All Commercial Demolition Debris as defined herein, except by a commercial entity
licensed to handle such CDD waste if disposed at a licensed facility outside the Town.

4.3.6. All Special Waste as defined herein, except by a commercial entity licensed to handle (Z
May 8, 2018 Warrant-- Page 42



Special Waste if disposed at a licensed facility for disposal of Special Waste outside the Town

4.3.7. All Green Wood and Wood Waste as defined herein, except by a commercial entity
licensed to handle such Wood Waste if disposed at a licensed facility outside the Town.

SECTION 5: HANDLING AND DISPOSAL OF SOLID WASTE

Authorized Individuals (including Residents) shall handle and dispose of acceptable solid waste
by only one of the following methods:

5.1. Town-provided collection service:

Materials disposed at curbside are limited to solid waste acceptable to the Town’s contracted
transfer station or solid waste processing facility. Materials must be placed in secured bags,
secured containers andfor secured receptacles adequate to prevent loss of control of the solid
waste. Those disposing of the solid waste are responsible for picking up and cleaning up of
unsecured solid waste regardless of the cause.

Curbside solid waste collection occurs by summer and winter schedules promulgated by the
Town. Solid waste must be at curbside by 7 AM on the scheduled day to ensure pick up.

5.2. Authorized Individuals at the Town of Mount Desert area designated at EMR.

5.3. Hire a Private Hauler.

Authorized Individuals may contract at their cost with a private hauler for disposal of acceptable
solid waste. All waste collected by private haulers shall be delivered to EMR and credited to the
Town’s guaranteed annual tonnage. Authorized Individuals shall be responsible for all costs
associatod with a private hauler, including disposal costs.

5.4 Town Sponsored Solid Waste Disposal at EMR

Authorized indi.44uals Individuals have a Town sponsored solid waste disposal account at EMR
allowing up to two thousand (2,000) pounds of solid waste annually per Town physical address
delivered by the authorized individual or their private licensed hauler. Authorized Individuals
shall be responsible for all costs associated with a private hauler. This allowance provides for
the disposal of all solid waste; particularly green wood, bulky objects allowed by EMR and CDD
(construction and demolition debris) except special, hazardous and universal waste. This
allowance may expire in 2018 at such time the inhabitants of the Town choose to eliminate the
practice.

SECTION 6: FEES

Authority: The Town Meeting may establish fees for solid waste disposal to promote recycling
and improve the efficiency of the management of solid waste and to support the cost of solid
waste collection and disposal.

SECTION 7: LICENSES

7.1 No person, firm or corporation shall transport on a commercial basis any acceptable waste
for disposal outside the Town without obtaining a license to transport such waste within the

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 43



Town from the Town Manager. The license shall be in effect for 42 (twelve twenty-four)
months from date of issue and must be renewed on or before its expiration date.

7.2. Any person, firm or corporation required by this Ordinance to obtain an annual license shall
make application to the Town Manager. A nonrefundable license application fee as determined
by the Board of Selectmen shall accompany each application. The fee structure shall be
reviewed every two (2) years by the Town Manager or designee with a recommendation being
made by the Town Manager or designee to the Board of Selectmen as to its appropriateness or
if it should be changed. The existing fee or any changes to it shall go into effect July 1 of each
new fiscal year. A copy of the application form is available from the Town Office.

7.3. The application shall contain all information required by it, including, but not limited to, a
description of the activity/activities engaged in, e.g., collection and transport of acceptable,
recyclable/storable and/or unacceptable waste; types and estimated amount(s) of waste
handled in each service area and; a description of the facility/facilities operated and used. The
applicant’s signature on the application verifies the applicant’s intended compliance with this
Ordinance. Incomplete applications will not be processed.

7.4. Licenses shall not be transferable.

7.5. All licenses shall expire one two (2) years (1) year from the date of issue unless revoked or
suspended sooner in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance.

7.6. In the event that the Town Manager denies a license application, the applicant shall be
notified of the reasons for the denial of the license. The applicant may appeal the Town
Manager’s decisions to the Board of Selectmen.

7.7. Suspension and Revocation

Any license issued may be suspended or revoked by the Town Manager for cause, including the
foil owing reasons:

a. Violation of this Ordinance;
b. Violation of any provision of any state or local law, ordinance, code or regulation which
relates directly to the provisions of this Ordinance:
c. Violation of any license condition(s); and
d. Falsehoods, misrepresentations or omissions in the license application.

Suspension or revocation of a license may be appealed to the Board of Selectmen.

SECTION 8: VIOLATIONS & PENALTIES

8.1. Disposal generally prohibited; disposal of rubbish, garbage, solid waste and debris on
public or private property:

No person shall throw or place or cause to be thrown or placed upon any premises located
within the limits of the Town any rubbish, garbage, solid waste or debris of any kind, except in
full conformance with this Ordinance, nor shall any owner or occupant of any such premises
suffer any such rubbish, garbage, solid waste or debris to remain on said premises after
receiving notice from the Chief of Police or Code Enforcement Officer Public Works Director or
their designees. Any person or persons so failing to remove any such rubbish, garbage, solid

May 8, 2018 Warrant — Page 44



waste or debris for a period of seven days after receipt of said notice shall be subject to
enforcement.

8.2 Limited Exemption:

Disposal of rubbish, garbage, solid waste and debris during the Spring Clean-up Week shall not
constitute a violation of this Ordinance and shall not be subject to enforcement.

8.3. Any person, including, but not limited to, a landowner, the landowner’s agent or a
contractor, who violates any of the provisions of this ordinance shall be subject to enforcement
and liable to the remedies, fines, and civil penalties as stated below in Sections 8.4, 8.5 and 8.6.

8.4. Monetary penalties may be assessed on a per-day basis and are civil penalties. The
minimum penalty for a specific violation is $100, and the maximum penalty is $2,500.

8.5. Municipal Costs of Enforcement: In addition to the foregoing penalty provisions, any person
violating any provision of this ordinance shall be liable to reimburse the Town for costs of
enforcement including reasonable attorney fees and court costs. This The Town is also
authorized to seek and obtain equitable relief.

8.6. Violations of this ordinance shall also be enforced under the provisions of the Maine anti-
littering statute at 17 M.R.S. § 2264-A, 2264-B, and 2264-C, as may be amended from time to
time. A copy of those laws is attached as Appendix B and shall be updated as those laws are
amended.

SECTION 9: SPECIAL COLLECTION EFFORTS

9.1. The Board of Selectmen or designee may authorize seasonal or other solid waste collection
efforts in addition to those described in this ordinance. Such events shall be advertised by the
Town so as to inform as many residents as practical.

SECTION 10: SEVERABILITY

If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance shall be held invalid for any reason,
the remainder of that section and all other sections shall continue in full force and effect.

SECTION II: EFFECTIVE DATE; SUNSET

This Ordinance shall become effective on May 6, 2011, and shall continuo in offoct for a period
of four (1) yoorc unlocs oxtondod or reauthorizod by Town Mooting prior to the expiration of tho
period of four (‘1) yoarc from tho offoctivo dato. upon the date of enactment for a period not to
exceed 15 years, unless amended or repealed prior to the expiration of this 15 year period.

SECTION 12: AMENDMENT

This Ordinance may be amended in the same manner as any other Ordinance of the Town.

ADOPTED by Annual Town Meeting this 6th 8th day of May 2018. 2011.

Joollo 0. Nolan Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk

May 8, 2018 Warrant-- Page 45



Appendix A QN
38 M.R.S.A. § 1303-C
§ 1303-C. Definitions
Effective: July 1, 2012
As used in this chapter or in chapter 24,1 unless the context otherwise indicates, the following
terms have the following meanings.

1. Repealed. Laws 1995, c. 656, §A-19.

1-A. Biomedical waste. “Biomedical waste” means waste that may contain human pathogens of
sufficient virulence and in sufficient concentrations that exposure to it by a susceptible human
host could result in disease or that may contain cytotoxic chemicals used in medical treatment.

1-B. Repealed. L. 2005, c. 612, §A-21, eff. Jan. 1,2007.

1-C. Bypass. “Bypass” means any solid waste that is destined for disposal, processing or
beneficial use at a solid waste facility but that cannot be disposed of, processed or beneficially
used at that facility because of the facility’s malfunction, insufficient capacity, inability to process
or burn, downtime or any other comparable reason.

2. Repealed. Laws 1989, c. 890, § B-225.

2-A. Class I liquid. “Class I liquid” means any liquid having a flash point below 1000 Fahrenheit.

2-B. Class II liquid. “Class II liquid” means any liquid having a flash point at or above 100°
Fahrenheit and below 140° Fahrenheit.

3. Closing reserve fund. “Closing reserve fund” means a fund created for the purpose of
financing the closing and maintenance after closing of a waste facility.

4. Commercial hazardous waste facility. “Commercial hazardous waste facility” means:

A. A waste facility that handles hazardous wastes generated off the site of the facility; or

B. A facility that, in the handling of a waste generated off the site, generates hazardous waste.

5. Commercial landfill facility. ‘Commercial landfill facility” means a commercial solid waste
facility that is used for the burial of solid waste,

6. Commercial solid waste disposal facility. “Commercial solid waste disposal facility” means
a solid waste disposal facility except as follows:

A. Deleted. Laws 2007, c. 338, § 2.

A-i. Repealed. Laws 2005, c. 612, § 2, eff. Jan. 1, 2007.

A-2. A solid waste facility that is owned by a public waste disposal corporation under section
1304-B, subsection 5:

(I) As long as the public waste disposal corporation controls the decisions regarding the type

May 8, 2018 Warrant-- Page 46



and source of waste that is accepted, handled, treated and disposed of at the facility; and

(2) If the facility is a solid waste landfill, the facility accepts only waste that is generated within
the State unless the commissioner finds that the acceptance of waste that is not generated
within the State provides a substantial public benefit pursuant to section 1310-M, subsection 1-
A;

B. Deleted. Laws 2007, c. 338, § 2.

B-I. Repealed. Laws 2005, c. 612, § 2, eff. Jan. 1, 2007.

B-2. A solid waste facility that is owned by a municipality under section 1305:

(I) As long as the municipality controls the decisions regarding the type and source of waste
that is accepted, handled, treated and disposed of at the facility; and

(2) If the facility is a solid waste landfill, the facility accepts only waste that is generated within
the State unless:

(a) The commissioner finds that the acceptance of waste that is not generated within the State
provides a substantial public benefit pursuant to section 1310-AA, subsection 1-A; and

(b) Acceptance of waste that is not generated within the State is approved by a majority of the
voters of the municipality by referendum election;

C. Deleted. Laws 2007, c. 338, § 2.

C-I. Repealed. Laws 2005, c. 612, § 2, elf. Jan. 1,2007.

C-2. A solid waste facility that is owned by a refuse disposal district under chapter 17:

(I) As long as the refuse disposal district controls the decisions regarding the type and source
of waste that is accepted, handled, treated and disposed of at the facility; and

(2) If the facility is a solid waste landfill, the facility accepts only waste that is generated within
the State unless the commissioner finds that the acceptance of waste that is not generated
within the State provides a substantial public benefit pursuant to section 1310-AA, subsection 1-
A;

D. Beginning January 1, 2007, a solid waste facility owned and controlled by the Department of
Administrative and Financial Services, Bureau of General Services under chapter 24;

D-1. Repealed. Laws 2005, c. 612, § 2, elf. Jan. 1, 2007.

E. A solid waste facility owned and controlled by a single entity that:

(1) Generates at least 85% of the solid waste disposed of at a facility, except that the facility
may accept from other sources, on a nonprofit basis, an amount of solid waste that is no more
than 15% of all solid waste accepted on an annual basis; or

(2) Is an owner of a manufacturing facility that has, since January 1, 2006, generated at least

May 8, 2018 Warrant-- Page 47



65% of the solid waste disposed of at the solid waste facility, except that one or more integrated
industrial processes of the manufacturing facility are no longer in common ownership, and those
integrated industrial processes will continue to generate waste that will continue to be disposed
of at the solid waste facility. This exemption only applies if the source and type of waste
disposed of at the solid waste facility remains the same as that previously disposed of by the
single entity.

For the purposes of this paragraph, “single entity” means an individual, partnership, corporation
or limited liability corporation that is not engaged primarily in the business of treating or
disposing of solid waste or special waste. This paragraph does not apply if an individual partner,
shareholder, member or other ownership interest in the single entity disposes of waste in the
solid waste facility. A waste facility receiving ash resulting from the combustion of municipal
solid waste or refuse-derived fuel is not exempt from this subsection solely by operation of this
paragraph.

For purposes of this paragraph, “integrated industrial processes” means manufacturing
processes, equipment or components, including, but not limited to, energy generating facilities,
that when used in combination produce one or more manufactured products for sale; or

F. A private corporation that accepts material-separated, refuse-derived fuel as a supplemental
fuel and does not burn waste other than its own.

For purposes of this subsection, “waste that is generated within the State” includes residue and
bypass generated by incineration, processing and recycling facilities within the State or waste
whether generated within the State or outside of the State if it is used for daily cover, frost
protection or stability or is generated within 30 miles of the solid waste disposal facility.

7. Repealed. Laws 1999, c. 525, § 2, elf. June 17, 1999.

A. to F. Repealed. Laws 1999, c. 525, § 2, elf. June 17, 1999.

8. Construction and demolition debris. “Construction and demolition debris” means debris
resulting from construction, remodeling, repair, and demolition of structures. It excludes
asbestos and other special wastes.

9. Contingency reserve fund. “Contingency reserve fund” means a fund maintained for the
purpose of meeting unexpected contingencies in the operation of a waste facility.

10. Conveyance. “Conveyance” means any aircraft, watercraft, vehicle or other machine used
for transportation on land, water or in the air.

11. Repealed. Laws 1989, c. 890, § B-225.

12. Disposal. “Disposal” means the discharge, deposit, dumping, spilling, leaking or placing of
hazardous, biomedical or solid waste, waste oil, refuse-derived fuel, sludge or septage into or
on land, air or water and the incineration of solid waste, refuse-derived fuel, sludge or septage
so that the hazardous, biomedical or solid waste, waste oil, refuse-derived fuel, sludge or
septage or a constituent of the hazardous, biomedical or solid waste, waste oil, refuse-derived
fuel, sludge or septage may enter the environment or be emitted into the air, or discharged into
waters, including ground waters.

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 48



13. Generation. “Generation” means the act or process of producing hazardous, biomedical or
solid waste, waste oil, sludge or septage.

13-A. Repealed. Laws 1991, c. 520, §4.

14. Handle. “Handle” means to store, transfer, collect, separate, salvage, process, recycle,
reduce, recover, incinerate, dispose of or treat.

15. Hazardous waste. “Hazardous waste” means a waste substance or material, in any
physical state, designated as hazardous by the board under section 1319-0. It does not include
waste resulting from normal household or agricultural activities. The fact that a hazardous waste
or part or constituent may have value or other use or may be sold or exchanged does not
exclude it from this definition.

15-A. Hazardous waste incinerator. “Hazardous waste incinerator” means an enclosed device
using controlled flame combustion to thermally break down hazardous waste.

15-B. Host community. “Host community” means any town, township or city that is the
geographic site of a solid waste disposal facility or any immediately contiguous town, township
or city if such town, township or city can demonstrate to the department that it incurs a direct
financial impact related to any necessary development or maintenance of infrastructure or to
any necessary provision of services as a result of the location or operation of that solid waste
disposal facility.

16. Incineration facility. “Incineration facility” means a facility where municipal solid waste or
refuse-derived fuel is disposed of through combustion, including combustion for the generation
of heat, steam or electricity.

17. Inert fill. “Inert fill” means clean soil material, rocks, bricks, and cured concrete, which are
not mixed with other waste, and which are not derived from an ore mining activity.

18. Land clearing debris. “Land clearing debris” means solid wastes resulting from the clearing
of land and consisting solely of brush, stumps, soil material and rocks.

19. Manifest. “Manifest” means the form used for identifying the quantity, composition and the
origin, routing and destination of hazardous waste during its transport.

19-A. Material-separated, refuse-derived fuel. “Material-separated, refuse-derived fuel”
means a binder-enhanced, pelletized, solid fuel product made from the combustible fraction of a
municipal solid waste stream that has been processed to remove the recyclable material before
combustion. The product may not contain more than 6% by weight of plastic, metal, glass or
food waste. In addition, the production of material-separated, refuse-derived fuel may not
exceed 40% by weight of the total municipal solid waste stream from which it was derived,

19-B. Primary sand and gravel recharge area. “Primary sand and gravel recharge area” has
the same meaning as in section 562-A, subsection 16-B.

19-C. Repealed. Laws 2011, c. 655, §GG-8, eff. July 1,2012.

20. Recyclable. “Recyclable” means possessing physical and economic characteristics that
allow a material to be recycled,

May 8, 2018 Warrant -- Page 49



21. Recycle. “Recycle means to recover, separate, collect and reprocess waste materials far
sale or reuse other than use as a fuel for the generation of heat, steam or electricity.

22. Recycling. Recycling” means the collection, separation, recovery and sale or reuse of
materials that would otherwise be disposed of or processed as waste or the mechanized
separation and treatment of waste, other than through combustion, and the creation and
recovery of reusable materials other than as a fuel for the generation of electricity.

23. Refuse-derived fuel. “Refuse-derived fuel” means municipal solid waste which has been
processed prior to combustion to increase the heat input value of the waste.

24. Regional association. “Regional association” means 2 or more municipalities that have
formed a relationship to manage the solid waste generated within the participating municipalities
and for which those municipalities are responsible. The relationship must be formed by one or
more of the following methods:

A. Creation of a refuse disposal district under chapter 1 7;2

B. Creation of a nonprofit corporation that consists exclusively of municipalities and is organized
under Title 13, chapter 813 or Title 13-B, for the purpose, among other permissible purposes, of
owning, constructing or operating a solid waste disposal facility, including a public waste
disposal corporation under section 1304-B, or whose members contract for the disposal of solid
waste with a solid waste disposal facility, including, but not limited to, a qualifying facility as
defined in Title 35-A, section 3303;

C. Creation of a joint exercise of powers agreement under Title 30-A, chapter 1 15;4 or

D. Contractual commitment.

For the purposes of this chapter, a regional association and the entities described in paragraphs
B and C may include counties and quasi-municipal corporations as members provided the
counties or quasi-municipal corporations, when acting by themselves within their own
jurisdictions, are capable of exercising all of the powers of the regional association,

25. Residue. “Residue” means waste remaining after the handling, processing, incineration or
recycling of solid waste including, without limitation, front end waste and ash from incineration
facilities.

25-k Responsible party. For the purposes of subchapter Il-AS only, “responsible party” means
any or all of the following persons:

A. The owner or operator of an uncontrolled tire stockpile; and

B. Any person who owned or operated an uncontrolled tire stockpile from the time any tire
arrived at that stockpile.

26. Resource recovery. For the purposes of section 1304-B only, “resource recovery” means
the recovery of materials or substances that still have useful physical or chemical properties
after serving a specific purpose and can be reused or recycled for the same or other purposes. (J

May 8, 2018 Warrant-- Page 50



27. Septage. “Septage” means waste, refuse, effluent, sludge and any other materials from
septic tanks, cesspoois or any other similar facilities.

27-A. Significant ground water aquifer. Significant ground water aquifer” has the same
meaning as in section 562-A, subsection 19-A.

28. Site. “Site” means the same or geographically contiguous property which may be divided by
a public or private right-of-way, provided that the entrance and exit between the properties is at
a crossroads intersection and access is by crossing as opposed to going along the right-of-way.
Noncontiguous properties owned by the same person but connected by a right-of-way which he
controls and to which the public does not have access is also considered site property.

28-A. Sludge. “Sludge” means nonhazardous solid, semisolid or liquid waste generated from a
municipal, commercial or industrial wastewater treatment plant, water supply treatment plant or
wet process air pollution control facility or any other waste having similar characteristics and
effect. The term does not include industrial discharges that are point sources subject to permits
under the federal Clean Water Act, 33 United States Code, Section 1342 (1999).

29. Solid waste. “Solid waste” means useless, unwanted or discarded solid material with
insufficient liquid content to be free-flowing, including, but not limited to, rubbish, garbage,
refuse-derived fuel, scrap materials, junk, refuse, inert fill material and landscape refuse, but
does not include hazardous waste, biomedical waste, septage or agricultural wastes. The fact
that a solid waste or constituent of the waste may have value or other use or may be sold or
exchanged does not exclude it from this definition.

30. Solid waste disposal facility. “Solid waste disposal facility” means a solid waste facility for
the incineration or landfilling of solid waste or refuse-derived fuel. Facilities that burn material-
separated, refuse-derived fuel, either alone or in combination with fuels other than municipal
solid waste or refuse-derived fuels, are not solid waste disposal facilities.

31. Solid waste facility. “Solid waste facility” means a waste facility used for the handling of
solid waste, except that the following facilities are not included:

A. A waste facility that employs controlled combustion to dispose of waste generated
exclusively by an institutional, commercial or industrial establishment that owns the facility;

B. Lime kilns; wood chip, bark and hogged fuel boilers; kraft recovery boilers and sulfite process
recovery boilers, which combust solid waste generated exclusively at the facility; and

C. An industrial boiler that combusts mixed paper, corrugated cardboard or office paper to
generate heat, steam or electricity if:

(1) The mixed paper, corrugated cardboard or office paper would otherwise be placed in a
landfill;

(2) The market value of the mixed paper, corrugated cardboard or office paper as a raw material
for the manufacture of a product with recycled content is less than its value to the facility owner
as a fuel supplement;

(3) The mixed paper, corrugated cardboard or office paper is combusted as a substitute for, or
supplement to, fossil or biomass fuels that constitute the primary fuels combusted in the

May 8, 2018 Warrant-- Page 51



industrial boiler; and

(4) The boiler combusts no other forms of solid waste except as provided in this subsection.

32. Solid waste landfill. ‘Solid waste landfill” means a waste disposal facility for the disposal of
solid waste on or in land. This term does not include landspreading sites used in programs
approved by the department.

32-A. Solid waste processing facility. “Solid waste processing facility” means a land area,
structure, equipment, machine, device, system or combination thereof, other than an
incineration facility, that is operated to reduce the volume or change the chemical or physical
characteristics of solid waste. “Solid waste processing facility” includes but is not limited to a
facility that employs shredding, baling, mechanical and magnetic separation or composting or
other stabilization technique to reduce or otherwise change the nature of solid waste.

33. Source separation. Source separation” means the preparation of materials for recycling by
separation from wastes at the point of generation.

34. Special waste. “Special waste” means any solid waste generated by sources other than
domestic and typical commercial establishments that exists in such an unusual quantity or in
such a chemical or physical state, or any combination thereof, that may disrupt or impair
effective waste management or threaten the public health, human safety or the environment and
requires special handling, transportation and disposal procedures. Special waste includes, but is
not limited to:

A. Oil, coal, wood and multifuel boiler and incinerator ash;

B. Industrial and industrial process waste;

C. Waste water treatment plant sludge, paper mill sludge and other sludge waste;

0. Debris and residuals from nonhazardous chemical spills and cleanup of those spills;

E. Contaminated soils and dredge spoils;

F. Asbestos and asbestos-containing waste;

G. Sand blast grit and nonliquid paint waste;

H. Deleted. Laws 1989, c. 869, § A-5.

I. High and low pH waste;

J. Spent filter media and residue; and

K. Other waste designated by the board, by rule.

35. State waste management and recycling plan. “State waste management and recycling
plan” means the plan adopted by the former Maine Waste Management Agency pursuant to
chapter 24, subchapter 2,6 subsequent plans developed by the former State Planning Office
pursuant to Title 5, former section 3305, subsection 1, paragraph N and the department

May 8, 2018 Warrant — Page 52



pursuant to section 2122 and may also be referred to as “state plan.”

36. Storage. “Storage” means the containment of hazardous wastes, either on a temporary
basis or for a period of years, in such a manner as not to constitute disposal of the hazardous
wastes.

37. Substantially expand. “Substantially expand” means the expansion of an existing licensed
hazardous waste facility by more than 25%, as measured by volume of waste or affected land
area, from the date of its initial licensed operation.

38. Transport. “Transport” means the movement of hazardous or solid waste, waste oil, sludge
or septage from the point of generation to any intermediate points and finally to the point of
ultimate disposition. Movement of hazardous waste on the site where it is generated or on the
site of a licensed waste facility for hazardous waste is not “transport.” Movement of waste oil on
the site where it is generated or on the site of a licensed waste oil dealer’s facility is not
“transport.”

39. Treatment. “Treatment” means any process, including but not limited to incineration,
designed to change the character or composition of any hazardous waste, waste oil or
biomedical waste so as to render the waste less hazardous or infectious.

39-A. Uncontrolled tire stockpile. “Uncontrolled tire stockpile” means an area or location,
whether or not licensed, where used motor vehicle tires are or were handled, stored or disposed
of in such a manner as to present a significant fire hazard or a threat to public health or to the
quality of a classified body of surface water or a significant sand and gravel aquifer or fractured
bedrock aquifer as defined in section 1310-N, subsection 2-A.

39-B. Used oil. “Used oil” means waste oil, as defined in subsection 42.

39-C. Used oil collection center. “Used oil collection center” means a site or facility where
used oil is accepted from the public and collected or stored in an aboveground tank for
recycling.

40. Waste facility. “Waste facility” means any land area, structure, location, equipment or
combination of them, including dumps, used for handling hazardous, biomedical or solid waste,
waste oil, sludge or septage. A land area or structure does not become a waste facility solely
because:

A. It is used by its owner for disposing of septage from the owner’s residence;

B. It is used to store for 90 days or less hazardous wastes generated on the same premises;

C. It is used by individual homeowners or lessees to open burn leaves, brush, deadwood and
tree cuttings accrued from normal maintenance of their residential property, when such burning
is permitted under section 599, subsection 3; or

D. It is used by its residential owner to burn highly combustible domestic, household trash such
as paper, cardboard cartons or wood boxes, when such burning is permitted under section 599,
subsection 3.

41. Waste management. “Waste management” means purposeful, systematic and unified

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 53



control of the handling and transportation of hazardous, biomedical or solid waste, waste oil,
sludge or septage.

42. Waste oil. “Waste oil” means a petroleum-based or synthetic oil that, through use or
handling, has become unsuitable for its original purpose due to the presence of impurities or
loss of original properties. Waste oil that exhibits hazardous wastes characteristics, or has been
contaminated with hazardous wastes in excess of quantities normally occurring in waste oil, is
subject to the provisions of this chapter dealing with hazardous wastes.

43. Waste oil dealer. “Waste oil dealer” means any person in the business of transporting or
handling more than 1,000 gallons of waste oil for the purpose of resale in a calendar month. A
person who collects or stores waste oil on the site of generation, whether or not for the purpose
of resale, is not a waste oil dealer.

44. Waste reduction. “Waste reduction” means an action that reduces waste at the point of
generation and may also be referred to as “source reduction.”

45. Waste resulting from agricultural activities. “Waste resulting from agricultural activities”
means wastes which result from agricultural activities defined in section 361-A, subsection 1-B,
which are returned to the soils as fertilizers and includes waste pesticides when generated by a
farmer in his own use, provided that he triple rinses each emptied pesticide container in
accordance with departmental rules and disposes of the pesticide residues in a manner
consistent with the disposal instructions on the pesticide label.

46. Wood wastes. “Wood wastes” means brush, stumps, lumber, bark, woodchips, shavings,
slabs, edgings, slash and sawdust, which are not mixed with other waste.

47. Yard wastes. “Yard wastes” means grass clippings, leaves and other vegetal matter other
than wood wastes and land clearing debris.

Credits
1989, c. 585, § E, 4; 1989, c. 794, § 2; 1989, c. 869, § A-3 to A-5; 1989, c. 878, § H-7, eff. April
20, 1990; 1989, c. 890, § B-225; 1989, c. 929, § 5;1991, c. 72, § 1,2, elf. May 6, 1991; 1991,
c. 220, § 6-10, elf. May 31, 1991; 1991, c. 321; 1991, c. 492, § 1,2; 1991, c. 517, § A-i, elf.
June 28, 1991; 1991, c. 520, § 4; 1993, c. 355, § 46, 47, elf. June 16, 1993; 1993, c. 378, § 4,
eff. June 16. 1993; 1993, c. 383, § 33, 34; 1993, c. 424, § 1, 2; R.R.1993, c. 1, § 131; 1993,
c. 732, § A-7, A-B, elf. April 20, 1994; 1995, c. 462, § A-76, A-90, eff. July 3, 1995; 1995, c.
465, § A-12, elf. July 3, 1995; 1995, c. 573, § 1,2; 1995, c. 625, § C-5, elf. April 8, 1996; 1995,
c. 656, §A-19toA-21; R.R.1995, c. 2, § 111; 1997, c. 393, § B-9, elf. June 5, 1997; 1997, c.
602, § 1, elf. March 17, 1998; 1999, c. 334, § 10; 1999, c. 393, § 1; 1999, c. 525, § 1, 2, elf.
June 17, 1999; 2001, c. 247, § 1; 2005, c.612, § 1,2; 2007, c. 338, § 1,2;2007, c. 406, § 1;
2007, c. 414, § 1; 2007, c. 583, § 1:2011, c. 206, § 20, elf. June 3,2011; 2011, c. 655, § GG-7
to GG-9, elf. July 1, 2012.

Notes of Decisions (4)

Footnotes

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 54



‘ 38 M.R.S.A. §2101 etseq.

2 38 M.R.S.A. § 1701 etseq.

2 13 M.R.S.A. § 901 et seq.

4 30-A M.R.S.A. § 2201 et seq.

5 38 M.R.S.A. § 1316 etseq.

6 38 M.R.S.A. § 2121 et seq.

38 M. R. S. A. § 1303-C, ME ST T. 38 § 1303-C
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

May 8, 2018 Warrant-- Page 55



Appendix B

17 M.R.S.A. Ch. 80, Refs & Annos
Chapter 80, Litter Control, was enacted by Laws 1971, c. 405, § 1.

17 M.RSA. § 2261

§ 2261. Title

Currentness

This Chapter shall be known and may be Cited as the “Maine Litter Control Act.”

Credits
1971, C. 405, § 1.

Notes of Decisions (2)

17 M. R. S. A. § 2261, ME STT. 17 § 2261
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2262

§ 2262. Purposes

Currentness

It is declared and recognized that the proliferation and accumulation of litter discarded
throughout this State endangers the free utilization and enjoyment of a clean and healthful
environment by the people and constitutes a public health hazard; and recognizing that there
has been a collective failure on the part of government, business and the public to accept, plan
for and accomplish effective litter control, there is enacted the “Maine Litter Control Act.”

Credits
1971, c. 405, § 1.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2262, ME ST T. 17 § 2262
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

May 8, 2018 Warrant-- Page 56



Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2263

§ 2263. Definitions

Currentness

As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise indicates, the following terms have the
following meanings.

1. “Disposable package” or “container” means any and all packages or containers used for the
purpose of containing a product sold or held out for sale for human or animal consumption.

1-A. Repealed. Laws 1989, c. 878, § B-12, eff. April 20, 1990.

1-B. Department. “Department” means the Department of Agriculture, Conservation and
Forestry.

1-C. Commercial purpose. “Commercial purpose” means for the purpose of economic gain.

1-D. Abandoned ice-fishing shack. “Abandoned ice-fishing shack” means a temporary
structure used for ice fishing and left on property not owned by the person owning the structure
without permission of the landowner for more than 15 days after the inland waters on which the
shack or structure was located are closed to ice fishing.

2. Litter. “Litter” means all waste materials including, but not limited to, bottles, glass, crockery,
cans, scrap metal, junk, paper, garbage, rubbish, offal, except waste parts or remains resulting
from the normal field dressing of lawfully harvested wild game or the lawful use of waste parts or
remains of wild game as bait, feathers, except feathers from live birds while being transported,
abandoned ice-fishing shacks, old automobiles or parts of automobiles or similar refuse, or
disposable packages or containers thrown or deposited as prohibited in this chapter, but not
including the wastes of the primary processes of mining, logging, sawmilling, farming or
manufacturing.

3. “Litter receptacle” means a container of suitable size which is clearly identified with a sign,
symbol or other device as a place where the public may dispose of litter.

4. Vehicle. “Vehicle” means every vehicle which is self-propelled and designed for carrying
persons or property or which is used for the transportation of persons, except motorcycles, farm
implements and snowmobiles.

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 57



4-A. Commercial vehicle. ‘Commercial vehicle” means a vehicle owned or used by a business,
corporation, association, partnership, or the sole proprietorship of any entity conducting
business for a commercial purpose.

5. “Person” means any person, firm, partnership, association, corporation or organization of any
kind whatsoever.

6. “Public place” means any area that is used or held out for use by the public whether or not
owned or operated by public or private interests.

7. “Trailer” means any vehicle without motive power, designed for carrying persons or property
and for being drawn by a motor vehicle.

8. “Watercraft” means any type of vessel, boat or craft used or capable of being used as a
means of transportation on water.

Credits
1971, c. 405. § 1; 1973, c. 194; 1973, c. 235, § 1; 1975, c. 739, § 3 to 6; 1989, c. 820, § 2,3,
eff. April 10, 1990; 1989, c. 878, § 6-12, elI. April 20, 1990; 1993, c. 144, § 3, 4; 1995, c. 667,
§ A-37, elI. April 11, 1996; 2001, c. 667, § A-33, elI. April 11, 2002.

Notes of Decisions (1)

17 M. ft S. A. § 2263, ME STT. 17 § 2263
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

0
May 8,2018 Warrant-- Page 58



Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2263-A

§ 2263-A. Littering

Currentness

1. Prohibited acts. A person may not throw, drop, deposit, discard, dump or otherwise dispose
of litter in any manner or amount:

A. In or on public highway, road, street, alley, public right-of-way or other public lands,
except in a container or receptacle or on property that is designated for disposal of garbage
and refuse by the State or its agencies or political subdivisions;

B. In freshwater lake, river, stream, tidal or coastal water or on ice over the water. When
any litter is thrown or discarded from a watercraft, a person is in violation of this section if
that person is:

(1) The operator of the watercraft, unless it is a watercraft being used for the carriage of
passengers for hire; or

(2) The person actually disposing of the litter.

This paragraph does not prohibit persons who fish, lobster or otherwise harvest from the
water from returning to the water harvested products, bait and similar materials that
naturally originate in the water;

C. In or on any private property, unless:

(1) Prior consent of the owner has been given; and

(2) The litter is not a public nuisance or in violation of any state law or local rule;

0. From a trailer or vehicle that is constructed, loaded or uncovered in such a way that the
load may drop, sift, leak or otherwise escape. This paragraph applies to vehicles or trailers
carrying trash, rubbish or other materials that may be construed as “litter”; or

E. From a vehicle. When any litter is thrown or discarded from a vehicle, a person is in
violation of this section if that person is:

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 59



0
(1) The operator of the vehicle, unless it is a vehicle being used for the carriage of
passengers for hire; or

(2) The person actually disposing of the litter.

In addition to any penalty under section 2264-A, violation of this subsection is a traffic infraction
under Title 29-A, chapter 23, subchapter Vl.1

A record of a violation of this subsection must be forwarded to the Secretary of State who, in
accordance with Title 29-A, section 2607, shall add the violation to the department’s point
system. The violation is counted in determining an individual’s total points under the point
system of the Department of the Secretary of State, Bureau of Motor Vehicles.

2. Commercial purpose presumed. For the purposes of this chapter, if a person dumps litter
from a commercial vehicle, that person is presumed to have dumped the litter for a commercial
purpose.

Credits
2003, c. 452, § 1-32, eff. July 1, 2004.

Footnotes

29-A M.R.S.A. § 2601, etseq.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2263-A, ME ST T. 17 § 2263-A
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2264

§ 2264. Repealed. Laws 2003, c. 452, § 1-33, eff. July 1, 2004

Currentness

17 M. R. S. A. § 2264, ME STT. 17 § 2264
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

May 8, 2ol8Warrant--Page6O



Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2264-A

§ 2264-A. Penalties
Effective: September 28, 2011

Currentness

Unless otherwise indicated, a person who disposes of litter in violation of this chapter commits a
civil violation for which the following fines apply.

1. Disposal of 15 pounds or less or 27 cubic feet or less of lifter. A person who disposes of
15 pounds or less or 27 cubic feet or less of litter commits a civil violation for which a fine of not
less than $100 and not more than $500 may be adjudged.

1-A. Disposal of 15 pounds or less or 27 cubic feet or less of litter; subsequent offenses.
A person who violates subsection 1 after having previously violated subsection 1 commits a civil
violation for which a fine of not less than $500 and not more than $1,000 may be adjudged.

2. Disposal of more than 15 pounds or more than 27 cubic feet of litter. A person who

Q disposes of more than 15 pounds or more than 27 cubic feet of litter commits a civil violation for
which the court:

A. Shall impose a fine of not less than $500;

B. Shall require the person to pay a party sustaining damages arising out of a violation of
this subsection treble the actual damages or $200, whichever amount is greater, plus the
injured party’s court costs and attorney’s fees if action results in a civil proceeding;

C. Shall require the person to perform not less than 100 hours of public service relating to
the removal of litter or to the restoration of an area polluted by litter disposed of in violation
of this section. The court shall consult with the Commissioner of Inland Fisheries and
Wildlife to determine if there is an opportunity for public service that may improve landowner
and sportsman relations;

D. When practical, shall require the person to remove the litter dumped in violation of this
subsection;

E. May suspend the person’s motor vehicle operator’s license for a period of not less than
30 days or more than one year, except as provided in paragraph F. Notwithstanding
paragraph F, the court shall suspend all licenses and permits issued under Title 12, Part 13,
subpart 4 and recreational vehicle registrations and certificates issued to that person under

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 61



Title 12, Part 13, subpart 6 for a period of not less than 30 days or more than one year; and

F. May suspend any license, permit, registration or certification issued by a state agency or
municipality to the person. A professional license, permit, registration or certification
required for that person to operate or establish a business or necessary for the person’s
primary source of employment may not be suspended unless the items dumped were
related to the person’s profession or occupation.

2-A. Disposal of more than 15 pounds or more than 27 cubic feet of litter; subsequent
offenses. A person who violates subsection 2 after having previously violated subsection 2
commits a civil violation for which the penalty provisions under subsection 2 apply except for
subsection 2, paragraph A, and a fine of not less than $2,000 must be adjudged.

3. Disposal of more than 500 pounds or more than 100 cubic feet of litter for a
commercial purpose. A person who disposes of more than 500 pounds or mare than 100
cubic feet of litter for a commercial purpose is subject to the penalties under Title 38, section
349.

Credits
1989, c. 820, § 5, eff. April 10, 1990; 1993, c. 140, § 1; 2003, c. 452, § 1-34 to 1-37, eff. July 1,
2004; 2011, c. 208, § 4.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2264-A, ME ST T. 17 § 2264-A
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

0
May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 62



Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2264-B

§ 2264-B. Penalty options
Effective: September 28, 2011

Currentness

In addition to the fines imposed in section 2264-A1 subsections 1 and 1-A, the court may order a
person adjudicated to have violated section 2264-A, subsection 1 or subsection 1-A to:

1. Removal of lifter. Remove the litter dumped in violation of section 2264-A;

2. Cost of cleanup. Pay the owner of the property treble the owner’s cost of clean up or
removal of the litter;

3. Damages. Pay the person sustaining damages arising out of a violation of this subsection
treble the actual damages or $200, whichever amount is greater, plus the injured party’s court
costs and attorney’s fees if action results in a civil proceeding;

4. Public service. Perform public service relating to the removal of litter, or to the restoration of
an area polluted by litter, dumped in violation of section 2264-A; and

5. License suspension. Surrender the persons motor vehicle operator’s license, a license or
permit issued to that person under Title 12, Part 13, subpart 4 or a recreational vehicle
registration or certificate issued to that person under Title 12, Part 13, subpart 6 for a period not
exceeding 30 days. The court may suspend an operator’s license for any violation of section
2264-A, subsection 1 or subsection 1-A that involves the use of a motor vehicle.

Credits
1989, c. 820, § 5, eff. April 10, 1990; 2003, c. 452, § 1-38, 1-39, eff. July 1, 2004; 2007, c. 651,
§ 21, eff. April16, 2008; 2009, c. 424, § 1; 2011, c. 208, § 5,6,

17 M. R. S. A. § 2264-B, ME STT. 17 § 2264-B
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

May 8, 2018 Warrant-- Page 63



Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2264-C

§ 2264-C. Forfeiture

Currentness

All conveyances, including aircraft, watercraft, vehicles, vessels, containers or cranes that are
used, or attempted to be used, to dump more than 1,000 pounds or more than 100 cubic feet of
litter in violation of section 2264-A are subject toforfeiture as provided in Title 15, chapter 517)

Credits
1989, c. 820, § 5, eff. April 10, 1990; 2003, c. 452, § 1-40, eff. July 1,2004.

Footnotes

15 M.R.S.A. § 5821 et seq.

17 M. ft S. A. § 2264-C, ME ST T. 17 § 2264-C
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Lifter Control (Rels & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2265

§ 2265. Repealed. Laws 1989, c. 820, § 6, eff. April 10, 1990

Curreniness

0
May 8, 2018 Warrant-- Page 64



17 M. R. S. A. § 2265, ME ST T. 17 § 2265
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2266

§ 2266. Repealed. Laws 1989, c. 820, § 7, eff. April 10, 1990

Currentness

17 M. R. S. A. § 2266, ME STT. 17 § 2266
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2267

§ 2267. Repealed. Laws 1989, c. 820, § 8, eff. April 10, 1990

Currentness

17 M. R. S. A. § 2267, ME STT. 17 § 2267
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

May 6, 2018 Warrant --Page 65



Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2267-A

§ 2267-A. Submerged motor vehicles, snowmobile and watercraft in waters of the State
Effective: September 12, 2009

Currentness

The following provisions apply when a motor vehicle is submerged or partially submerged in
waters of the State or when a snowmobile or watercraft is submerged in the inland waters of the
State.

1. Definition. When used in this section the term “motor vehicle” means any self-propelled
vehicle designed to carry persons or property or used to transport persons, except snowmobiles
and watercraft. The term “watercraft,” when used in this section, means any type of craft placed
on the inland waters of the State, whether used as a means of transportation or for other
purposes.

2. Notice of submerged vehicle, snowmobile or watercraft to be given to department. The
owner of any motor vehicle that becomes submerged or partially submerged in the waters of the
State shall immediately, by the fastest means of communication, notify the Commissioner of
Inland Fisheries and Wildlife of the event and the location of the vehicle. The owner of a
snowmobile or watercraft that becomes submerged in the inland waters of the State for more
than 24 hours shall notify the commissioner as provided in this subsection.

The commissioner shall, upon receiving notice of a submerged or partially submerged vehicle in
the waters of the State or a submerged snowmobile or watercraft in the inland waters of the
State, notify the Chief of the State Police, the Commissioner of Environmental Protection and
any municipality or public utility that regulates the uses of the waters as a source of public water
supply pursuant to Title 22, sections 2641 to 2648.

3. Owner legally liable to remove vehicle, snowmobile or watercraft. The owner of the
vehicle is legally liable to remove any motor vehicle submerged or partially submerged in the
waters of the State and pay any damages resulting from the submersion or removal. The
vehicle must be removed within 30 days of the submersion or partial submersion or within 30
days of ice our in the body of water unless the commissioner determines that the vehicle
creates a health or safety hazard. If the commissioner determines that the vehicle creates a
health or safety hazard the commissioner shall order the owner to remove the vehicle
immediately. If the owner fails to remove the vehicle upon order of the commissioner, the
commissioner shall, in writing, request the court to direct the owner to remove the vehicle
immediately. The owner of a snowmobile or watercraft that is submerged in the inland waters of
this State for longer than 24 hours shall remove the snowmobile or watercraft in accordance
with this subsection.

4. Financial responsibility. A conviction or adjudication of any person for a violation of this

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 66



section constitutes a violation of state law relative to motor vehicles to which Title 29-A, chapter
131 applies.

5. Penalties. A violation of this section is a civil violation for which a forfeiture of $200 may be
adjudged. In addition to a forfeiture, or instead of a forfeiture, the judge may direct the person
convicted to remove the vehicle, snowmobile or watercraft.

6. Rules. The commissioner may, in accordance with the provisions of Title 5, chapter 375,2

adopt any rules necessary to carry out the purposes of this chapter.

Credits
1981, c. 578; 1995, c. 65, § A-52, eff. May 11, 1995; 2001, c. 536, § 3, eff. March 18, 2002;
2009, c. 340, § 26.

Footnotes

29-A M.R.S.A. § 1551 etseq.

2

5 M.R.S.A. § 8001 et seq.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2267-A, ME ST T. 17 § 2267-A
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 67



Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Rels & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2268

§ 2268. Enforcement

Currentness

Every law enforcement officer in the State, including but not limited to State Police, County
sheriffs and their deputies, municipal police, wardens of the Department of Inland Fisheries and
Wildlife, wardens of the Department of Marine Resources, rangers of the Division of Forestry
and liquor inspectors of the Department of Public Safety shall have authority to enforce this
chapter.

Political subdivisions of the State may offer rewards for information which lead to the conviction
of violators of this chapter.

Credits
1971, c. 405, § 1; 1973, c. 460, § 18; 1973, c. 513, § 22; 1973, c. 537, § 20; 1975, c. 739, § 13.

0
17 M. R. S. A. § 2268, ME ST T. 17 § 2268
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regutar Session of
the 126th Legislature

0
May 8, 2018 Warrant-- Page 68



Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Rels & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2269

§ 2269. Repealed. Laws 2003, c. 452, § 1-41, eff. July 1, 2004

Currentness

17 M. R. S. A. § 2269, ME STT. 17 § 2269
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Rels & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2269-A

§ 2269-A. Litter receptacles; selection and placement

Currentness

1. Procure, place and maintain litter receptacles. A person who owns or operates an
establishment or public place in which litter receptacles are required by this chapter shall
procure, place and maintain receptacles at the person’s own expense in accordance with this
chapter.

2. Required placement. Litter receptacles as defined in section 2263 must be placed at all
public places or establishments that serve the public, including, but not limited to: campgrounds,
trailer parks, drive-in restaurants, gasoline service stations, parking lots, shopping centers,
grocery store parking lots, parking lots of major industrial firms, marinas, boat launching areas,
boat moorage and fueling stations, beaches and bathing areas, school grounds and business
district sidewalks. The number of receptacles required is as follows:

A. For a campground or trailer park for transient habitation, one receptacle at each public
rest room facility;

B. For a drive-in restaurant, parking lot, shopping center, grocery store parking lot or
parking lot of a major industrial firm, one receptacle, plus one additional receptacle for each
200 parking spaces in excess of 50 spaces;

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 69



0
C. For a gasoline service station, one receptacle per gasoline pump island;

D. For a marina, boat launching area or boat moorage and fueling station, one receptacle at
each location;

F. For a beach or bathing area, one receptacle at each public rest room facility;

F. For school grounds, one receptacle at each playground area and one at each school bus
loading zone; and

G. For business district sidewalks, one receptacle per 1,000 feet of sidewalk curbing.

3. Exception; remote forest campsites. Remote forest campsites operated by the Department
of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry pursuant to Title 12, chapter 220, subchapter 2, are
not considered public places or establishments that serve the public if they are designated as
“carry-in and carry-out’ sites from which users are expected to remove litter and other material
upon their departure.

4. Penalties. A person who operates a business of a type described in this section commits a
civil violation for which a tine of $10 for each violation may be adjudged if that person:

A. Fails to place the litter receptacles on the premises in the numbers required; or

B. Fails to comply within 10 days of being notified by registered letter by the Department of
Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry that that person is in violation.

Each day a violation continues is a separate offense.

Credits
2003, c. 452, § 1-42, eff. July 1, 2004.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2269-A, ME STT. 17 § 2269-A
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

0
May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 70



Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2270

§ 2270. Responsibility for maintenance of litter receptacles

Currentness

Responsibility for the removal of litter from litter receptacles placed at parks, beaches,
campgrounds, trailer parks and other publicly owned public places shall remain upon those
state and local agencies performing litter removal, and removal of lifter from litter receptacles
placed upon privately owned public places shall remain the responsibility of the owner of said
premises.

Credits
1971, c. 405, § 1.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2270, ME STT. 17 § 2270
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2271

§ 2271. Local regulations

Currentness

Municipalities of this State may adopt more stringent ordinances, laws or regulations dealing
with subject matter of this chapter. Any less restrictive ordinances, laws or regulations now in
effect dealing with the subject matter of this chapter and the minimum standards which it
establishes are declared invalid and of no force and superseded by this chapter on September
23, 1971.

Credits
1971, c. 405, § 1; 1971, c. 622, §61, eff. March 15, 1972.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2271, ME STT. 17 § 2271
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 71



Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. §2272

§ 2272. Promiscuous dumping prohibited

Currentness

No person shall deposit household garbage, leaves, clippings, prunings or gardening refuse in
any litter receptacle.

Persons violating the provisions of this section are liable for the same penalties as provided for
violation of section 2264-A.

Credits
1975, c. 739, § 15; 2003, c. 452, § 1-43, elf. July 1, 2004.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2272, ME ST T. 17 § 2272
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (ReTs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2273

§ 2273. Penalty warning signs

Currentness

Within the limits of its budget, the Department of Transportation may erect one sign within each
100 miles of state highway mileage in each county, warning motorists of the penalties for
littering or asking for their cooperation in keeping the highways clean. One such sign shall be
located within a reasonable distance of all state highway entry points into this State from other
states or countries, lithe state highway leads to or from an international border crossing point,
the sign shall be bilingual.

Credits
1975, c. 739, § 15.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2273, ME ST T. 17 § 2273
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 72



Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2274

§ 2274. Fines1 distribution

Currentness

All fines levied and collected for violations of this chapter shall be distributed as follows:

If the fine resulted from a complaint by a law officer of a state agency which receives a major
share of its financial support from dedicated revenue, the fine, less court costs, shall be
reimbursed to that agency; or

If the fine resulted from a complaint of a law officer of a state agency supported primarily by a
General Fund appropriation, the fine, less court costs, shall be reimbursed to the department to
be used in an anti-litter educational program and shall be in addition to other General Fund
money appropriated for that purpose.

Credits
1975, c. 739, § 15; 1989, c. 878, § B-13, eff. April 20, 1990.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2274, ME STT. 17 § 2274
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2275

§ 2275. Driver license and registration procedures

CurrenLness

The Bureau of Motor Vehicles shall include a summary of this chapter with each reregistration
and new vehicle operator license issued.

The Bureau of Motor Vehicles shall include a summary of this chapter in the next revision and
printing of the driver license information materials.

Credits
1975, c. 739, § 15; 1989, c. 878, § B-14, eff. April 20, 1990; 1991, c. 837, § A-45, eff. AprIl 8,
1992.

May 8, 2018 Warrant-- Page 73



0
17 M. R. S. A. § 2275, ME STT. 17 § 2275
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2276

§ 2276. Local regulations

currentness

Municipalities of this State may adopt more stringent ordinances, laws or regulations dealing
with the subject matter of this chapter. Any less restrictive ordinances, laws or regulations now
in effect dealing with the subject matter of this chapter and the minimum standards which it
establishes are declared invalid and of no force and superseded by this chapter on its effective
date.

Credits
1975, c. 739, § 15.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2276, ME ST T. 17 § 2276
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second Regular Session of
the 126th Legislature

0
May 8, 2018 Warrant-- Page 74



Appendix B (Article 10; pg. 9)

3.4 Permitted, Conditional, and Excluded Uses by District:

All land use activities, as indicated in the following table, shall conform with all of the applicable
land use standards in Sections 6.A., 6.B., and 6.C. The district designation for a particular site
shall be determined from the Official Land Use Zoning map.

P Use allowed without a permit (but the use must comply with all applicable land use
standards

C Use allowed with conditional use approval from the Planning Board
X Use is prohibited
CEO Use allowed with a permit from the code enforcement officer

VR1 VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL ONE
VR2 VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL TWO
Ri RESIDENTIAL ONE
R2 RESIDENTIAL TWO
SRi SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL ONE
SR2 SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL TWO
SR3 SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL THREE
SR5 SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL FIVE
RW2 RURAL OR WOODLAND TWO
RW3 RURAL OR WOODLAND THREE
VC VILLAGE COMMERCIAL
SC SHORELAND COMMERCIAL
RP RESOURCE PROTECTION
C CONSERVATION
SP STREAM PROTECTION

See table of uses on following pages

LAND USE: Districts

SR I
SR 2

VRI RI RW2SR3 VC SC C RP SPVR2 R2 RW3SR 5

RESIDENTIAL

Cluster and C C X C C X X X X
Workforce
Subdivisions

C X X X X X X X X
Mobile Home Park
Cc) A separate garage is an accessory structure. A separate garage with a dwelling unit shall be

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 75



LAND USE: Districts

deemed a dwelling unit.
Cd) See Section 66.4-01 1.3 (Lots)

COMMERCIAL

CEO CEO CEO CEO I CEO CEO CEO
Timber harvesting or or or or or or or XNA XNA

C4° C°NA C’°NA C’°NA C’°NA C10NA C40

MISCELLANEOUS
Forct
Management
Aotivitiesexcoptfor

P P CEO P P P P X Ptimber har:octing &
land managomont
a4&

Land management
P P CEO P P P P C Ca

Note: Some footnotes have been deleted. — namely 1,2,3 & 5. A 7 fl 2 0 rntnnA

C

4provided that a variance from the setback requirement is obtained from the Board of Appeals;
otherwise the setback is 75 feet. Any Excavation or Filling must be limited to that necessary for
the construction of approved structures.
°See further restrictions in Section 6C.5.2
7Only as provided in Section 6C.9.3
8Single family residential structures may be allowed by special exception only according to the
provisions of Section 7.5.3, Special Exceptions. Two-family residential structures are prohibited.
9Permit not required but must file a written “notice of intent to construct” with CEO.
‘°Timber Harvesting is regulated by the Bureau of Forestry in the Department of Agriculture,
Conservation and Forestry.

0

r

0

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 76



Section 3.5 Dimensional Requirements for Districts: minimum area, width of lots, setbacks, etc.

DISTRICTS SRI see SR2 see SR3 see SRS see Note (f)
Note(f) Note(f) Note(f)

DIMENSIONS see Notes (b) (h9

MINIMUM LOT AREA:
with public sewer 1 acre 2 acres 3 acres 5 acres

without public sewer N/A 2 acres 3 acres 5 acres

MINIMUM WIDTH OF
LOTS: 250200 ft. 250200 250200 250200 ft.
Shore Frontage ft. ft.

SETBACKS FROM:
normal high water line of
a water body (stream), 75 75 ft 75 ft. 75 ft.
tributary stream or
upland edge of a
wetland

100 ft. (n) 100ff. (n) 100 ft.(n) 100ff. (n)
Great Ponds (n)

SOft. 50ff. 50ff. 50ff.
public or private road

25ft. 25ft. 25ff. 25ff.
property lines (d)

see Note (c) see
Note (d)

MAXIMUM LOT 45% 20% 45% 20% 45% 45% 20%
COVERAGE 20%

MINIMUM DISTANCE 30ff. 30 ft. 30 ft. 30 ft.
BETWEEN PRINCIPAL
BUILDINGS

NOTES:

(f) Within the shoreland zone: No new lot shall be created except in conformity with all of the
requirements of this Ordinance for the district in which it is located. In addition to shore
frontage, refer to Section 66.4011.4.3 for the required minimum lot width. For the
required measurements, refer to shore frontage and minimum lot width in Section 8.
When a legally existing parcel does not contain any shore frontage, the lot may be
divided such that the newly created lots do not contain any shore frontage as otherwise
required in Sections 3.5 and 66.11.4.3, provided that all other minimum lot dimensional

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 77



standards are met, including but not limited to lot area and minimum lot width.

6A GENERAL PERFORMANCE STANDARDS

6A.8 Vegetation

1. Clearing. Clearing of trees or conversion to other vegetation is allowed for permitted
construction provided that:

1. Appropriate measures are taken, if necessary, to prevent erosion when activity
is undertaken.

2. The activity is in conformity with Section 6C.3, clearing or removal of vegetation
for activities other than timber harvesting.

2. Tree removal near town or state roads. Removal of more than 25% of the trees
within 25 feet of any town or state road in any 12 month period (except for those
required to complete permitted construction) shall require a Conditional Use Approval of
the Planning Board. Other woody plants must be retained or replaced with native
species.

3. Slash. No accumulation of slash shall be left within 50 feet of any town or state road or
within 50 feet of the normal high-water line of any water body, and in shoreland zone
shall comply with the standards of Section 6C.3. Slash shall be disposed of so that no
part extends more than 4 feet above the ground.

4. CEO Pormft. A CEO Permit is required for cutting timber larger than ‘1 inches in
diameter measured ‘1 ½ feet above ground when the total amount to bo cut is greater
than 10 cords but less than 50 cords in any one year period.

5. Conditional Use Approval. Conditional Use Approval ic required from the Planning Board
for culling timber larger than 4 inches in diameter measured 1 ½ feet above ground v.’hen the total
amount to be cut is 50 cords or more in any one year period.

6B SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR ACTIVITIES AND LAND USES

6B.9 Individual Private Campsites.

Individual private campsites not associated with campgrounds are allowed provided the
following conditions are met:

1. One campsite per lot existing on the effective date of this Ordinance, or thirty thousand
(30,000) square feet of lot area within the shoreland zone, whichever is less. may be

May 8, 2018 Warrant-- Page 78



permitted.

2. When an individual private campsite is proposed on a lot that contains another
principal use and/or structure. the lot must contain the minimum lot dimensional
requirements for the principal structure and/or use, and the individual private
campsite separately.

3. Campsite placement on any lot, including the area intended for a recreational vehicle
or tent platform, shall be set back one hundred (100) feet, horizontal distance, from
the normal high-water line of a great pond classified GPA or river flowing to a great
pond classified GPA, and seventy4ive (75) feet, horizontal distance, from the normal
high-water line of other water bodies, tributary streams, or the upland edge of a
wetland.

4. Only one recreational vehicle shall be allowed on a campsite. The recreational vehicle
shall not be located on any type of permanent foundation except for a gravel pad,
and no structure except a canopy shall be attached to the recreational vehicle.

5. The clearing of vegetation for the siting of the recreational vehicle, tent or similar
shelter in a Resource Protection District shall be limited to one thousand (1000)
square feet.

6. A written sewage disposal plan describing the proposed method and location of
sewage disposal shall be required for each campsite and shall be approved by the
Local Plumbing Inspector. Where disposal is off-site, written authorization from the
receiving facility or land owner is required.

7. When a recreational vehicle, tent or similar shelter is placed on-site for more than one
hundred and twenty (120) days per year, all reguirements for residential structures shall
be met, including the installation of a subsurface sewage disposal system in compliance
with the State of Maine Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Rules unless served by public
sewage facilities.

6B.910 Home occupations and home offices

68.101 Lots

68.142 Manufactured Homes

68.123 Mineral Extraction and Exploration

6B.134 Mobile Homes (temporary), Campers, Trailers and Recreational Vehicles

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 79



6B.145 Sanitary Standards

68.156 Sign Regulations

68.16?’ Vehicles, Unregistered

68.178 Wireless Communication Facilities

6B.189. Animal Husbandry & Animal Husbandry 2

SHORELAND ZONING STANDARDS

6C.3 Clearing or Removal of Vegetation For Activities Other Than Timber Harvesting

7. Hazard Trees, Storm-Damaged Trees, and Dead Tree Removal

1. Hazard trees in the shoreland zone may be removed without a permit after
consultation with the Code Enforcement Officer if the following requirements are
met:

1. Within the shoreline buffer, if the removal of a hazard tree results in a cleared
opening in the tree canopy greater than two hundred and fifty (250) square
feet, replacement with native tree species is required, unless there is new
tree growth already present. New tree growth must be as near as practicable
to where the hazard tree was removed and be at least two (21 inches in
diameter, measured at four and one half (4.5) feet above the ground level. If
new growth is not present, then replacement trees shall consist of native
species and be at least four (4) feet in height, and be no less than two (2)
inches in diameter. Stumps may not be removed.

2. Outside of the shoreline buffer, when the removal of hazard trees exceeds
forty (40) percent of the volume of trees four (4) inches or more in diameter,
measured at four and one half (4.5) feet above ground level in any ten (101
year period, and/or results in cleared openings exceeding twenty-five (25)
percent of the lot area within the shoreland zone, or ten thousand (10,000)
square feet, whichever is greater, replacement with native tree species is

May 8, 2018 Warrant-- Page 80

0



required, unless there is new tree growth already present. New tree growth
must be as near as practicable to where the hazard tree was removed and be
at least two (2’) inches in diameter, measured at four and one half (4.5) feet
above the ground level. If new growth is not present. then replacement trees
shall consist of native species and be at least two (2) inches in diameter,
measured at four and one half (4.5) feet above the ground level.

3. The removal of standing dead trees, resulting from natural causes, is
permissible without the need for replanting or a permit, as long as the
removal does not result in the creation of new lawn areas, or other
permanently cleared areas, and stumps are not removed. For the purposes of
this provision dead trees are those trees that contain no foliage during the
growing season.

4. The Code Enforcement Officer may require the property owner to submit an
evaluation from a licensed forester or arborist before any hazard tree can be
removed within the shoreland zone.

5. The Code Enforcement Officer may reguire more than a one—for-one
replacement for hazard trees removed that exceed eight (8) inches in
diameter measured at four and one half (4.5) feet above the ground level.

2. Storm-damaged trees in the shoreland zone may be removed without a permit
after consultation with the Code Enforcement Officer if the following reguirements
are met:

1. Within the shoreline buffer, when the removal of storm-damaged trees results
in a cleared opening in the tree canopy greater than two hundred and fifty
(250) sguare feet, replanting is not required, but the area shall be reguired to
naturally revegetate, and the following requirements must be met:

(i) The area from which a storm-damaged tree is removed does not result in
new lawn areas, or other permanently cleared areas;

(H) Stumps from the storm-damaged trees may not be removed:

(Hi) Limbs damaged from a storm event may be pruned even if they extend
beyond the bottom one-third (1/3) of the tree; and

(iv) If after one growing season, no natural regeneration or regrowth is
present, replanting of native tree seedlings or saplings is required at a
density of one seedling per every eighty (80) square feet of lost canopy.

2. Outside of the shoreline buffer, if the removal of storm damaged trees
exceeds 40% of the volume of trees four (4) inches or more in diameteb
measured at four and one half (4.5) feet above the ground level in any ten
(10) year period, or results, in the aggregate, in cleared openings exceeding
25% of the lot area within the shoreland zone or ten thousand (10,000)
square feet, whichever is greater, and no natural regeneration occurs within
one growing season, then native tree seedlings or saplings shall be replanted
on a one-for-one basis.

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 81



8. Exemptions to Clearing and Vegetation Removal Reguirements. The following
activities are exempt from the clearing and vegetation removal standards set forth in
Section 15(P), provided that all other applicable reguirements of this chapter are
complied with, and the removal of vegetation is limited to that which is necessary:

1. The removal of vegetation that occurs at least once every two (2) years for the
maintenance of legally existing areas that do not comply with the vegetation
standards in this chapter, such as but not limited to cleared openings in the
canopy or fields. Such areas shall not be enlarged, except as allowed by this
section. If any of these areas, due to lack of removal of vegetation every two (2)
years, reverts back to primarily woody vegetation, the reguirements of Section
15(P) apply;

2. The removal of vegetation from the location of allowed structures or allowed
uses, when the shoreline setback reguirements of section 15(B) are not
applicable;

3. The removal of vegetation from the location of public swimming areas associated
with an allowed public recreational facility;

4. The removal of vegetation associated with allowed agricultural uses, provided
best management practices are utilized, and provided all reguirements of section
15(N) are complied with;

5. The removal of vegetation associated with brownfields or voluntary response
action program (VRAP) proiects provided that the removal of vegetation is
necessary for remediation activities to clean-up contamination on a site in a
general development district, commercial fisheries and maritime activities district
or other eguivalent zoning district approved by the Commissioner that is part of a
state or federal brownfields program or a voluntary response action program
pursuant 38 M.R.S.A section 343-E, and that is located along:

1. A coastal wetland; or

2. A river that does not flow to a great pond classified as GPA pursuant to
38 M.R.S.A section 465-A.

6. The removal of non-native invasive vegetation species, provided the following
minimum reguirements are met:

1. If removal of vegetation occurs via wheeled or tracked motorized eguipment,
the wheeled or tracked motorized eguipment is operated and stored at least
twenty4ive (25) feet, horizontal distance, from the shoreline, except that
wheeled or tracked equipment may be operated or stored on existing
structural surfaces, such as pavement or gravel;

2. Removal of vegetation within twenty-five (25) feet, horizontal distance, from
the shoreline occurs via hand tools; and

3. If applicable clearing and vegetation removal standards are exceeded due to

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 82



the removal of non-native invasive species vegetation, the area shall be
revegetated with native species to achieve compliance.

NOTE: An updated list of non-native invasive vegetation is maintained by the
Department of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry’s Natural Areas Program:
http://www.maine.gov/dacf/mnap/features/invasive plants/invasives.htm

7. The removal of vegetation associated with emergency response activities
conducted by the Department, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, the
U.S. Coast Guard, and their agents.

9. Revegetation Requirements. When revegetation is reguired in response to
violations of the vegetation standards set forth in Section 15(P), to address the
removal of non- native invasive species of vegetation, or as a mechanism to allow for
development that may otherwise not be permissible due to the vegetation standards,
including removal of vegetation in coniunction with a shoreline stabilization proiect,
the revegetation must comply with the following reguirements.

1. The property owner must submit a revegetation plan, prepared with and signed
by a gualifled professional, that describes revegetation activities and
maintenance. The plan must include a scaled site plan, depicting where
vegetation was, or is to be removed, where existing vegetation is to remain, and
where vegetation is to be planted, including a list of all vegetation to be planted.

2. Revegetation must occur along the same segment of shoreline and in the same
area where vegetation was removed and at a density comparable to the pre
existing vegetation, except where a shoreline stabilization activity does not allow
revegetation to occur in the same area and at a density comparable to the pre
existing vegetation, in which case revegetation must occur along the same
segment of shoreline and as close as possible to the area where vegetation was
removed:

3. If part of a permitted activity, revegetation shall occur before the expiration of the
permit. If the activity or revegetation is not completed before the expiration of the
permit, a new revegetation plan shall be submitted with any renewal or new
permit application.

4. Revegetation activities must meet the following reguirements for trees and
saplings:

1. All trees and saplings removed must be replaced with native noninvasive
species;

2. Replacement vegetation must at a minimum consist of saplings;

3. If more than three (3) trees or saplings are planted, then at least three (3)
different species shall be used;

4. No one species shall make up 50% or more of the number of trees and
saplings planted;

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 83



5. If revegetation is required for a shoreline stabilization project, and it is not
possible to plant trees and saplings in the same area where trees or saplings
were removed, then trees or sapling must be planted in a location that
effectively reestablishes the screening between the shoreline and structures:
and

6. A survival rate of at least eighty (80) percent of planted trees or saplings is
required for a minimum five (5) years period.

5. Revegetation activities must meet the following requirements for woody
vegetation and other vegetation under three (3) feet in height:

1. All woody vegetation and vegetation under three (3) feet in height must be
replaced with native noninvasive species of woody vegetation and vegetation
under three (3) feet in height as applicable:

2. Woody vegetation and vegetation under three (3) feet in height shall be
planted in quantities and variety sufficient to prevent erosion and provide for
effective infiltration of stormwater;

3. If more than three (3) woody vegetation plants are to be planted, then at least
three (3) different species shall be planted:

4. No one species shall make up 50% or more of the number of planted woody
vegetation plants: and

5. Survival of planted woody vegetation and vegetation under three feet in
height must be sufficient to remain in compliance with the standards
contained within this chapter for minimum of five (5) years

6. Revegetation activities must meet the following reguirements for ground
vegetation and ground cover:

1. All ground vegetation and ground cover removed must be replaced with
native herbaceous vegetation, in quantities and variety sufficient to prevent
erosion and provide for effective infiltration of stormwater;

2. Where necessary due to a lack of sufficient ground cover, an area must be
supplemented with a minimum four (4) inch depth of leaf mulch and/or bark
mulch to prevent erosion and provide for effective infiltration of stormwater:
and

3. Survival and functionality of ground vegetation and ground cover must be
sufficient to remain in compliance with the standards contained within this
chapter for minimum of five (5) years.

6C.7 Marine and Freshwater Structure Performance Standards

)

May 8, 2018 Warrant-- Page 84



5. No new structures. No new structure shall be built on, over or abutting a pier, wharf,
dock or other structure extending below the normal high-water line of a water body or
within a wetland unless the structure requires direct access to the water body or
wetland as an operational necessity. A structure constructed on a float or floats is
prohibited unless it is designed to function as, and is registered with the Maine
Department of_Inland Fisheries and Wildlife as a watercraft.

6C.11 Timber Harvesting

1. Resource Protection and Stream Protection Districts. In the Resource
Protection and Strcam Protection Districts, timber harvesting is prohibitcd.

2. Areas other than Resource Protection or Stream Protection. Except in areas-as
described in Section 6C.11.1. above, timbor harvesting shall conform with the
following provisions:

1 10% limit. Selective cutting of no more than forty (‘10) percent of the total
volume of trees four (1) inches or more in diameter measured at 4 1/2 feet
above ground lovol on any lot in any ten (10) year poriod is permitted. In
addition:

1. No clearcuts within shoreline setback. Within one hundred (100) feet1
horizontal distance, of the normal high water line of a great pond, and
within seventy five (75) foot, horizontal distance, of the normal high water
line of other ‘.vater bodies, tributary streams, or the upland edge of a
wetland, there shall be no clearcut openings and a wall distributed stand
of trees and other vegetation, including existing ground cover, shall be
maintained.

2. Cleared openings fahor than shoreline setback. At distances greater
than one hundred (100) feet, horizontal distance, of a great pond, and
greater than seventy five (75) foot, horizontal distance, of the normal
high water line of other water bodies, fributar streams or the upland
edge of a wetland, haR’octing operations shall not create single clearcut
openings greater than ten thousand (10,000) square feet in the forest
canepy. Where such openings exceed five thousand (5000) square feet
they shall be at least one hundred (100) feet, horizontal distance, apa#
Such clearcut openings shall be included in the calculation of total
volume removaL Volume may be considered to be equivalent to basal
area.

2. Harvesting in excess of 40%. Timber harvesting operations oxcooding the
10% limitation in Section 6C.1t2.1 above may be allowed by tho planning
board upon a clear chewing, including a forest management plan signod by a
Maine licensed profeccional forestor, that such an exception is necessary for
good forest managemont and will be carried out in accordance with the

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 85



purposes of this Ordinance. The planning board shall notify the
Commiccionor of the Department of Environmental Protootion of each
excoption allowed, vdthin fourteen (11) days of the planning board’s decision.

3. Accumulation of slash. No accumulation of slash shall be loft within fifty
(50) feet, horizontal distance, of the normal high water line of a water body.
In all other areas slash shall either be removed or disposed of in such a
manner that it 11cc on the ground and no part thereof extends more than four
(1) foot above the ground. Any debris that faNs below the normal high water
line of a water body or tributary stream shall be removed.

1. Stream channel travel prohibited. Timber harvesting equipment shall not
use stream channels as travel routes except when:

1. Suacc waters are frozen; and

2. The activity will not result in any ground disturbance.

5. Crossing of flowing water. All crossings of flowing water shall require a
bridge or culvert, except in areas with low banks and channel beds which are
composed of gravel, rock or similar hard suace which would not be eroded
or etheise damnnd.

6. Skid trail runoff. Skid trail approaches to water crossings shall be lecated
and designed so as to prevent water runoff from directly entering the water
body or tributary stream. Upon completion of timber harvesting, temporary
bridges and culveds shall be removed and areas of exposed soil

7. Soil exposure setback. Except for water crossings, skid trails and other
sites where the operation of machinery used in timber harvesting results in
the exposure of mineral soil shall be located such that an unscarified strip of
vegetation of at least seventy five (75) feet, horizontal distance, in width far
slopes up to ten (10) percent shall be retained beeen the exposed mineral
soil and the nermal high water line of a water body or upland edge of a
wetland. For each ten (10) percent increase in slope, the unscarificd strip
shall be increased by hventy (20) feet, horizontal distance. The previsions of
this paragraph apply only to a face sloping toward the water bedy or wetland1
provided, however, that no podien of such exposed mineral soil on a back
face shall be cleser than cnty five (25) feet, horizontal distance, from the
normal high water line of a water body or upland edge of a wetland.

6CA2llWater Quality

SECTION 7 CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER

7.5 Procedure for Administering Permits

May 8, 2018 Warrant-- Page 86



3. Special Exceptions. In addition to the criteria specified in Section 5.9 above,
excepting structure setback requirements, the Planning Board may approve a permit
for a single family residential structure in a Resource Protection District provided that
the applicant demonstrates that all of the following conditions are met:

4. The total footprint ground floor area, including cantilevered or similar
overhanging extensions, of all principal and accessory structures is limited to a
maximum of 1500 square feet. This limitation shall not be altered by variance.

SECTION 8 DEFINITIONS

BUREAU OF FORESTRY: State of Maine Department of Agriculture, Conservation, and
Forestry, Bureau of Forestry.

COASTAL WETLAND: All tidal and subtidal lands; all lands with vegetation present that is
tolerant of salt water and occurs primarily in a salt water or estuarine habitat; and any swamp,
marsh, bog, beach, flat or other contiguous low land that is subject to tidal action during the
highest tide level for the year in which an activity is proposed as identified in tide tables
published by the National Ocean Service Association. Coastal wetlands may include portions
of coastal sand dunes. All areas below the highest annual tide level are coastal wetlands.
These areas may consist of rocky ledges, sand and cobble beaches, mud flats, etc., in addition
to salt marshes and salt meadows.

EXPANSION OF A STRUCTURE: An increase in the footprint floor area or volume of a
structure, including all extensions such as, but not limited to: attached decks, garages, porches
and greenhouses.

EXPANSION OF A USE: The additional use of more floec footprint of a structure, land or water
area devoted to a particular use; additional one or more weeks of the use’s operating season;
or additional business hours of operation.

FOREST MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES: Timbor cruising and othor foroct resource evaluation
activitioc, posticido or fortilizor application, managoment planning activities, timbor stand
improvement, pruning, regeneration of forest stands, and other similar or associated activities,
exclusive of timbor har:osting and the construction, creation or maintenance of roads.

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 87



0
FUNCTIONALLY WATER-DEPENDENT USES: Those uses that require, for their primary
purpose, location on submerged lands or that require direct access to, or location in, coastal or
inland waters and that can not be located away from these waters. The uses include, but are
not limited to commercial and recreational fishing and boating facilities (excluding recreational
boat storage buildings), finfish and shellfish processing, fish-related storage and retail and
wholesale fish marketing facilities, waterfront dock and port facilities, shipyards and boat
building facilities, marinas, navigation aids, basins and channels, rotaining walls, shoreline
structures necessary for erosion control purposes, industrial uses dependent upon water-borne
transportation or requiring large volumes of cooling or processing water that can not reasonably
be located or operated at an inland site, and uses that primarily provide general public access to
coastal or inland waters. Recreational boat storage buildings are not considered to be a
functionally water dependent use.

HAZARD TREE: a tree with a structural defect, combination of defects, or disease resulting in a
structural defect that under the normal range of environmental conditions at the site exhibits a
high probability of failure and lass of a maior structural component of the tree in a manner that
will strike a target. A normal range of environmental conditions does not include meteorological
anomalies, such as, but not limited to: hurricanes: hurricane-force winds: tornados: microbursts:
or significant ice storm events. Hazard trees also include those trees that pose a serious and
imminent risk to bank stability. A target is the area where personal iniury or property damage
could occur if the tree or a portion of the tree fails. Targets include roads, driveways, parking
areas, structures, campsites, and any other developed area where people frequently gather and
linger.

LAND MANAGEMENT ROAD: A route or track Gonsisfing of a bed of oxpasod mineral soil,
gravel, or other surfacing materials constructed for, or created by, the passage of motorizcd
vehicles and used primarily for timber harvesting and related activities, including associated log
yards, but not including skid trails or skid road&

NON-CONFORMING STRUCTURE: A structure which does not meet any one or more of the
following dimensional requirements; setback, height, ec lot coverage or footprint, but which is
allowed solely because it was in lawful existence at the time this Ordinance or subsequent
amendments took effect.

NON-NATIVE INVASIVE SPECIES OF VEGETATION: species of vegetation listed by the
Maine Department of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry as being invasive in Maine
ecosystems and not native to Maine ecosystems.

OUTLET STREAM: any perennial or intermittent stream, as shown on the most recent highest

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 88



resolution version of the national hydrography dataset available from the United States
Geological Survey on the website of the United States Geological Survey or the national map,
that flows from a freshwater wetland.

PRINCIPAL STRUCTURE OR USE: A structure or use other than one which is wholly
incidental or accessory to another structure or use on the same promicos lot.

SAPLING: a tree species that is less than two (2) inches in diameter at four and one half (4.5)
feet above ground level.

SEEDLING: a young tree species that is less than four and one half (4.5) feet in height above
ground level.

SKID ROAD OR SKID TRAIL: A route repeatedly ucod by forwarding machinery or animal to
haul or drag forest products from the stump to tho yard or landing, the construction of which
rcguircc minimal excavation.

STORM-DAMAGED TREE: a tree that has been uprooted, blown down, is lying on the ground,
or that remains standing and is damaged beyond the point of recovery as the result of a storm
event.

STRUCTURE: Anything temporarily or permanently located, built, constructed or erected, for the
support, shelter or enclosure of persons. animals, goods or property of any kind or anything
constructed or erected as a permanent fixture on, above, or below the surface of the land, or water.
The term includes structures temporarily or permanently located, including a porches, decks or
patios. Anything constmcted or erected that would be considered a structure but for the fact that it
is tomporar and not permanent which is within the shoreland zono as defined will also be
considered a structure. The term structure shall not include flagpoles, church steeples, fences.
poles customarily used for the transmission of electricity. television antennas, mailboxes radio
antennas, driveways, roads, and subsurface wastewater disposal systems and wells. Sign posts,
as referenced in the “Ordinance Regulating the Building and Street Numbering in the Town of
Mount Desert”, shall not be included as structures.

A. Permanent: A building or structure that is intended to remain in place for a period of
more than 180 days in any consecutive 12-month period.

B. Temporary: A building or structure not meeting the definition of permanent.

May 8, 2018 Warrant — Page 89



C
TREE: A woody perennial plant whoop trunk is 1” in diameter or more, measured at 1½’ above
ground love!. A woody perennial plant with a well-defined trunk(s) at least two (2) inches in
diameter at four and one half (4.5) feet above the ground, with a more or less definite crown,
and reaching a height of at least ten (10) feet at maturity.flxpd exterior wall planes as measured
from the exterior faces of these walls and roof. (Excluding foundations, but including basements as
defined in this section.)

0

C
May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 90



Appendix Ci (Article 22; warrant pg. 18)

Internal Use Only
TEDOCS#:

CT#:_________________________________

CSN#:_____________________________

STATE OF MAINE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT

WIN 21930.08

REGARDING

ROUTE 3, MOUNT DESERT

This Cooperative Agreement (AGREEMENT) is entered into by and between the MAINE
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (“MaineDOT’), an agency of state government with its
principal administrative offices located on Child Street, Augusta, Maine, and the TOWN OF
MOUNT DESERT (“MUNICIPALITY”), a municipality in the State of Maine with offices located at
21 SEA STREET, MOUNT DESERT, ME.

WHEREAS,
MOUNT DESERT shall perform a HIGHWAY REHABILITATION project (the “Project”). The
work will consist of full depth pavement reclamation with drainage improvements and HMA
overlay on ROUTE 3 from RLM 118.21 to RLM 119.31 (the Work”). MOUNT DESERT estimates
this project at $1 10001000.00

MOUNT DESERT SHALL:

A. Procure all contracts for and oversee the Project on ROUTE 3 for the Work outlined
above.

B. Cause such Work to be performed in accordance with a design by an engineer licensed
in the State of Maine. The Licensed Engineer shall provide a certification to the
Municipality and to MaineDOT that, in his/her professional opinion, the Project as
designed will provide a smooth ride, not reduce the safety, mobility or structural quality
of the state [state aid] road. All design documents must be stamped and signed in
accordance with this provision by the Professional Engineer.

C. Agree to secure all necessary Federal, State and Local permits necessary to complete
the work. MOUNT DESERT also agrees to secure any needed property rights in
accordance with all applicable State and Federal Law.

May8, 2018 Warrant--Page 91



D. Agrees that any exceptions to State Design Standards shall be documented as part of C)
this process. This documentation shall compare the new design to the existing
conditions for each of the exceptions to current design standards. Any such exceptions
shall be displayed on the cover sheet for the Project plans with the signature and FE
stamp of the engineer responsible for the design of the Project.

E. Be responsible, within the Project limits, for the following:

a. Ensuring that the safety of the corridor and the life of the resulting structural and
design elements are equal to or better than existing conditions and design:

b. Ensuring that the structures, roadways and/or design features affected by the
Project work shall, at a minimum, be of equal dimensions to the existing features
or structures and shall be of improved quality in terms of materials and utility;

c. Ensuring that the Project does not introduce any unanticipated safety hazards to
the traveling public;

d. Ensuring that the Project retains the same level of mobility or improves mobility
of travel within the corridor;

e. Ensuring that the Project does not in any manner decrease the life expectancy of
this component of Maine’s transportation system; and,

f. Ensuring that the Project meets the most recent standards of Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) design requirements.

F. Provide certification through their Engineer to MaineDOT that the Project is complete
and was constructed as designed.

G. Ensure that construction shall commence within EIGHTEEN (18) months and shall be
certified complete within THIRTY SIX (36) months of execution of this agreement.
MOUNT DESERT may forfeit the unpaid balance of this grant if these deadlines are not
met or they can not demonstrate earnest and good faith efforts to meet them.

H. Be responsible for or cause its contractors to be responsible for all damage to public or
private property of any kind resulting from any act, omission, neglect or misconduct of
MOUNT DESERT or its contractors, including damage to vehicles passing through the
Project limits.

Bear all risk of loss relating to the Project and the Work regardless of cause.

MAINEDOT SHALL:

A. Provide a maximum $500,000.00 in State funds supporting the Work stated
above. Reimbursement will be made by the Department at a minimum of 1/3 project
completion upon receipt of supporting cost documentation from the Municipality.
Payments will be made per Appendix A attached. The Department’s Region Engineer
shall review the costs and certify their eligibility prior to reimbursement of Municipal

May 8,2018 Warrant— Page 92



Partnership Initiative Funds. Payment by MaineDOT Municipal Partnership Initiative
funds shall not exceed $500,000.00 or 50% of the actual costs incurred and paid by the
Municipality.

B. This project has been approved for Calendar Year 2019. If the Municipality
commences construction of the project as outlined above prior to January 1, 2019, the
Municipality assumes the risk and responsibility for costs incurred, in the event that
funding levels fall below MaineDOT projections. If this occurs, the Municipality will not
receive reimbursement from MaineDOT.

The TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT and MaineDOT agree to function within all applicable laws,
statutes, regulations, and AGREEMENT provisions; avoid hindering each other’s performance;
fulfill all obligations diligently; and cooperate in achievement of the intent of this AGREEMENT.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this AGREEMENT in duplicate
effective on the day and date last signed.

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

Dated:

__________________

By:

_____________________________

Durlin Lunt
Town Manager

STATE OF MAINE
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Dated:

__________________

By:

__________________

David Bernhardt, PE
Commissioner

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 93



APPENDIX A

PROJECT SCOPE AND COST SHARING

MAINE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Municipal Partnership Initiative Project

MUNICIPALITY OF MOUNT DESERT

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS TO: ROUTE 3

STATE PROJECT IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (WIN) 21930.08

FUNDED CONSTRUCTION YEAR 2019

Project Scope: Highway Rehabilitation

Funding Outline: The Total Project Estimated Cost is $1,000,000.00, and the Parties agree to
share costs through all stages of the Project under the terms outlined below.

0

PROJECT SHARES

TOTAL ESTIMATED
MUNICIPAL
REIMBURSEMENT

0

REIMBURSEMENT SCHEDULE:

Upon 1/3 project completion, the municipality may begin invoicing the Department.
invoicing interval is 1/3, 2/3, final, the Department will accept monthly invoices after
completion with a maximum invoice submittal not to exceed 5 invoices.

DESIGN EXCEPTIONS REQUIRED: — YES _X_ NO

Design exceptions were required for this project. Please see attached approval from MaineDOT
Chief Engineer ouDining design exceptions.

0

Municipal Share State Share Total Cost
Work Element

% $ I%I $ $
Project Costs

-
500000.00 f 50 500000.00 1,000,000.00

Total Cost of Additional 100%
Work above agreement
estimate

$500,000.00

Preferred
1/3 project

May 8, 2018 Warrant-- Page 94



Appendix C.2 (Article 22; pg. 18)

Proposed Town-DOT Route 198 Reconstruction Project

1.1 ÷/- miles

May 8,2018

Proposed work in F.Y.-’19

0275 055 ijI

Proposed work in FY.18

1.1 +1- miles

165 22

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 95



0

0

0

Appendix D.1 (Article 25; pg.20)
NEH Streetscape Design

May 8, 2Ol8Warrant--Page96



Appendix D.2 (Article 25; pg.20)
NEH Streetscape Design

May 8. 2018 Warrant-- Page 97



0

a

0

Appendix D.3 (Article 25; pg.20)
NEH Streetscape Design

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 98



Appendix D.4 (Article 25; pg.20)
NEH Streetscape Design

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 99



—c’1
U

th
Z

a
S

-
Q

.C)0
)

amU
t

S
o

—
t

L
U

0

t
t

C
m

00a)0
)

CD
0
-CCDI—CD

0CN>
1

CD

0
0
•

0



LU I’
)

0 -
A LU 1 LU D -D LU (0 CD -
A 0 -
A

0
0

0 C
O

t
‘
S

t
<

C
D

LU
a

a
M

0
)
0 ft



4S\
0’

Appendix F.1 (Article 39; pg. 26)
Crosswalks

•1’

ci
0

c,J
9

eq
U
0
I-

C,

0
—

0

b

k

i.lk%

j;

I

if’

r;

U
CoW

Iii
0

•n;

0
z
n
It

eq
It

It

Co
Co
0
0

(
hr

4 — I-_

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 102



Appendix F.2 (Article 39; pg. 26)
Crosswalks

U
0W

U
-

Ie.
19

oI
<I —

U
a

0

C

C

0

2

It
a
z

It

U,
It

-J

0
0
0
C

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 103



(Article 57; pg. 30)
Estimated Tax Rate

2018-2019 ESTIMATED TAX RATE I OVERLAY

Appendix C
Estimated Tax Rate

C

Requires either reducing
spending or increasing

revenues by some
combination Thereof.

b) = 201 8-2019 Projected Revenue induding fransfer from undesignated fund balance
(c) Elementary School Budget
(d) = High School Budget
(0) = Hancock County Budget
(f) Estimate of taxable value includes 14 5 million loss in value to new exemptions

$205,700
$411,400
$617,100
$822,800

$1,028,500
51,234.300
$1,440,000
$1,645,700
$1,B51,400
$2,057,100

C

201 8-2019 ESTIMATED TAX RATE

Municipal Budget (a)
Less Projected Revenues (b)

Net Municipal Budget

Elementary School (c)
High School (d)

Hancock County Tax (e)

Total

Amount To Be Raised

Estimated Taxable Valuation (f)

Estimated 2018-2019 Tax Rate

Proposed Budget Last Year
F.Y. 2018-2019 F.Y. 2017-2018

$9,639,795 $9,234,956
$1,629,462 51,560,777

$8,010,333 $7,674,189

$4,008,495 $3,790,149
$2,906,851 $2,896,907

$942,317 $865,972

$17,497,458 $16,787,994

$15,867,996 515,227.217

$2,057,090,320 $2,064,744,020

$7.76 $7.42

Increase I
(Decrea5e) % Change

5404,829 420%
$68,685 4 22%

5336,144 420%

$218,346 5.45%
$9,944 034%
$76,345 8.10%

$709,464 4.05%

$640,779 4 04%

-514.603,cao ‘0.71%

$036 463%

Est. 201 8-2019 Valuation times mill rate of $7.78 $15,950,097
2018’2019 amount to be raised $15,867,996

Estimated Overlay $82,101

2017-2018 Tax Rate $742 per $1,060
2018’2019 Tax Rate $7.78 per $1,060

% Increase In Tax Rate 4.63%

Each 5010 on the tax rate raises $205,700

To Reduce Mill Rate by’ $0.10
$0.20
$030
$0 40
$0.50
$0 60
$0.70
$0.80
$0 90
$1.00

(a) Current Version of Budget

0

May 8, 2018 - Warrant Page 104



(ArUcle 57; pg. 30)
Tax Levy Worksheet

2018 MUNICIPAL PROPERTY TAX LEVY LIMIT WORKSHEET

Municipality: M0UU DESERT, ME Contact Person’: KYLE AV1LR Phone Number: (207)276-5531

The Contact Person should be able to answer clarifying questions abdt*the repmtsd thionnation.

The fotovAng two pages show how to colcuate your municipo:ity’s property tax levy limit.
Completing these pages is not mandatory, but doing so will help ensure that your
muric’pal’ty cornp.ies with Maine law cn lhe ra’e of propecty tax noreases InformaHon on flew
properly. oppropa’ 095. aid deducons should be co ected from the
assessor and the valua;on book before compleEng these pages.

Calendar Year MLnicipa.tes - For communHies with ‘colenda’ year’ budgets, the use of tie term
2017 refe’s to tne budget yea’ that ended at tne end of 2017 or eady 2018. The use of the term
2Ol8refers to the bi.dgetyeor thatwilt endot the end of 20l8orinearly 209.

Fiscal Year Municipalities — For communities with ‘fiscal year” budgets. the use oF Ihe lerm 2017
refers to the July I, 2016 to June 30, 2017 budget year. The use of the term 2018 refers to the July I.
2017 to June 30. 20)8 budget year.

LAST YEARS (2017) MUNICIPAL PROPERTY TAX LEVY LIMIT

This is the portion of 2017 property tax revenue used for municipal services

- If last year the municipality committed LESS THAN or EQUAL TO the limit, enter last year’s limit on Line 1 below

- If last year the municipality voted to EXCEED the limit ONCE Oust lest year), enter last year’s limit on Line 1 below

1. LAST YEAR’S MUNICIPAL PROPERTY TAX LEVY LIMIT $7,793,563
OR

- If last year the municipality voted to /NCREASE the Irmit PERMANENTLY, complete Steps A-D below The
information needed for this calculation is on the Municipal Tax Assessment Warrant, filed in the Valuation Book.

A. Last years Municipal Appropriations (Line 2, 2017 Municipal Tax Assessment Warrant)

8. Last years Total Deductions (Une 11, 2017 Municipal Tax Assessment Warrant)

C. It necessary, enter any revenue included in Total Deductions that paid for non-municipal
appropriations, such as schools f If all deductions paid for municipal appropriations enter “0”

0. Add Lines A and C, and subtract Line S Enter result on Line 1 above

CALCULATE GROWTh LIMITAUON FACTOR
- Each mur c.pality 5 Growth Umjtatcn Factor is basec on boa! property grc’at arc state-ide income growtn

2. Totai Nec, Taxable Va Je of ots (splisi bji’d:rgs. building improvemerts and personal
property first taxed on Aor’l 1, 2017 (or most recent year available) 511,369,385

3. Total Taxable Value of Mun:cicaity on Ap’il 1. 2017 (or most recent year ava.’able) 52.063.479.220

4. Property Growth Factor (Line 2 divided by Line 3) 0.0055

5. Income Growth Factor (prov dec by Office of Pccy ano Managementi 0.0261
6. Growth Lim taticr- Factor (Line 4 plus LineS) 0.0316

7. Add ito me Growth Limta:ion Factor oa,cula:ee in LineS 1.0316
(For examp e if Line 6 is 00362. It-en ente’ 1 3362 on Line 7

2018 MUNICIPAL PROPERTY TAX LEVY LIMIT WORKSHEET

May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 105



0
2018 MUNICIPAL PROPERTY TAX LEVY LIMIT WORKSHEET

CALCULATE 2017-2018 CHANGE IN REVENUE SHARING (previously “NET NEW STATE FUNDS”)

- Determine if revenue sharing :ncreased Or deo’eased Years refer to municipal fiscal year

8. 2017 Muniopal Revenue Sharing 533,320

9. 2018 Estimated Munic:paf Revenue Shar:ng $34,490

10. If LineS is greaterthan LineS, then calculate Line 8 minus Line 9 Enter result at right skip Lrne 11.

ii. If LineS isgreaterthan LineS, then complete hA & hIS below

A Multiply Lone 6 by Line 7. 534.435

B Calculate LineS minus Line 1 1A. Entei result at right. $55
(tt result is negative, enter • U I

CALCULATE ThIS YEAR’S (2018) MUNICIPAL PROPERTY TAX LEVY LIMIT

- This year’s Property Tax Levy Limit is last year’s limit increased by the Growth Factor and adjusted for revenue sharing

12 Apply Growth Limitation Factor to last year’s limit (Line 1 multiplied by Line 7) $8,039,916

13 THIS YEAR’S MUNICIPAL PROPERTY TAX LEVY LIMIT

If Line 9 is greater than Line 8 (revenue sharing increased), you MUST subtract Line ii B from Line 12. This is required

OR If Line 9 is less than Line S (revenue sharing decreased), you MAY add Line 10 to Line 12 This is optional

- Enter result at right 58,039, 861

CALCULATE THIS YEARS (2018) MUNICIPAL PROPERTY TAX LEVY

- The information needed for this calculation is on tho 2018 Municipal Tax Assessment Warrant, tiled In the Valuation
Book Use estimates if necessary

A. This year’s Municipal Appropriations (Line 2, 2018 Municipal Tax Assessment Warrant) $9,639,795

B. This year’s Total Deductions (Line 11,2018 Municipal Tax Assessment Warrant) $1,629,462

C. If necessary, enter any revenue included in Total Deductions that paid for non-municipal 0
appropriations, such as schools (Ii all deductions paid for municipal appropriations! enter “0”.)

14 THIS YEAR’S MUNICIPAL PROPERTY TAX LEVY (Add Lines A and C, and subtract Line B)

15 COMPARE this years MUNICIPAL PROPERTY T LEVY to the LIMIT (Line l3wthus Lire 14) 529,528
(ff the rest2t is negative, then ths years muncipal propey tax levy is greate than the lim.t ard a vote mist be taken

16 Did the mur,icioaltyvcte to EXCEED the limit ONCE Oust th:s year)’ NO YES
(Voting to exceed the limit means the municipaity vA:I calculate next years limt based on t:ne 13

If “yes”, please desorice why

_____________________________

17 Did the municipality vote to INCREASE tne limit PERMANENTLY (for current and future years)’ D NO YES

(Votirg to increase the limit means tne muncipality wit! calculate next year’s limit based online 14

If “yes’ please cescribe why’

2018 MUNICIPAL PROPERTY TAX LEVY LIMIT WORKSHEET

0
May 8, 2018 Warrant--Page 106



RETURN ON THE WARRANT

Hancock County, ss State of Maine

TO: The Municipal Officers of the Town of Mount Desert

I certify that I have notified the voters of the Town of Mount Desert of the time and place of the
Annual Town Meeting by posting an attested copy of the within warrant as follows:

DATE TIME LOCATION OF POSTING

__________ _____

Town Office, Northeast Harbor

__________ _____

Post Office, Northeast Harbor

___________ _____

Post Office, Seal Harbor

__________ _____

Post Office, Mount Desert

being public and conspicuous places in said Town and being at least ten (10) days prior to the
date of the Annual Town Meeting.

Dated at Town of Mount Desert:________________________________

Attest:

James K. Willis, Jr. Constable
Town of Mount Desert



0
0

0



z m w C z m Cr
,

L
I,



C

0

0



Town ofMount Desert
Claire Woolfolk. Town Clerk
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248

Northeast Harbor, ME 04662-0248

Telephone 207-276-5531 Fax 207-276-3232
E-mail towiiclerk mtdesertorg Web Address nvw.mtdesen.orcz

MEMO

DATE: March 23, 2018

TO: Board of Selectman

FROM: Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk \j’%r

RE; Shellfish Conservation Closure

The Shellfish Committee requests approval from the Board of Selectmen to amend the existing seasonal
closure 25 days earlier for transplanting activity on 4/5/1$ (the usual date for closure is 5/1). The
conservation closure will meet the harvest restriction period for the shellfish transplant permit awarded by
the Maine Department of Marine Resources.

The closure area is defined as: The shellfish harvesting area 44 conditional area D.2. in Northeast harbor
defined by Maine DMR as the area ‘north of a line across the mouth of the harbor beginning at the base
of a private pier approximately 175 yards south of the Clifton Dock, running northeast approximately 330
yards to the base of a private pier on the opposite shore AND east ofa line beginning at an unnamed point
of land approximately 150 yards east of the harbor boat launch ramp, then running north to the base of the
third private pier north of the marina.

Please see the attached maps for a visual identification of the closure and transplant area.



0
•

0
0



Maine Department of Marine Resources
Mount Desert

Municipal Conservation Closures

•0
0 0.5 1 2MJes
4I)I ii

Daimer: There may be state public health
closures in this map area. Please refer to Maine
Bacterial Closures maps at http:Ilwww.maine.govldm
public_health/closures/closedarea.htm

Refer to the text of the accompanying permit to
determine dates when areas are closed to harvest.

/

J

I /

—

C’0

•1

-

/

\.
•1

S

N

1’

Vt
/
/

V

C

Mou sert

‘I

Northeast Harbor

C



Mou

Refer to the text of the accompanying permit to
determine dates when areas are closed to harvest.

-- - -

I

C

/

Maine Department of Marine Resources N

Mount Desert
Municipal Clam Reseeding or Transplant Projects t

Jr

L
‘I

I /

j

I

-SI
4>

I

V

/ N

C
0 0.5 1 2Mes
14 iii I I

Disclaimer There may be state public health
closures in this map area. Please refer to Maine
Bacterial Closures maps at http:llwww.maine.govldmrlrml
public_health/closures/closedarea.htm



Dongchun Jiang RECEIVED

MAR 232018 48 E Maxwell Dr.
West Hartford, CF

THE TOWN OF 06107
MOUNT DESERT

Cell: 207-288-9889
Daisv.iiang@jax.org

March 19,2018

Tax Collector Office
21 Sea Street
P.O. Box 248
Northeast I [arbor. ME 01662

Re: Request for waiving interest on (lie 2017 property tax lbr 28 •l’amarack Ln
owned by Donuchun Slang, and request lbr address change

Dear Selectman and Assessor:

1. Dongcluin Jiang. used to he a Mount Desert resident. who still owns the
property at 28 lamarack Lit I moved to the state of Connecticut in early- 2015. I
truly apologize that I missed the payment on 2017 year assessed property tax.

During the past weekend. I worked on my- individual tax return and couldnt find
a record ofpa jag the town taxes And I just confirmed with your office this
morning that I didn’t update my address and havent paid the bill. I would like to
request to waive the interest portion on the bill. and request to update my address
to 48 F Maxwell Dr.. West I lartford. (‘1 06107.

Please accept my sincere apology. I have been a diligent payer in the past many
years. It’s totally my fault that I have missed the payment. I really appreciate your
kind consideration in vaiving the interest. Please see enclosed check in paving the
principal.

Looking forward to hearing from you. Thank you so much in advance.

Warm regards,

\, t)
Dongchun Jiang



TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

.\ RO.Box248
Northeast Harbor, ME 04662-0248

For the fiscal year July01, 2017 to June 30, 2018

OFFICE HOURS
Monday through Friday 8:30 am. to 4:30 p.m.

JIANG, DONGCHUN
28 TAMARACK LANE
MOUNT DESERT ME 04660

MAP/LOT 012-023-004
I OCATION 28 TAMARACK LANE
ACREAGE 301
ACCOUNT 001367 RE

THIS IS THE ONLY BILL
YOU WILL RECEIVE

TAXPAYER’S NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that your county, school, and municipal property tax is due 07/01/2017.
INTEREST WILL BE CHARGED AT THE RATE OF 7% PER ANNUM STARTING 0910112017.

If you have sold your real estate since April 1 2017, it is your obligation to forward this bill to the current property owner.
If a bank or mortgage company pays your taxes, please review this bill and forward a copy to them.

PARTIAL PAYMENTS ARE WELCOME, SEEATTACHED TAX CLUB NOTICE.

INFORMATION
Maine law requires us to inform you that your property tax already has been reduced by 2.38% due to funds the Town of

Mount Desert anticipates it will receive during the fiscal year from State Revenue Sharing, Aid for Education and the
Homestead Exemption.

As of June 30. 2017 the Town of Mount Desert has outstanding bonded indebtedness in the amount of $1 7,254639.63.
Tax Assessor (207) 276-5531 Ext 116- for information or questions regarding valuations, exemptions or changes.

Tax Collector (207) 276-5531 Ext 119- for information or questions regarding payments, interest or refunds.

CURRENT BILLING DISTRIBUTION

SCHOOL $1,456.37 43.900%
HANCOCK COUNTY $189.10 5.700%
MUNICIPAL $1,672.01 50.400%

TOTAL $3,317.48 100.000%

Please visit our website @ wwwmtdesert.org for
information on how to pay taxes online. Please e-mail assessmtdesert.org if
you would like your tax bill e-mailed to you for next years’s taxes.

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT, P0 sox 246. NORTHEAST HARBOR, ME 04662-0248

I IIII liii! 11111 11111 11111 11111 1111111 III IN III
INTEREST BEGINS AFTER 08/3112017

ACCOUNT: 001367 RE
NAME: WANG, DONGCHUN
MAP/LOT: 012-023-004
LOCATION: 28 TAMARACK LANE
ACREAGE: 3.01

2018 REAL ESTATE TAX BILL

tURRENT BILL&1EINFORMATIDN

DLAND VALUE $19090000
BUILDING VALUE $27620000
TOTAL LAND & BLDG $467,100.00
Machinery & Equipment $0.00
Furniture & Fixtures $0.00
computers so.oo
MISCELLANEOUS $0 00
TOTAL PER PROR $0.00
HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION $20000.00
OTHER EXEMPTION $0 00
NETASSESSMENT $447,100.00
TOTAL TAX $3,317.48
LESS PAID TO DATE $0.00

MIL RATE: 7.42
BOOK/PAGE: 86452P151 08/31/2015

TOTAL DUE EZ>

TOTAL DUE: $3.31 7.48

$3,317.48

REMITTANCE INSTRUCTIONS

Taxes may be paid by mail. Please make checks or money orders
payable to the

Town of Mount Desert and mail to:

TAX COLLECTOR
TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

PM. BOX 248
NORTHEAST HARBOR, ME 04662-0248

If a receIpt Is desIred, please submit a self-addressed, stmd envelope with your paymc,it.,

- DUE-DATE -AMOUNT DUE AMOUNT PAID -
07/01/2017 $3,317.48

PLEASE REMIT THIS PORTION WITH YOUR PAYMENT



RECr.
TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

PUBLIC SPACE SPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION
Application Fee—S1OMO MAR 28 2013

NOTE - Applications are due 60 days prior for major events nil
30 days prior to event for minor events. (iL 1 Uv;( i (ji

PERMIT : 3 oiT DATE OF EVENT: zoi8
DATE APPLICATION RECEIVED: 3 ‘/
PUBLIC SPACE REQUESTED: Please check: Noflheast I larhor Marina Green
Seal I larbor Village Green Suminsby Park

______

Otter Creek Playground — -

Hall Quarry Park__ Pond’s End__

TYPE OF EVENT MAJOR ORiY (SF1- PoUt Y fOR DLI INI\TIt)NS)

circle one
APPLICANT: J]4c -

(Print) (Si enature
MM LING ADDRESS: O D/ N au ,.

PHONE: -

- 2O7fl 5Q
( Home I ( Business (c IIuIar)

oThER CONTACT INFO: a ie
Email)

AGENT: 4JJb.ic-MM fIcf (IjupE)gt !h-*
(Print) C lunilurL

AGENT MAILING ADDRESS: o% q, flEH £4 a o4
PHONE:

-
Z.Zi&.

Agent ionic t t Atzent business) (Agent celkilar)

OIlIER CONTACT INFO:
(Aaeni eijjiIJ_—_ I AzenI fh i

What is the tax status of the applicant?
-— — —

Does the applicant propose that arnplied sound be used for event? Yes No
If yes, include description:

USE REQUESTED (cipp/icon!. review the P,t/,lic Space Ccc Polk’s’, then explain nhat son stout to do)

AHtJU%L NtMO&1AL b4Y UMMUM(r( 23aã)
UAM- I?’M

Approved this

_____

day of

_______________,

20_, by a majority of the Board of Selectmen:

Page 1 of 15
Public Space Special Event AppFcation and
Public Spaces Use Policy
Approved by the Soard olSetectnien August 17, 2015



r RECEIVED
MAR2820!a

Application Fee — 510.00
NOTE — Applications are due 60 days prior for major event nd —

DATE APPLICATION RECEIVED: q. ?flhi”

PU931.IC SPACE REQUESTED: Please check: Northeast Harbor Marina Green

_____

Seal I larbor Village Green Suminsby Park

______

Oiler Creek Playground /

Hall Quarry Park Pond’s End

TYPE OF EVENT — MAJOR ORO SEE POLK Y FOR OmNINTIONS;

A PPL ICA NT:
(ccleon %M7Jfl’ -irath

(l’nnt) (Sitznature)
MAILING ADDRESS: \iE, M -

PHONE:

_____

2-07. flp. So39

_____ ___

(Home) (Business
OThER CONTACT INFO: ñflflerit

(Email)
AGENT:

AGENT MAILING ADDRESS: / 9
PHONE:__

___

‘2Z1. So

____

(Agent home) (Agent business) (Agent cellular)

OTHER CONTACT INFO:

_____

(Agent emaifl (Agent lh
What is the tax status of the applicant?roIit)) —

____________

-—

Does the applicant propose that amplified sound be used for event? Yes

______

If yes, include description:

(nMMuiJ IT( SWEL tQwM (!nF..acarr
¶3pM- (o2,mnA

Approved this

_____

day of

________________

20_, by a majority of the Board of Selectmen:

Pagelofl5
Public Space Special Event Application and
Public Spaces Use Policy
Approved by the Board of Selectmen August 17, 2015

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT
PUBLIC SPACE SPECIAL EVENT APPLICATION

PERMIT#: 9 cO(

30 days prior to event for minor events,

DATE OF EVENT:
- V L’L 1ZOiS

THE lovvrj
MOuNT p

0

Nok

USE REQUESTED (Applicant. review the Public Space Use PoUc’, then explain chat you want to do



Town ofMoant Desert
Michael Bender, Fire Chief
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248

Northeast Harbor, ME 04662-0248

Telephone 207-276-5111 Fax 207-276-5732
Web Address www.midesen.org

firechieftñmtdeseztorg

Memo
To: Dudin Lunt, Town Manager

From: Mike Bender, Are Chief

CC: Tony Smith, Public Works Director

Date: March 28,2018

Re: Station #2 Window Replacement Project

I would like to inform the Board of Selectman that we will be soliciting bids to replace all the exterior
windows (except for the dormer units on the south wall that were replaced last year) at fire station #2 (Seal
Harbor). With assistance from the Public Works Director, a bid package has been prepared. We plan to
run ads for two weeks, starting on April 1 2th• Bid openings will be on May 24th and a request to award the
selected bid submittal will be on the June 6” Board of Selectman’s agenda. Project completion date is set
for November 4, 2018.

The current windows were installed when the station was built in 1989. They have begun to show signs of
leaking seals between the outer and inner panes. One pane has already broken and there is evidence that
others are bowing in the center of the glass. There are also indications of some water damage having
occurred in and around a few the windows on the first floor. The bid specifications include repairing or
replacing any materials that have sustained water damage before new window units are installed.

A new line for this project was created in the Fire Department’s CIP and funds were requested and
approved at last Town meeting. I have asked the Public Works Director to perform the bid opening and
recommend a contractor to avoid any possible conflict of interest between the Fire Chief and potential
bidders.

Thankyou.



Town ofMount Desert
/7 3 4” 21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248
III Northeast Flarbor, ME 04662-0248

Telephone 207-276-5743 Fax 207-276-5742
\t\ w’Arw.mtdesert.org director(dmtdcsert.ori —

MEMO

To: Durlin Lunt, Jr., Town Manager
From: Tony Smith, Public Works Director
Re: Youth in Politics Proposed Project
Date: March 29, 2018

I met with four members of the Youth in Politics group and one of their advisor’s, Kyle Avila, on
March 27, 2018. They were interested in learning about public works and had some great questions.
They also described two civics projects they would like to undertake for the town, one at Suminsby
Park and one on the Village Green.

At Suminsby Park, the Group would like to collect the broken glass along the Parks Somes Sounds
shoreline and construct a sculpture out of it. Once completed, they propose erecting the sculpture
somewhere on the Park grounds. My suggestion is that they come back to you and the Board of
Selectmen with a written proposal for what the sculpture might look like, it’s approximate size, what
the base might look like, and how long they would recommend it remain in place. Q
The project being considered for the Village Green by the Group is the construction of an ice skating
rink for next winter for general public use. Some thoughts discussed at our meeting were constructing
it in the low, settled part of the Village Green, the possibility of the fire department providing the water
to build the ice sheet and possibly flooding the rink area periodically through the winter. As with the
proposed project for Suminsby Park, it might be prudent for the Group to put their proposal in writing
to thc Board and discuss it with them at a future Board meeting. The proposal could consider including
a description of what the rink would look like, where the building materials would be obtained needed
to build it, who will build the structure to contain the water and ice, who will be responsible for
removing the snow from the ice, will hockey be allowed or just skating and other nuances associated
with an outdoor skating rink.

I request that the Board acknowledge the Groups ideas at their April 2 meeting and indicate if they
would consider approving the projects at a future meeting and subject to the information contained in
the written proposals I mentioned above. I will contact the Group and make them aware of the Board’s
decision.

Thank you.

Cc. Shepherd Brown, Youth in Politics President
Kyle Avila, Youth in Polities Advisor



RE:

Town ofMount Desert
Joelle D. Nolan, Town Clerk
21 Sea Street, P.O. Box 248

Northeast Harbor, ME 01662-0248

Telephone 207-276-5531 Fax 207-276-3232
E-mail Jflaumtdesert.rg Web Address wv.mtdeerj4g

Municipal Officer’s Certifications of Official Text for Proposed Ordinances

Pursuant to Maine Statute 30-A3002(2) regarding the enactment of new ordinances or changes to
existing ordinances: “The municipal officers shall certify one copy of the proposed ordinance to the
municipal clerk at least 7 days before the day of meeting. The clerk shall keep that copy as a public record
and shall make copies available for distribution to the voters from the lime of certification. Copies shall
be made available at the town meeting.”

The following pages represent this certification process for the proposed ordinances/changes for the May
8, 20t$ Annual Town Meeting.

4.- _,A_.

‘4 I’

\

DATE: March 30, 2018

TO: Board of Selectmen

FROM: Claire Woolfolk. Town Clerk

MEMO

bos certification memo.docx



0
0

0



MUNICIPAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION OF
OFFICIAL TEXT OF A PROPOSED ORDINANCE

[30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2)]

To the Town Clerk of the Town of Mount Desert:

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this
certificate is a true copy of the official text of amendments to an ordinance
entitled Alewife Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert, which is to be
presented to the voters for their consideration on May 8, 2018.

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete
text of the ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for
distribution to the voters, and you will ensure that copies are available at the town
meeting/polling places on the day of the vote.

Giver under our hands at Mount Desert the second day of April 2018, a majority
of the Selectmen of the Town of Mount Desert:

John B. Macauley, Chairman

Maffhew J. Hart, Vice Chairman

Wendy H. Littlefield, Secretary

Martha T. Dudman

James F. Mooers



ALEWIFE ORDINANCE

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

Enacted December 3 & 8, 2007, Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 6, 2008 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 5, 2009 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 4, 2010 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 3, 2011 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 7, 2012 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 6, 2013 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 6, 2014 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 5, 2015 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 3, 2016 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 2, 2017 Annual Town Meeting

Amended May 8, 2018 Annual Town Meeting

“Regulations for the taking of alewives and blue back herring shall be as follows: For
the year July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 there shall be no taking of Alewives and
Blue Back Herring in the Town of Mount Desert.”

0



MUNICIPAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION OF
OFFICIAL TEXT OF A PROPOSED ORDINANCE

[30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2)]

To the Town Clerk of the Town of Mount Desert:

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this
certificate is a true copy of the official text of amendments to an ordinance
entitled Amendments to the Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount
Desert, which is to be presented to the voters for their consideration on May 8,
2018.

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete
text of the ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for
distribution to the voters, and you will ensure that copies are available at the town
meeting/polling places on the day of the vote.

Giver under our hands at Mount Desert the second day of April 2018, a majority
of the Selectmen of the Town of Mount Desert:

John B. Macauley, Chairman

Matthew J. Hart, Vice Chairman

Wendy H. Littlefield. Secretary

Martha T. Dudman

James F. Mooers





SOLID WASTE ORDINANCE
of the

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

ENACTED MAY 6, 2014
Revised and Enacted May 8, 2018

SECTION 1: AUTHORITY

This Ordinance is created under the authority granted to the Town of Mount Desert
(hereinafter the “Town”) by Title 38 M.R.S.A., § 1301 et seq. (the Maine
Hazardous Waste, Septage and Solid Waste Management Act) and the Town’s
home rule authority pursuant to the Maine Constitution and 30-A M.R.S. § 3001 et
seq.

SECTION 2: PURPOSE

2.1. To protect the health, safety and general well-being of the citizens of the
Town.

2.2. To enhance and maintain the quality of the environment, conserve natural
resources and prevent water and air pollution by providing a comprehensive,
rational and effective means of regulating the disposal of solid waste.

2.3 To recognize that the use of single use plastic bags typically provided by
vendors is not an environmentally sound use of resources and residents of and
visitors to the Town are striving to use alternate means such as reusable cloth bags
and other reusable items to collect and transport their goods.

2.4. To encourage and expand solid waste recycling and waste reduction.

2.5. To control solid waste in the Town by establishing limitations, prohibiting
certain acts generating solid waste and to enforce the provisions of this Ordinance.

2.6. To control the costs of solid waste management to the taxpayers of the Town.



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

SECTION 3: DEFINITIONS

3.1. Terms used in this Ordinance that are defined in 38 M.R.S.A. §1303-C as may
be amended from time to time, shall have the meaning prescribed in §1303-C and
that meaning shall be controlling, notwithstanding any contrary definition in the
Ordinance or in any dictionary. The §1303-C definitions are set forth in Appendix
A to this Ordinance; Appendix A shall be updated regularly (at least annually).
Any word not otherwise defined shall have its customary dictionary meaning.

This Ordinance provides the following definitions:

Acceptable Waste - solid waste (as defined herein) that is capable of processing at
the Town’s designated processing facility and/or otherwise handled by the Town’s
solid waste collection service.

Authorized Individual - means any person, partnership, corporation or other entity
that either owns, rents, leases (on a permanent or temporary basis) a dwelling or
operates a commercial establishment in Town.

Agricultural Solid Wastes - wastes produced from the raising of plants and animals
for food, including manure, plant stalks, hulls and leaves.

Ash - residue, including cinders and fly ash from the burning of solid fuels for
cooking and heating, and from on-site incineration of refuse materials.

Bulky Objects - abandoned vehicles, stoves and refrigerators, large furniture, tree
trunks, stumps and brush.

Commercial Solid Wastes - wastes that originate in wholesale, retail, or service
establishments, such as office buildings, stores, markets, theaters, hotels and
warehouses.

Construction and Demolition Debris (CDD) - solid waste resulting from
construction, remodeling, repair, and demolition of structures, and as specifically
defined in 38 MRS § 1303-C (see Appendix A attached).

EMR - Eastern Maine Recycling located in Southwest Harbor, Maine, is a licensed
solid waste transfer station that also provides solid waste recycling services.

0
Page 2 o148

As amended May 8, 2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

Fiberight dba Coastal Resources of Maine, LLC - Eiheriht is a licensed ftwility
located in Hampdcn. Maine. licensed by the Maine DEP [‘or solid waste
processing.

Garbage - every accumulation of waste (animal, vegetable, and/or other matter)
that results from the preparation, processing, consumption, dealing in, handling,
packing, canning, storage, transportation, decay or decomposition of meats, fish,
fowl, birds, fruits, grains or other animal or vegetable matter (including but not by
way of limitation, used food containers and all putrescible or easily decomposable
waste animal or vegetable matter that is likely to attract flies or rodents), except (in
all cases) any matter included in the definition of bulky waste, construction and
demolition debris, dead animals, hazardous waste, rubbish or stable matter.

Green Wood - land clearing debris that is reasonably free of soil material and rock
and bark, shavings, slash, and plant and vegetable matter from gardens and
landscapes.

Hazardous Waste/ Universal Waste — shall be as defined by 38 M.R.S. § 1303-C
(Appendix A attached).

Industrial Waste - wastes generally discarded from industrial operations or derived
from manufacturing processes but not including a) hazardous waste or b) special
waste which by reason of its composition, characteristics or other properties is not
ordinarily acceptable for disposal at sites licensed for disposal of municipal solid
waste. Excluded special waste shall include, but not be limited to friable asbestos
and oil-contaminated soil.

Municipal Wastes - the combined residential and commercial wastes generated
within the Town.

Non-Resident - a person who does not reside in or pay property taxes to the Town.

Refuse — a broad term and is synonymous with “solid waste” and shall be defined
as any of a wide variety of solid materials as well as some liquids in containers,
which are discarded or rejected as being spent, useless, worthless, or in excess.

Resident - a person who resides in or occupies a residential property and/or pays
property taxes to the Town.

Pagc3 of4S
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

Residential Waste - waste generated in houses, apartments and other dwelling
units, including paper, cardboard, beverage and food cans, plastics, food wastes,
and glass containers.

Sewerage Treatment Wastes - screenings, grease, scum and grit from the Town of
Mount Desert Publicly Owned Treatment Works.

Solid Waste—waste as defined in 38 MRS § 1303-C (see Appendix A attached).

Special Wastes- waste as defined in 38 MRSA 1303-C (see Appendix A attached)

Tipping Fee - the fee charged to the Town by a facility such as EMR or, Fiberight,
etc. for transport or disposal of solid waste.

Unacceptable Waste - solid waste of a type that municipalities are authorized to
regulate under 38 MRS § 1305, as amended, and that are prohibited at EMR (for
transport to the Town’s designated acceptable waste processing facility) or at that
designated waste processing facility.

Wood Waste - means brush, lumber, bark, wood chips, shavings, slabs, edgings,
slash, sawdust, and wood from production rejects that are not mixed with other
solid or liquid waste. For the purpose of this definition, “lumber” is entirely made
of wood and is free from metal, plastics, and coatings. Wood Waste does not
include painted wood or pressure treated wood. These would be included with
Construction and Demolition Debris, as defined. Wood Waste also does not
include Green Wood, as defined.

SECTION 4: REGULATED ACTIVITY

4.1. The accumulation, collection, transportation and disposal of acceptable wastes
and unacceptable wastes generated within the Town shall be regulated in the
following manner:

4.1.1 All acceptable waste generated within the Town shall be deposited roadside
at locations designated by the Town in appropriate containers and collected by the
Town or appropriate licensed commercial hauler.

4.1.2 All unacceptable waste, including hazardous waste, special waste, universal
waste, CDD waste, hot loads, and certain wood wastes, shall be subject to the

Page 4 of 48

As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

Materials Disposal Restrictions set forth in Section 4.3 below and shall be handled
by licensed firms and deposited at licensed facilities out of Town consistent with
Section 4.2 below. Violations of this Section 4 shall be subject to enforcement
under Section 8 and related provisions of this Ordinance.

4.2. General Requirements

4.2.1. All solid waste shall be handled and disposed in accordance with this
Ordinance.

4.2.2. The Board of Selectmen shall have the authority to restrict or modify the
disposal of all types and volumes of solid waste, if deemed in the best interests of
the Town.

4.2.3. No person, partnership or corporation, shall dispose of any reftise on any
public property or roads except as allowed by this ordinance.

4.3. Materials Disposal Restrictions

The following waste materials or containers of waste materials as described below
shall not be handled or disposed within the boundaries of the Town:

4.3.1. Materials classified as hazardous waste in 38 MRS § 1303-C (see Appendix
A attached) unless:

• Within a Town sanctioned public collection event or effort, if handled by a
person or firm licensed to handle and transport hazardous waste and if
disposed at a facility licensed for hazardous waste disposal outside the
Town; or

• Handled and transported by a commercial entity licensed to handle and
transport hazardous waste if taken to a licensed facility outside the Town.

4.3.2. Materials classified as universal waste by 38 MRS § 1303-C (see Appendix
A attached) unless:

• Within a Town sanctioned public collection event or effort, if handled by a
person or firm licensed to handle and transport universal waste and if
disposed at a facility licensed for universal waste disposal outside the Town;
or

PageS of4H
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

• Handled and transported by a commercial entity licensed to handle and
transport universal waste if taken to a licensed facility outside the Town.

4.3.3. Ash at a combustible temperature or other hot loads.

4.3.4. Trees, limbs of trees, or tree trunks more than 4 inches in diameter and/or 3
feet in length or stumps except by a commercial entity licensed to handle and
transport woody waste and disposed at a licensed wood waste facility outside the
Town

4.3.5. All Commercial Demolition Debris as defined herein, except by a
commercial entity licensed to handle such CDD waste if disposed at a licensed
facility outside the Town.

4.3.6. All Special Waste as defined herein, except by a commercial entity licensed
to handle Special Waste if disposed at a licensed facility for disposal of Special
Waste outside the Town

4.3.7. All Green Wood and Wood Waste as defined herein, except by a commercial
entity licensed to handle such Wood Waste if disposed at a licensed facility outside
the Town.

SECTION 5: HANDLING AND DISPOSAL OF SOLID WASTE

Authorized Individuals (including Residents) shall handle and dispose of
acceptable solid waste by only one of the following methods:

5.1. Town-provided collection service:

Materials disposed at curbside are limited to solid waste acceptable to the Town’s
contracted transfer station or solid waste processing facility. Materials must be
placed in secured bags, secured containers and/or secured receptacles adequate to
prevent loss of control of the solid waste. Those disposing of the solid waste are
responsible for picking up and cleaning up of unsecured solid waste regardless of
the cause.

Curbside solid waste collection occurs by summer and winter schedules
promulgated by the Town. Solid waste must be at curbside by 7 AM on the
scheduled day to ensure pick up.

Page 6 o148
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

5.2. Authorized Individuals at the Town of Mount Desert area designated at EMR.

5.3. Hire a Private Hauler.

Authorized Individuals may contract at their cost with a private hauler for disposal
of acceptable solid waste. All waste collected by private haulers shall be delivered
to EMR and credited to the Town’s guaranteed annual tonnage.

5.4 Town Sponsored Solid Waste Disposal at EMR

Authorized Individuals have a Town sponsored solid waste disposal account at
EMR allowing up to two thousand (2,000) pounds of solid waste annually per
Town physical address delivered by the Authorized Individual or their private
licensed hauler. Authorized Individuals shall be responsible for all costs
associated with a private hauler. This allowance provides for the disposal of all
solid waste; particularly green wood, bulky objects allowed by EMR and CDD
(construction and demolition debris) except special, hazardous and universal waste.
This allowance may expire at such time the inhabitants of the Town choose to
eliminate the practice.

SECTION 6: FEES

Authority: The Town Meeting may establish fees for solid waste disposal to
promote recycling and improve the efficiency of the management of solid waste
and to support the cost of solid waste collection and disposal.

SECTION 7: LICENSES

7.1 No person, firm or corporation shall transport on a commercial basis any
acceptable waste for disposal outside the Town without obtaining a license to
transport such waste within the Town from the Town Manager. The license shall
be in effect for 24 (twenty-four) months from date of issue and must be renewed on
or before its expiration date.

7.2. Any person, firm or corporation required by this Ordinance to obtain an annual
license shall make application to the Town Manager. A nonreflandable license
application fee as determined by the Board of Selectmen shall accompany each
application. The fee structure shall be reviewed every two (2) years by the Town

Page 7 of 48
As amended May 8, 2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

Manager or designee with a recommendation being made by the Town Manager or
designee to the Board of Selectmen as to its appropriateness or if it should be
changed. The existing fee or any changes to it shall go into effect July 1 of each
new fiscal year. A copy of the application form is available from the Town Office.

7.3. The application shall contain all information required by it, including, but not
limited to, a description of the activity/activities engaged in, e.g., collection and
transport of acceptable, recyclable/storable and/or unacceptable waste; types and
estimated amount(s) of waste handled in each service area and; a description of the
facility/facilities operated and used. The applicant’s signature on the application
verifies the applicant’s intended compliance with this Ordinance. Incomplete
applications will not be processed.

7.4. Licenses shall not be transferable.

7.5. All licenses shall expire two (2) years from the date of issue unless revoked or
suspended sooner in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance.

7.6. In the event that the Town Manager denies a license application, the applicant
shall be notified of the reasons for the denial of the license. The applicant may
appeal the Town Manager’s decisions to the Board of Selectmen.

7.7. Suspension and Revocation

Any license issued may be suspended or revoked by the Town Manager for cause,
including the following reasons:

a. Violation of this Ordinance;
b. Violation of any provision of any state or local law, ordinance, code or
regulation which relates directly to the provisions of this Ordinance;
c. Violation of any license condition(s); and
d. Falsehoods, misrepresentations or omissions in the license application.

Suspension or revocation of a license may be appealed to the Board of Selectmen.

SECTION 8: VIOLATIONS & PENALTIES

8.1. Disposal generally prohibited; disposal of rubbish, garbage, solid waste and
debris on public or private property:

PageR o148

As amended May 8,20(8 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

No person shall throw or place or cause to be thrown or placed upon any premises
located within the limits of the Town any rubbish, garbage, solid waste or debris of
any kind, except in hill conformance with this Ordinance, nor shall any owner or
occupant of any such premises suffer any such rubbish, garbage, solid waste or
debris to remain on said premises after receiving notice from the Chief of Police or
Code Enforcement Officer or their designees. Any person or persons so failing to
remove any such rubbish, garbage, solid waste or debris for a period of seven days
after receipt of said notice shall be subject to enforcement.

8.2 Limited Exemption:

Disposal of rubbish, garbage, solid waste and debris during the Spring Clean-up
Week shall not constitute a violation of this Ordinance and shall not be subject to
enforcement.

8.3. Any person, including, but not limited to, a landowner, the landowner’s agent
or a contractor, who violates any of the provisions of this ordinance shall be
subject to enforcement and liable to the remedies, fines, and civil penalties as
stated below in Sections 8.4, 8.5 and 8.6.

8.4. Monetary penalties may be assessed on a per-day basis and are civil penalties.
The minimum penalty for a specific violation is S 100, and the maximum penalty is
52,500.

8.5. Municipal Costs of Enforcement: In addition to the foregoing penalty
provisions, any person violating any provision of this ordinance shall be liable to
reimburse the Town for costs of enforcement including reasonable attorney fees
and court costs. The Town is also authorized to seek and obtain equitable relief

8.6. Violations of this ordinance shall also be enforced under the provisions of the
Maine anti-littering statute at 17 M.R.S. § 2264-A, 2264-B, and 2264-C, as may
be amended from time to time. A copy of those laws is attached as Appendix B
and shall be updated as those laws are amended.

SECTION 9: SPECIAL COLLECTION EFFORTS

9.1. The Board of Selectmen or designee may authorize seasonal or other solid
waste collection efforts in addition to those described in this ordinance. Such

Page9 of4S
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

events shall be advertised by the Town so as to inform as many residents as
practical.

SECTION 10: SEVERABILITY

If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance shall be held invalid
for any reason, the remainder of that section and all other sections shall continue in
full force and effect.

SECTION 11: EFFECTIVE DATE; SUNSET

This Ordinance shall become effective upon the date of enactment for a period not
to exceed 15 years, unless amended or repealed prior to the expiration of this 15
year period.

SECTION 12: AMENDMENT

This Ordinance may be amended in the same manner as any other Ordinance of the
Town.

ADOPTED by Annual Town Meeting this 8th day of May 2018.

Claire Woolfolk, Town Clerk

Attest: A tate copy

0
Page 10 o148

As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

Appendix A

38 M.R.S.A. § 1303-C

§ 1303-C. Definitions
Effective: July 1, 2012
As used in this chapter or in chapter 24,! unless the context otherwise indicates, the
following terms have the following meanings.

1. Repealed. Laws 1995, c. 656, § A-19.

1-A. Biomedical waste. “Biomedical waste” means waste that may contain human
pathogens of sufficient virulence and in sufficient concentrations that exposure to it
by a susceptible human host could result in disease or that may contain cytotoxic
chemicals used in medical treatment.

1-B. Repealed. L. 2005, c. 612, § A-21, eff Jan. 1,2007.

1-C. Bypass. “Bypass” means any solid waste that is destined for disposal,
processing or beneficial use at a solid waste facility but that cannot be disposed of
processed or beneficially used at that facility because of the facility’s malfunction,
insufficient capacity, inability to process or burn, downtime or any other
comparable reason.

2. Repealed. Laws 1989, c. 890, § B-225.

2-A. Class I liquid. “Class I liquid” means any liquid having a flash point below
100° Fahrenheit.

2-B. Class II liquid. “Class IT liquid” means any liquid having a flash point at or
above 100° Fahrenheit and below 140° Fahrenheit.

3. Closing reserve fund. “Closing reserve ftind” means a thnd created for the
purpose of financing the closing and maintenance after closing of a waste facility.

4. Commercial hazardous waste facility. “Commercial hazardous waste facility”
means:

A. A waste facility that handles hazardous wastes generated off the site of the
facility; or

Page II of 38
As amended May 8, 2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

B. A facility that, in the handling of a waste generated off the site, generates 0
hazardous waste.

5. Commercial landfill facility. “Commercial landfill facility” means a
commercial solid waste facility that is used for the burial of solid waste.

6. Commercial solid waste disposal facility. “Commercial solid waste disposal
facility” means a solid waste disposal facility except as follows:

A. Deleted. Laws 2007, c. 338, § 2.

A-I. Repealed. Laws 2005, c. 612, § 2, eff Jan. 1,2007.

A-i. A solid waste facility that is owned by a public waste disposal corporation
under section 1304-B, subsection 5:

(1) As long as the public waste disposal corporation controls the decisions
regarding the type and source of waste that is accepted, handled, treated and
disposed of at the facility; and 0
(2) If the facility is a solid waste landfill, the facility accepts only waste that is
generated within the State unless the commissioner finds that the acceptance of
waste that is not generated within the State provides a substantial public benefit
pursuant to section 13 l0-AA, subsection I-A;

B. Deleted. Laws 2007, c. 338, § 2.

B-I. Repealed. Laws 2005, c. 612, § 2, eff Jan. 1, 2007.

B-2. A solid waste facility that is owned by a municipality under section 1305:

(1) As long as the municipality controls the decisions regarding the type and source
of waste that is accepted, handled, treated and disposed of at the facility; and

(2) If the facility is a solid waste landfill, the facility accepts only waste that is
generated within the State unless:

0
Page 12 of4S

As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

Q
(a) The commissioner finds that the acceptance of waste that is not generated
within the State provides a substantial public benefit pursuant to section 1310-AA,
subsection I-A; and

(b) Acceptance of waste that is not generated within the State is approved by a
majority of the voters of the municipality by referendum election;

C. Deleted. Laws 2007, c. 338, § 2.

C-i. Repealed. Laws 2005, c. 612, § 2, eff. Jan. 1,2007.

C-2. A solid waste facility that is owned by a refuse disposal district under chapter
17:

(1) As long as the reffise disposal district controls the decisions regarding the type
and source of waste that is accepted, handled, treated and disposed of at the
facility; and

(2) If the facility is a solid waste landfill, the facility accepts only waste that is

O generated within the State unless the commissioner finds that the acceptance of
waste that is not generated within the State provides a substantial public benefit
pursuant to section 131 0-AA, subsection I-A;

D. Beginning January 1, 2007, a solid waste facility owned and controlled by the
Department of Administrative and Financial Services, Bureau of General Services
under chapter 24;

D-1. Repealed. Laws 2005, c. 612, § 2, eff. Jan. 1,2007.

E. A solid waste facility owned and controlled by a single entity that:

(i) Generates at least 85% of the solid waste disposed of at a facility, except that
the facility may accept from other sources, on a nonprofit basis, an amount of solid
waste that is no more than 15% of all solid waste accepted on an annual basis; or

(2) Is an owner of a manufacturing facility that has, since January 1, 2006,
generated at least 85% of the solid waste disposed of at the solid waste facility,
except that one or more integrated industrial processes of the manufacturing
facility are no longer in common ownership, and those integrated industrial

Page 33 of48
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

processes will continue to generate waste that will continue to be disposed of at the
solid waste facility. This exemption only applies if the source and type of waste
disposed of at the solid waste facility remains the same as that previously disposed
of by the single entity.

For the purposes of this paragraph, “single entity” means an individual,
partnership, corporation or limited liability corporation that is not engaged
primarily in the business of treating or disposing of solid waste or special waste.
This paragraph does not apply if an individual partner, shareholder, member or
other ownership interest in the single entity disposes of waste in the solid waste
facility. A waste facility receiving ash resulting from the combustion of municipal
solid waste or refi.ise-dedved fUel is not exempt from this subsection solely by
operation of this paragraph.

For purposes of this paragraph, “integrated industrial processes” means
manufacturing processes, equipment or components, including, but not limited to,
energy generating facilities, that when used in combination produce one or more
manufactured products for sale; or

F. A private corporation that accepts material-separated, refuse-derived fUel as a
supplemental fUel and does not burn waste other than its own.

For purposes of this subsection, “waste that is generated within the State” includes
residue and bypass generated by incineration, processing and recycling facilities
within the State or waste whether generated within the State or outside of the State
if it is used for daily cover, frost protection or stability or is generated within 30
miles of the solid waste disposal facility.

7. Repealed. Laws 1999, c. 525, § 2, eff. June 17, 1999.

A. to F. Repealed. Laws 1999, c. 525, § 2, eff. June 17, 1999.

8. Construction and demolition debris. “Construction and demolition debris”
means debris resulting from construction, remodeling, repair, and demolition of
structures. It excludes asbestos and other special wastes.

9. Contingency reserve fund. “Contingency reserve fUnd” means a fUnd
maintained for the purpose of meeting unexpected contingencies in the operation
of a waste facility.

Pgc 14 of48

As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

10. Conveyance. “Conveyance” means any aircraft, watercraft, vehicle or other
machine used for transportation on land, water or in the air.

11. Repealed. Laws 1989, c. 890, § B-225.

12. Disposal. “Disposal” means the discharge, deposit, dumping, spilling, leaking
or placing of hazardous, biomedical or solid waste, waste oil, reftise-derived thel,
sludge or septage into or on land, air or water and the incineration of solid waste,
reftise-derived friel, sludge or septage so that the hazardous, biomedical or solid
waste, waste oil, rethse-derived thel, sludge or septage or a constituent of the
hazardous, biomedical or solid waste, waste oil, refuse-derived fuel, sludge or
septage may enter the environment or be emitted into the air, or discharged into
waters, including ground waters.

13. Generation. “Generation” means the act or process of producing hazardous,
biomedical or solid waste, waste oil, sludge or septage.

13-A. Repealed. Laws 1991, c. 520, § 4.

14. Handle. “Handle” means to store, transfer, collect, separate, salvage, process,
recycle, reduce, recover, incinerate, dispose of or treat.

15. Hazardous waste. “Hazardous waste” means a waste substance or material, in
any physical state, designated as hazardous by the board under section 13 19-0. It
does not include waste resulting from normal household or agricultural activities.
The fact that a hazardous waste or part or constituent may have value or other use
or may be sold or exchanged does not exclude it from this definition.

15-A. Hazardous waste incinerator. “Hazardous waste incinerator” means an
enclosed device using controlled flame combustion to thermally break down
hazardous waste.

15-B. Host community. “Host community” means any town, township or city that
is the geographic site of a solid waste disposal facility or any immediately
contiguous town, township or city if such town, township or city can demonstrate
to the department that it incurs a direct financial impact related to any necessary
development or maintenance of infrastructure or to any necessary provision of
services as a result of the location or operation of that solid waste disposal facility.

Page IS of4S
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

16. Incineration facility. “Incineration facility” means a facility where municipal
solid waste or refuse-derived fuel is disposed of through combustion, including
combustion for the generation of heat, steam or electricity.

17. Inert fill. “inert fill” means clean soil material, rocks, bricks, and cured
concrete, which are not mixed with other waste, and which are not derived from an
ore mining activity.

18. Land clearing debris. “Land clearing debris” means solid wastes resulting
from the clearing of land and consisting solely of brush, stumps, soil material and
rocks.

19. Manifest. “Manifest” means the form used for identiing the quantity,
composition and the origin, routing and destination of hazardous waste during its
transport.

19-A. Material-separated, refuse-derived fuel. “Material-separated, refuse-
derived fuel” means a binder-enhanced, pelletized, solid fuel product made from
the combustible fraction of a municipal solid waste stream that has been processed
to remove the recyclable material before combustion. The product may not contain
more than 6% by weight of plastic, metal, glass or food waste. In addition, the
production of material-separated, refuse-derived fuel may not exceed 40% by
weight of the total municipal solid waste stream from which it was derived.

19-B. Primary sand and gravel recharge area. “Primary sand and gravel
recharge area” has the same meaning as in section 562-A, subsection 16-B.

19-C. Repealed. Laws 2011, c. 655, § GG-8, eff July 1,2012.

20. Recyclable. “Recyclable” means possessing physical and economic
characteristics that allow a material to be recycled.

21. Recycle. “Recycle” means to recover, separate, collect and reprocess waste
materials for sale or reuse other than use as a fuel for the generation of heat, steam
or electricity.

22. Recycling. “Recycling” means the collection, separation, recovery and sale or
reuse of materials that would otherwise be disposed of or processed as waste or the

Page 16 of4S

As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

mechanized separation and treatment of waste, other than through combustion, and
the creation and recovery of reusable materials other than as a the! for the
generation of electricity.

23. Refuse-derived fuel. “Reffise-derived fuel” means municipal solid waste
which has been processed prior to combustion to increase the heat input value of
the waste.

24. Regional association. “Regional association” means 2 or more municipalities
that have formed a relationship to manage the solid waste generated within the
participating municipalities and for which those municipalities are responsible. The
relationship must be formed by one or more of the following methods:

A. Creation of a refuse disposal district under chapter 1 7;

B. Creation of a nonprofit corporation that consists exclusively of municipalities
and is organized under Title 13, chapter 81 or Title 13-B, for the purpose, among
other permissible purposes, of owning, constructing or operating a solid waste
disposal facility, including a public waste disposal corporation under section 1304-

Q B, or whose members contract for the disposal of solid waste with a solid waste
disposal facility, including, but not limited to, a qualifying facility as defined in
Title 35-A, section 3303;

C. Creation ofajoint exercise of powers agreement under Title 30-A, chapter
115;1or

D. Contractual commitment.

For the purposes of this chapter, a regional association and the entities described in
paragraphs B and C may include counties and quasi-municipal corporations as
members provided the counties or quasi-municipal corporations, when acting by
themselves within their own jurisdictions, are capable of exercising all of the
powers of the regional association.

25. Residue. “Residue” means waste remaining after the handling, processing,
incineration or recycling of solid waste including, without limitation, front end
waste and ash from incineration facilities.

Page 17 of 48
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance ofthe Town of Mount Desert

25-A. Responsible party. For the purposes of subchapter II-A only, “responsible
party” means any or all of the following persons:

A. The owner or operator of an uncontrolled tire stockpile; and

B. Any person who owned or operated an uncontrolled tire stockpile from the time
any tire arrived at that stockpile.

26. Resource recovery. For the purposes of section 1304-B only, “resource
recovery” means the recovery of materials or substances that still have useful
physical or chemical properties after serving a specific purpose and can be reused
or recycled for the same or other purposes.

27. Septage. “Septage” means waste, refuse, effluent, sludge and any other
materials from septic tanks, cesspools or any other similar facilities.

27-A. Significant ground water aquifer. “Significant ground water aquifer” has
the same meaning as in section 562-A, subsection 19-A.

28. Site. “Site” means the same or geographically contiguous property which may
be divided by a public or private right-of-way, provided that the entrance and exit
between the properties is at a crossroads intersection and access is by crossing as
opposed to going along the right-of-way. Noncontiguous properties owned by the
same person but connected by a right-of-way which he controls and to which the
public does not have access is also considered site property.

28-A. Sludge. “Sludge” means nonhazardous solid, semisolid or liquid waste
generated from a municipal, commercial or industrial wastewater treatment plant,
water supply treatment plant or wet process air pollution control facility or any
other waste having similar characteristics and effect. The term does not include
industrial discharges that are point sources subject to permits under the federal
Clean Water Act, 33 United States Code, Section 1342 (1999).

29. Solid waste. “Solid waste” means useless, unwanted or discarded solid
material with insufficient liquid content to be free-flowing, including, but not
limited to, rubbish, garbage, refuse-derived fuel, scrap materials, junk, refuse, inert
fill material and landscape refuse, but does not include hazardous waste,
biomedical waste, septage or agricultural wastes. The fact that a solid waste or

0
Page 18 of 48

As amended May 8, 2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

constituent of the waste may have value or other use or may be sold or exchanged
does not exclude it from this definition.

30. Solid waste disposal facility. “Solid waste disposal facility” means a solid
waste facility for the incineration or landfilling of solid waste or refuse-derived
fuel. Facilities that burn material-separated, refuse-derived fuel, either alone or in
combination with fuels other than municipal solid waste or refuse-derived fuels,
are not solid waste disposal facilities.

31. Solid waste facility. “Solid waste facility” means a waste facility used for the
handling of solid waste, except that the following facilities are not included:

A. A waste facility that employs controlled combustion to dispose of waste
generated exclusively by an institutional, commercial or industrial establishment
that owns the facility;

B. Lime kilns; wood chip, bark and hogged fuel boilers; kraft recovery boilers and
sulfite process recovery boilers, which combust solid waste generated exclusively
at the facility; and

C. An industrial boiler that combusts mixed paper, corrugated cardboard or office
paper to generate heat, steam or electricity if:

(1) The mixed paper, corrugated cardboard or office paper would otherwise be
placed in a landfill;

(2) The market value of the mixed paper, corrugated cardboard or office paper as a
raw material for the manufacture of a product with recycled content is less than its
value to the facility owner as a fuel supplement;

(3) The mixed paper, corrugated cardboard or office paper is combusted as a
substitute for, or supplement to, fossil or biomass fuels that constitute the primary
fuels combusted in the industrial boiler; and

(4) The boiler combusts no other forms of solid waste except as provided in this
subsection.

Page 19 of4S
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

32. Solid waste landfill. “Solid waste landfill” means a waste disposal facility for
the disposal of solid waste on or in land. This term does not include land spreading
sites used in programs approved by the department.

32-A. Solid waste processing facility. “Solid waste processing facility” means a
land area, structure, equipment, machine, device, system or combination thereof,
other than an incineration facility that is operated to reduce the volume or change
the chemical or physical characteristics of solid waste. “Solid waste processing
facility” includes but is not limited to a facility that employs shredding, baling,
mechanical and magnetic separation or composting or other stabilization technique
to reduce or otherwise change the nature of solid waste.

33. Source separation. “Source separation” means the preparation of materials for
recycling by separation from wastes at the point of generation.

34. Special waste. “Special waste” means any solid waste generated by sources
other than domestic and typical commercial establishments that exists in such an
unusual quantity or in such a chemical or physical state, or any combination
thereof, that may disrupt or impair effective waste management or threaten the
public health, human safety or the environment and requires special handling,
transportation and disposal procedures. Special waste includes, but is not limited
to:

A. Oil, coal, wood and multithel boiler and incinerator ash;

B. Industrial and industrial process waste;

C. Waste water treatment plant sludge, paper mill sludge and other sludge waste;

U. Debris and residuals from nonhazardous chemical spills and cleanup of those
spills;

E. Contaminated soils and dredge spoils;

F. Asbestos and asbestos-containing waste;

G. Sand blast grit and nonliquid paint waste;

H. Deleted. Laws 1989, c. 869, § A-5.

Page 20 of 48

As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

I. High and low pH waste;

J. Spent filter media and residue; and

K. Other waste designated by the board, by rule.

35. State waste management and recycling plan. “State waste management and
recycling plan” means the plan adopted by the former Maine Waste Management
Agency pursuant to chapter 24, subchapter 2A subsequent plans developed by the
former State Planning Office pursuant to Title 5, former section 3305, subsection
1, paragraph N and the department pursuant to section 2122 and may also be
referred to as “state plan.”

36. Storage. “Storage” means the containment of hazardous wastes, either on a
temporary basis or for a period of years, in such a manner as not to constitute
disposal of the hazardous wastes.

37. Substantially expand. “Substantially expand” means the expansion of an
existing licensed hazardous waste facility by more than 25%, as measured by
volume of waste or affected land area, from the date of its initial licensed
operation.

38. Transport. “Transport” means the movement of hazardous or solid waste,
waste oil, sludge or septage from the point of generation to any intermediate points
and finally to the point of ultimate disposition. Movement of hazardous waste on
the site where it is generated or on the site of a licensed waste facility for
hazardous waste is not “transport.” Movement of waste oil on the site where it is
generated or on the site of a licensed waste oil dealer’s facility is not “transport.”

39. Treatment. “Treatment” means any process, including but not limited to
incineration, designed to change the character or composition of any hazardous
waste, waste oil or biomedical waste so as to render the waste less hazardous or
infectious.

39-A. Uncontrolled tire stockpile. “Uncontrolled tire stockpile” means an area or
location, whether or not licensed, where used motor vehicle tires are or were
handled, stored or disposed of in such a manner as to present a significant fire
hazard or a threat to public health orto the quality of a classified body of surface

Page 21 o148
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

water or a significant sand and gravel aquifer or fractured bedrock aquifer as
defined in section 1310-N, subsection 2-A.

39-B. Used oil. “Used oil” means waste oil, as defined in subsection 42.

39-C. Used oil collection center. “Used oil collection center” means a site or
facility where used oil is accepted from the public and collected or stored in an
aboveground tank for recycling.

40. Waste facility. “Waste facility” means any land area, structure, location,
equipment or combination of them, including dumps, used for handling hazardous,
biomedical or solid waste, waste oil, sludge or septage. A land area or structure
does not become a waste facility solely because:

A. It is used by its owner for disposing of septage from the owner’s residence;

B. It is used to store for 90 days or less hazardous wastes generated on the same
premises;

C. It is used by individual homeowners or lessees to open burn leaves, brush,
deadwood and tree cuttings accrued from normal maintenance of their residential
property, when such burning is permitted under section 599, subsection 3; or

D. It is used by its residential owner to burn highly combustible domestic,
household trash such as paper, cardboard cartons or wood boxes, when such
burning is permitted under section 599, subsection 3.

41. Waste management. “Waste management” means purposeflil, systematic and
unified control of the handling and transportation of hazardous, biomedical or solid
waste, waste oil, sludge or septage.

42. Waste oil. “Waste oil” means a petroleum-based or synthetic oil that, through
use or handling, has become unsuitable for its original purpose due to the presence
of impurities or loss of original properties. Waste oil that exhibits hazardous wastes
characteristics, or has been contaminated with hazardous wastes in excess of
quantities normally occurring in waste oil, is subject to the provisions of this
chapter dealing with hazardous wastes.

0
Page 22 of 4K

As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

43. Waste oil dealer. “Waste oil dealer” means any person in the business of
transporting or handling more than 1,000 gallons of waste oil for the purpose of
resale in a calendar month. A person who collects or stores waste oil on the site of
generation, whether or not for the purpose of resale, is not a waste oil dealer.

44. Waste reduction. “Waste reduction” means an action that reduces waste at the
point of generation and may also be referred to as “source reduction.”

45. Waste resulting from agricultural activities. “Waste resulting from
agricultural activities” means wastes which result from agricultural activities
defined in section 361-A, subsection 1-B, which are returned to the soils as
fertilizers and includes waste pesticides when generated by a fanner in his own
use, provided that he triple rinses each emptied pesticide container in accordance
with departmental rules and disposes of the pesticide residues in a manner
consistent with the disposal instructions on the pesticide label.

46. Wood wastes. “Wood wastes” means brush, stumps, lumber, bark, woodchips,
shavings, slabs, edgings, slash and sawdust, which are not mixed with other waste.

47. Yard wastes. “Yard wastes” means grass clippings, leaves and other vegetal
matter other than wood wastes and land clearing debris.

Credits
1989, c. 585, § E, 4; 1989, c. 794, § 2; 1989, c. 869, § A-3 to A-5; 1989, c. 878, §
H-7, eli April 20, 1990; 1989, c. 890, § B-225; 1989, c. 929, § 5; 1991, c. 72, §
1,2, eff. May 6, 1991; 1991, c. 220, § 6-10, eli May 31, 1991; 1991, c. 321;
1991, c. 492, § 1,2; 1991, c. 517, § A-I, eff. June 28, 1991; 1991, c. 520, § 4;
1993, c. 355, § 46, 47, eli June 16, 1993; 1993, c. 378, § 4, eli June 16, 1993;
1993, c. 383, § 33, 34; 1993, c. 424, § 1,2; R.R.1993, c. 1. § 131; 1993, c. 732,
§ A-7, A-8, eff. April 20, 1994; 1995, c. 462, § A-76, A-90, eli July 3, 1995;
1995, c. 465, § A-12, eli July 3, 1995; 1995, c. 573, § 1,2; 1995, c. 625, § C-5,
eli April 8, 1996; 1995, c. 656, § A-19 to A-21; R.R.1995, c. 2, § 111; 1997, c.
393, § B-9, eff June 5, 1997; 1997, c. 602, § 1, eff. March 17, 1998; 1999, c. 334,
§ 10; 1999, c. 393, § 1; 1999, c. 525, § 1, 2, eff June 17, 1999; 2001, c. 247, § I;
2005, c. 612, § 1,2; 2007, c. 338, § 1,2; 2007, c. 406, § 1; 2007, c. 414, § 1;
2007, c. 583, § 1; 2011, c. 206, § 20, eff June 3,2011; 2011, c. 655, § GG-7 to
GG-9, eff. July 1,2012.

Page 23 0f48
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

Notes of Decisions (4) 0

Footnotes

38 M.R.S.A. § 2101 et seq.

38 M.R.S.A. § 1701 et seq.

13 M.R.S.A. § 901 et seq.

30-A M.R.S.A. § 2201 et seq.

38 M.R.S.A. § 1316 et seq.

38 M.R.S.A. § 2121 et seq.

38 M. R. S. A. § 1303-C, ME ST T. 38 § 1303-C
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second (3
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

0
Page 24 of 3g

As amended May 8, 2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

Appendix B

17 M.R.S.A. Ch. 80, Refs & Annos

Chapter 80, Litter Control, was enacted by Laws 1971, c. 405, § 1.

17 M.R.S.A. § 2261

2261. Title

Currentness

This chapter shall be known and may be cited as the “Maine Litter Control Act.”

C i-edits
1971, c. 405, § 1.

Notes of Decisions (2)

l7M.R.S.A.2261,MESTT.l72261
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2262

§ 2262. Purposes

Currentness

Puge 25 of 48
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

It is declared and recognized that the proliferation and accumulation of litter
discarded throughout this State endangers the free utilization and enjoyment of a
clean and healthful environment by the people and constitutes a public health
hazard; and recognizing that there has been a collective failure on the part of
government, business and the public to accept, plan for and accomplish effective
litter control, there is enacted the “Maine Litter Control Act.”

Credits
l971,c.405, 1.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2262, ME SIT. 17 § 2262
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2263 0
§ 2263. Definitions

Currentness

As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise indicates, the following terms
have the following meanings.

1. “Disposable package” or “container” means any and all packages or containers
used for the purpose of containing a product sold or held out for sale for human or
animal consumption.

1-A. Repealed. Laws 1989, c. 878, § B-12, eff April 20, 1990.

1-B. Department. “Department” means the Department of Agriculture,
Conservation and Forestry.

0
Page 26 of 18

As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

1-C. Commercial purpose. “Commercial purpose” means for the purpose of
economic gain.

1-D. Abandoned ice-fishing shack. “Abandoned ice-fishing shack” means a
temporary stmcture used for ice fishing and left on property not owned by the
person owning the structure without permission of the landowner for more than 15
days after the inland waters on which the shack or structure was located are closed
to ice fishing.

2. Litter. “Litter” means all waste materials including, but not limited to, bottles,
glass, crockery, cans, scrap metal, junk, paper, garbage, rubbish, offal, except
waste parts or remains resulting from the normal field dressing of lawfully
harvested wild game or the lawful use of waste parts or remains of wild game as
bait, feathers, except feathers from live birds while being transported, abandoned
ice-fishing shacks, old automobiles or parts of automobiles or similar refuse, or
disposable packages or containers thrown or deposited as prohibited in this
chapter, but not including the wastes of the primary processes of mining, logging,
sawmilling, farming or manufacturing.

3. “Litter receptacle” means a container of suitable size which is clearly identified
with a sign, symbol or other device as a place where the public may dispose of
litter.

4. Vehicle. “Vehicle” means every vehic’e which is self-propelled and designed for
carrying persons or property or which is used for the transportation of persons,
except motorcycles, farm implements and snowmobiles.

4-A. Commercial vehicle. “Commercial vehicle” means a vehicle owned or used
by a business, corporation, association, partnership, or the sole proprietorship of
any entity conducting business for a commercial purpose.

5. “Person” means any person, firm, partnership, association, corporation or
organization of any kind whatsoever.

6. “Public place” means any area that is used or held out for use by the public

Page 27 o148
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

whether or not owned or operated by public or private interests. C)
7. “Trailer” means any vehicle without motive power, designed for carrying
persons or property and for being drawn by a motor vehicle.

8. “Watercraft” means any type of vessel, boat or crafi used or capable of being
used as a means of transportation on water.

Credits
1971, c. 405, § 1; 1973, c. 194; 1973, c. 235, § 1; 1975. c. 739, § 3 to 6; 1989, c.
820, § 2, 3, eff April 10, 1990; 1989, c. 878, § 3-12, eff. April 20, 1990; 1993, c.
144, § 3,4; 1995, c. 667, § A-37, eff. April 11, 1996; 2001, c. 667, § A-33, eff.
April Il, 2002.

Notes of Decisions (I)

17M.R. S.A.2263,MESTT. 17 § 2263 0
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2263-A

§ 2263-A. Littering

Currentness

1. Prohibited acts. A person may not throw, drop, deposit, discard, dump or
otherwise dispose of litter in any manner or amount:

A. In or on public highway, road, street, alley, public right-of-way or other

Puge 28 o148

As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

public lands, except in a container or receptacle or on property that is
designated for disposal of garbage and refuse by the State or its agencies or
political subdivisions;

B. In freshwater lake, river, stream, tidal or coastal water or on ice over the
water. When any litter is thrown or discarded from a watercraft, a person is in
violation of this section if that person is:

(1) The operator of the watercraft, unless it is a watercraft being used for the
carnage of passengers for hire; or

(2) The person actually disposing of the litter.

This paragraph does not prohibit persons who fish, lobster or othenvise harvest
from the water from returning to the water harvested products, bait and similar
materials that naturally originate in the water;

C. In or on any private property, unless:

(1) Prior consent of the owner has been given; and

(2) The litter is not a public nuisance or in violation of any state law or local
rule;

D. From a trai’er or vehicle that is constructed, loaded or uncovered in such a
way that the load may drop, sift, leak or otherwise escape. This paragraph
applies to vehicles or trailers carrying trash, rubbish or other materials that may
be construed as “litter”; or

E. From a vehicle. When any litter is thrown or discarded from a vehicle, a
person is in violation of this section if that person is:

(1) The operator of the vehicle, unless it is a vehicle being used for the

Page 29 of4S
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

carriage of passengers for hire; or C)
(2) The person actually disposing of the litter.

In addition to any penalty under section 2264-A, violation of this subsection is a
traffic infraction under Title 29-A, chapter 23, subchapter VI.’

A record of a violation of this subsection must be forwarded to the Secretary of
State who, in accordance with Title 29-A, section 2607, shall add the violation to
the department’s point system. The violation is counted in determining an
individual’s total points under the point system of the Department of the Secretary
of State, Bureau of Motor Vehicles.

2. Commercial purpose presumed. For the purposes of this chapter, if a person
dumps litter from a commercial vehicle, that person is presumed to have dumped
the litter for a commercial purpose.

a
Credits
2003, c. 452, § 1-32, eff. July 1, 2004.

Footnotes

29-A M.R.S.A. § 2601, et seq.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2263-A, ME ST T. 17 § 2263-A
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2264

§ 2264. Repealed. Laws 2003, c. 452, § 1-33, eff. July 1, 2004

Page 30 of 48

As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

Currentness

17 M. R. S. A. § 2264, ME ST T. 17 § 2264
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2264-A

§ 2264-A. Penalties

Effective: September 28, 2011

Currentness

Unless otherwise indicated, a person who disposes of litter in violation of this
chapter commits a civil violation for which the following fines apply.

1. Disposal of 15 pounds or less or 27 cubic feet or less of litter. A person who
disposes of 15 pounds or less or 27 cubic feet or less of litter commits a civil
violation for which a fine of not less than $100 and not more than $500 may be
adjudged.

1-A. Disposal of 15 pounds or less or 27 cubic feet or less of litter; subsequent
offenses. A person who violates subsection 1 after having previously violated
subsection I commits a civil violation for which a fine of not less than $500 and
not more than $1,000 may be adjudged.

2. Disposal of more than 15 pounds or more than 27 cubic feet of litter. A
person who disposes of more than 15 pounds or more than 27 cubic feet of litter
commits a civil violation for which the court:

A. Shall impose a fine of not less than $500;

Page3l of48
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

B. Shall require the person to pay a party sustaining damages arising out of a
violation of this subsection treble the actual damages or $200, whichever
amount is greater, plus the injured party’s court costs and attorney’s fees if
action results in a civil proceeding;

C. Shall require the person to perform not less than 100 hours of public service
relating to the removal of litter or to the restoration of an area polluted by litter
disposed of in violation of this section. The court shall consult with the
Commissioner of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife to determine if there is an
opportunity for public service that may improve landowner and sportsman
relations;

D. When practical, shall require the person to remove the litter dumped in
violation of this subsection;

E. May suspend the person’s motor vehicle operator’s license for a period of
not less than 30 days or more than one year, except as provided in paragraph F.
Notwithstanding paragraph F, the court shall suspend all licenses and permits
issued under Title 12, Part 13, subpart 4 and recreational vehicle registrations
and certificates issued to that person under Title 12, Part 13, subpart 6 for a
period of not less than 30 days or more than one year; and

F. May suspend any license, permit, registration or certification issued by a
state agency or municipality to the person. A professional license, pennit,
registration or certification required for that person to operate or establish a
business or necessary for the person’s primary source of employment may not
be suspended unless the items dumped were related to the person’s profession
or occupation.

2-A. Disposal of more than 15 pounds or more than 27 cubic feet of litter;
subsequent offenses. A person who violates subsection 2 after having previously
violated subsection 2 commits a civil violation for which the penalty provisions
under subsection 2 apply except for subsection 2, paragraph A, and a fine of not
less than $2,000 must be adjudged.

0
Pgc 32 of 48

As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

3. Disposal of more than 500 pounds or more than 100 cubic feet of litter for a
commercial purpose. A person who disposes of more than 500 pounds or more
than 100 cubic feet of litter for a commercial purpose is subject to the penalties
under Title 38, section 349.

Credits
1989, c. 820, § 5, eli April 10, 1990; 1993, c. 140, § 1; 2003, c. 452, § 1-34 to I-
37, eli July 1, 2004; 2011, c. 208, § 4.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2264-A, ME ST T. 17 § 2264-A
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2264-B

§ 2264-B. Penalty options

Effective: September 28, 2011

Currentness

In addition to the fines imposed in section 2264-A, subsections 1 and 1-A, the
court may order a person adjudicated to have violated section 2264-A, subsection I
or subsection 1-A to:

1. Removal of litter. Remove the litter dumped in violation of section 2264-A;

2. Cost of cleanup. Pay the owner of the property treble the owner’s cost of clean
up or removal of the litter;

Page 33 of 48

As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

3. Damages. Pay the person sustaining damages arising out of a violation of this
subsection treble the actual damages or $200, whichever amount is greater, plus
the injured party’s court costs and attorney’s fees if action results in a civil
proceeding;

4. Public service. Perform public service relating to the removal of litter, or to the
restoration of an area polluted by litter, dumped in violation of section 2264-A; and

5. License suspension. Surrender the person’s motor vehicle operator’s license, a
license or permit issued to that person under Title 12, Part 13, subpart 4 or a
recreational vehicle registration or certificate issued to that person under Title 12,
Part 13, subpart 6 for a period not exceeding 30 days. The court may suspend an
operator’s license for any violation of section 2264-A, subsection 1 or subsection
I-A that involves the use of a motor vehicle.

Credits
1989, c. 820, § 5, eff April 10, 1990; 2003, c. 452, § 1-38, 1-39, eff. July 1, 2004;
2007, c. 651, § 21, eff. April 18, 2008; 2009, c. 424, § 1; 2011, c. 208, § 5,6.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2264-B, ME STT. 17 § 2264-B
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2264-C

§ 2264-C. Forfeiture

Currentness

All conveyances, including aircraft, watercrafi, vehicles, vessels, containers or
cranes that are used, or attempted to be used, to dump more than 1,000 pounds or
more than 100 cubic feet of litter in violation of section 2264-A are subject to

Page 34 of 48
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

forfeiture as provided in Title 15, chapter 517.’

Credits
1989, c. 820, § 5, eff April 10, 1990; 2003, c. 452, § 1-40, eff. July 1, 2004.

Footnotes

15 M.R.S.A. § 5821 et seq.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2264-C, ME ST T. 17 § 2264-C
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2265

§ 2265. Repealed. Laws 1989, c. 820, § 6, eff. April 10, 1990

Cu n-en tness

17 M. R. S. A. § 2265, ME ST T. 17 § 2265
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2266

§ 2266. Repealed. Laws 1989, c. 820, § 7, eff. April 10, 1990

Page 35 of48
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

Currentness

17 M. R. S. A. § 2266, ME ST T. 17 § 2266
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2267

§ 2267. Repealed. Laws 1989, c. 820, § 8, eff. April 10, 1990

Currentness

17 M. R. S. A. § 2267, ME STT. 17 § 2267
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2267-A

§ 2267-A. Submerged motor vehicles, snowmobile and watercrafi in waters of
the State

Effective: September 12, 2009

Currentness

The following provisions apply when a motor vehicle is submerged or partially
submerged in waters of the State or when a snowmobile or watercraft is submerged
in the inland waters of the State.

0
Page 36 o148

As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

1. Definition. When used in this section the term “motor vehicle” means any self-
propelled vehicle designed to carry persons or property or used to transport
persons, except snowmobiles and watercraft. The term “watercraft,” when used in
this section, means any type of craft placed on the inland waters of the State,
whether used as a means of transportation or for other purposes.

2. Notice of submerged vehicle, snowmobile or watercraft to be given to
department. The owner of any motor vehicle that becomes submerged or partially
submerged in the waters of the State shall immediately, by the fastest means of
communication, notify the Commissioner of Iffland Fisheries and Wildlife of the
event and the location of the vehicle. The owner of a snowmobile or watercraft that
becomes submerged in the inland waters of the State for more than 24 hours shall
notii’ the commissioner as provided in this subsection.

The commissioner shall, upon receiving notice of a submerged or partially
submerged vehicle in the waters of the State or a submerged snowmobile or
watercraft in the inland waters of the State, notify the Chief of the State Police, the
Commissioner of Environmental Protection and any municipality or public utility
that regulates the uses of the waters as a source of public water supply pursuant to
Title 22, sections 2641 to 2648.

3. Owner legally liable to remove vehicle, snowmobile or watercraft. The
owner of the vehicle is legally liable to remove any motor vehicle submerged or
partially submerged in the waters of the State and pay any damages resulting from
the submersion or removal. The vehicle must be removed within 30 days of the
submersion or partial submersion or within 30 days of “ice out” in the body of
water unless the commissioner determines that the vehicle creates a health or
safety hazard. If the commissioner determines that the vehicle creates a health or
safety hazard the commissioner shall order the owner to remove the vehicle
immediately. If the owner fails to remove the vehicle upon order of the
commissioner, the commissioner shall, in writing, request the court to direct the
owner to remove the vehicle immediately. The owner of a snowmobile or
watercraft that is submerged in the inland waters of this State for longer than 24
hours shall remove the snowmobile or watercraft in accordance with this
subsection.

4. Financial responsibility. A conviction or adjudication of any person for a

Page 37 or4S
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town olMount Desert

violation of this section constitutes a violation of state law relative to motor
vehicles to which Title 29-A, chapter 13’ applies.

5. Penalties. A violation of this section is a civil violation for which a forfeiture of
$200 may be adjudged. In addition to a forfeiture, or instead of a forfeiture, the
judge may direct the person convicted to remove the vehicle, snowmobile or
watercraft.

6. Rules. The commissioner may, in accordance with the provisions of Title 5,
chapter 375,2 adopt any rules necessary to carry out the purposes of this chapter.

Credits
1981, c. 578; 1995, c. 65, § A-52, eff May 11, 1995; 2001, c. 536, § 3, eff March
18, 2002; 2009, c. 340, § 26.

Footnotes

29-A M.R.S.A. § 1551 et seq.

I

5 M.R.S.A. § 8001 et seq.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2267-A, ME ST T. 17 § 2267-A
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2268

§ 2268. Enforcement

Page 3K o148

As amended May 8, 2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

Currentness

Every law enforcement officer in the State, including but not limited to State
Police, county sheriffs and their deputies, municipal police, wardens of the
Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife, wardens of the Department of Marine
Resources, rangers of the Division of Forestry and liquor inspectors of the
Department of Public Safety shall have authority to enforce this chapter.

Political subdivisions of the State may offer rewards for information which lead to
the conviction of violators of this chapter.

C red its
1971, c. 405, § 1; 1973. c. 460, § 18; 1973, c. 513, § 22; 1973, c. 537, § 20; 1975,
c. 739, § 13.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2268, ME ST T. 17 § 2268
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2269

§ 2269. Repealed. Laws 2003, c. 452, § 1-41, eff. July 1,2004

Currentness

17 M. R. S. A. § 2269, ME ST T. 17 § 2269
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

Page 39 of 48
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2269-A

§ 2269-A. Litter receptacles; selection and placement

Currentness

1. Procure, place and maintain litter receptacles. A person who owns or
operates an establishment or public place in which litter receptacles are required by
this chapter shall procure, place and maintain receptacles at the person’s own
expense in accordance with this chapter.

2. Required placement. Litter receptacles as defined in section 2263 must be
placed at all public places or establishments that serve the public, including, but
not limited to: campgrounds, trailer parks, drive-in restaurants, gasoline service
stations, parking lots, shopping centers, grocery store parking lots, parking lots of (J
major industrial firms, marinas, boat launching areas, boat moorage and theling
stations, beaches and bathing areas, school grounds and business district sidewalks.
The number of receptacles required is as follows:

A. For a campground or trailer park for transient habitation, one receptacle at
each public rest room facility;

B. For a drive-in restaurant, parking lot, shopping center, grocery store parking
lot or parking lot of a major industrial firm, one receptacle, plus one additional
receptacle for each 200 parking spaces in excess of 50 spaces;

C. For a gasoline service station, one receptacle per gasoline pump island;

U. For a marina, boat launching area or boat moorage and theling station, one
receptacle at each location;

0
Pace 40 of 48

As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

E. For a beach or bathing area, one receptacle at each public rest room facility;

F. For school grounds, one receptacle at each playground area and one at each
school bus loading zone; and

G. For business district sidewalks, one receptacle per 1,000 feet of sidewalk
curbing.

3. Exception; remote forest campsites. Remote forest campsites operated by the
Department of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry pursuant to Title 12, chapter
220, subchapter 2, are not considered public places or establishments that serve the
public if they are designated as “carry-in and carry-out” sites from which users are
expected to remove litter and other material upon their departure.

4. Penalties. A person who operates a business of a type described in this section
commits a civil violation for which a fine of $10 for each violation may be
adjudged if that person:

A. Fails to place the litter receptacles on the premises in the numbers required;
or

B. Fails to comply within 10 days of being notified by registered letter by the
Department of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry that that person is in
violation.

Each day a violation continues is a separate offense.

Credits
2003, c. 452, § 1-42, eff. July 1, 2004.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2269-A, ME ST T. 17 § 2269-A
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

Page4I of4R
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

0

0

Page 32 of 48

As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2270

§ 2270. Responsibility for maintenance of litter receptacles

Currentness

Responsibility for the removal of litter from litter receptacles placed at parks,
beaches, campgrounds, trailer parks and other publicly owned public places shall
remain upon those state and local agencies performing litter removal, and removal
of litter from litter receptacles placed upon privately owned public places shall
remain the responsibility of the owner of said premises.

C red its
1971, c. 405, § 1.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2270, ME ST T. 17 § 2270
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2271

§ 2271. Local regulations

Currentness

Municipalities of this State may adopt more stringent ordinances, laws or

Page 33 of 48
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

regulations dealing with subject matter of this chapter. Any less restrictive
ordinances, laws or regulations now in effect dealing with the subject matter of this
chapter and the minimum standards which it establishes are declared invalid and of
no force and superseded by this chapter on September 23, 1971.

Credits
1971, c. 405, § 1; 1971, c. 622, § 61, eff March 15, 1972.

l7M.R.S.A.227l,MESTT.l7227l
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

l7M.R.S.A.2272

§ 2272. Promiscuous dumping prohibited

Currentness

No person shall deposit household garbage, leaves, clippings, pmnings or
gardening refuse in any litter receptacle.

Persons violating the provisions of this section are liable for the same penalties as
provided for violation of section 2264-A.

Credits
1975, c. 739, § 15; 2003, c. 452, § 1-43, eff July 1, 2004.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2272, ME ST T. 17 § 2272

Page 44 o148

As amended May 8, 2018 AimuaL Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2273

§ 2273. Penalty warning signs

Currentness

Within the limits of its budget, the Department of Transportation may erect one
sign within each 100 miles of state highway mileage in each county, warning
motorists of the penalties for littering or asking for their cooperation in keeping the
highways clean. One such sign shall be located within a reasonable distance of all
state highway entry points into this State from other states or countries. If the state
highway leads to or from an international border crossing point, the sign shall be
bilingual.

C red its
1975,c.739, 15.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2273, ME ST T. 17 § 2273
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

Page 45 of 48
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2274

§ 2274. Fines, distribution

Currentness

All fines levied and collected for violations of this chapter shall be distributed as
follows:

If the fine resulted from a complaint by a law officer of a state agency which
receives a major share of its financial support from dedicated revenue, the fine, less
court costs, shall be reimbursed to that agency; or

If the fine resulted from a complaint of a law officer of a state agency supported
primarily by a General Fund appropriation, the fine, less court costs, shall be
reimbursed to the department to be used in an anti-litter educational program and
shall be in addition to other General Fund money appropriated for that purpose.

(redi ts
1975, c. 739, § 15; 1989, c. 878, § B-13, eff. April 20, 1990.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2274, ME ST T. 17 § 2274
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2275

§ 2275. Driver license and registration procedures

0
Page 46 of 4%

As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

Currentness

The Bureau of Motor Vehicles shall include a summary of this chapter with each
reregistration and new vehicle operator license issued.

The Bureau of Motor Vehicles shall include a summary of this chapter in the next
revision and printing of the driver license information materials.

Credits
1975, c. 739, § 15; 1989. c. 878, § B-14, eff. April 20, 1990; 1991, c. 837, § A-45,
eff April 8, 1992.

17 M. R. S. A. § 2275, ME ST T. 17 § 2275
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
Title 17. Crimes (Refs & Annos)

Chapter 80. Litter Control (Refs & Annos)

17 M.R.S.A. § 2276

§ 2276. Local regulations

Currentness

Municipalities of this State may adopt more stringent ordinances, laws or
regulations dealing with the subject matter of this chapter. Any less restrictive
ordinances, laws or regulations now in effect dealing with the subject matter of this
chapter and the minimum standards which it establishes are declared invalid and of
no force and superseded by this chapter on its effective date.

Credits
1975, c. 739, § 15.

Page 47 of3H
As amended May 8,2018 Annual Town Meeting



Solid Waste Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert

C
17 M. R. S. A. § 2276, ME ST T. 17 § 2276
Current with emergency legislation through Chapter 453 of the 2013 Second
Regular Session of the 126th Legislature

C

C
Page 48 o148

As amended May 8,2018 Atmual Town Meeting



MUNICIPAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION OF
OFFICIAL TEXT OF A PROPOSED ORDINANCE

[30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2))

To the Town Clerk of the Town of Mount Desert:

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this
certificate is a true copy of the official text of amendments to an ordinance
entitled Public Road Acceptance Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert,
which is to be presented to the voters for their consideration on May 8, 2018.

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete
text of the ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for
distribution to the voters, and you will ensure that copies are available at the town
meeting/polling places on the day of the vote.

Giver under our hands at Mount Desert the second day of April 2018, a majority
of the Selectmen of the Town of Mount Desert:

John B. Macauley, Chairman

Matthew J. Hart, Vice Chairman

Wendy H. Littlefield, Secretary

Martha T. Dudman

James F. Mooers



Public Road Acceptance Ordinance
As adopted May 5, 2009 Annual Town Meeting
Amended May 8, 2018 Annual Town Meeting

The Citizens of the Town of Mount Desert do ordain a Public Road Acceptance
Ordinance be adopted as follows:

WHEREAS, the Town has identified several private roads where maintenance including:
plowing. sanding, grading and bituminous repairs have been requested of the Town by
the private owners, and

WHEREAS, the Board of Selectmen have requested that private/public roads be
identified and listed along with an assessment of their condition, size, use, benefit to the
public and future need, and

WHEREAS, ills the intention of this ordinance to identify those private roads which by
the nature of their condition, use and location would be more appropriate with a “Public”
designation.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that to become “public”, a road or road section
must meet the following conditions:

1. The road must meet the “Street Design and Construction Standards” of the
Mount Desert Subdivision Ordinance, which standards are currently listed in
Section 5.14. c:

2. The current private owner(s) are willing to sign over all title, rights and
responsibilities without reservations to the 50’ wide, right of way. Legal costs of
the deed to the own shall be borne by the private owner(s).

1. The current private owner(s) shall ask the Public Works Director to certify in
writing to the Board of Selectmen that the above-stated conditions have been
met.

2. The current private owner(s) shall provide to the Town Manager evidence of
good and marketable title in and to the proposed road in the form of an attorney’s
title opinion letter or a commitment for title insurance.

3. The Town Manager shall request from an attorney a letter certifying that said
attorney’s title opinion letter or said title insurance commitment sufficiently
protects the Town’s interests.

4. Upon receipt of the afore-mentioned two letters, the Selectmen will recommend
the request for “Public Designation as an article in the next succeeding regular
Town Warrant. Following Town Meeting approval, the Town of Mount Desert will
accept title and all future rights and responsibilities, including maintenance, repair
and replacement as necessary and the road shall be deemed “Public”. The
Selectmen may, at their option, agree to placing potential acceptance of a road
on the warrant, contingent on its reconditioning by the private owner(s) after
approval by Town Meeting and before becoming “Public”. (3



5. When a road is accepted by the Town Meeting as a ‘public” road, and after the
deed for the land beneath said road has been duly recorded at the Hancock
County Registry of Deeds, the road shall be placed on any “Road Inventory”
regularly kept by the Town.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED should the current owner(s) fail, or
be unwilling, to meet the above-stated conditions, then:

1. The road shall remain private;

2. All repairs and maintenance of the road and its appurtenances shall be the
responsibility of the owner(s) at the sole cost of the owner(s);

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any
reason held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of
the remaining portions of this Ordinance.

The effective date of this Ordinance is: May 5, 2009.

This Ordinance shall expire and be of no force or effect on May 7, 2024.



C

0

C



MUNICIPAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION OF
OFFICIAL TEXT OF A PROPOSED ORDINANCE

[30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2)]

To the Town Clerk of the Town of Mount Desert:

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this
certificate is a true copy of the official text of amendments to an ordinance
entitled Moratorium Ordinance on Retail Marijuana Establishments, Retail
Marijuana Stores, and Retail Marijuana Social Clubs of the Town of Mount
Desert, which is to be presented to the voters for their consideration on May 8,
2018.

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete
text of the ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for
distribution to the voters, and you will ensure that copies are available at the town
meeting/polling places on the day of the vote.

Giver under our hands at Mount Desert the second day of April 2018, a majority
of the Selectmen of the Town of Mount Desert:

John B. Macauley, Chairman

Matthew J. Hart, Vice Chairman

Wendy H. Littlefield, Secretary

Martha T. Dudman

James F. Mooers



TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT MORATORIUM ORDINANCE ON RETAIL MARIJUANA
ESTABLISHMENTS, RETAIL MARIJUNA STORES, AND RETAIL MARIJUANA

SOCIAL CLUBS

ENACTED May 8, 2018

WHEREAS, the “Marijuana Legalization Act” has become law in Maine, codified
in the Maine Revised Statutes in Title 7, chapter 417; and

WHEREAS, the MarUuana Legalization Act (the “Act”) authorizes municipalities
to regulate the number of retail marijuana stores and the location and operation of retail
marijuana social clubs and retail marijuana establishments, including retail marijuana
stores, retail marijuana cultivation facilities, retail marijuana products manufacturing
facilities, and retail marijuana testing facilities, as those terms are defined in the Act, as
well as providing the option to prohibit the operation of retail marijuana social clubs and
retail marijuana establishments, including stores, cultivation facilities, manufacturing
facilities, and testing facilities, within their jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Act will not limit the privileges or rights afforded by the
Maine Medical Use of Marijuana Act (22 M.R.S.A. § 2421 — 2430-B) to qualifying
patients, primary caregivers, or registered dispensaries, including cultivation facilities
associated with any of those classifications; and

WHEREAS, the current ordinances of the Town of Mount Desert (the “Town”) do
not include any regulations related to retail marijuana stores, retail marijuana
establishments, or retail marijuana social clubs under the proposed new Act; and

WHEREAS, the unregulated location and operation of retail marijuana
establishments, retail marijuana stores, and retail marijuana social clubs within the Town
of Mount Desert raises legitimate and substantial questions about the impact of such
establishments, stores, and social clubs on the Town, including questions about the
compatibility of retail marijuana establishments, retail marijuana stores, and retail
marijuana social clubs with existing uses and development in residential, commercial,
and industrial zoning districts; the potential adverse health and safety effects of retail
marijuana establishments, retail marijuana stores, and retail marijuana social clubs on
the community if not properly regulated; the possibility of illicit sale and use of marijuana
and marijuana products to minors and misuse of marijuana and marijuana products by
those who would abuse the uses authorized under the Act; potential criminal activity
associated with the cultivation, manufacturing, sale, and use of marijuana and marijuana
products for non-medicinal purposes and the potential increased burden on the Town’s
police and fire departments; and the adequacy of the Town’s streets and infrastructure to
accommodate the additional traffic and/or population that may result from the presence
of retail marijuana establishments, retail marijuana stores, or retail marijuana social
clubs; and

WHEREAS, the possible effect of the location and operation of retail marijuana
establishments and/or retail marijuana stores and/or retail marijuana social clubs within
the Town has potentially serious implications for the health, safety, and welfare of the
Town and its residents; and



WHEREAS, the Town needs time to review the Act and to review its own
ordinances and regulations to determine the implications of future proposed retail
marijuana establishments and/or retail marijuana stores and/or retail marijuana social
clubs to develop reasonable ordinances and regulations governing the location and
operations of such establishments and stores and social clubs to address the concerns
cited above; and

WHEREAS, the Town’s current ordinances are insufficient to prevent serious
public harm that could be caused by the unregulated development of retail marijuana
establishments and retail marijuana stores and retail marijuana social clubs and other
uses authorized by the Act, thereby necessitating a moratorium; and

WHEREAS, the Town, under its home rule authority, its police power generally,
and under 30-A M.R.S.A., chapter 187, subchapter 3 (“land use regulation”), as
provided by the Marijuana Legalization Act, or as otherwise provided by current law,
has the authority to impose reasonable restrictions, conditions, and limitations on such
retail marijuana establishments and retail marijuana stores and retail marijuana social
clubs; and

WHEREAS, the Selectboard, the Town Staff, the Ordinance Review Committee,
and the Planning Board, with the professional advice and assistance of the Chief of the
Police Department, shall study the Town’s current ordinances to determine the land use
and other regulatory implications of retail marijuana establishments and retail marijuana
stores and retail marijuana social clubs and consider what locations, if any, and
conditions of approval, if any, might be appropriate for such uses; and

WHEREAS, a moratorium is necessary to prevent an overburdening of public
facilities that is reasonably foreseeable as the result of retail marijuana establishments
and retail marijuana stores and retail marijuana social clubs and other uses authorized
by the Act, being located in the Town; and

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that such a study, review, and development of
recommended ordinance changes will take at least one hundred and eighty (180) days
from the date the Town enacts this Moratorium Ordinance on retail marijuana
establishments and retail marijuana stores and retail marijuana social clubs;

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Town Meeting of the Town of Mount
Desert, that the following Moratorium Ordinance on retail marijuana establishments and
retail maruuana stores and retail marijuana social clubs be, and hereby is, enacted, and,
in furtherance thereof, the Town Meeting does hereby declare a moratorium on the
location, operation, or licensing of any retail marijuana social clubs and any retail
marijuana establishments, including retail marijuana stores, retail marijuana cultivation
facilities, retail marijuana products manufacturing facilities, and retail marijuana testing
facilities, within the Town.

This Moratorium Ordinance shall take effect on the date of its enactment by the
Town Meeting, and shall be applicable as of that date. The moratorium shall remain in
effect for one hundred and eighty (180) days from the effective date of this Ordinance,
unless extended, repealed, or modified, for the express purpose of drafting an
amendment or amendments to the Town’s current ordinances to protect the public from
health and safety risks including, but not limited to, compatibility of retail marijuana



establishments, retail marijuana stores, and retail marijuana social clubs with existing
and permitted uses in residential, commercial, and industrial zoning districts; the
correlation of retail marijuana establishments, retail marijuana stores, and retail
marijuana social clubs with medical marijuana cultivation facilities and dispensaries, all
as defined in the Act; the potential adverse health and safety effects of retail marijuana
establishments and retail marijuana stores and retail marijuana social clubs on the
community if not properly regulated; the possibility of illicit sale and use of marijuana and
marijuana products to minors and misuse of marijuana and marijuana products by those
who would abuse the uses authorized under the new law; criminal activity associated
with the cultivation, manufacturing, sale, and use of marijuana and maruuana products
for non-medicinal purposes and the potential increased burden on the public safety
agencies serving the Town in responding to the same; and the adequacy of the Town’s
infrastructure to accommodate the additional traffic and/or population that may result
from the presence of retail marijuana establishments or retail marijuana stores or retail
marijuana social clubs in the Town.

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall apply to retail marijuana
stores and retail marijuana social clubs and retail marijuana establishments, including
retail marijuana stores, retail marijuana cultivation facilities, retail marijuana products
manufacturing facilities, and retail marijuana testing facilities, as those terms are defined
by the Act, codified at 7 M.R.S.A. § 2442 (36), (38), (39), (40), and (41), that may be
proposed to be located within the Town on or after the effective date of this Ordinance;
and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that notwithstanding the provisions of 1 M.R.S.A.
§ 302 or any other law to the contrary, this Ordinance, when enacted, shall govern any
proposed retail marijuana establishments or retail marijuana stores or retail marijuana
social clubs for which an application for a building permit, Certificate of Occupancy, site
plan, or any other required approval has not been submitted to and granted final
approval by the Code Enforcement Officer, Planning Board, or other Town official or
board prior to the applicability date of this Ordinance; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that no person or organization shall develop or
operate a retail marijuana establishment or retail marijuana store or retail maruana
social club within the Town on or after the effective date of this Ordinance without
complying with whatever ordinance amendment or amendments the legislative body
may enact as a result of this Moratorium Ordinance; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that during the time this Moratorium Ordinance is
in effect, no officer, official, employee, office, or board of the Town shall accept, process,
approve, deny, or in any other way act upon any application for a license, building
permit, or any other type of land use approval or permit and/or any other permits or
licenses related to a retail marijuana establishment or retail marijuana stores or retail
marijuana social club; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that during the time this Moratorium Ordinance is in
effect, no person or organization shall develop or operate a business that engages in
retail or wholesale sales of products or merchandise for which a substantial portion of its
business is to prepare, cultivate, distribute, or ingest marijuana or retail or wholesale
sales of such products or merchandise of the kind that are commonly offered for sale or
used at so-called head shops, retail marijuana social clubs, or retail marijuana



establishments, including, without limitation, water pipes, hashish pipes, glass pipes,
pipe screens, bongs, vaporizers, scales, rolling papers, hydroponic equipment, and grow
lights and general tobacco products in so-called smoke shops; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that those provisions of the Town’s ordinances
that are inconsistent or conflicting with the provisions of this Ordinance, are hereby
repealed to the extent that they are applicable for the duration of the moratorium hereby
ordained, and as it may be extended as permitted by law, but not otherwise; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that if retail marijuana establishments or retail
marijuana stores or retail marijuana social clubs are established in violation of this
Ordinance, each day of any continuing violation shall constitute a separate violation of
this Ordinance, and the Town shall be entitled to all rights available to it in law and
equity, including, but not limited to, fines and penalties, injunctive relief, and its
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs in prosecuting any such violations; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that should any section or provision ol this
Ordinance be declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such a
declaration shall not invalidate any other section or provision.





MUNICIPAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION OF
OFFICIAL TEXT OF A PROPOSED ORDINANCE

[30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2)]

To the Town Clerk of the Town of Mount Desert:

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this
certificate is a true copy of the official text of amendments to an ordinance
entitled Land Use Zoning Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert, which is to
be presented to the voters for their consideration on May 6, 2018.

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete
text of the ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for
distribution to the voters, and you will ensure that copies are available at the town
meeting/polling places on the day of the vote.

Giver under our hands at Mount Desert the second day of April 2016, a majority
of the Selectmen of the Town of Mount Desert:

John B. Macauley, Chairman

Matthew J. Hart, Vice Chairman

Wendy H. Littlefleld, Secretary

Martha T. Dudman

James F. Mooers



LAND USE ZONING ORDINANCE Q
OF THE

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

ENACTED MARCH 6, 1978

AMENDED JUNE 21, 1978
AMENDED AUGUST 4, 1980
AMENDED MARCH 2, 1981
AMENDED MARCH 7, 1983
AMENDED MARCH 5, 1984
AMENDED MARCH 4, 1985
AMENDED MARCH 3, 1986
AMENDED MARCH 2, 1987

AMENDED OCTOBER 24, 1988
AMENDED MARCH 6, 1989
AMENDED MARCH 5, 1990
AMENDED MARCH 4, 1991

AMENDED MAY 20, 1991
AMENDED OCTOBER 7, 1991

AMENED MARCH 2, 1992
AMENDED MARCH 2, 1993
AMENDED MARCH 8, 1994
AMENDED MARCH 7, 1995

AMENDED JUNE 6, 1995
AMENDED MARCH 6, 1996
AMENDED MARCH 4, 1997
AMENDED MARCH 3, 1998
AMENDED MARCH 8, 2000
AMENDED MARCH 7, 2001
AMENDED MARCH 5, 2002
AMENDED MARCH 4, 2003
AMEDNED MARCH 2, 2004
AMENDED MARCH 8, 2005
AMENDED MARCH 7, 2006
AMENDED MARCH 6, 2007

AMENDED MAY 6, 2008
AMENDED MAY 5, 2009

AMENDED NOVEMBER 16, 2009
AMENDED MAY 4,2010
AMENDED MAY 3, 2011
AMENDED May 8, 2012

AMENDED July, 25, 2013
AMENDED February 24, 2014

AMENDED May 6, 2014
AMENDED May 5, 2015
AMENDED May 3, 2016
AMENDED May 2, 2017
AMENDED May 8, 2018



2.4 Conditional Uses. Conditional uses may be permitted only after review and
approval by the Planning Board — except where the Code Enforcement Officer is
authorized under the Standards of Section 5.6 to authorize minor changes in the
placement and size of improvements for an approved conditional use permit — and
only if specific provisions for such conditional uses are made in this Ordinance. The
Standards of Section 6A and the applicable standards of Section 6B and 6C of this
Ordinance shall apply at all times.

3.4 Permitted, Conditional, and Excluded Uses by District:

All land use activities, as indicated in the following table, shall conform with all of the
applicable land use standards in Sections 6.A., 6.B., and 6.C. The district
designation for a particular site shall be determined from the Official Land Use
Zoning map.

P Use allowed without a permit (but the use must comply with all applicable land
use standards
C Use allowed with conditional use approval from the Planning Board, except
where the code enforcement officer may authorize minor changes in the
placement and size of improvements for an approved conditional use
permit
X Use is prohibited
CEO Use allowed with a permit from the code enforcement officer

SECTION 5 CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL

5.6 Amendment

An amondmont to a Conditional Uco Approval may bo issued by the Planning
Board only”:

1. in conformity with the procedural and substantive reguiremonto cot forth in
Section 6A and the applicablo standardc of Section 68 and 6C.

2. on finding that there have boon cignificant changoc of conditions or
circumctanccc; and

3. whon justified by a statemont of findingc of fact and reasons.

No proposed or existing building, premise or land use authorized as a
conditional use may be established, enlarged, modified, structurally altered, or
otherwise changed from that approved in the conditional use permit, unless
such amendment is authorized in accordance with the standards and
procedures set forth in this Ordinance, and the conditional use permit and
approved site plan are amended accordingly.

Minor changes. The Code Enforcement Officer may authorize minor changes
in the placement and size of improvements for an approved conditional use
permit if the Code Enforcement Officer determines that the chances are
consistent with the findings made by the Planning Board in connection with the
approval of the conditional use permit and the standards of Section 6 of the
Land Use Ordinance. The Code Enforcement Officer must also make a



separate determine whether the minor changes are consistent with the
standards of Section 6 of the Land Use Ordinance.

Other Changes. Changes to an approved conditional use permit, Other than
minor changes in the placement and size of improvements, shall reguire
amendment to the conditional use permit by the Planning Board. The
reguirements for application and approval of a conditional use permit
amendment shall be the same as the reguirements for original application and
approval,

3.4 Permitted, Conditional, and Excluded Uses by District:

All land use activities, as indicated in the following table, shall conform with all ol the
applicable land use standards in Sections 6.A., 6.B., and 6.C. The district designation
for a particular site shall be determined from the Official Land Use Zoning map.

P Use allowed without a permit (but the use must comply with all applicable
land use standards

C Use allowed with conditional use approval from the Planning Board
X Use is prohibited
CEO Use allowed with a permit from the code enforcement officer

VR1 VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL ONE
VR2 VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL TWO
Ri RESIDENTIAL ONE
R2 RESIDENTIAL TWO
SRi SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL ONE
SR2 SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL TWO
5R3 SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL THREE
5R5 SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL FIVE
RW2 RURAL OR WOODLAND TWO
RW3 RURAL OR WOODLAND THREE
VC VILLAGE COMMERCIAL
SC SHORELAND COMMERCIAL
RP RESOURCE PROTECTION
C CONSERVATION
SP STREAM PROTECTION

0

See table of uses on following pages

Section 3.4 Permitted Conditional, and Excluded Uses by District



LAND USE: Districts

SR I
SR 2
SR3 VC SC C RP SP

RESIDENTIAL

Dwelling 1 & 2 CEO CEO CEO(d) CEO GCEO GCEO(d) C C8 C4
family

. C C C C C X C X X
Dwelling, Multiple

Accessory
Residential Dwelling CEO CEO CEO CEO CEO C C C8 C4
Unit

Accessory
structures including CEO CEO CEO CEO GCEO GCEO C C8 C4
structural additions
and guest houses(C)

Clusterand C C X C C X X X X
Workforce
Subdivisions

. C X X X X X X X X
Mobile Home Park
(c) A separate garage is an accessory structure. A separate garage with a dwelling unit shall be
deemed a dwelling unit.
(d See Section 6B.1Q.3 (Lots)

3.4 Permitted, Conditional, and Excluded Uses by District:

All land use activities, as indicated in the following table, shall conform with all of the
applicable land use standards in Sections 6.A., 6.8., and 6.C. The district designation
for a particular site shall be determined from the Official Land Use Zoning map.

P Use allowed without a permit (but the use must comply with all applicable
land use standards

C Use allowed with conditional use approval from the Planning Board
X Use is prohibited
CEO Use allowed with a permit from the code enforcement officer

VR1 VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL ONE
VR2 VILLAGE RESIDENTIAL TWO
Ri RESIDENTIAL ONE
R2 RESIDENTIAL TWO
SRi SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL ONE



SR2
SR3
SR5
RW2
RW3
Vc
SC
RP
C
SP

LAND USE: Districts

C

C

SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL TWO
SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL THREE
SHORELAND RESIDENTIAL FIVE
RURAL OR WOODLAND TWO
RURAL OR WOODLAND THREE
VILLAGE COMMERCIAL
SHDRELAND COMMERCIAL
RESOURCE PROTECTION
CONSERVATION
STREAM PROTECTION

See table of uses on following pages

C

RESIDENTIAL

Clusterand C C X C C X X X X
Workforce
Subdivisions —._____

. C X X X X X X X!X
Mobile Home Park I
(c) A separate garage is an accessory structure. A separate garage with a dwelling unit shall be
deemed a dwelling unit.

See Section 6B4011.3 (Lots)

I COMMERCIAL

MISCELLANEOUS
Forcot
.anagernent
ActMticc cxccpt for
timber haesting-& P P CEO P P P P X P

—
a



LAND USE: Districts

‘SRi
•5R2 F

VRI RI !5R3 RW2
VC SC C RP SPVR2 R2 SRS RW3

Landmanagemont p p CEO p p p p C

Note: Some footnotes have been deleted. — namely 12,3 & 5. ‘1,6,7,8 8.9 retainod.

4provided that a variance from the setback requirement is obtained from the Board of
Appeals; otherwise the setback is 75 feet. Any Excavation or Filling must be limited to
that necessary for the construction of approved structures.
See further restrictions in Section 6C.5.2

7Only as provided in Section 6C.9.3
Single family residential structures may be allowed by special exception only according

to the provisions of Section 7.5.3, Special Exceptions. Two4amily residential structures
are prohibited.
9Permit not required but must file a written “notice of intent to construct” with CEO.
‘°Timber Harvesting is regulated by the Bureau of Forestry in the Department of
Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry.

Section 3.5 Dimensional Requirements for Districts: minimum area, width of lots, setbacks, etc.

DISTRICTS SRI see SR2 see 5R3 see 5R5 see Note (f)
Note(f) Note(f) Note(f)

DIMENSIONS see Notes (b) (h2)

MINIMUM LOT AREA:
with public sewer 1 acre 2 acres 3 acres 5 acres

without public sewer N/A 2 acres 3 acres 5 acres

MINIMUM WIDTH OF
LOTS: 250200 ft. 250200 250200 250200 ft.
Shore Frontage ft. ft.

SETBACKS FROM:
normal high water line of
a water body (stream), 75ff 75ft. 75ff. 75ff.



tributary stream or

wetland
upland edge of a

Great Ponds (n)
100ff. (n) 100 ft. (n) 100ff. (n) 100ff. (n)

50ff. 50ff. 50ff. 50ff.
public or private road*

25ft. 25ff. 25ff. 25ff.
property lines (d)
* see Note (c) see
Note (d)

MAXIMUM LOT 45% 20% 45% 20% 45% 45% 20%
COVERAGE 20%

MINIMUM DISTANCE 30ff. 30ff. 30 ft. 30ff.
BETWEEN PRINCIPAL
BUILDINGS

NOTES:

(f) Within the shoreland zone: No new lot shall be created except in conformity with
all of the requirements of this Ordinance for the district in which it is located. In
addition to shore frontage, refer to Section 6B.4011.4.3 for the required minimum
lot width. For the required measurements, refer to shore frontage and minimum
lot width in Section 8. When a legally existing parcel does not contain any shore
frontage, the lot may be divided such that the newly created lots do not contain
any shore frontage as otherwise reguired in Sections 3.5 and 6B.1 1.4.3, provided
that all other minimum lot dimensional standards are met, including but not
limited to lot area and minimum lot width.

6A GENERAL PERFORMANCE STANDARDS

6A.8 Vegetation

1. Clearing. Clearing of trees or conversion to other vegetation is allowed for
permitted construction provided that:

1. Appropriate measures are taken, if necessary, to prevent erosion when
activity is undertaken.

2. The activity is in conformity with Section 6C.3, clearing or removal of
vegetation for activities other than timber harvesting.



2. Tree removal near town or state roads. Removal of more than 25% of the
trees within 25 feet of any town or state road in any 12 month period (except for
those required to complete permitted construction) shall require a Conditional
Use Approval of the Planning Board. Other woody plants must be retained or
replaced with native species.

3. Slash. No accumulation of slash shall be left within 50 feet of any town or state
road or within 50 feet of the normal high-water line of any water body, and in
shoreland zone shall comply with the standards of Section 6C.3. Slash shall be
disposed of so that no part extends more than 4 feet above the ground.

4. CEO Ponnit. A CEO Permit it required for cutting timber larger than ‘1 inchee in
diameter measured ‘1 ½ foot above ground when the total amount to be cut is
greater than 10 cords but loss than 50 cords in any one year period.

5. Conditional Use Approval. Conditional Use Approval is required from the
Planning Board for cuffing timber larger than ‘1 incheD in diameter measured ‘1 ½ foot above
ground when the total amount to be cut is 50 cords or mere in any one year pohod.

GB SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR ACTIVITIES AND LAND USES

6B.9 Individual Private Campsites.

Individual private campsites not associated with campgrounds are allowed
provided the following conditions are met:

1. One campsite per lot existing on the effective date of this Ordinance, or thirty
thousand (30,000) square feet of lot area within the shoreland zone, whichever
is less, may be permitted.

2. When an individual private campsite is proposed on a lot that contains
another principal use and/or structure, the lot must contain the minimum lot
dimensional requirements for the principal structure and/or use, and the
individual private campsite separately.

3. Campsite placement on any lot, including the area intended for a recreational
vehicle or tent platform. shall be set back one hundred (100) feet, horizontal
distance, from the normal high-water line of a great pond classified CPA or
river flowing to a great pond classified CPA, and seventy-five (75) feet1
horizontal distance, from the normal high-water line of other water bodies,
tributary streams, or the upland edge of a wetland.

4. Only one recreational vehicle shall be allowed on a campsite. The recreational
vehicle shall not be located on any type of permanent foundation except for a
gravel pad, and no structure except a canopy shall be attached to the
recreational vehicle.



5. The clearing of vegetation for the siting of the recreational vehicle, tent or
similar shelter in a Resource Protection District shall be limited to one
thousand (1000) square feet.

6. A written sewage disposal plan describing the proposed method and location
of sewage disposal shall be required for each campsite and shall be
approved by the Local Plumbing Inspector. Where disposal is off-site, written
authorization from the receiving facility or land owner is required,

7. When a recreational vehicle, tent or similar shelter is placed on-site for more than
one hundred and twenty (120) days per year, all requirements for residential
structures shall be met, including the installation of a subsurface sewage
disposal system in compliance with the State of Maine Subsurface Wastewater
Disposal Rules unless served by public sewage facilities.

6B.910 Home occupations and home offices

68.101 Lots

68.142 Manufactured Homes

68.123 Mineral Extraction and Exploration

68.134 Mobile Homes (temporary), Campers, Trailers and Recreational Vehicles

68.145 Sanitary Standards

68.156 Sign Regulations

68.161 Vehicles, Unregistered

68.178 Wireless Communication Facilities



68.189. Animal Husbandry & Animal Husbandry 2

SHORELAND ZONING STANDARDS

6C.3 Clearing or Removal of Vegetation For Activities Other Than Timber
Harvesting

7. Hazard Trees, Storm-Damaged Trees, and Dead Tree Removal

1. Hazard trees in the shoreland zone may be removed without a permit
after consultation with the Code Enforcement Officer if the following
requirements are met:

1. Within the shoreline buffer, if the removal of a hazard tree results in a
cleared opening in the tree canopy greater than two hundred and fifty
(250) square feet, replacement with native tree species is required,
unless there is new tree growth already present. New tree growth
must be as near as practicable to where the hazard tree was removed
and be at least two (2) inches in diameter, measured at four and one
half (4.5) feet above the ground level. If new growth is not present,
then replacement trees shall consist of native species and be at least
four (4) feet in height, and be no less than two (2) inches in diameter.
Stumps may not be removed.

2. Outside of the shoreline buffer, when the removal of hazard trees
exceeds forty (40) percent of the volume of trees four (4) inches or
more in diameter, measured at four and one half (4.5) feet above
ground level in any ten (10) year period, and/or results in cleared
openings exceeding twenty-five (25) percent of the lot area within the
shoreland zone. or ten thousand (10.000) square feet, whichever is
greater, replacement with native tree species is required, unless there
is new tree growth already present. New tree growth must be as near
as practicable to where the hazard tree was removed and be at least
two (2) inches in diameter. measured at four and one half (4.5) feet
above the ground level. If new growth is not present, then
replacement trees shall consist of native species and be at least two
(2) inches in diameter, measured at four and one half (4.5) feet above
the ground level.

3. The removal of standing dead trees, resulting from natural causes, is
permissible without the need for replanting or a permit, as long as the
removal does not result in the creation of new lawn areas, or other
permanently cleared areas, and stumps are not removed. For the
purposes of this provision dead trees are those trees that contain no
foliage during the growing season.



4. The Code Enforcement Officer may require the property owner to
submit an evaluation from a licensed forester or arborist before any
hazard tree can be removed within the shoreland zone.

5. The Code Enforcement Officer may require more than a one—for-one
replacement for hazard trees removed that exceed eight (8) inches in
diameter measured at four and one half (4.5) feet above the ground
level.

2. Storm-damaged trees in the shoreland zone may be removed without a
permit after consultation with the Code Enforcement Officer if the
following requirements are met:

1. Within the shoreline buffer, when the removal of storm-damaged trees
results in a cleared opening in the tree canopy greater than two
hundred and fifty (250) square feet, replanting is not required, but the
area shall be required to naturally revegetate, and the following
requirements must be met:

(i) The area from which a storm-damaged tree is removed does not
result in new lawn areas, or other permanently cleared areas;

(ii) Stumps from the storm-damaged trees may not be removed;

(Ni) Limbs damaged from a storm event may be pruned even if they
extend beyond the bottom one-third (1/3) of the tree; and

(iv) If after one growing season, no natural regeneration or regrowth is
present, replanting of native tree seedlings or saplings is required
at a density of one seedling per every eighty (80) square feet of
lost canopy.

2. Outside of the shoreline buffer, if the removal of storm damaged trees
exceeds 40% of the volume of trees four (4) inches or more in
diameter, measured at four and one half (4.5) feet above the ground
level in any ten (10) year period, or results, in the aggregate, in
cleared openings exceeding 25% of the lot area within the shoreland
zone or ten thousand (10,000) sguare feet, whichever is greater, and
no natural regeneration occurs within one growing season, then native
tree seedlings or saplings shall be replanted on a one-for-one basis.

8. Exemptions to Clearing and Vegetation Removal Requirements. The
following activities are exempt from the clearing and vegetation removal
standards set forth in Section 15(P), provided that all other applicable
requirements of this chapter are complied with, and the removal of vegetation
is limited to that which is necessary:

1. The removal of vegetation that occurs at least once every two (2) years
for the maintenance of legally existing areas that do not comply with the
vegetation standards in this chapter, such as but not limited to cleared
openings in the canopy or fields. Such areas shall not be enlarged.
except as allowed by this section. If any of these areas, due to lack of



3. The removal of vegetation from the location of public swimming areas
associated with an allowed public recreational facility;

4. The removal of vegetation associated with allowed agricultural uses,
provided best management practices are utilized, and provided all
reguirements of section 15(N) are complied with;

5. The removal of vegetation associated with brownfields or voluntary
response action program (VRAP) projects provided that the removal of
vegetation is necessary for remediation activities to clean-up
contamination on a site in a general development district, commercial
fisheries and maritime activities district or other eguivalent zoning district
approved by the Commissioner that is part of a state or federal
brownfields program or a voluntary response action program pursuant 38
M.R.S.A section 343-E, and that is located along:

1. A coastal wetland; or

2. A river that does not flow to a great pond classified as GPA pursuant
to 38 M.R.S.A section 465-A.

6. The removal of non-native invasive vegetation species, provided the
following minimum reguirements are met:

1. If removal of vegetation occurs via wheeled or tracked motorized
eguipment, the wheeled or tracked motorized eguipment is operated
and stored at least twenty-five (25) feet, horizontal distance, from the
shoreline, except that wheeled or tracked eguipment may be operated
or stored on existing structural surfaces, such as pavement or gravel;

2. Removal of vegetation within twenty1ive (25) feet, horizontal distance,
from the shoreline occurs via hand tools; and

3. If applicable clearing and vegetation removal standards are exceeded
due to the removal of non-native invasive species vegetation, the area
shall be revegetated with native species to achieve compliance.

NOTE: An updated list of non-native invasive vegetation is maintained by the
Department of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry’s Natural Areas
Program:
http://www.maine.gov/dacf/mnap/features/invasive plants/invasives.htm

7. The removal of vegetation associated with emergency response activities
conducted by the Department, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency,
the U.S. Coast Guard, and their agents.

removal of vegetation every two (2) years, reverts back to primarily woody
vegetation, the reguirements of Section 15(P) apply;

2. The removal of vegetation from the location of allowed structures or
allowed uses, when the shoreline setback reguirements of section 15(B)
are not applicable;



9. Revegetation Requirements. When revegetation is required in response to
violations of the vegetation standards set forth in Section 15(P), to address
the removal of non- native invasive species of vegetation, or as a mechanism
to allow for development that may otherwise not be permissible due to the
vegetation standards, including removal of vegetation in coniunction with a
shoreline stabilization project, the revegetation must comply with the following
requirements.

1. The property owner must submit a revegetation plan, prepared with and
signed by a qualified professional, that describes revegetation activities
and maintenance. The plan must include a scaled site plan, depicting
where vegetation was, or is to be removed, where existing vegetation is
to remain, and where vegetation is to be planted, including a list of all
vegetation to be planted.

2. Revegetation must occur alono the same segment of shoreline and in the
same area where vegetation was removed and at a density comparable
to the pre-existing vegetation, except where a shoreline stabilization
activity does not allow revegetation to occur in the same area and at a
density comparable to the pre-existing vegetation, in which case
revegetation must occur along the same segment of shoreline and as
close as possible to the area where vegetation was removed:

3. If part of a permitted activity, revegetation shall occur before the
expiration of the permit. If the activity or revegetation is not completed
before the expiration of the permit, a new revegetation plan shall be
submitted with any renewal or new permit application.

4. Revegetation activities must meet the following requirements for trees
and saplings:

1. All trees and saplings removed must be replaced with native
noninvasive species;

2. Replacement vegetation must at a minimum consist of saplings;

3. If more than three (3) trees or saplings are planted, then at least three
(3) different species shall be used;

4. No one species shall make up 50% or more of the number of trees
and saplings planted;

5. If revegetation is required for a shoreline stabilization proiect, and it is
not possible to plant trees and saplings in the same area where trees
or saplings were removed, then trees or sapling must be planted in a
location that effectively reestablishes the screening between the
shoreline and structures; and

6. A survival rate of at least eighty (60) percent of planted trees or
saplings is required for a minimum five (5) years period.



5. Revegetation activities must meet the following reguirements for woody

C vegetation and other vegetation under three (3) feet in height:

1. All woody vegetation and vegetation under three (3) feet in height
must be replaced with native noninvasive species of woody vegetation
and vegetation under three (3) feet in height as applicable;

2. Woody vegetation and vegetation under three (3) feet in height shall
be planted in guantities and variety sufficient to prevent erosion and
provide for effective infiltration of stormwater:

3. If more than three (3) woody vegetation plants are to be planted, then
at least three (3) different species shall be planted;

4. No one species shall make up 50% or more of the number of planted
woody vegetation plants: and

5. Survival of planted woody vegetation and vegetation under three feet
in height must be sufficient to remain in compliance with the standards
contained within this chapter for minimum of five (5) years

6. Revegetation activities must meet the following reguirements for ground
vegetation and ground cover:

1. All ground vegetation and ground cover removed must be replaced
with native herbaceous vegetation, in guantities and variety sufficient
to prevent erosion and provide for effective infiltration of stormwater;

2. Where necessary due to a lack of sufficient ground cover, an area
must be supplemented with a minimum four (4) inch depth of leaf
mulch and/or bark mulch to prevent erosion and provide for effective
infiltration of stormwater; and

3. Survival and funëtionality of ground vegetation and ground cover must
be sufficient to remain in compliance with the standards contained
within this chapter for minimum of five (5) years.

6C.7 Marine and Freshwater Structure Performance Standards

5. No new structures. No new structure shall be built on, over or abutting a pier,
wharf, dock or other structure extending below the normal high-water line of a
water body or within a wetland unless the structure requires direct access to the
water body or wetland as an operational necessity. A structure constructed on
a float or floats is prohibited unless it is designed to function as, and is
registered with the Maine Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife as a
watercraft.



6C.11 Timber Harvesting C)
1. Resource Protection and Stream Protection Districts. In the
Resource Protection and Stream Protection Districts, timber harvesting is
prohibited.

2. Areas other than Resource Protection or Stream Protection. Except in
areas as described in Section 6C.11.1. above, timber harvesting shall
conform with the fellewing previsions:

1. 40% limit. Selective cutting ef no marc than forty (10) percent of the
total volume of trees four (‘1) inches or more in diameter measured at
1 1/2 feet above ground level en any lot in any ten (10) year period is
permitted. In addition:

1. No clcarcuts within shereline setback. Within one hundred
(100) feet, herizontal distance, of the normal high water line ef a
great pond, and within scventy five (75) foot, horizontal distance,
ef the nermal high water line of ether water bediec, tributary
streams, er the upland edge of a wotland, there shall be no
clearcut openings and a well distributed stand of trees and other
vegetation, including existing ground cover, shall be maintained.

2. C Icared openings a#her the shoreline-setback-At-distances
gceatec—4han--ene-hundred (100) feet, horizontal distance, of a
great pond, and greater than seventy fivo (75) feet, herizental
distance, ef the normal high water line of other water bodies,
tributary streams or the upland edge of a wetland, harvesting
operations shall not create single clearcut openings greater than
ten thousand (10,000) square feet in the forest canopy. Where
such openings exceed five thousand (5000) square feet they shall
be at least one hundred (100) feet, herizental distance, apart.
Such clearcut epenings shall be included in the calculation of tetal
volume remeval. Volume may be considered to be equivalent to
a

2. Harvesting in excess of 40%. Timber harvesting operations
exceeding the 10% limitatien in Section 6C.11.2.1 above may be
allowed by the planning board upon a clear showing, including a
forest management plan signed by a Maine licensed professional
forester, that such an exception is necessary for good forest
management and will be carded cut in accordance with the purposes
of this Ordinance. The planning board shall notify the Commissioner
of the Department of Environmental Protection of each exception
allowed, within fourteen (11) days of the planning board’s docision.

3. Accumulation of slash. No accumulation of slash shall bo left within
fifty (50) feet, horizontal distance, of the normal high water line of a
wator body. In all other areas slash shall either bo removed or



disposed of in such a manner that it lies on the ground and no part
thereof extends more than four (4) foet above the ground. Any debris
that falls below the normal high wator line of a water body or tributary
stream shall be removed.

4—Stream Ghannol travel prohibited. Timber har:octing oguipment
shall not use stream channels as travel routes oxcopt when:

1. Suacc waters arc frozen; and

2. The acti’.’ity will not result in any ground disturbance.

&—Crossing of flowing water. All crossings of flowing water shall
require a bridge or culvert, except in areas with low banks and
channel beds which are composed of gravel, rock or similar hard
su4aco which would not be eroded or otheise damaged.

&—Skid trail runoff. Skid trail approaches to water crossings shall be
located and designed so as to prevent water runoff from directly
entering the water body or tributary stream. Upon completion of
timber haR’osting, temporary bridges and culverts shall be removed
and areas of exposed soil revegetated.

7. Soil exposure setback. Except for water crossings, skid trails and
other sites where the operation of machinery used in timber
haesting results in the exposure of mineral soil shall be located
such that an unscarifiod ctrip of vegetation of at least eovonw five
(75) foot, horizontal distance, in width for Elopes up to ten (10)
percent shall be retained between the exposed mineral soil and the
normal high water line of a water body e upland edge of a wetland.
For each ten (10) percent increase in slope, tho unscarifled strip shall
be increased by twenty (20) foot, horizontal distance. Tho provisions
of this paragraph apply only to a face sloping toward the water body
or wetland, providod, howovor, that no portion of such exposed
mineral soil on a back face shall be closer than twenty five (25) feet,
horizontal distance, from the normal high water line of a water body
or upland edge of a wetland.

6CA-2llWater Quality

SECTION 7 CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER

7.5 Procedure for Administering Permits

3. Special Exceptions. In addition to the criteria specified in Section 5.9
above, excepting structure setback requirements, the Planning Board may



approve a permit for a single family residential structure in a Resource
Protection District provided that the applicant demonstrates that all of the
following conditions are met:

4. The total footprint ground floor area, including cantilevered or similar
overhanging extensions, of all principal and accessory structures is
limited to a maximum of 1500 square feet. This limitation shall not be
altered by variance.

SECTION 8 DEFINITIONS

BUREAU OF FORESTRY: State of Maine Department of Agriculture, Conservation, and
Forestry, Bureau of Forestry.

COASTAL WETLAND: All tidal and subtidal lands; all lands with vegetation present that
is tolerant of salt water and occurs primarily in a salt water or estuarine habitat; and any
swamp, marsh, bog, beach, flat or other contiguous low land that is subject to tidal
action during the highest tide level for the year in which an activity is proposed as
identified in tide tables published by the National Ocean Service Association. Coastal
wetlands may include portions of coastal sand dunes. All areas below the highest
annual tide level are coastal wetlands. These areas may consist of rocky ledges, sand
and cobble beaches, mud flats, etc., in addition to salt marshes and salt meadows.

EXPANSION OF A STRUCTURE: An increase in the footprint floor area or volume of a
structure, including all extensions such as, but not limited to: attached decks, garages,
porches and greenhouses.

EXPANSION OF A USE: The additional use of more floec footprint of a structure, land or
water area devoted to a particular use; additional one or more weeks of the use’s
operating season; or additional business hours of operation.

FOREST MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES: Timber cruising and other forest resource
evaluation activities, pesticide or fertilizer application, management planning actMties,
timber stand improvement, pruning, regeneration of forest stands, and other similar or
associatod activitieE, exclusive of timber harvocting and tho construction, creation or
maintenanco of roads.



FUNCTIONALLY WATER-DEPENDENT USES: Those uses that require, for their
primary purpose, location on submerged lands or that require direct access to, or
location in, coastal or inland waters and that can not be located away from these waters.
The uses include, but are not limited to commercial and recreational fishing and boating
facilities (oxcluding recreational boat storage buildings), finfish and shellfish processing,
fish-related storage and retail and wholesale fish marketing facilities, waterfront dock
and port facilities, shipyards and boat building facilities, marinas, navigation aids, basins
and channels, rctpining vigIls, shoreline structures necessary for erosion control
purposes, industrial uses dependent upon water-borne transportation or requiring large
volumes of cooling or processing water that can not reasonably be located or operated
at an inland site, and uses that primarily provide general public access to coastal or
inland waters. Recreational boat storage buildings are not considered to be a
functionally water dependent use.

HAZARD TREE: a tree with a structural defect, combination of defects, or disease
resulting in a structural defect that under the normal range of environmental conditions at
the site exhibits a high probability of failure and loss of a major structural component of
the tree in a manner that will strike a target. A normal range of environmental conditions
does not include meteorological anomalies, such as. but not limited to: hurricanes;
hurricane-force winds; tornados; microbursts; or significant ice storm events. Hazard
trees also include those trees that pose a serious and imminent risk to bank stability. A
target is the area where personal iniurq or property damage could occur if the tree or a
portion of the tree fails. Targets include roads, driveways, parking areas, structures,
campsites, and any other developed area where people freguently gather and linger.

LAND MANAGEMENT ROAD: A routo or track consisting of a bed of exposed mineral
soil, gravel, or other surfacing materials constructed for, or croatod by, tho pacoage of
motorized vehicles and used primarily for timber har:osting and related actMtios,
including associated leg yards, but not including ckid trails or skid roads.

NON-CONFORMING STRUCTURE: A structure which does not meet any one or more
of the following dimensional requirements; setback, height, or lot coverage or footprint,
but which is allowed solely because it was in lawful existence at the time this Ordinance
or subsequent amendments took effect.

NON-NATIVE INVASIVE SPECIES OF VEGETATION: species of vegetation listed by
the Maine Department of Agriculture, Conservation and Forestry as being invasive in
Maine ecosystems and not native to Maine ecosystems.

OUTLET STREAM: any perennial or intermittent stream, as shown on the most recent
highest resolution version of the national hydrography dataset available from the United



States Geological Survey on the website of the United States Geological Survey or the
national map, that flows from a freshwater wetland.

PRINCIPAL STRUCTURE OR USE: A structure or use other than one which is wholly
incidental or accessory to another structure or use on the same promises lot.

SAPLING: a tree species that is less than two (2) inches in diameter at four and one half
(4.5) feet above ground level.

SEEDLING: a young tree species that is less than four and one half (4.5) feet in height
above ground level.

SKID ROAD OR SKID TRAIL: A route repeatedly used by forwarding machinerj or
animal to haul or drag forest products from the stump to the yard or landing, the
construction of which requires minimal excavation.

STORM-DAMAGED TREE: a tree that has been uprooted, blown down, is lying on the
ground, or that remains standing and is damaged beyond the point of recovery as the
result of a storm event.

STRUCTURE: Anything temporarily or permanently located, built, constructed or erected,
for the support, shelter or enclosure of persons, animals, goods or property of any kind or
anything constructed or erected as a permanent fixture on, above, or below the surface of
the land, or water. The term includes structures temporarily or permanently located,
including a porches, decks or patios. Anything constructed or erected that would bo
considered a structure but for the fact that ft is temporary and not permanent which is within
the shoroland zone as defined will also be considered a structure. The term structure shall
not include flagpoles, church steeples, fences, poles customarily used for the transmission
of electricity, television antennas, mailboxes radio antennas, driveways, roads, and
subsurface wastewater disposal systems and wells. Sign posts, as referenced in the
“Ordinance Regulating the Building and Street Numbering in the Town of Mount DeserV’,
shall not be included as structures.

A. Permanent: A building or structure that is intended to remain in place for a
period of more than 180 days in any consecutive 12-month period.

B. Temporary: A building or structure not meeting the definition of permanent.



TREE: A woody perennial plant whose trunk is “ in diameter or more, measured at 1%’
above ground level. A woody perennial plant with a well-defined trunk(s) at least two (2)
inches in diameter at four and one half (4.5) feet above the ground, with a more or less
definite crown, and reaching a height of at least ten (10) feet at maturity.flxod oxtcñor
‘ulI nI.,nne ne mn’,p, re.rl frnm tkn nv-tndnr f.,r.ne nf tHoen n.nIIe nnd rnnf (rye!. g-lipn

V.-., ,,‘-
..- .-.“-.. ,-,. . ,.-.“-. ‘-, ,%‘ . \..-,‘.-..-,-., .

fn,,nr4.,Nnne kit! neil irlnn knenmnnfe ne rlnfinnr4 ;., tkeenn*inn

Section 3.5 Dimensional Requirements for Districts: minimum area, width of lots,
setbacks, etc.

DISTRICTS RW2 Rw3 VC Sc c
see Note (g)

see Note (e), see Note (f) for
(f) and (g) those properties

that are within the
shoreland zone

DIMENSIONS (b) (h1)

MINIMUM LOT AREA:
A. with public sewer 2 acres 3 acres 5,000 sq ftfl 1 acre 3 acres
B. without public sewer 2 acres 3 acres 1 acre 1 acre 3 acres

C. Cluster Subdivision 1 acre 1.5 acres see note (g) N/A N/A
w/sewer

D. Cluster Subdivision w/o 1 acre 1.5 acres see note (g) N/A N/A
sewer*

E. Workforce Subdivision*
State State see note (9) N/A N/A

See Note (k) Minimum Minimum ** See Note

(RI
MINIMUM WIDTH OF LOTS:
Shore Frontage NA NA N/A 100 ft. 250 ft.

SETBACKS FROM:
normal high water line of a
water body (stream), tributary 75 ft. 75 ft. 75 ft. 75 ft. 75 ft.
stream or upland edge of a
wetland

N/A N/A N/A N/A lOOft.(n)
Great Ponds (n)

60ff. 60 ft. lOft. or-C-ft. 25 ft. 50 ft.
public or private road from edge of

public
property lines 25 ft. 25 ft. sidewalk 5 ft. 25 ft.
• see Note (c)

see Note (d) 5 ft.(o)

MAXIMUM LOT COvERAGE 15% 15% 75% 70% 15%



SETBACKS FROM:
normal high water line of a water
body (stream), tributary stream or
upland edge of a wetland

Great Ponds (n)

30ff 30ff. N/A lOft. 30ff.
MINIMUM DISTANCE
BETWEEN PRINCIPAL
BUILDINGS

NOTES:

(p) For lots within the Village Commercial District that have public sewer, the minimum
lot area required for each dwelling unit on a single lot is 1000 square feet.

Section 3.5 Dimensional Requirements for Districts: minimum area, width of lots,
setbacks, etc.

DISTRICTS RW2 RW3 VC Sc c
see-Note-(g)

see Note see Note (f) for
(e), (f) and those properties
(g) that are within the

shoreland zone

DIMENSIONS (b) (h’)

MINIMUM LOT AREA:
A. with public sewer 2 acres 3 acres 5,000 sq ft. 1 acre 3 acres

B. without public sewer 2 acres 3 acres I acre 1 acre 3 acres

C. Cluster Subdivision wfsewer* 1 acre 1.5 acres 5000 sq. ft-see N/A N/A
D. Cluster Subdivision w/o sewer* 1 acre 1.5 acres nete-(g) N/A N/A

. .
. *

State State State Minimum N/A N/A
E. Workforce Subdivision Minimum Minimum see-nete-(ff)

* See Note (k) 5000 sq. ft.-see
nctc(g)

MINIMUM WIDTH OF LOTS:
Shore Frontage NA NA N/A 100 ft. 250 II.

C

0

0

75ff. 75W 75ff. 75ff. 75ff.

N/A N/A N/A N/A 100 ft. (n)

6011.public or private road* 60 ft. 10 ft. or -0- 11. 25ff. SOft.



from edge of
property Iines public sidewalk

seeNote(c) 25ft. 25ff. 5ff. 25k.

‘ see Note (d) ft.(o)

MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE 15% 15% 75% 70% 15%

30ff 30ff. N/A loft. 30k.
MINIMUM DISTANCE BETWEEN
PRINCIPAL BUILDINGS

NOTES:

(b) Refer to setback as defined in Section 8.

(c) Measured from edge of road surface, or edge of legally established right of way if
no road exists.

(d) In all districts restrictions on setback of structures from property lines may be varied
or nullified by written agreement with the abutting property owner. Said agreement
or a copy of said agreement showing signatures shall be filed at the Municipal
Office.

(e) The minimum SC setback from shoreline is 75 feet except for functionally water-
dependent structures.

(f) Within the shoreland zone: No new lot shall be created except in conformity with
all of the requirements of this Ordinance for the district in which it is located. In
addition to shore frontage, refer to Section 68.10.4.3 for the required minimum lot
width. For the required measurements, refer to shore frontage and minimum lot
width in Section 8.

(g) Primary residential use in a Shoreland Commercial District must meet the
dimensional requirements of the adjacent residential district. This requirement does
not apply to projects that include covenants held by a qualified workforce housing
entity.

Section 3.5 Dimensional Requirements for Districts: minimum area, width of lots,
setbacks, etc.

NOTES:

(o) Setback from property lines in Village Commercial:

New or newly renovated structures on the following lots and any future subdivision
of said lots may have a -0- foot side-setback if constructed in accordance with the
current editions of the NFPA 101 Life Safety Codes & NFPA 5000 Building



Construction and Safety Code, Maine State adopted codes, except on the side
where affected lots abut structures whose primary use is residential. Rear
setbacks are unaffected.

Tax Map 024: Lots 063-002, 073 through 081, 081-001, 082 through 086, 088
through
090, 102, 104, 106 through 108, & 109-003/109-004 Tax Map 026: Lots 004-001,
004-002, 008-002, & 057 through 063. (Added May 3, 2011)

Tax Maci 024: Lots 64 through 072 (added May 8, 2018)

0

0

Overview Map

Village Commercial District

Parcels with 0 foot Setback
C lLhD(e



Section 3.5 Dimensional Requirements for Districts: minimum area, width of lots, setbacks,
etc.

NOTES:

(n) The setback from the normal high-water line of a great pond is 100 feet1 except for
these lots where the setback is 75 feet1 indicated below.

Map-Lot Ds for 75 ft. setback Map-Lot IDs for 100 ft. setback

Long Pond & Echo Lake:
All Lots

Little Round Pond: Little Round Pond:
012-018 012-015-001
012-019 012-020
012-019-001

Round Pond: Round Pond:
011-120 011-90
011-122 011-118
011-123 011-119
011-1 24
012-013

Little Echo Lake: Little Echo Lake:
009-098 009-1 07
009-099 009-120-010
009-100 009-1 20-010-001
009-101 009-120-011
009-1 02 009-097

009-107-003

GB SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR ACTIVITIES AND LAND
USES.

6B.18. Animal Husbandry & Animal Husbandry 2 in thc Village Commercial and
Shoroland Commorcial Districts

1. Permit Required. A building permit is required for the construction of a
henhouse and chicken pen.

2. Number and Type of Chickens Allowed.



1. The maximum number of chickens allowed is six (6) per lot regardless of how
many dwelling units are on the lot. In the case of residential condominium
complexes without individually owned back yards. the maximum number of
chickens allowed is six (6) per complex.

2. Only female chickens are allowed. There is no restriction on chicken species.

3. Non-Commercial Use Only. Chickens shall be kept as pets and for personal
use only; no person shall sell eggs or engage in chicken breeding or fertilizer
production for commercial purposes.

4. Enclosures.

1. Chickens must be kept in an enclosure or fenced area at all times. During
daylight hours, chickens may be allowed outside of their chicken pens in a
securely fenced yard. Chickens shall be secured within the henhouse during
non-daylight hours.

2. Enclosures must be clean, dry, and odor-free, kept in a neat and sanitary
condition at all times, in a manner that will not disturb the use or enjoyment of
neighboring lots due to noise, odor or other adverse impact.

5. Odor. Odors from chickens, chicken manure, or other chicken-related
substances shall not be perceptible at the property boundaries.

6. Predators, Rodents, Insects, and Parasites. The property owner shall take
necessary action to reduce the attraction of predators and rodents and the
potential infestation of insects and parasites. Chickens found to be infested with
insects and parasites that may result in unhealthy conditions to human habitation
shall be removed by the Animal Control Officer.

7. Waste Storage and Removal. Provision must be made for the storage and
removal of chicken manure. All stored manure shall be covered by a fully
enclosed structure with a roof or lid over the entire structure. No more than three
(3) cubic feet of manure shall be stored. All other manure not used for
composting or fertilizing shall be removed. In addition, the henhouse, chicken
pen and surrounding area must be kept free from trash and accumulated
droppings. Uneaten feed shall be removed in a timely manner.

0



MUNICIPAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION OF
OFFICIAL TEXT OF A PROPOSED ORDINANCE

[30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2)]

To the Town Clerk of the Town of Mount Desert:

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this
certificate is a true copy of the official text of amendments to an ordinance
entitled Subdivision Ordinance of the Town of Mount Desert, which is to be
presented to the voters for their consideration on May 8, 2018.

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete
text of the ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for
distribution to the voters, and you will ensure that copies are available at the town
meeting/polling places on the day of the vote.

Giver under our hands at Mount Desert the second day of April 2018, a majority
of the Selectmen of the Town of Mount Desert:

John B. Macauley, Chairman

Matthew J. Hart, Vice Chairman

Wendy H. Littlefield, Secretary

Martha T. Dudman

James F. Mooers



SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE 0
OF THE

TOWN OF MOUNT DESERT

EFFECTIVE MARCH 4, 1990

ADOPTED MARCH 4, 1991

AMENDED MAY 20, 1991

AMENDED OCTOBER 7, 1991

AMENDED MARCH 2, 1992

AMENDED MARCH 7-8, 1994

AMENDED MARCH 3, 1998

AMENDED MARCH 4, 2003

AMENDED MARCH 2, 2004

AMENDED MARCH 8, 2005

AMENDED MARCH 7, 2006

AMENDED MAY 2, 2017

AMENDED May 8,2018

0



Section 3.5 Dimensional Requirements for Districts: minimum area, width of lots,
setbacks, etc.

DISTRICTS RW2 RW3 Sc C
see Note (g)

see Note (e), see Note (f) for those

(f) and (g) properties that are

within the shoreland

zone

DIMENSIONS (b) (h’)

MINIMUM LOT AREA:

k with public sewer 2 aces 3 acres 5,000 sq ft 1 acre 3 acres
5. without public sewer 2 aces 3 acres I acre I acre 3 aces

C. Cluster Subdivision w/sewer 1 acre 1.5 acres see note (g) N/A N/A

D. cluster Subdivision w/o sewer

B. Workforce SubdMsion’ 1 acre 1.5 acres see note (g) N/A N/A
* See Note (k)

State Minimum State Minimum see note (g) N/A N/A

“ See Note (p)

MINIMUM WIDTH OF LOTS:

Shore Frontage NA NA N/A 100 ft. 250 ft.

SETBACKS FROM:

normal high water line of a water

body (stream), tributary stream or 75 ft. 75 ft. 75 ft. 75 ft. 75 ft.

upland edge of a wetland

Great Ponds (n) N/A N/A N/A N/A 100 ft. (n)

public or private read’ 60 ft. 60 ft. 10 ft. or-C- ft 25 ft 50 ft.

from edge of

property Iines public sidewalk

seeNote(c) 25ft. 25ft. Sit 25ft

see Note (d) Mo)

MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE 15% 15% 75% 70% 15%

30ff. 30ft. N/A loft. 30ft
MINIMUM DISTANCE BETWEEN

PRINCIPAL BUILDINGS

NOTES:

(p) For lots within the Village Commercial District that have public sewer, the minimum
lot area required for each dwelling unit on a single lot is 1000 square feet.



0
0

0



-I L
n

m ‘t
O



0

0

0



Warrants for BOS Agenda: BOS Agenda: 04/02/12

Description ft Date Amount

A. Warrants to be Approved and Signed:

Town Invoices AP1859 04/02/18 $ 114,245.54

B. Authorized Warrants to be Signed: (Wendy needs to abstain)

(Prior Electronic or Manual Authorization

Town State Fees & P,R Benefits AP1857 03121/18 $ 3,270.98

AP1858 03/28/18 $ 4,463.36

Town Payroll PR1821 03/23/18 $ 100,528.14

C. Warrants to be Acknowledged:

School Invoices

(John DOES need to abstain)

School Payroll 20 03/20/18 $ 181,922.22

TOTAl. WARRANTS FOR BOS MEETING $ 404,431.24

T:\TREASURER\FORMS\exception warrants.x1sx040218



0

0

0



0
T

O
W

N
O

F
M

O
U

N
T

D
ES

ER
T

A
C

C
O

U
N

TS
PA

Y
A

BL
E

W
A

R
R

A
N

T

W
A

R
R

A
N

T
A

PU
1
8
5
9

0

C
H

EC
K

D
A

TE
:

TO
TA

L
D

IS
B

U
R

SE
M

E
N

T
S:

A
pr

il
2,

20
18

$
11

4,
24

6.
54

S
el

ec
tm

en
:

T
hi

s
is

to
ce

rt
if

y
th

at
th

er
e

is
du

e
an

d
ch

ar
g
ea

b
le

to
th

e
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
io

n
s

li
st

ed
ab

ov
e

th
e

su
m

se
t

ag
ai

ns
t

ea
ch

na
m

e
an

d
yo

u
ar

e
d
ir

ec
te

d
to

pa
y

u
n

to
th

e
p
ar

ti
es

n
am

ed
in

th
is

sc
h
ed

u
le

.

Jo
hn

B
M

ac
au

le
y,

C
ha

ir
m

an
M

ar
th

a
T

D
ud

m
an

Ja
m

es
F

M
o

o
er

s

C
H

EC
K

N
U

M
B

E
R

:
30

87
54

th
ro

u
g
h

30
88

01

C
H

EC
K

N
U

M
B

E
R

:
3

0
8

7
5

0
th

ro
u

g
h

30
87

50

EF
T

N
U

M
B

E
R

:
68

9
th

ro
u

g
h

69
7

E
F

T
or

C
K

N
U

M
B

E
R

:
N

/A
th

ro
u

g
h

N
/A

5
9
8
,9

6
0
.1

2

S
9
0
7
.5

0

5
1

4
,3

7
8

.9
2

C
he

ck
p
ay

m
en

ts

E
le

ct
ro

ni
c

p
ay

m
en

ts

A
C

H
P

ay
m

en
ts

V
oi

de
d

C
he

ck
s

S
-

M
at

th
ew

I
H

ar
t,

V
ic

e
C

ha
ir

m
an

W
en

dy
H

Li
ttl

ef
ie

ld
,

Se
cr

et
ar

y



C
0
*

0



0
3
/2

9
/2

0
1
8

1
6

:1
2

G
9
O

5
ly

o
u

T
o
w

n
o

f
M

o
u
n
t

D
e
s
e
rt

A
/P

C
A

SH
D

IS
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

S
JO

U
R

N
A

L

1?
-:

a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

C
A

SH
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

:
1
0
0

1
0

1
0

0
C

H
E

C
K

N
O

C
H

K
D

A
T

E
T

Y
P

E
V

E
N

D
O

R
N

A
M

E
C

k
g

-B
H

G
e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

0
0

6
6

IN
V

O
IC

E
IN

V
D

A
T

E
P

0

IN
V

O
IC

E
O

T
Is

D
E

S
C

N
E

T

6
8

9
0

4
/0

2
/2

0
1

8
E

E
l’

In
v
o
ic

e
:

3
0
1
2

6
9

0
0

4
/0

2
/2

0
1

8
E

E
l’

In
v
o
ic

e
:

2
0
1
8
0
6
6
6

In
v

o
ic

e
:

2
0

1
8

0
6

6
7

2
0
9
7

T
O

W
N

O
F

P
A

R
H

A
R

B
O

R
-

U
S

E
R

E
M

IT
1

3
0
1
2

2
1

2
.0

0
1
4
4
0
1
1
0

5
4
0
5
0

1
1

6
C

IV
IL

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

IN
C

2
0
1
8
0
6
6
6

7
1

9
.5

0
1
2
2
1
0
0
0

5
4
2
5
0

C
IV

IL
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
IN

C
2
0
1
8
0
6
6
7

2
3

0
.1

6
1

2
2

1
0

0
0

5
4
2
5
0

0
3
/1

5
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
O

S
9

E
v

id
e
n

c
e

S
u

p
p

li
e
s

/
S

p
li

t
c
o
s
t

w
/B

H
S

P
E

C
IA

L
IN

V
E

S
T

IG
A

T
IO

N
S

C
H

E
C

K
6

0
9

T
O

T
A

L
:

0
3
/2

2
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8
5
9

IT
S

u
p

p
o

rt
M

u
n
ic

ip
a
l

O
ff

ic
e

IT
/T

E
C

H
F

E
E

0
3
/2

2
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
0
5
9

IT
S

u
p

p
o

rt
F

ir
e

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t
IT

/T
E

C
H

F
E

E

In
v
o
ic

e
:

2
0

1
8

0
6

6
0

C
IV

IL
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
IN

C
2
0
1
8
0
6
6
8

5
4
5
.1

3
1

2
2

1
0

0
0

5
4
2
5
0

0
3
/2

2
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
O

S
9

S
q

u
a
d

2
A

c
o
m

p
u
te

r/
s
e
rv

e
r

s
e
tu

p
IT

/T
E

C
H

F
E

E

5
4
5
1
1
3

C
H

E
C

K
6
9
0

T
O

T
A

L
:

1
,4

9
4

.7
9

6
9

1
0

4
/0

2
/2

0
1

8
E

F
T

In
v
o
ic

e
:

1
V

8
2
7
5
6

0
3
/1

3
/2

0
1
0

A
P

1
O

S
9

T
R

#
3

3
S

P
R

IN
G

S
A

L
G

E
N

R
E

P
A

IR
S

&
M

A
IN

T

In
v
o
ic

e
:

IV
8
2
7
0
8
A

C
O

L
W

E
L

L
D

IE
S

E
L

S
E

R
V

IC
E

&
G

A
R

A
G

E
I

1
V

5
2

7
0

8
A

4
,5

0
6
.3

0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0

5
5
4
0
0

0
3
/2

0
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
O

S
9

4
,5

0
6
.3

8
T

R
II

2O
E

X
H

A
U

S
T

A
N

D
A

IR
T

A
N

K
S

A
N

D
A

IR
T

A
N

K
B

R
A

C
K

E
T

S
G

E
N

R
E

P
A

IR
S

&
M

A
IN

T

C
H

E
C

K
6
9
1

T
O

T
A

L
:

6
,1

7
7

.4
4

6
9

2
0

4
/0

2
/2

0
1

8
E

F
T

In
v

o
ic

e
:

C
6

4
4

2
6

-0
0

1
5

0
D

E
N

N
IS

P
A

P
E

R
&

F
O

O
D

S
E

R
V

IC
E

C
6

4
4

2
6

—
0

0

8
5
5
.4

3
1
5
5
2
0
0
0

5
5
4
0
0

0
3
/2

1
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
O

S
9

T
P

,
P

T
,

s
o
a
p
,

ja
n
it

o
r
ia

l
s
u

p
p

li
e
s

ts
G

E
N

R
E

P
A

IR
S

&
M

A
IN

T

8
5
5
.4

3

C
H

E
C

K
6
9
2

T
O

T
A

L
:

8
5
5
.4

3

6
9
3

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

E
F

T
In

v
o
ic

e
:

0
3
1
8

3
8

2
K

IM
B

E
R

L
Y

K
E

E
N

E
0
3
1
8

1
5

8
.0

5
1
2
2
0
7
7
0

5
6
1
0
0

0
3
/2

0
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8
S

9
1
5
8
.0

5
M

il
e
a
g

e
R

e
im

b
u
rs

e
m

e
n
t

T
ra

v
e
l

to
T

ra
in

in
g

.
3

/1
9

D
E

P
T

R
A

V
E

L

C
H

E
C

K
6
9
3

T
O

T
A

L
:

1
5
8
.0

5

1
3
2
6

D
U

R
L

IN
hU

N
T

0
3
1
8

0
3
/2

7
/2

0
1
8

T
ra

v
e
l

E
x
p

e
n

se
T

O
W

N
N

C
R

E
X

P
E

N
S

E

A
P

1
8

5
9

1
3
5
.7

1

W
A

R
R

A
N

T

2
1
2
.0

0

2
1
2

.0
0

7
1
9
.5

0

2
3
0
.1

6

1
2
4

C
O

L
W

E
L

L
D

IE
S

E
L

S
E

R
V

IC
E

&
G

A
R

A
G

E
I

IV
8

2
7

5
6

1
,6

7
1

.0
6

1
5
5
0
1
0
0

5
5
4
0
0

1
•
6
7
1

.0
6

6
9
4

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

E
F

T
In

v
o
ic

e
:

0
3
1
8

1
3

5
.7

1
1
2
2
0
1
1
0

5
2
7
0
0



0
3
/2

9
/2

0
1
8

1
6
:1

2
G

9
O

S
ly

o
u

C
A

SH
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

:
1

0
0

C
H

E
C

K
N

O
0
1
K

D
A

T
E

T
o
w

n
o

f
M

o
u
n
t

D
e
s
e
rt

A
/P

C
A

SH
D

IS
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

S
JO

U
R

N
A

L

1
0

1
0

0
C

k
g

-B
H

G
e
n
e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

8
0

6
6

T
Y

P
E

V
E

N
D

O
R

N
A

M
E

IN
V

O
IC

E

-
-

IN
V

D
A

T
E

P
0

N
E

T

IN
V

O
IC

E
D

T
L

D
E

S
C C

H
E

C
K

6
9
4

T
O

T
A

L
:

1
3
5
.7

1

2
6

8
8

7
0

5

7
7

.0
0

1
5

5
2

0
0

0
5
5
4
0
0

0
3
/1

5
/2

0
1
8

a
n
ts

in
p

d
&

fd
ts

G
E

N
R

E
P

A
iR

S
&

M
A

IN
T

C
H

E
C

K

6
9
6

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

R
E

T
In

v
o

ic
e
:

1
1

5
3

0

6
9
7

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

E
F

T
In

v
o

ic
e
:

0
4

5
-2

1
6

9
7

1

5
3
8

N
O

R
T

H
E

A
S

T
P

L
U

M
B

IN
G

&
H

E
A

T
IN

G
IN

C
.

1
1
5
3
0

2
5

0
.5

0
1

4
4

0
3

3
0

5
5
2
0
0

4
3

2

0
3
/2

0
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8
5
9

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y

r
e
p

a
ir

s
to

S
ta

t.
ff

2
h

e
a
ti

n
g

B
L

D
G

R
E

P
A

IR
&

M
A

IN
T

-S
2

SH

C
H

E
C

K
6
9
6

T
O

T
A

L
:

0
2
/2

8
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

C
it

iz
e
n
s

T
ra

n
s
p
a
re

n
c
y

P
o

r
ta

l
SO

FT
W

A
R

E
M

U
N

IS
L

IC
E

N
S

E

In
v

o
ic

e
:

0
4

5
-2

1
7

1
2

5
1

T
Y

L
E

R
T

E
C

H
N

O
L

O
G

IE
S

IN
C

0
4

5
-2

1
7

1
2

5
1

1
8

.0
0

1
2

2
0

9
0

0
5
4
5
3
3

0
3
/0

6
/2

0
1
8

O
ri

g
.

In
v

.
s
h
o
r
t.

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T

-A
D

F
4I

N

A
P

1
8

5
9

1
8

.0
0

3
0

8
7

5
0

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

M
2

iL
In

v
o

ic
e
:

0
2
2
3
1
8

9
.2

3
1
4
1
.6

3
7

9
.4

7
7

.5
0

C
H

E
C

K

0
2
/2

2
/2

0
1
8

p
o
s
ta

g
e

th
ro

u
g
h

0
2
2

2
1
8

P
O

S
T

A
G

E
P

O
S

T
A

G
E

P
O

S
T

A
G

E
P

O
S

T
A

G
E

P
O

S
T

A
G

E
P

O
S

T
A

G
E

P
O

S
T

A
G

E
P

O
S

T
A

G
E

P
O

S
T

A
G

E
P

O
S

T
A

G
E

P
O

S
T

A
G

E
P

O
S

T
A

G
E

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8
7
5

0
T

O
T

A
L

:
9
0
7

.
5
0

3
0

8
7

5
4

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

PR
T

D
In

v
o

ic
e
:

1
5
8
9
7
3

1
3
0
6

A
C

A
D

IA
F

U
E

L
L

L
C

1
5

8
9

7
3

1
1

6
.4

7
1
5
5
0
6
6
6

5
3
4
0
0

0
3

/0
6
/2

0
1

8
6

1
.3

g
a
l

N
E

W
W

TP
L

B
H

E
A

T
IN

G
F

O
E

L

A
P

1
8

5
9

1
1
6
.4

7

A
C

A
D

IA
F

O
E

L
L

L
C

1
5
8
9
6
5

0
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
8

1
1

1
.1

g
a
l

w
w

0&
M

b
ld

g
ts

6
9
5

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

E
F

T
In

v
o

ic
e
:

2
6
9
8
7
0
5

2
1
4
2

M
O

D
E

R
N

P
E

S
T

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
IN

C

W
A

R
R

A
N

T

1
6
0
9

T
Y

L
E

R
T

E
C

H
N

O
L

O
G

IE
S

IN
C

A
P

1
8

5
9

7
7

.0
0

6
9
5

T
O

T
A

L
:

7
7

.0
0

0
4

5
-2

1
6

9
7

1

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
2

2
1

0
0

0
5
5
3
3
0

8
0
0

s
y

s
te

m

5
8
1

P
IT

N
E

Y
B

O
W

E
S

2
5
0

.5
0

2
5

0
.5

0

5
,

0
0
0

.
00

0
2

2
3

1
8

1
2
8
.9

3
1
5
3
.3

5
2

9
5

.7
1

2
4

.
17

3
.2

3
4
7
.2

0

1
2
2
0
1
1
0

1
2
2
0
2
2
0

1
2
2
0
5
0
0

1
2
2
0
5
0
0

1
2
2
0
6
6
0

1
2
2
0
7
7
0

1
2
.0

4
1
4
4
0
1
1
0

5
.0

4
1

4
4

0
3

3
0

1
5
5
0
5
5
2

6
0

1
0

1
0

0
1
4
4
0
1
1
0

1
2

2
0

1
1

0

6
9
7

T
O

T
A

L
:

5
,0

1
8
.0

0

A
P

1
8
5
9

9
0

7
.5

0

5
3
1
4
0

5
3
1
4
0

5
3
1
4
0

5
3
1
4
0

5
3
1
4
0

5
3
1
4
0

5
3
1
4
0

5
3
1
4
0

5
3
1
4
0

5
3
1
4
0

5
3
1
4
0

5
3
1
4
0

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
5

8
9

6
5

C
0

A
P

1
8
5
9

2
1

1
.0

9



0
3
/2

9
/2

0
1
8

1
5

:1
2

E
9
O

S
ly

o
u

T
o
w

n
o

f
M

o
u
n
t

D
e
s
e
rt

A
/P

C
A

SH
D

IS
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

S
JO

U
R

N
A

L

C
A

SH
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

:
1
0
0

C
H

E
C

K
N

O
C

H
K

D
A

T
E

1
0
1
0
0

T
Y

P
E

V
E

N
D

O
R

N
A

M
E

IN
V

O
IC

E
D

T
L

D
E

S
C

2
1

1
.0

9
1

5
5

0
6

6
6

5
3
4
0
0

H
E

A
T

IN
G

F
U

E
L

1
5

8
9

7
2

2
6

2
.5

8
1

5
5

0
6

6
8

5
3
4
0
0

0
3
/0

6
/2

0
1
8

1
3

8
.2

g
a
l

SH
W

W
TP

ts
H

E
A

T
IN

G
F

U
E

L C
H

E
C

K
3
0
8
7
5
4

T
O

T
A

L
:

5
9
0
.1

4

3
0

8
7

5
5

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

PR
T

D
In

v
o

ic
e
:

1
5
9
3
6
5

1
9
5
2

A
C

A
D

IA
F

U
E

L
L

L
C

1
5
9
3
6
5

2
3

6
.1

7
1
4
4
0
3
3
0

5
3
4
0
0

4
3

2

0
3
/1

5
/2

0
1
8

1
2
4
.3

g
a
l

H
e
a
ti

n
g

fu
e
l

H
E

A
T

IN
G

F
U

E
L

-S
2

5
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

fo
r

s
ta

ti
o

n
#
2

2
3
6

11
7

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8

7
5

5
T

O
T

A
L

:
2

3
6

.1
7

3
0
8
7
5
6

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
5

9
1

4
2

1
9
5
3

A
C

A
D

IA
F

U
E

L
L

L
C

1
5
9
1
4
2

1
9
3
.2

3
1
4
4
0
3
3
0

5
3
4
0
0

4
3

3

0
3
/1

2
/2

0
1
8

1
0

1
.7

g
a
l

H
e
a
ti

n
g

fu
e
l

H
E

A
T

IN
G

F
U

E
L

S
3

SV

A
P

1
8

5
9

fo
r

s
ta

ti
o

n
#3

1
9
3

.2
3

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8

7
5

6
T

O
T

A
L

:
1

9
3

.2
3

3
0

8
7

5
7

0
4

/0
2
/2

0
1

8
P

R
T

D
In

v
o

ic
e
:

0
3
0
6
2
0
1
8

0
2
/2

8
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8
5
9

c
e
ll

p
h
o
n
e

b
il

l
b
j

C
E

L
L

P
H

O
N

E
S

C
E

L
L

PH
O

N
E

S
G

E
N

R
E

P
A

IR
S

&
M

A
IN

T
C

E
L

L
PH

O
N

E
S

C
H

E
C

K
3
0
8
7
5
7

T
O

T
A

L
:

0
3
/1

6
/2

0
1
8

8
u
ll

e
t

P
ro

o
f

V
e
st

-
E

d
g
e
c
o
m

b
U

N
IF

O
R

N
S

O
T

H
E

R
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T

8
1
1
.3

3

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8

7
5

8
T

O
T

A
L

:
1
,

1
3
4

.3
0

3
0
8
7
5
9

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

PR
T

D
9

9
7

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
8E

R
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

In
v

o
ic

e
:

7
4
1
0

9
9

R
e
s
ta

u
ra

n
t

7
4

1
0

9
9
R

e
s
ta

u
ra

n
t

0
3
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

lo
d
s
in

g
r
e
s
e
r
v

a
ti

o
n

&
m

e
a
l

1
8

.6
5

1
2
2
0
6
6
0

5
6
1
0
0

T
R

A
V

E
L

A
P

1
8
5
9

1
8

.6
5

In
v

o
ic

e
:

9
5
7
2

M
S

F
T

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
3
5
7
2

N
E

F
T

1
8

0
.0

0
1
2
2
1
0
0
0

5
5
1
4
0

0
3
/0

2
/2

0
1
5

O
U

T
L

O
O

K
3

6
5

E
M

A
IL

0
3
1
8

E
M

A
IL

/I
N

T
E

R
N

E
T

7
2
1
6

C
A

PE
A

IR
0
3
/1

9
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

F
L

IG
H

T
-C

O
N

N
E

C
T

2
0
1
8

-
C

W
O

O
L

FO
L

K
T

R
A

IN
IN

G

C
k

g
-B

H
G

e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

8
0
6
6

In
v
o
ic

e
:

1
5

8
9

7
2

IN
V

O
IC

E

A
C

A
D

IA
F

U
E

L
L

L
C

P
3

a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

11
W

D
A

T
E

P
0

W
A

R
R

A
N

T
N

E
T

A
P

1
8
5
9

2
6

2
.5

8

3
0
8
7
5
8

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v
o
ic

e
:

5
1
-8

0
6
1
9
1
1
2

1
9

8
4

IL
L

IN
O

IS
B

E
L

L
T

E
L

E
P

H
O

N
E

C
O

M
PA

N
Y

U
0
3
0
6
2
0
1
8

4
1

1
.3

3
1
5
5
0
1
0
0

5
5
1
3
0

7
5

.0
0

1
5
5
1
5
0
0

5
5
1
3
0

3
0

.0
0

1
5

5
2

0
0

0
5
5
4
0
0

2
9

5
.0

0
1
5
5
0
5
5
2

5
5
1
3
0

2
2
8
3

A
T

L
A

N
T

IC
T

A
C

T
IC

A
L

IN
C

S
I-

8
0
6
l9

1
1
2

5
6

7
.1

5
1
4
4
0
1
1
0

5
3
8
0
0

5
6

7
.1

5
2
1
4
0
1
1
3

5
7
5
0
0

8
1
1
.3

3

A
P

1
8

5
9

1
,1

3
4
.3

0

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

A
P

1
8
5
9

1
8

0
.0

0

2
7
7
.

9
9

In
v

o
ic

e
:

7
2
1
6

C
A

P
E

A
IR

2
7

7
.9

9
1
2
2
0
1
1
0

5
4
1
0
0



0
3
/2

9
/2

0
1
8

1
6
:1

2
G

9
O

S
ly

o
u

C
A

S
H

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
:

1
0

0
C

H
E

C
K

N
O

CH
IC

D
A

T
E

1
0
1
0
0

T
Y

P
E

V
E

N
D

O
R

N
A

M
E

T
o
w

n
o

f
M

o
u
n
t

D
e
s
e
rt

A
/P

C
A

SH
D

IS
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

S
JO

U
R

N
A

L

IN
V

O
IC

E
W

A
R

R
A

N
T

IN
V

O
IC

E
D

T
L

D
E

S
C

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
6
0
1

s
h
e
ll

O
il

1
6

0
1

S
h

e
ll

O
il

0
2
/2

1
/2

0
1
8

9
6
5

A
P

1
B

S
9

fo
o
d

fo
r

d
e
fe

n
s
iv

e
d
ri

v
in

g
c
la

s
s

2
1

.7
5

1
5

5
0

1
0

0
5
4
1
0
0

T
R

A
IN

IN
G

In
v

o
ic

e
:

9
3
6
9

T
a
n

T
u

rt
le

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
9

3
6

9
T

an
T

u
rt

le

7
0

.0
0

1
5
5
0
1
0
0

5
4
1
0
0

0
2
/2

2
/2

0
1
8

9
7

1
fo

o
d

fo
r

c
la

s
s

b
j

T
R

A
IN

IN
G

A
P

1
8
5

9
7

0
.0

0

In
v

o
ic

e
:

3
5
8
7

G
lo

b
a
l

In
d
u
s
tr

i

In
v

o
ic

e
:

9
4
5
9

G
lo

b
a
l

In
d
u
s
tr

In
v

o
ic

e
:

7
0
6
0

P
o
w

e
rc

a
ll

s
ir

e
n
s

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
1
2
0

5
.1

1
T

a
c
ti

c
a
l

3
5
8
7

G
lo

b
a
l

In
d
u
s
tr

iO
3
/1

6
/2

O
1

8
9
8

1
f
lo

o
r

p
a
d

b
j

2
0

.6
9

1
5

5
0

1
0

0
5
5
2
0
0

B
L

D
G

R
E

P
A

IR
&

M
A

IN
T

9
4
5
9

G
lo

b
a
l

In
d
u
s
tr

0
3
/1

7
/2

0
1
8

9
7

9
A

P
1
8
5
9

O
re

c
k

O
rb

it
e
r

f
lo

o
r

m
a
c
h

in
e

b
j

4
0

5
.1

5
1

5
5

0
1

0
0

5
5
2
0
0

B
L

D
G

R
E

P
A

IR
&

f4
A

IN
T

0
3

1
4

G
lo

b
a
l

In
d

u
s
tr

io
3

/2
1

/2
0

1
8

9
8

3
c
le

a
n

in
g

p
a
d

s
b
j

6
2

.4
7

1
5

5
0

1
0

0
5
5
2
0
0

B
L

D
G

R
E

P
A

IR
&

M
A

IN
T

0
9
1
2

S
u

n
d

a
y

R
iv

e
r

0
3
/1

2
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

L
o

d
g

in
g

fo
r

P
ro

p
T

a
x

I
n

s
ti

tu
te

1
6
2
.1

1
1
2
2
0
6
6
0

5
6
1
0
0

T
R

A
V

E
L

7
0
6
0

P
o
w

e
rc

a
ll

s
ir

e
n
s
o
3
/0

8
/2

0
1
B

9
7
7

FD
W

in
d
o
w

S
ti

c
k
e
rs

1
9
0
.9

1
1
4
4
0
3
3
0

5
3
0
0
0

O
F

F
IC

E
S

U
P

P
L

IE
S

1
1
2
0

5
.1

1
T

a
c
ti

c
a
l

0
3
/1

9
/2

0
1
8

9
8

4
D

u
ty

P
a
n

ts
5
6
.8

3
1

4
4

0
3

3
0

5
3
8
0
0

U
N

IF
O

R
M

S

In
v

o
ic

e
:

3
9
7
6

D
O

D
E

m
a
ll

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
3

9
7

6
D

O
D

E
m

a
ll

0
3
/2

2
/2

0
1
8

9
0
2

F
o
re

s
tr

y
B

la
d
d

e
r

B
a
g
s

1
3
3
.8

6
1

4
4

0
3

3
0

5
7
1
0
0

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

A
P

1
8

5
9

1
3
3
.8

6

In
v

o
ic

e
:

4
0
5
7

D
O

D
E

m
a
ll

4
0
5
7

D
O

D
E

m
a
ll

0
3
/2

2
/2

0
1
8

9
8

2
F

o
re

s
tr

y
B

la
d
d

e
r

B
a
g
s

1
7

0
.2

5
1

4
4

0
3

3
0

5
7
1
0
0

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
0

0
5

7
O

tt
e
r
b

o
x

/l
if

e
p
0
3
/O

3
/2

0
l8

A
P

1
8

5
9

C
e
ll

P
h

o
n

e
O

tt
e
r

B
o
x

-
G

u
il

d
fo

rd
5

.9
9

1
4

4
0

1
1

0
5
3
0
0
0

O
F

F
IC

E
S

U
P

P
L

IE
S

In
v

o
ic

e
:

4
0
7
5

L
L

B
e
a
n

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
4

0
7

5
L

L
B

e
a
n

1
8

4
.7

5
1
4
4
0
8
0
0

5
3
8
0
0

0
3
/1

6
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

L
L

B
e
a
n

D
is

p
a
tc

h
S

h
ir

ts
-

C
a
m

p
b

e
ll

U
N

IF
O

R
M

S

1
8

4
.7

5

2
9

4
1

P
a
y
P

a
l

B
lu

e
li

n
e
O

3
/2

0
/2

0
l8

A
P

1
8

5
9

P
ro

te
c
ti

n
g

S
c
h
o

o
ls

T
ra

in
in

g
-

E
d

g
e
c
o

n
t

T
R

A
IN

IN
G

C
k

g
-B

H
G

e
n
e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

8
0

6
6

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

IN
V

D
A

T
E

PC

P
4

a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

N
E

T

2
1
.7

5

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
In

v
o

ic
e
:

0
3
1
4

G
lo

b
a
l

In
d
u
s
tr

i

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
In

v
o

ic
e
:

0
9
1
2

S
u
n
d
a
y

R
iv

e
r

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

A
P

1
8
5

9
2

0
.6

9

4
0
5

.1
5

A
P

1
B

S
9

6
2

.4
7

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

A
P

1
8
5
9

A
P

1
8

5
9

In
v

o
ic

e
:

0
0
5
7

O
tt

e
r
b
o
x
/l

if
e

p

1
6
2

.1
1

1
9
0

.9
1

5
6

.8
3

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
P

a
y
P

a
l

B
lu

e
li

n
e

A
P

1
8

5
9

1
7

0
.2

5

5
.

99

3
5

0
.0

0
In

v
o

ic
e
:

2
9
4
1

3
5

0
.0

0
1

4
4

0
1

1
0

5
4
1
0
0



0
3
/2

9
/2

0
1
0

1
6

:1
2

G
D

O
5
ly

o
u

T
o
w

i
o
f

M
o
u
n
t

D
e
s
e
rt

A
/P

C
A

S
H

D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

JO
U

R
N

A
L

C
A

S
H

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
:

1
0

0
C

H
E

C
K

N
O

0
1
K

D
A

T
E

1
0
1
0
0

T
Y

P
E

V
E

N
D

O
R

N
M

IE

IN
V

O
IC

E
0

T
h

D
E

S
C

In
v

o
ic

e
:

0
5
1
0

A
M

A
Z

oN
PM

C
R

0
5

1
8

A
M

A
ZO

N
PM

C
R

0
2
/2

6
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

C
R

E
D

IT
FO

R
S

A
L

E
S

T
A

X
O

N
P

R
IO

R
S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

-1
.2

6
1

4
4

0
1

1
0

5
3
0
0
0

O
F

F
IC

E
S

U
P

P
L

IE
S

In
v
o
ic

e
:

6
3
9
6

A
M

A
Z

O
N

PM
C

RC
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
6

3
9

6
A

M
A

Z
O

N
PM

C
R

0
2
/2

6
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

C
R

E
D

IT
FO

R
S

A
L

E
S

T
A

X
O

N
P

R
IO

R
M

O
N

T
H

S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
-2

.1
2

1
4

4
0

1
1

0
5
3
0
0
0

O
F

F
IC

E
S

U
P

P
L

IE
S

In
v
o
ic

e
:

2
6
6
7

s
ta

p
le

s
C

A
R

D
M

E
M

B
E

R
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

2
6
6
7

s
ta

p
le

s
0

2
/2

2
/2

0
1
8

9
8
5

o
f
f
ic

e
s
u

p
p

li
e
s

4
0

3
.9

5
6
0
1
0
1
0
0

5
3
0
0
0

O
F

F
IC

E
S

U
P

P
L

IE
S

A
P

1
0

5
9

4
0

3
.9

5

In
v

o
ic

e
:

0
2
7
7

B
o
a
tw

is
e

0
2

7
7

B
o
a
tw

is
e

0
3
/0

1
/2

0
1
0

9
8
5

b
o
a
tw

is
e

M
ar

k
P

ig
li

s
i

T
R

A
IN

IN
G

A
P

1
B

S
9

2
9

5
.0

0

In
v
o
ic

e
:

9
6
1
1

H
o

li
d

a
y

In
n

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
9

6
1

1
H

o
li

d
a
y

In
n

2
8

3
.3

8
6
0
1
0
1
0
0

5
4
1
0
0

0
3
/1

1
/2

0
1
8

9
8
5

A
P

1
B

S
9

m
o

te
l

ro
o
m

M
a
rk

P
u
g
li

s
i

b
o
a
tw

is
e

tr
a
in

in
g

T
R

A
IN

IN
G

2
8
3
.3

0

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
D

O
U

B
L

E
T

R
E

E
PM

0
4
6
9

D
O

U
B

L
E

T
R

E
E

PM
0
2
/2

4
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
0

5
9

S
A

L
E

S
T

A
X

C
R

E
D

IT
FR

O
M

P
R

IO
R

M
O

N
TH

-0
.0

2
1
4
4
0
1
1
0

5
4
1
1
0

L
O

D
G

IN
G

In
v

o
ic

e
:

0
4
7
7

D
O

U
B

L
E

T
R

E
E

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

PM
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

0
4
7
7

D
O

U
B

L
E

T
R

E
E

PM
0
2
/2

4
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

S
A

L
E

S
T

A
X

C
R

E
D

IT
FR

O
M

P
R

IO
R

M
O

N
T

H
3

D
A

Y
S

-2
6
.4

6
1
4
4
0
1
1
0

5
4
1
1
0

L
O

D
G

IN
G

-2
6

.4
6

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
0
7
3
6

M
S

F
T

7
2
.0

0
1
2
2
1
0
0
0

5
5
1
4
0

0
3
/1

5
/2

0
1
8

O
U

T
L

O
O

K
3

6
5

E
M

A
IL

0
3
1
8

E
M

A
IL

/I
N

T
E

R
N

E
T

A
P

1
8

5
9

7
2

.0
0

In
v

o
ic

e
:

2
5
4
0

G
0
0
0
L

E
C

A
R

D
M

E
M

B
E

R
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

2
5

4
0

G
O

O
G

L
E

5
6

.5
0

1
2
2
0
2
2
0

5
3
0
0
0

0
3
/2

2
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8
5
9

F
R

A
U

D
U

L
E

N
T

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
-T

O
B

E
R

E
V

E
R

S
E

D
P

E
R

CW
O

F
F

IC
E

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S

5
6

.5
0

In
v
o
ic

e
:

2
5
3
1

G
O

G
G

L
E

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
2
5
3
1

0
0

0
G

L
E

5
6

.5
0

1
2
2
0
2
2
0

5
3
0
0
0

0
3
/2

2
/2

0
1
0

A
P

1
8

5
9

F
R

A
U

D
U

L
E

N
T

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
-T

O
B

E
R

E
V

E
R

S
E

D
P

E
R

0
1

O
F

F
IC

E
S

U
P

P
L

IE
S

5
6

.5
0

In
v
o
ic

e
:

9
7
9
5

G
O

G
G

L
E

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
9
7
9
5

G
C

O
G

L
E

5
2

.1
7

1
2
2
0
2
2
0

5
3
0
0
0

0
3
/2

3
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
O

S
9

F
R

A
U

D
U

L
E

N
T

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
-T

O
B

E
R

E
V

E
R

S
E

D
P

E
R

CW
O

F
F

IC
E

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S

5
2

.17

In
v
o
ic

e
:

0
1
5
2

G
O

O
G

L
E

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
3

1
5

2
G

O
G

G
L

E

4
5

.9
4

1
2
2
0
2
2
0

5
3
0
0
0

0
3
/2

3
/2

0
2
0

A
P

1
8
5
9

F
R

A
U

D
U

L
E

N
T

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
-T

O
B

E
R

E
V

E
R

S
E

D
P

E
R

CW
O

F
F

IC
E

S
U

P
P

L
IE

S

4
5

.
9

4

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
1
9
9
8

C
L

A
R

IO
N

H
O

T
E

L
S

0
2
/2

7
/2

0
1
8

T
o
w

n
M

a
n

a
g
e
r

E
x

p
e
n

s
e

TO
W

N
M

G
R

E
X

P
E

N
S

E

A
P

1
8
5
9

8
2

.4
6

C
k
g
-B

H
G

e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

8
0
6
6

I
N

V
O

IC
E

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

P
5

a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

IN
V

D
A

T
E

P
0

W
A

R
R

A
N

T
N

E
T

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

In
v
o
ic

e
:

0
4
6
9

-1
.2

6

—
2

.1
2

2
9

5
.0

0
6
0
1
0
1
0
0

5
4
1
0
0

In
v

o
ic

e
:

0
7
3
6

M
S

F
T

—
0

.8
2

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
9
9
8

C
L

A
R

IO
N

H
O

T
E

L
S

8
2

.4
6

1
2
2
0
1
1
0

5
2
7
0
0



P
6

a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

0
3
/2

9
/2

0
1
8

1
6

:1
2

6
9
O

5
ly

o
u

C
A

S
H

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
:

1
0

0
C

H
E

C
K

N
O

CH
IC

D
A

T
E

T
o
w

n
o
f

M
o
u
n
t

D
e
s
e
rt

A
/P

C
A

S
H

D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

JO
U

R
N

A
L

1
0

1
0

0
C

k
g

-B
H

G
e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

8
0

6
6

T
Y

P
E

V
E

N
D

O
R

N
A

M
E

IN
V

O
IC

E

IN
V

O
IC

E
D

T
L

P
E

S
C

In
v

o
ic

e
:

4
4

1
3

C
L

A
R

IO
N

H
O

T
E

L
S

4
4

1
3

C
L

A
R

IO
N

H
O

T
E

L
S

0
3
/0

6
/2

0
1
8

C
R

E
D

IT
O

N
H

O
T

E
L

C
A

N
C

E
L

L
A

T
IO

N
-8

2
.4

6
1

2
2

0
1

1
0

5
2
7
0
0

TO
W

N
N

O
R

E
X

P
E

N
S

E

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8
7

5
9

T
O

T
A

L
:

3
3

3
8

.1
8

3
0

8
7

6
0

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

PR
T

D
In

v
o

ic
e
:

5
0
1
0
0
8
9
2
6
5

2
2
2
8

C
IN

T
A

S
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
IO

N
N

O
.

2
5
0
1
0
0
8
9
2
6
5

1
8

1
.6

7
1

5
5

0
1

0
0

5
5
4
0
0

0
2
/2

8
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8
5
9

m
e
d
ic

a
l

s
u
p
p

li
e
s

b
j

G
E

N
R

E
P

A
IR

S
&

M
A

IN
T

1
8
1
.6

7

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8

7
6

0
T

O
T

A
L

:
1
8
1

.6
7

3
0
8
7
6
1

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

PR
T

D
In

v
o

ic
e
:

3
3

4
7

9
6

1
5

2
8

C
L

E
A

N
-0

-
R

A
J1

A
3

3
4

7
9

6

2
5
5
.0

5
1

5
5

0
1

0
0

5
5
2
0
0

0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
8

fl
o
o
r

c
le

a
n

e
r

b
j

B
L

D
G

R
E

P
A

IR
&

M
A

IN
T

A
P

1
B

S
9

2
5
5

.0
5

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8
7

6
1

T
O

T
A

L
:

2
5
5

.0
5

1
2
7

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

T
IR

E
S

E
R

V
IC

E
IN

C
1

2
2

0
1

7

2
0

.0
0

1
5
5
0
1
0
0

5
5
4
0
0

0
3
/2

1
/2

0
1
8

T
R

A
C

K
L

E
S

S
T

IR
E

C
H

A
N

G
E

D
A

L
G

E
N

R
E

P
A

IR
S

&
M

A
IN

T

A
P

1
8

5
9

2
0
.0

0

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8
7
6

2
T

O
T

A
L

:
2

0
.0

0

3
0
8
7
5
3

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v

o
ic

e
:

W
a
rr

a
n

t
C

o
rn

-l
B7

9
9

E
M

IL
Y

D
D

A
M

O
N

W
a
rr

a
n
t

C
o
rn

-l
B

3
9

0
.0

0
1
2
2
0
0
0
1

5
3
9
1
0

0
3
/1

5
/2

0
1

8
W

a
rr

a
n

t
C

o
m

m
it

te
e

D
in

n
e
r

W
A

R
R

A
N

T
C

O
M

N
IT

T
E

E
X

P
E

N
S

E

A
P

1
B

S
9

3
9
0
.0

0

C
H

E
C

K
3
0

8
7

6
3

T
O

T
A

L
:

3
9
0

.0
0

3
0
0
7
6
4

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

PR
T

D
In

v
o

ic
e
:

7
7

2
2

1
6

8
1
9

D
A

R
L

IN
G

S
7
7
2
2
1
5

0
3
/0

7
/2

0
1

8
A

P
1
B

S
9

W
h
ee

l
H

ub
A

ss
e
m

b
ly

1
4
8
.7

8
1
4
4
0
1
1
0

5
5
1
0
0

4
1

0
8

V
E

H
IC

L
E

R
E

P
A

IR
-1

7
F

o
rd

E
x

p
-P

o
l

1
4
8
.7

8

C
H

E
C

K
3
0

8
7
6

4
T

O
T

A
L

:
1
4
8
.7

8

3
0

0
7

5
5

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
1

2
5

3
3

5
5

7
-0

1
1
9
6

E
L

L
SW

O
R

T
H

B
U

IL
D

E
R

S
U

P
P

L
Y

IN
C

1
1
2
5
3
3
5
5
7
—

0
1

0
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
8

c
o
ld

p
a
tc

h
b
j

t4
IS

C
-0

L
D

PA
T

C
H

A
P

1
B

S
9

5
4

8
.0

0

In
v

o
ic

e
:

II
2
5
3
5
2
4
2
-0

1
E

L
L

SW
O

R
T

H
B

U
IL

D
E

R
S

U
P

P
L

Y
IN

C
0
3
/1

3
/2

0
1
8

B
u
n
g
e
e

C
o

rd
s-

E
M

O
T

H
E

R
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T

A
P

1
B

S
9

5
.9

7

C
A

R
D

M
E

M
B

E
R

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

IN
V

P
A

T
E

P
0

W
A

R
R

A
N

T
N

E
T

A
P

1
8
5
9

-0
2
.4

6

3
0
8
7
6
2

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

PR
T

D
In

v
o

ic
e
:

1
2
2
0
1
7

5
4

8
.0

0
1

5
5

0
1

0
0

5
3
7
3
0

7
3
1

1
1
2
5
3
5
2
4
2
-0

1

5
.9

7
1
5
5
0
5
5
2

5
3
9
0
0



C

0
3
/2

9
/2

0
1
8

1
6

:1
2

6
9
0

5
1
y
o
u

T
o
w

n
o

f
M

o
u
n
t

D
e
s
e
rt

A
/P

C
A

S
H

D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

JO
U

R
N

A
LC

*
P

7
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

C
A

S
H

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
:

1
0
0

C
H

E
C

K
N

O
C

H
K

D
A

T
E

1
0

1
0

0
C

k
g

-B
H

G
e
n
e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

8
0

6
6

T
Y

P
E

V
E

N
D

O
R

N
A

M
E

I
N

V
O

IC
E

IN
V

D
A

T
E

P
0

IN
V

O
IC

E
D

T
L

D
E

S
C C

H
E

C
K

3
0

8
7

6
5

T
O

T
A

L
:

N
E

T

5
5

3
.9

7

7
9
3
6
1

2
1

.9
1

1
5
5
0
1
0
0

5
5
4
0
0

0
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
0

C
H

A
IN

SA
W

F
IL

E
S

A
L

G
E

N
R

E
P

A
IR

S
&

M
A

IN
T

A
P

1
S

S
9

2
1

.9
1

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8

7
6

6
T

O
T

A
L

:
2
1

.9
1

3
0

8
7

6
7

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

P
R

T
D

1
8
4
2

In
v
o
ic

e
:

1
0
0
5
7
3
5
2
-4

0
3

0
9

1
0

E
M

E
R

A
M

A
IN

E
1
0
0
5
7
3
5
2
—

4

1
,6

7
0

.2
0

1
4
4
0
6
0
0

5
5
0
1
2

0
3
0
9
1
8

0
3
/0

9
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

6
2

1
0

k
w

h
s
tr

e
e
t

li
g

h
ts

u
n
it

4
3

1
b
j

S
T

R
E

E
T

L
IG

H
T

S
-M

E
R

C
U

R
Y

V
A

PO
R

1
,6

7
0

.2
0

In
v
o
ic

e
:

1
0

5
3

2
1

6
4

—
0

0
3
0
4
1
8

E
M

E
R

A
M

A
IN

E

1
5

.7
1

1
5
5
2
5
0
0

5
5
0
1
0

0
3
0
4
1
0

0
3
/0

4
/2

0
1
0

0
k
w

h
S

H
c
o
m

fo
rt

s
ta

ti
o

n
ts

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
IT

Y

A
P

1
8

5
9

1
5

.7
1

In
v
o
ic

e
:

1
0
0
5
7
3
3
5
-9

In
v
o
ic

e
:

1
0
0
5
7
3
3
9
-7

0
3

0
4

1
0

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
0

0
5

7
3

4
2

—
3

0
3
0
4
1
8

In
v
o
ic

e
:

1
0

0
0

3
3

1
0

—
8

0
3

0
5

1
8

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
0

0
5

7
3

2
4

—
5

0
3
0
5
1
8

E
M

E
R

A
M

A
IN

E

1
0

0
5

7
3

3
5

-9

2
0

5
.5

0
1
5
5
0
6
6
8

5
5
0
1
0

1
0

0
5

7
3

3
9

—
7

1
,3

7
5
.9

4
1
5
5
0
6
6
9

5
5
0
1
0

1
0

0
5

7
3

4
2

-3

4
,1

3
1
.0

8
1
5
5
0
6
6
8

5
5
0
1
0

0
3
0
4
1
8

0
3
/0

4
/2

0
1
8

1
1

5
5

kw
h

c
o

o
k

se
y

P
S

ts
E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

IT
Y

0
3
0
4
1
8

0
3
/0

4
/2

0
1
8

5
8

0
0

k
w

h
O

C
P

S
ts

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
IT

Y

0
3
0
4
1
8

0
3
/0

4
/2

0
1
8

2
6
0
0
0

k
w

h
SM

W
W

T
P

ts
E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

IT
Y

0
3
0
5
1
8

0
3

/0
5
/2

0
1
8

1
5
8

k
w

h
R

o
w

la
n

d
R

d
P

S
E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

IT
Y

0
3
0
5
1
8

0
3

/0
5
/2

0
1
8

2
4

8
k
w

h
s
e
a

s
tr

e
e
t

u
n
it

4
3

5
E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

IT
Y

A
P

1
8

5
9

e
le

c
y

tr
ic

b
i
l
l

b
j

1
,3

7
5

,9
4

4
,

1
3
1

.0
8

4
0
.6

3

In
v
o
ic

e
:

1
0

0
5

7
3

2
5

—
0

0
3

0
5

1
8

E
M

E
R

A
M

A
IN

E
1

0
0

5
7

3
2

5
-8

1
4
5
6
.5

0
1
5
5
2
0
0
0

5
5
0
1
0

0
3
0
5
1
8

0
3

/0
5
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

7
3

7
0

kw
h

s
e
a

S
t

u
n
it

4
0

7
e
le

c
tr

ic
b
il

l
b
j

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
IT

Y

1
,4

5
6
,5

0

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
0
0
5
7
3
2
8
-4

0
3
0
9
1
8

E
M

E
R

A
M

A
IN

E
1
0
0
5
7
3
2
8
—

4

1
,5

1
0

.6
4

1
4
4
0
6
0
0

5
5
0
1
3

0
3
0
9
1
8

0
3

/0
9
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8
S

9
1
9
0
0

k
w

h
s
tr

e
e
t

li
g
h
ts

h
p
s

u
n
it

4
3

1
S

T
R

E
E

T
L

IG
H

T
S

-
H

I
P

R
E

S
S

S
O

D
IU

M

1
,5

1
0

.6
4

In
v
o
ic

e
:

1
0
5
4
5
1
9
6
-3

0
3
0
5
1
8

E
M

E
R

A
M

A
IN

E
1

0
5

4
5

1
9

6
-3

1
5

.9
1

1
5
5
2
0
0
0

5
5
0
1
0

0
3
0
5
1
8

0
3

/0
5
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

1
5

.9
1

2
k
w

h
4
o

h
a
rb

o
r

d
ri

v
e

u
n
it

c
h

a
rg

e
r

e
le

c
tr

ic
b
il

l
b
j

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
IT

Y

0
3
0
5
1
8

0
3

/0
5
/2

0
1
8

80
k
w

h
M

a
ri

n
a

p
o

w
e
r

3
0

8
7

6
6

0
4

/0
2
/2

0
1

8
P

R
T

D
In

v
o

ic
e
:

7
9
3
6
1

1
9

7
E

L
L

S
W

O
R

T
H

C
H

A
IN

S
A

W
IN

C

W
A

R
R

A
N

T

0
3
0
4
1
8

1
0

5
3

2
1

6
4

—
0

E
M

E
R

A
M

A
IN

E

E
M

E
R

A
M

A
IN

E

E
M

E
R

A
M

A
IN

E

E
M

E
R

A
M

A
IN

E

1
0
0
0
3
3
1
8
-8

4
0

.6
3

1
5
5
0
6
6
0

5
5
0
1
0

1
0
0
5
7
3
2
4
-5

5
5

.3
6

1
5
5
2
5
0
0

5
5
0
1
0

A
P

1
8

5
9

2
0

5
.5

8

A
P

1
O

S
9

A
P

1
8
S

9

A
P

1
8

5
9

ts

5
5

.3
6

E
M

E
R

A
M

A
IN

E
In

v
o
ic

e
:

1
0
5
5
8
3
1
5
-3

0
3
0
5
1
8

1
0
5
5
8
3
1
5
—

3
A

P
1

8
S

9
6
2
2
.8

3



0
3
/2

9
/2

0
1
8

1
6
:1

2
6
9
0
5
1
y
o
u

C
A

S
H

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
:

1
0

0
C

H
E

C
K

N
O

C
H

K
D

A
T

E

T
o
w

n
o
f

M
o
u
n
t

D
e
s
e
rt

A
/P

C
A

S
H

D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

JO
U

R
N

A
L

1
0
1
0
0

C
k

g
-B

H
T

Y
P

E
V

E
N

D
O

R
1A

1E
G

e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

8
0

6
6

IN
V

O
IC

E
IN

V
D

A
T

E
P

0

IN
V

O
IC

E
D

fl
D

E
S

C

6
2
2
.8

]
6
0
1
0
1
0
0

5
5
0
1
0

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
IT

Y

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
0

5
5

8
3

1
6

-5
0

3
0

5
1

8
E

M
E

R
A

M
A

IN
E

1
0

5
5

8
3

1
6

-5

2
,0

9
1

.4
0

6
0
1
0
1
0
0

5
5
0
1
0

0
3

0
5

1
8

0
3
/0

5
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8
5
9

1
1
6
0
0

k
w

h
m

a
ri

n
a

p
o
w

e
r

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
IT

Y

2
•
0
9

1
.4

0

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
0

0
5

7
3

2
3

-3
0

3
0

5
1

8

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
0

0
5

7
3

3
7

-3
0
3
0
5
1
8

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
0

0
5

7
3

3
4

-6
0
3
0
5
1
8

2
8

.4
6

6
0
1
0
1
0
0

5
5
0
1
0

1
0
0
5
7
3
3
7
—

3

4
1

3
.0

8
1
5
5
0
6
6
8

5
5
0
1
0

1
0

0
5

7
3

3
4

-6

1
,0

1
6

.1
0

1
5
5
0
6
6
6

5
5
0
1
0

0
3

0
5

1
8

0
3
/0

5
/2

0
1
8

8
2

k
w

h
y
a
c
h
ts

m
e
n

p
o
w

e
r

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
IT

Y

0
3

0
5

1
8

0
3
/0

5
/2

0
1
8

2
4

3
3

k
w

h
B

C
P

S
ts

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
IT

Y

0
3

0
5

1
8

0
3
/0

5
/2

0
1
8

3
6
1
1

kw
h

S
e
a

S
t.

P
S

ts
E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

IT
Y

A
P

1
8
5
9

2
8

.4
6

4
1

3
.0

8

1
•
0

1
6
.1

0

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
0
0
0
3
3
1
9
-0

0
3
0
7
1
8

E
M

E
R

A
M

A
IN

E
1
0
0
0
3
3
1
9
—

0

5
,9

8
6

.4
4

1
5

5
0

6
6

6
5
5
0
1
0

0
3

0
7

1
8

0
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
8

3
8
7
2
0

k
w

h
N

E
R

T
P

te
E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

IT
Y

A
P

1
8
5

9
5
,9

8
6

.4
4

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
0

0
5

7
3

2
2

-1
0

3
0

8
1

8
E

M
E

R
A

M
A

IN
E

1
0
0
5
7
3
2
2
—

1
0

3
0

8
1

8
0
3
/0

8
/2

0
1
8

4
9

k
w

h
S

g
t.

D
r.

P
S

ts
2

2
.7

7
1

5
5

0
6

6
6

5
5
0
1
0

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
IT

Y

A
P

1
8

5
9

2
2
.7

7

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
0

0
5

7
3

2
9

-6
0
3
0
7
1
0

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
0
0
5
7
3
4
3
—

5
0
3
0
7
1
8

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
0

0
5

7
3

4
1

-1
0

3
1

0
1

8

E
M

E
R

A
M

A
IN

E

E
M

E
R

A
M

A
IN

E

E
M

E
R

A
M

A
IN

S

1
0
0
5
7
3
2
9
—

6
0

3
0

7
1

8
0
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
8

5
6

6
8

kw
h

G
il

p
a
t

c
v

P
S

ts
1
,2

4
3
.2

1
1
5
5
0
6
6
6

5
5
0
1
0

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
IT

Y

1
0
0
5
7
3
4
3
—

5
0

3
0

7
1

8
0
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
8

1
2
5
0

kw
h

p
s

ts
2

1
9

.4
0

1
5

5
0

6
6

6
5
5
0
1
0

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
IT

Y

1
0
0
5
7
3
4
1
—

1
0

3
1

0
1

8
0
3
/1

0
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
R

S
9

2
k

w
h

J
o
y

R
o

a
d

P
o
o

l
E

le
c
tr

ic
it

y
1

5
.0

8
1

9
9

0
1

0
0

5
9
2
0
0

M
D

E
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

SC
H

O
O

L

C
H

E
C

K
3
0

8
7

6
7

T
O

T
A

L
:

2
2
,1

3
6

.3
2

1
3

9
8

F
A

S
T

E
N

A
L

C
O

M
PA

N
Y

M
E

E
L

S
4
1
6
3
O

1
0

7
.2

5
1

5
5

0
1

0
0

5
5
4
0
0

0
2
/2

6
/2

0
1
8

O
IL

PA
D

S
A

L
G

E
N

R
E

P
A

IR
S

&
M

A
IN

T

A
P

1
8
5

9
1
0
7

.2
5

In
v

o
ic

e
:

N
E

E
L

S
4
1
7
3
7

E
A

S
T

E
N

A
L

C
O

M
PA

N
Y

M
E

E
L

5
4

1
7

3
7

4
8
1
.5

2
1

5
5

0
1

0
0

5
5
4
0
0

0
3
/0

6
/2

0
1
8

B
R

A
K

E
C

L
E

A
N

A
N

D
IM

P
A

C
T

A
L

G
E

N
R

E
P

A
IR

S
Ft

I4
A

IN
T

A
P

1
8

5
9

4
8

1
.5

2

P
8

a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

W
A

R
R

A
N

T
N

E
T

E
M

E
R

A
M

A
IN

E

E
M

E
R

A
M

A
IN

E

E
M

E
R

A
M

A
IN

E

1
0
0
5
7
3
2
3
—

3

A
P

1
B

S
9

A
P

1
8
5
9

3
0

8
7

6
8

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v

o
ic

e
:

M
E

E
L

S
4
1
6
3
O

A
P

1
8
5
9

A
P

1
8
5

9

1
,2

4
3

.2
1

2
1

9
.4

0

1
5
.0

8

F
A

S
T

E
N

A
L

C
O

M
PA

N
Y

M
E

E
L

S
4

1
7

3
8

0
3
/0

6
/2

0
1
8

C
U

T
T

IN
G

W
H

E
E

L
S

A
L

G
E

N
R

E
P

A
IR

S
&

M
A

IN
T

A
P

1
8

S
9

4
.3

0
In

v
o

ic
e
:

M
E

E
L

5
4

1
7

3
8

4
.3

0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0

5
5
4
0
0



‘ç
*m

um
s

,
a
f
lr

p
so

lu
tio

n

0
3
/2

9
/2

0
1

8
1

6
:1

2
T

o
w

n
o
f

M
o
u
n
t

D
e
s
e
rt

p
9

6
9
0
5
1
y
o
u

A
/P

C
A

S
H

D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

JO
U

R
N

A
L

a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

C
A

S
H

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
:

1
0

0
1

0
1

0
0

C
k
g
-B

H
G

e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

8
0

5
6

C
H

E
C

K
N

O
C

H
K

D
A

T
E

T
Y

P
E

V
E

N
D

O
R

N
A

M
E

IN
V

O
IC

E
11

W
D

A
T

E
P

0
W

A
R

R
A

N
T

N
E

T

IN
V

O
IC

E
D

T
L

D
E

S
C C

H
E

C
K

3
0

0
7

6
8

T
O

T
A

L
:

5
9

3
.0

7

3
0
8
7
6
9

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

P
R

T
D

2
1
5

F
IR

E
T

E
C

H
&

S
A

F
E

T
Y

O
F

N
EW

E
N

G
L

A
N

D
1
7
0
1
9
9

0
3
/2

3
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

1
,1

5
3

.8
0

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
7
0
1
9
9

A
n
n
u
a
l

N
F

P
A

S
C

B
A

fl
o

w
te

s
ts

1
1
5
3
.8

0
1
4
4
0
3
3
0

5
5
2
0
0

B
L

D
G

R
E

P
A

IR
&

M
A

IN
T

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8

7
6

9
T

O
T

A
L

:
1
,1

5
3
.8

0

3
0

8
7

7
0

0
4

/0
2
/2

0
1

8
P

R
T

D
2
2
9
1

G
F

JO
H

N
S

T
O

N
&

A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S
L

L
C

0
1
1
1
2
0
8
6

0
3
/2

3
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
H

S
9

2
,5

8
3

.0
3

In
v

o
ic

e
:

0
1

1
1

2
0

8
6

R
t

1
9
0

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t

d
o

c
s

ts
2

,5
8

3
.0

3
3
0
0
0
0
3
8

5
7
7
1
0

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n
-B

u
d
g
e
t

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8

7
7

0
T

O
T

A
L

:
2

,5
8

3
.0

3

3
0
8
7
7
1

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

P
R

T
D

2
3
9
5

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
C

O
D

E
,C

M
S

L
L

C
P

C
0
0
0
0
0
3
0
6
5
7

0
3
/1

3
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
B

S
9

8
2
4
.0

0
In

v
o

ic
e
:

P
C

0
0
0
0
0
3
0
6
5
7

A
d
d
it

io
n
a
l

S
o

ft
w

a
re

L
ic

e
n
s
e

to
r

L
a
s
e
r
f
ic

h
e

8
2

4
.0

0
1
2
2
0
2
2
0

5
7
0
0
0

H
IS

T
O

R
IC

A
L

P
R

E
S

E
R

V
A

T
IO

N

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
0

7
7

1
T

O
T

A
L

:
8
2
4
.0

0

3
0
8
7
7
2

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

P
R

T
D

2
5
4

G
R

A
IN

G
E

R
9
7
9
8
9
2
5
2
9

0
3
/1

5
/2

0
1
8

9
7

8
A

P
1

8
5

9
5
9
.0

5
In

v
o

ic
e
:

8
7

9
8

9
2

5
2

9
N

it
r
il

e
G

lo
v

e
s

5
9

.0
5

1
4
4
0
3
3
0

5
3
1
1
0

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
S

U
P

P
L

IE
S

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8

7
7

2
T

O
T

A
L

:
5

9
.0

5

3
0

8
7

7
3

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

P
R

T
D

1
0
6
4

H
A

R
C

R
O

S
C

H
E

M
IC

A
L

S
IN

C
3

0
0

1
4

4
3

4
0

0
3
/1

3
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

1
,9

0
3

.3
8

In
v
o
ic

e
:

3
0

0
1

4
4

3
4

0
s
a
lt

b
j

1
,9

0
3

.3
0

1
5
5
0
1
0
0

5
3
2
0
0

S
A

L
T

&
S

A
N

D

H
A

R
C

R
O

S
C

H
E

M
IC

A
L

S
IN

C
3

0
0

1
4

4
3

4
1

0
3
/1

3
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
0

5
9

1
,8

0
6

.2
3

In
v
o
ic

e
:

3
0

0
1

4
4

3
4

1
s
a
lt

b
j

1
,8

0
6
.2

3
1
5
5
0
1
0
0

5
3
2
0
0

S
A

L
T

&
SA

N
D

H
A

R
C

R
O

S
C

H
E

M
IC

A
L

S
IN

C
3

0
0

1
4

4
4

0
8

0
3
/1

5
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
0
5
9

1
,8

8
5
.3

0
In

v
o
ic

e
:

3
0

0
1

4
4

4
0

0
s
a
lt

b
j

1
,0

8
5
.3

0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0

5
3
2
0
0

S
A

L
T

&
S

A
N

D

H
A

R
C

R
O

S
C

H
E

M
IC

A
L

S
IN

C
3

0
0

1
4

4
4

0
9

0
3
/1

6
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
B

S
9

1
,7

9
8
.8

9
In

v
o
ic

e
:

3
0

0
1

4
4

4
0

9
s
a
lt

b
j

1
,7

9
0
.8

9
1
5
5
0
1
0
0

5
3
2
0
0

S
A

L
T

&
SA

N
D

H
A

R
C

R
O

S
C

H
E

M
IC

A
L

S
IN

C
3

0
0

1
4

4
1

3
9

0
3
/0

1
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8
5
9

1
,3

4
0
.0

0
In

v
o

ic
e
:

3
0

0
1

4
4

1
3

9
PH

C
o
n
tr

o
l/

C
a
u

s
ti

c
f
o

r
N

E
H

W
W

T
P

-E
M

1
,3

4
0
.0

0
1

5
5

0
6

6
6

5
3
2
1
3

PH
C

O
N

T
R

O
L



0
3
/2

9
/2

0
1
8

1
6
:1

2
T

o
w

n
o

f
M

o
u
n
t

D
e
s
e
rt

—

p

6
9
0
5
1
y
o
u

A
/P

C
A

S
H

D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

JO
U

R
N

A
L

a
p

c
s
h
d

s
b

C
A

S
H

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
:

1
0
0

1
0

1
0

0
C

k
g
-E

H
G

e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

8
0

6
6

C
H

E
C

K
N

O
C

H
IC

D
A

T
E

T
Y

P
E

V
E

N
D

O
R

N
A

M
E

IN
V

O
IC

E
IN

V
D

A
T

E
PD

W
A

R
R

A
N

T
N

E
T

IN
V

O
IC

E
D

T
L

D
E

S
C C

H
E

C
K

3
0

6
7
7

3
T

O
T

A
L

:
6

7
3

3
.8

0

3
0
8
7
7
4

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v

o
ic

e
:

0
0

1
0

7
5

3
4

2
8
5

H
A

Y
E

S
PU

M
P

IN
C

-
(0

1
-N

C
)

0
0
1
0
7
5
3
4

6
0

1
.8

0
1

5
5

0
5

5
2

6
5
2
1
0

0
3

/0
7

/2
0

1
8

A
P

1
B

5
9

f
la

p
v
a
lv

e
a
s
s
e
m

b
ly

ts
PU

M
P

S
T

A
T

IO
N

M
A

IN
T

C
H

E
C

K
3
0

8
7

7
4

T
O

T
A

L
:

6
0
1

.8
0

3
0
8
7
7
5

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v

o
ic

e
:

4
1

8
3

5
1

2
0

—
0

0
1

2
3
9
3

H
P

IN
C

.
4

1
8

3
5

1
2

0
—

0
0

1

1
,3

5
8

.9
0

1
2

2
0

5
0

0
5
7
4
0
0

1
0
/1

8
/2

0
1

7
A

P
1
8

5
9

C
H

E
C

K
P

R
IN

T
E

R
R

E
P

L
A

C
E

M
E

N
T

FO
R

D
E

F
E

C
T

IV
E

E
Q

U
I

P
M

E
N

T
-T

E
C

H
H

O
W

E

1
,3

5
8

.9
0

In
v

o
ic

e
:

4
1
8
5
8
9
7
9
-0

0
0

H
P

IN
C

.
4

1
8

5
8

9
7

9
—

0
0

0

-1
,3

5
8

.9
0

1
2
2
0
5
0
0

5
7
4
0
0

1
1
/0

9
/2

0
1

7
A

P
1
8
S

9
C

H
E

C
K

P
R

IN
T

E
R

-
R

E
T

U
R

N
D

E
F

E
C

T
IV

E
E

Q
U

I
P

M
E

N
T

-T
E

C
H

H
O

W
E

In
v

o
ic

e
:

5
9

7
6

4
4

3
4

H
P

IN
C

.
5

9
7

6
4

4
3

4

1
2
4
.5

9
1
2
2
1
0
0
0

5
7
4
0
0

0
3
/1

2
/2

0
1
8

C
a
s
h
ie

ri
n
g

L
ab

S
e
t

u
p

E
Q

U
IP

-T
E

C
H

H
A

R
D

W
A

R
E

A
P

1
8

5
9

1
2
4

.5
9

C
H

E
C

K
3
0

8
7

7
5

T
O

T
A

L
:

1
2

4
.5

9

3
0

8
7

7
6

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
0
7
3
0
4

1
9
5
5

K
A

S
H

O
L

D
IN

G
S

IN
C

1
0
7
3
0
4

3
0
0
.0

0
1

5
5

0
5

5
2

5
4
6
0
0

0
2
/1

9
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8
5
9

L
o
w

L
e
v
e
l

M
e
rc

u
ry

T
e
s
ti

n
g

A
n
n

u
a
l

2
0
1

8
-E

M
O

U
T

S
ID

E
L

A
B

/T
E

S
T

IN
G

3
0
0
.0

0

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8

7
7

6
T

O
T

A
L

:
3
0

0
.0

0

3
0

8
7

7
7

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v

o
ic

e
:

2
5

2
0

6
9

5
3

T
H

E
M

A
H

E
R

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

2
5
2
0
6

2
,6

2
3

.9
8

1
5

5
0

6
6

7
5
5
4
0
0

0
3
/1

6
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8
5

9
U

V
L

a
m

p
s

a
n

d
S

le
e
v

e
s

f
o
r

S
V

W
W

TP
U

V
S

y
st

e
m

-E
M

G
E

N
R

E
P

A
IR

S
&

M
A

IN
T

2
,6

2
3
.9

8

C
H

E
C

K
3
0
8

7
7
7

T
O

T
A

L
:

2
,6

2
3
.9

8

3
0

8
7

7
8

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v

o
ic

e
:

6
0
4
5
7

3
1

6
4

3
6

7
1

3
.0

0
1
5
5
0
1
0
0

5
5
4
0
0

0
3
/2

0
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

5’
!

C
o

p
p

e
r

S
a
m

p
le

Q
1

-E
M

O
U

T
S

ID
E

L
A

B
/T

E
S

T
IN

G

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8
7

7
8

T
O

T
A

L
:

0
2
/2

8
/2

0
1
8

P
A

S
T

D
U

E
S

E
R

V
IC

E
C

H
A

R
G

E
A

L
G

E
N

R
E

P
A

IR
S

&
M

A
IN

T

3
5
.5

0

In
v

o
ic

e
:

3
1

6
1

7
3

0
6

M
A

IN
E

o
x

/
S

P
E

C
A

IR
3

1
6

1
7

3
0

6
0
1
/1

1
/2

0
1
8

T
O

R
C

H
G

A
S

A
L

A
P

1
8
5
9

8
2
.5

0

06
0

1
.8

0

-1
,3

5
8
.9

0

3
0
8
7
7
9

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

P
R

T
O

In
v

o
ic

e
:

3
1
6
4
3
6
7
1

1
1
5
3

M
A

IN
E

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

L
A

B
O

R
A

T
O

R
Y

L
L

6
0
4
5
7

3
5

.5
0

1
5
5
0
5
5
2

5
4
6
0
0

1
2
3
6

M
A

IN
E

o
x
v
/

S
P

E
C

A
IR

3
5

.5
0

A
P

1
8
5
9

3
.0

0



0
3
/2

9
/2

0
1
8

1
6

:1
2

T
o
”m

o
f

M
o
u
n
t

D
e
s
e
rt

p
i
i

G
9
O

5
ly

o
u

A
/P

C
A

SH
D

IS
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

S
JO

U
R

N
A

L
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

C
A

SH
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

:
1
0
0

1
0
1
0
0

C
k

g
-B

H
G

e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

8
0

5
6

C
H

E
C

K
N

O
CH

IC
D

A
T

E
T

Y
P

E
V

E
N

D
O

R
N

A
M

E
IN

V
O

IC
E

IN
V

D
A

T
E

P
0

W
A

R
R

A
N

T
N

E
T

IN
V

O
IC

E
D

T
L

D
E

S
C

8
2

.5
0

1
5

5
0

1
0

0
5
5
4
0
0

G
E

N
R

E
P

A
IR

S
&

M
A

IN
T

C
H

E
C

K
3
0
8
7
7
9

T
O

T
A

L
:

8
5

.5
0

3
0
8
7
8
0

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
6
0
3
7

4
1

3
M

C
N

E
L

E
C

T
R

IC
IN

C
1
6
0
3
7

1
4
0
.7

2
1
5
5
2
0
0
0

5
5
2
0
0

0
3
/0

7
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
O

S
9

1
4
0
.7

2
la

b
o
r

c
h

a
rg

e
e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y

e
x
it

b
a
c
k
-u

p
li

g
h

t
f
ix

tu
r
e
s

B
L

D
G

R
E

P
A

IR
&

M
A

IN
T

C
H

E
C

K
3
0
8
7
8
0

T
O

T
A

L
:

1
4

0
.7

2

3
0

0
7

0
1

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

PR
T

D
In

v
o
ic

e
:

6
2

9
9

0
3
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

2
0

1
8

M
e
e
ti

n
g

&
B

a
n
q
u
e
t

M
E

A
L

A
L

L
O

W
A

N
C

E
T

R
A

IN
IN

G

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8

7
8

1
T

O
T

A
L

,
1
5
5
.0

0

3
0

8
7

8
2

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

P
R

T
D

2
4

4
0

In
v

o
ic

e
:

2
0

1
9

O
V

E
R

P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
K

A
T

H
R

Y
N

A
M

IL
A

IR

4
,9

9
4
.4

2
1
0
0

2
0

1
9

O
V

E
R

P
A

1
2
0
1
9

Y
M

E
N

T
0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
0

A
P

1
8

5
9

R
E

F
U

N
D

O
F

O
V

E
R

PA
Y

M
E

N
T

O
N

2
0
1
9

A
C

C
T

1
4
7
0
R

E
R

E
T

a
x

e
s-

2
0

1
9

4
,

9
9

4
.
4
2

C
H

E
C

K
3
0
8
7
8
2

T
O

T
A

L
:

4
,9

9
4
.4

2

3
0
8
7
0
3

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
N

V
0
0
1
3
1
0
7
2

0
4
/0

1
/2

0
1
8

W
o
rk

e
r’

s
C

om
p

S
e
c
o
n
d

W
O

R
K

E
R

S
C

O
M

P
W

O
R

K
E

R
S

C
O

M
P

W
O

R
K

E
R

S
C

O
M

P
W

O
R

K
E

R
S

C
O

M
P

W
O

R
K

E
R

S
C

O
M

P
W

O
R

K
E

R
S

C
O

M
P

W
O

R
K

E
R

S
C

O
M

P
W

O
R

K
E

R
S

C
O

M
P

W
O

R
K

E
R

S
C

O
M

P
W

O
R

K
E

R
S

C
O

M
P

W
O

R
K

E
R

S
C

O
M

P
W

O
R

K
E

R
S

C
O

M
P

W
O

R
K

E
R

S
C

O
M

P
M

D
E

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
W

O
R

K
E

R
S

C
O

M
P

A
P

1
8

5
9

3
8

,9
2

5
.6

0
In

s
ta

ll
m

e
n

t

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8

7
8

3
T

O
T

A
L

:
3

8
,9

2
5

.6
0

3
0
8
7
8
4

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

PR
T

D
4

2
5

M
A

IN
E

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

IO
N

In
v

o
ic

e
:

T
ra

in
in

g
0
4
0
4
1
8

P
la

n
n
in

g
B

o
a
rd

T
ra

in
in

g
-

D
av

e
A

sh
m

o
re

PB
T

R
A

IN
IN

G

4
1
6

M
A

IN
E

C
H

IE
F

S
O

F
P

O
L

IC
E

A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
IO

6
2

9
9

8
0

.0
0

1
4
4
0
1
1
0

7
5

.0
0

1
4
4
0
1
1
0

5
4
1
4
0

5
4
1
0
0

(2
)

A
P

1
O

S
9

1
5
5
.0

0

4
2
7

M
A

IN
E

M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

IO
N

1
N

V
0
0
1
3
1
0
7
2

1
1

.6
0

1
2

2
0

0
0

1
5
2
0
2
0

2
1

4
.0

9
1
2
2
0
1
1
0

5
2
0
2
0

3
5

.0
3

1
2
2
0
2
2
0

5
2
0
2
0

3
5

0
.3

3
1
2
2
0
5
0
0

5
2
0
2
0

5
8

7
.7

8
1
2
2
0
6
6
0

5
2
0
2
0

4
4

3
.7

5
1
2
2
0
7
7
0

5
2
0
2
0

5
,0

0
1

.9
4

1
4
4
0
1
1
0

5
2
0
2
0

6
,0

4
1

.2
5

1
4
4
0
3
3
0

5
2
0
2
0

2
5

6
.9

1
1
4
4
0
8
0
0

5
2
0
2
0

8
,5

1
6

.9
2

1
5
5
0
1
0
0

5
2
0
2
0

3
,4

9
9
.4

1
1

5
5

0
5

5
2

5
2
0
2
0

3
,3

2
4
.2

5
1
5
5
1
5
0
0

5
2
0
2
0

6
4

2
.2

7
1
5
5
2
0
0
0

5
2
0
2
0

6
,7

6
9
.1

6
1
9
9
0
1
0
0

5
9
2
0
0

3
,2

3
0

.8
3

6
0
1
0
1
0
0

5
2
0
2
0

S
C

H
O

O
L

T
ra

in
in

g
0
4
0
4
1
8

0
3
/2

1
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

4
5
.0

0

4
5
.0

0
1

2
2

0
4

4
0

5
4
1
0
0



0
3
/2

9
/2

0
1
8

1
6

:1
2

6
9
0
5

ly
o

u
T

o
w

n
o

f
M

o
u
n
t

D
e
s
e
rt

A
/P

C
A

S
H

D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

JO
U

R
N

A
L

I

a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

C
A

S
H

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
:

1
0

0
C

H
E

C
K

N
O

C
H

K
D

A
T

E
1
0
1
0
0

T
Y

P
E

V
E

N
D

O
R

N
A

M
E

C
k

g
-B

H
G

e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

8
0

6
6

IN
V

O
IC

E
li

lY
D

A
T

E
P

0
N

E
T

IN
V

O
IC

E
D

T
L

D
E

S
C C

H
E

C
K

3
0
9

7
8
4

T
O

T
A

L
:

4
5

.0
0

3
0

8
7

8
5

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

PR
T

D
In

v
o

ic
e
:

1
0
0
0
1
8
2
9
6
1

3
0

8
7

8
6

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

PR
T

D
In

v
o

ic
e
:

1
0
0
8
6
5
2

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
0

0
8

6
5

3
M

O
U

N
T

D
E

S
E

R
T

IS
L

A
N

D
H

O
S

P
IT

A
L

&
H

E
1

0
0

8
6

5
3

1
9

.0
0

1
4

4
0

3
3

0
5
2
4
0
0

0
1
/2

6
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8
5

9
M

S
F

F
F

a
n
n
u
a
l

d
u
e
s

D
U

E
S

&
M

E
M

B
E

R
S

H
IP

S

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8
7
8

5
T

O
T

A
L

:

0
1
/1

8
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

O
S

H
A

m
e
d

ic
a
l

e
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n
s

M
E

D
IC

A
L

T
E

S
T

IN
G

0
2
/0

8
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

O
SH

A
m

e
d

ic
a
l

e
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n
s

M
E

D
IC

A
L

T
E

S
T

IN
G

2
1
0

.0
0

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8
7

8
6

T
O

T
A

L
:

2
0
9

.0
0

3
0
8
7
8
7

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
0
0
0
1
8
3
8
5
1

0
3
/2

1
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

M
TC

M
A

In
te

rc
h

a
n
g

e
T

R
A

I
N

I
N

C

C
H

E
C

K
3
0

8
7

8
7

T
O

T
A

L
:

7
5
.0

0

3
0
8
7
8
8

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v

o
ic

e
:

8
9

4
0

0
7

2
1
6
0

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
A

U
T

O
P

A
R

T
S

8
9

4
0

0
7

1
0
,3

5
1

5
5

0
1

0
0

5
5
4
0
0

0
3
/1

3
/2

0
1
8

T
O

N
N

E
R

B
U

L
B

A
L

G
E

N
R

E
P

A
IR

S
&

M
A

IN
T

A
P

1
8

5
9

1
0
.3

5

In
v

o
ic

e
:

8
9

4
0

5
9

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
A

U
T

O
P

A
R

T
S

8
9

4
0

5
9

8
.3

0
1

5
5

0
1

0
0

5
5
4
0
0

0
3
/1

3
/2

0
1
8

T
R

if
1O

B
U

L
B

A
L

C
E

N
R

E
P

A
IR

S
&

M
A

IN
T

8
.3

0

In
v

o
ic

e
:

8
9

4
5

1
7

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
A

U
T

O
P

A
R

T
S

8
9

4
5

1
7

1
0
9
.8

4
1
5
5
0
1
0
0

5
5
4
0
0

0
3
/1

5
/2

0
1
8

T
R

#
1

0
B

U
L

B
S

A
L

G
EM

R
E

P
A

IR
S

&
M

A
IN

T

A
P

1
8

5
9

1
0
9

.8
4

In
v

o
ic

e
:

8
9

6
8

5
9

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
A

U
T

O
P

A
R

T
S

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
A

U
T

O
P

A
R

T
S

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
A

U
T

O
P

A
R

T
S

9
9

5
8

4
5

1
5

.9
9

1
5

5
0

1
0

0
5
5
4
0
0

9
9
6
8
5
9

7
.3

0
1

5
5

0
1

0
0

5
5
4
0
0

8
9
6
7
8
3

0
3
/1

9
/2

0
1
8

SH
O

P
E

L
E

C
T

R
IC

A
L

C
L

E
A

N
E

R
A

L
G

E
N

R
E

P
A

IR
S

&
M

A
IN

T

0
3
/2

1
/2

0
1
8

sh
o
p

b
u
lb

s
a]

.
G

E
N

R
E

P
A

IR
S

&
M

A
IN

T

0
3
/2

1
/2

0
1
8

T
R

4
8

PL
O

W
L

IG
H

T
K

IT
A

L
G

EM
R

E
P

A
IR

S
&

M
A

IN
T

W
A

R
R

A
N

T

1
5
5
7

M
A

IN
E

S
T

A
T

E
F

E
D

E
R

A
T

IO
N

O
F

F
IR

E
F

IG
1
0
0
0
1
8
2
9
8
1

2
1

0
.0

0
1

4
4

0
3

3
0

5
4
2
0
0

4
6

8
M

O
U

N
T

D
E

S
E

R
T

IS
L

A
N

D
H

O
S

P
IT

A
L

&
H

E
1

0
0

8
6

5
2

1
9
0
.0

0
1
4
4
0
3
3
0

5
2
4
0
0

2
1

0
.

00

4
3

6
M

A
IN

E
TO

W
N

&
C

IT
Y

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

A
S

S
N

1
0
0
0
1
8
3
8
5
1

7
5

.0
0

1
2
2
0
1
1
0

5
4
1
0
0

1
9

0
.0

0

1
9
.0

0

7
5

.0
0

In
v

o
ic

e
:

8
9
5
8
4
5

A
P

1
8

5
9

A
P

1
8
5
9

1
5
.9

9

A
P

1
8

5
9

7
.3

0

A
P

1
8

5
9

1
7
3
.2

5
In

v
o

ic
e
:

8
9
6
7
8
3

1
7
3
.2

5
1

5
5

0
1

0
0

5
5
4
0
0



0
3
/2

9
/2

0
1

8
1

6
:1

2
G

9
O

5
ly

o
u

T
o

w
n

o
f

M
o
u
n
t

D
e
s
e
rt

A
/P

C
A

S
H

D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

JO
U

R
N

A
L

C
A

S
H

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
:

1
0
0

C
H

E
C

K
N

O
C

H
K

D
A

T
E

1
0
1
0
0

T
Y

P
E

V
E

N
D

O
R

N
A

M
E

I
N

V
O

IC
E

IN
V

O
IC

E
D

T
L

D
E

S
C

N
E

T

In
v

o
ic

e
:

8
9

6
5

9
2

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
A

U
T

O
P

A
R

T
S

8
9

6
5

9
2

1
7
0
.3

8
1

5
5

0
1

0
0

5
5
4
0
0

0
3
/2

0
/2

0
1
8

S
W

E
E

P
E

R
F

IL
T

E
R

S
A

L
G

E
N

R
E

P
A

IR
S

&
M

A
IN

T

A
P

1
8

5
9

1
7

0
.3

8

In
v
o
ic

e
:

8
9

6
5

9
9

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
A

U
T

O
P

A
R

T
S

8
9

6
5

9
9

3
7

.1
6

1
5

5
0

1
0

0
5
5
4
0
0

0
3
/2

0
/2

0
1
8

T
R

#
1

2
F

IL
T

E
R

S
A

L
G

E
N

R
E

P
A

IR
S

&
M

A
IN

T

A
P

1
8

5
9

3
7

.1
6

In
v

o
ic

e
:

8
9

6
5

9
8

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
A

U
T

O
P

A
R

T
S

8
9
6
5
9
8

7
8

.3
4

1
5

5
0

1
0

0
5
5
4
0
0

0
3
/2

0
/2

0
1
8

T
R

#
3
3

F
IL

T
E

R
S

A
L

G
E

N
R

E
P

A
IR

S
&

M
A

IN
T

A
P

1
8

5
9

7
8
.3

4

In
v

o
ic

e
:

8
9

6
7

4
5

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
A

U
T

O
P

A
R

T
S

8
9
6
7
4
5

7
8

.4
0

1
5
5
0
1
0
0

5
5
4
0
0

0
3
/2

1
/2

0
1
8

T
R

II
1O

B
U

L
B

S
A

L
G

E
M

R
E

P
A

IR
S

&
M

A
IN

T

A
P

1
8
5
9

7
8

.4
0

In
v
o
ic

e
:

8
9
6
5
9
7

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
A

U
T

O
P

A
R

T
S

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
A

U
T

O
P

A
R

T
S

8
9
6
5
9
7

7
8

.3
4

1
5
5
0
2
0
0

5
5
4
0
0

8
9

6
5

9
5

1
5

.2
4

1
5
5
0
1
0
0

5
5
4
0
0

0
3
/2

0
/2

0
1
8

T
R

ff
2O

F
IL

T
E

R
S

A
L

G
E

M
R

E
P

A
IR

S
&

M
A

IN
T

0
3
/2

0
/2

0
1
8

tr
ff

2
4

F
IL

T
E

R
S

A
L

G
E

M
R

E
P

A
IR

S
&

M
A

IN
T

A
P

1
8

5
9

7
8
.3

4

A
P

1
8

5
9

1
5
.2

4

In
v
o
ic

e
:

8
9
6
1
8
0

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
A

U
T

O
P

A
R

T
S

8
9

6
1

8
0

0
3
/2

0
/2

0
1
8

P
a
in

t
A

P
1

8
5

9
1

4
.5

8

1
4

.5
8

1
4

4
0

3
3

0
5
3
1
1
0

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
S

U
P

P
L

IE
S

In
v

o
ic

e
:

8
9

5
7

1
6

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
A

U
T

O
P

A
R

T
S

8
9

5
7

1
6

2
8

7
.6

7
1
4
4
0
1
1
0

5
5
1
0
0

0
3
/1

9
/2

0
1
8

B
ra

k
e

p
a
d
s

&
R

o
to

rs
4

1
0

8
V

E
H

IC
L

E
R

E
P

A
IR

-1
7

F
o
rd

A
P

1
8

5
9

E
x

p
-P

o
l

In
v
o
ic

e
:

8
9

5
7

0
5

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
A

U
T

O
P

A
R

T
S

8
9

5
7

0
5

1
3

4
.8

8
1
4
4
0
1
1
0

5
5
1
0
0

0
3
/1

9
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

B
a
tt

e
r
y

/
C

o
re

D
e
p

o
s
it

4
1

0
8

V
E

H
IC

L
E

R
E

P
A

IR
-1

7
F

o
rd

E
x
p
-P

o
l

1
3
4
.8

8

In
v
o
ic

e
:

8
9
6
0
3
7

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
A

U
T

O
P

A
R

T
S

8
9
6
0
3
7

4
3
.7

8
1
4
4
0
1
1
0

5
5
1
0
0

0
3
/1

9
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

M
o

to
r

O
il

/
F

il
te

r
4

1
0

8
V

E
H

IC
L

E
R

E
P

A
IR

-1
7

F
o
rd

E
x
p
-P

o
l

4
3

.7
8

In
v
o
ic

e
:

8
9

8
8

6
5

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
A

U
T

O
P

A
R

T
S

8
9

8
8

6
5

9
2

.0
8

1
5
5
0
6
6
8

5
5
4
0
0

0
3
/2

6
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

8
4

5
B

e
lt

s
a
n
d

1
0

-3
0

O
il

fo
r

SH
W

W
T

P-
E

M
G

E
M

R
E

P
A

IR
S

&
M

A
IN

T

9
2
.0

8

In
v
o
ic

e
:

8
9
9
0
5
7

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
A

U
T

O
P

A
R

T
S

8
9
9
0
5
7

2
4

.3
6

1
5
5
0
6
6
8

5
5
4
0
0

0
3
/2

7
/2

0
1
8

B
lo

w
e
r

B
e
lt

s
fo

r
SH

W
W

T
P-

E
M

G
E

M
R

E
P

A
IR

S
&

M
A

IN
T

A
P

1
8

5
9

2
4
.3

6

C
k
g
-B

H
G

e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

8
0
6
6

IN
V

D
A

T
E

P
0

W
A

R
R

A
N

T

In
v

o
ic

e
:

8
9

6
5

9
5

2
8

7
.6

7

C
H

E
C

K
3
0
8
7
8
8

T
O

T
A

L
:

1
,3

8
0

.2
4



0
3
/2

9
/2

0
1
8

1
6
:1

2
6
9
0
5
1
y
o
u

C
A

S
H

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
:

1
0
0

C
H

E
C

K
N

O
C

H
K

D
A

T
E

T
o
w

n
o

f
M

o
u
n
t

D
e
s
e
rt

A
/P

C
A

S
E

D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
N

E
N

T
S

JO
U

R
N

A
L

.

1
0

1
0

0
C

k
g

-B
H

G
e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

8
0
6
6

T
Y

P
E

V
E

N
D

O
R

N
A

M
E

IN
V

O
IC

E
D

T
L

D
E

S
C

1
1
2
6
4
6
0
0
1
0
0
1

2
5

.5
8

1
5

5
0

5
5

2
5
3
9
0
0

0
3
/0

5
/2

0
1
8

a
d
v
il

&
ty

le
ts

O
T

H
E

R
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T

A
P

1
8

5
9

2
5

.5
8

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
1
2
6
4
5
8
3
7
0
0
1

O
F

F
IC

E
D

E
P

O
T

1
1
2
6
4
5
8
3
7
0
0
1

0
3
/0

5
/2

0
1

8
f
o
ld

e
r
s

ts
1
6
.1

4
1
5
5
0
5
5
2

5
3
9
0
0

O
T

H
E

R
E

Q
U

IP
M

E
N

T

C
H

E
C

K
3
0
8

7
8
9

T
O

T
A

L
:

4
1

.7
2

3
0
8
7
9
0

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v

o
ic

e
:

8
5

9
3

7
9
4

O
L

V
E

R
A

S
S

O
C

IA
T

E
S

,
IN

C
8

5
9

3
0
3
/1

2
/2

0
1
8

H
C

o
v

e
p
s

ts
8
2
5
.0

0
3

0
0

0
0

3
6

5
7
7
1
2

E
n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g

A
P

1
8

5
9

8
2
5
.0

0

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8
7

9
0

T
O

T
A

L
:

8
2

5
.0

0

3
0

8
7

9
1

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v

o
ic

e
:

0
3
1
8

2
1
1
0

O
T

T
C

O
M

M
U

N
IC

A
T

IO
N

S

7
0
6
.3

3
1

2
2

1
0

0
0

5
5
1
2
0

0
3
/1

0
/2

0
1
8

T
e
le

p
h
o
n
e

C
h
a
rg

e
s

T
E

L
E

P
H

O
N

E
-U

S
A

G
E

A
P

1
8

5
9

7
0
6
.3

3

C
H

E
C

K
3
0

8
7

9
1

T
O

T
A

L
:

7
0
6
.3

3

3
0

8
7

9
2

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
1
4
6
9
3

3
0
8
7
9
3

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v

o
ic

e
:

3
3
0
5
8
2
3
1
4
0

In
v

o
ic

e
:

3
1

3
3

8
9

3
3
0
5
8
2
3
1
4
0

1
8
0
.0

6
1

2
2

0
1

1
0

5
3
1
4
0

0
3
/1

5
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

R
e
p

a
ir

s
/R

e
p

la
c
e

o
v

e
rh

e
a
d

d
o
o
r

m
o

to
r

@
B

L
O

G
R

E
P

A
IR

&
M

A
IN

T
-S

l
N

E

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8
7

9
2

T
O

T
A

L
:

0
3
/2

7
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

P
o
s
ta

g
e

M
e
te

r
L

e
a
s
e

P
O

S
T

A
G

E

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8

7
9

3
T

O
T

A
L

:

0
3
/1

9
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8
5

9
p
ru

n
in

g
s
p
ra

y
.

b
j

G
E

N
R

E
P

A
IR

S
&

M
A

IN
T

0
3
/2

0
/2

0
1
8

p
ru

n
in

g
s
p
ra

y
b
j

G
E

N
R

E
P

A
IR

S
&

M
A

IN
T

5
2
1
.8

3

1
8
0
.0

6

C
0

C
H

E
C

K
3
0

8
7
9
4

T
O

T
A

L
:

1
7
.9

8

0

3
0

8
7

8
9

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v

o
ic

e
:

1
1
2
6
4
6
0
0
1
0
0
1

5
4
7

O
F

F
IC

E
D

E
P

O
T

IN
V

O
IC

E
IN

V
D

A
T

E
P

0
W

A
R

R
A

N
T

N
E

T

A
P

1
8
5

9
1

6
.1

4

0
3

1
8

3
0
8
7
9
4

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v

o
ic

e
:

3
1

3
3

5
1

5
5

3
O

V
E

R
H

E
A

D
D

O
O

R
C

O
M

PA
N

Y
O

F
B

A
N

G
O

R
1

1
4

6
9

3

5
2
1
.8

3
1
4
4
0
3
3
0

5
5
2
0
0

4
3

1

1
3
6
7

P
IT

N
E

Y
B

O
W

E
S

6
4
2

S
A

L
E

B
U

R
Y

H
A

R
D

W
A

R
E

IN
C

S
A

L
S

B
U

R
Y

H
A

R
D

W
A

R
E

IN
C

s
ta

t.
li

i
5
2
1
.8

3

3
1

3
3

5
1

8
.9

9
1

5
5

2
5

0
0

5
5
4
0
0

3
1
3
3
8
9

8
.9

9
1

5
5

0
1

0
0

5
5
4
0
0

1
8
0
.0

6

8
.

9
9

A
P

1
8
S

9
8

.9
9



0
3
/2

9
/2

0
1
8

1
6

:1
2

S
9

O
S

ly
o

u

C
A

S
H

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
:

1
0
0

1
0
1
0
0

C
H

E
C

K
N

O
C

H
K

D
A

T
E

T
Y

P
E

V
E

N
D

O
R

N
A

M
E

C
k
g
-B

H
G

e
n
e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

8
0
6
6

IN
V

O
IC

E
D

T
L

D
E

S
C

3
0

8
7

9
5

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

P
R

T
D

1
3
8
7

T
R

E
A

S
U

R
E

R
,

S
T

A
T

E
O

F
In

v
o

ic
e
:

8
IL

0
3
1
5
1
8
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
2
3
2
5

M
A

IN
E

B
1
L

0
3
1
5
1
8
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
2
3
2
5
0

3
/1

5
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

C
ir

c
u

it
C

h
a
rg

e
s

0
2
/2

0
1
8

1
2

0
.0

0
1
4
4
0
8
0
0

5
4
2
5
0

IT
/T

E
C

H
F

E
E

C
H

E
C

K
3
0
8
7
9
5

T
O

T
A

L
:

1
2
0
.0

0

3
0
8
7
9
6

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

P
R

T
D

1
3
7
0

In
v
o
ic

e
:

7
1

9
7

4
3

9
0

1
0

3
1

7
1

8
in

te
r
n
e
t

h
a
rb

o
r

C
A

B
L

E
/I

N
T

E
R

N
E

T

C
H

E
C

K
3
0
8
7
9
6

T
O

T
A

L
:

8
5

9
5

6
2

9
0

1
0

3
2

1
1

8
0

3
/2

1
/2

0
1
8

I
n
te

r
n
e
t

H
ig

h
w

a
y

G
a
ra

g
e

4
0

6
.8

6
1
2
2
1
0
0
0

5
5
1
5
0

1
7

7
3

C
A

B
L

E
/I

N
T

E
R

N
E

T
-H

G
W

Y
O

A
R

2
3

3
.8

5

C
H

E
C

K
3
0
8
7
9
7

T
O

T
A

L
:

4
0

6
.8

6

3
0

8
7

9
8

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

P
R

T
D

1
7
7
1

T
IM

E
W

A
R

N
E

R
C

A
B

L
E

In
v

o
ic

e
:

7
0

8
5

9
3

4
0

1
0

3
1

1
1

8
7
0
8
5
9
3
4
0
1
0
3
1
1
1
8

0
3
/1

1
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

I
n

te
r
n

e
t

P
o
li

c
e

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t
2

8
5

.9
5

1
2
2
1
0
0
0

5
5
1
5
0

1
7
7
1

C
A

B
L

E
/I

N
T

E
R

N
E

T
-P

O
L

IC
E

D
E

P
T

C
H

E
C

K
3
0
8
7
9
8

T
O

T
A

L
:

2
8
5
.9

5

3
0
8
7
9
9

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v

o
ic

e
:

0
2

7
2

5
7

2
1

6
5

6
4

.6
4

1
5
5
0
1
0
0

3
0
.0

0
1
5
5
1
5
0
0

1
5

.0
0

1
5
5
2
5
0
0

w
w

u
n
if

o
rm

s
ts

U
N

IF
O

R
M

S

u
n

if
o

rm
s

ts
U

N
IF

O
R

M
S

U
N

IF
O

R
M

S
U

N
IF

O
R

M
S

0
3
/2

8
/2

0
1
8

M
S

W
/P

&
C

/H
W

Y
U

n
if

o
rm

s-
E

M
U

N
IF

O
R

14
S

U
N

IF
O

R
M

S
U

N
IF

O
R

M
S

In
v

o
ic

e
:

0
2

7
2

5
7

3
8

3
0

U
N

IF
IR

S
T

C
O

R
P

0
2

7
2

5
7

3
8

3
0

1
0

9
.6

5
1
5
5
0
5
5
2

5
3
8
0
0

0
3
/2

0
/2

0
1
8

W
W

U
n

if
o

rm
s-

E
M

U
N

IF
O

R
M

S

A
P

1
B

S
9

1
0
9
.6

5

0
0

0

T
o

w
n

o
f

M
o
u
n
t

D
e
s
e
rt

A
/P

C
A

S
H

D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

JO
U

R
N

A
L

r
.
.

IN
V

O
IC

E

P
1
5

a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

IN
V

D
A

T
E

P
0

W
A

R
R

A
N

T
N

E
T

3
0
8
7
9
7

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
0

P
R

T
D

1
7
7
3

In
v

o
ic

e
:

8
5

9
5

6
2

9
0

1
0

3
2

1
1

8

T
IM

E
W

A
R

N
E

R
C

A
B

L
E

T
IM

E
W

A
R

N
E

R
C

A
B

L
E

7
1
9
7
4
3
9
0
1
0
3
1
7
1
8

2
3

3
.8

5
6
0
1
0
1
0
0

5
5
1
5
0

1
2

0
.

0
0

0
3
/1

7
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
O

S
9

2
3

3
.8

5

A
P

1
8

5
9

4
0

6
.8

6

In
v

o
ic

e
:

0
2
7
2
5
7
2
1
6
4

In
v

o
ic

e
:

0
2

7
2

5
7

3
8

2
9

7
3
7

U
N

IF
IR

S
T

C
O

R
P

U
N

IF
IR

S
T

C
O

R
P

U
N

IF
IR

S
T

C
O

R
P

0
2

7
2

5
7

2
1

6
5

1
0

9
.6

5
1

5
5

0
5

5
2

5
3
8
0
0

0
2
7
2
5
7
2
1
6
4

2
8

5
.9

5

0
3
/2

1
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

5
3
8
0
0

5
3
8
0
0

5
3
8
0
0

0
3
/2

1
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8
5
9

3
5

.0
0

1
5
5
1
5
0
0

2
0

.0
0

1
5
5
2
5
0
0

1
4
3
.6

4
1
5
5
0
1
0
00

2
7

2
5

7
3

8
2

9

5
3
8
0
0

5
3
8
0
0

5
3
8
0
0

1
0
9
.6

5

1
0
9
.6

4

A
P

1
8

5
9

1
9
8
.6

4

C
H

E
C

K
3
0
8
7
9
9

T
O

T
A

L
:

5
2
7
.5

8



0
3
/2

9
/2

0
1
8

1
6

:1
2

G
9
O

S
ly

o
u

C
A

S
H

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
:

1
0

0
C

H
E

C
K

N
O

C
H

IC
D

A
T

E

T
o
w

n
o

f
M

o
u
n
t

D
e
s
e
rt

A
/P

C
A

S
H

D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

JO
U

R
N

A
L

1
0
1
0
0

C
k

g
-B

H
G

e
n
e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

8
0

6
6

T
Y

P
E

V
E

N
D

O
R

N
A

M
E

IN
V

O
IC

E
D

T
L

D
E

S
C

7
4
2

U
S

A
B

L
U

E
B

O
O

K
5

0
7

4
5

3

8
4

7
.0

6
1
5
5
0
5
5
2

5
3
8
2
0

0
3
/0

5
/2

0
1
0

L
a
b

s
u

p
p

li
e
s

ts
L

A
B

E
Q

U
IP

A
P

1
8

5
9

8
4
7
.0

6

In
v

o
ic

e
:

5
1

4
5

8
1

U
S

A
B

L
U

E
B

O
O

K
5

1
4

5
8

1

1
1

5
.9

5
1

5
5

0
5

5
2

5
3
8
2
0

0
3
/1

2
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
O

S
9

P
a
ll

M
-F

C
B

ro
th

w
it

h
R

o
s
o
li

c
A

c
id

-E
M

L
A

B
E

Q
U

IP

1
1

5
.9

5

C
H

E
C

K
3

0
8
0

0
0

T
O

T
A

L
:

9
6

3
.8

1

3
0

8
0

0
1

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
0

P
R

T
D

1
7
4
5

W
A

G
E

W
O

R
K

S
IN

C
In

v
o

ic
e
:

1
N

V
5
9
2
0
1
2

0
3
/1

5
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

S
E

1
2
S

A
d
m

in
F

e
e

A
D

M
IN

—
S

E
l

2
5

C
H

E
C

K
3
0
0
8
0
1

T
O

T
A

L
:

6
5
.0

0

N
U

M
B

E
R

O
F

C
H

E
C

K
S

5
8

*
*

*
C

A
S

H
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

T
O

T
A

L
*

*
*

1
1
4
,2

4
6
.5

4

T
O

T
A

L
P

R
IN

T
E

D
C

H
E

C
K

S
T

O
T

A
L

M
A

N
U

A
L

C
H

E
C

K
S

T
O

T
A

L
E

F
T

’S a

“
G

R
A

N
D

T
O

T
A

L
1
1
4
,2

4
6
.5

4

0

3
0

8
8

0
0

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

P
R

T
D

In
v

o
ic

e
:

5
0
7
4
5
3

IN
V

O
IC

E
IN

V
D

A
T

E
P

0

a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

N
E

T
W

A
R

R
A

N
T

1
N

V
5
9
2
8
1
2

6
5

.0
0

1
2

2
0

8
0

0
5
4
5
3
2

6
5

.0
0

C
O

U
N

T
A

M
O

U
N

T

4
8 1 9

9
8
,9

6
0

.1
2

9
0

7
.5

0
1
4
,3

7
8

.9
2

U



1
0
0
—

2
0
0
0
0

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

1
0
0
—

1
0
1
0
0

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

6
0
0
-2

0
0
0
0

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

A
P

1
O

S
9

1
0
0
—

3
5
0
6
0

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

6
0
0
—

3
5
0
1
0

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

1
0
0
-3

5
0
2
0

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

2
0

0
—

3
5

0
1

0
0

4
/0

2
/2

0
1

8
A

P
1

8
5

9
A

P
P

1
0
0
—

3
5
0
3
0

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

A
P

1
8

5
9

A
P

P
3
0
0
-3

5
0
1
0

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

A
P

1
8
5
9

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
P

a
y

a
b

le
A

P
C

A
S

H
D

IS
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

S
JO

U
R

N
A

L
C

k
g
-B

H
G

e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

8
0

6
6

A
P

C
A

S
H

D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

JO
U

R
N

A
L

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
P

a
y

a
b

le
A

P
C

A
S

H
D

IS
B

U
R

S
E

M
E

N
T

S
JO

U
R

N
A

L
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
A

P
C

A
S

H
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
A

P
C

A
S

H

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
L

E
D

G
E

R
T

O
T

A
L

2
0
1
8

1
0

A
P

P

A
P

P

A
P

P

0
3
/2

9
/2

0
1
8

1
6

:1
2

T
o

w
n

o
f

M
o
u
n
t

D
e
s
e
rt

P
1

7
G

B
O

5
ly

o
u

A
/P

C
A

S
H

D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

JO
U

R
N

A
L

a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

JO
U

R
N

A
L

E
N

T
R

IE
S

T
O

B
E

C
R

E
A

T
E

D
C

L
E

R
K

:
G

9
O

S
ly

o
u

Y
E

A
R

P
E

R
.I

N
L

S
R

C
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
D

E
S

C
T

O
B

D
E

B
IT

C
R

E
D

IT
E

F
F

D
A

T
E

Ji
T

h
D

E
S

C
R

E
F

1
R

E
F

2
R

E
F

3
L

IN
E

D
E

S
C

A
P

P
2
0
0
-2

0
0
0
0

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

A
P

P
3
0
0
-2

0
0
0
0

0
4

/0
2

/2
0

1
8

A
P

1
O

S
9

A
P

1
8

5
9

A
P

1
8

5
9

A
P

1
B

S
9

A
P

1
B

S
9

A
P

P

A
P

P

A
P

P

A
P

P

L
L

Y

L
L

Y

L
L

Y

L
L

Y

L
L

Y

L
L

Y

L
L

Y

L
L

Y

L
L

Y

L
L

Y

L
L

Y

P
a
y
a
b
le

D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

JO
U

R
N

A
L

P
a
y
a
b
le

D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

JO
U

R
N

A
L

1
0
2
,9

4
0
.0

3

7
,3

3
1

.3
3

5
6
7

.1
5

3
•
4

0
8

0
3

1
1
4
,2

4
6
.5

4

D
T

-M
A

R
IN

A

D
T

G
en

fu
n
d

D
T

F
-S

P
E

C
R

E
V

D
T

G
en

fu
n

d

D
T

F
-C

A
P

IM
P

D
T

G
en

fu
n
d

S
Y

S
T

E
M

G
E

N
E

R
A

T
E

D
E

N
T

R
IE

S
T

O
T

A
L

1
1

4
,2

4
6

.5
4

1
1
4
,2

4
6
.5

4

7
,3

3
1

.3
3

7
,3

3
1
.3

3

5
6
7
.1

5

5
6
7

.1
5

3
,4

0
8

.0
3

3
,4

0
8

,0
3

1
1

,3
0

6
.5

1
1

1
,3

0
6

.5
1

1
2

5
,5

5
3

.0
5

1
2

5
,5

5
3

.0
5

JO
U

R
N

A
L

2
0
1
8
/1

0
/4

T
O

T
A

L



0
3
/2

9
/2

0
1
8

1
6
:1

2
B

9
O

S
ly

o
u

T
o
w

n
o

f
M

o
u
n
t

D
e
s
e
rt

A
/P

C
A

S
H

D
IS

E
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

JO
U

R
N

A
L

P
1

8
a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
Y

E
A

R
P

E
R

1
t

E
F

F
D

A
T

E
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

1
0

0
G

e
n
e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

1
0
0
—

1
0
1
0
0

1
0
0
-2

0
0
0
0

1
0
0
—

3
5
0
2
0

1
0
0
—

3
5
0
3
0

1
0
0
-3

5
0
6
0

4
0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

C
k

g
-B

H
G

e
n
e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

8
0

6
6

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

P
a
y
a
b
le

D
T

F
-S

P
E

C
R

E
V

D
T

F
-C

A
P

IM
P

D
T

-M
A

R
IN

A

1
0
2

,
9
4
0
.0

3
5
6
7

.1
5

3
,4

0
8

.0
3

7
,3

3
1

.3
3

2
0
0

S
p
e
c
ia

l
R

e
v
e
n
u
e

2
0

0
-2

0
0

0
0

2
0
0
-3

5
0
1
0

2
0

1
8

1
0

4
0
4
/0

2
/2

0
3
8

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

P
a
y
a
b
le

O
T

G
en

fu
n

d

FU
N

D
T

O
T

A
L

1
1
4
,2

4
6
.5

4

5
6

7
.

1
5

1
1
4
,2

4
6
.5

4

5
6

7
.1

5

FU
N

D
T

O
T

A
L

5
6
7

.1
5

5
6
7

.1
5

3
0

0
C

a
p
it

a
l

P
r
o

je
c
ts

3
0
0
-2

0
0
0
0

3
0
0
—

3
5
0
1
0

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

P
a
y
a
b
le

D
T

C
m

i
fu

n
d

6
0

0
M

a
ri

n
a

2
0
1
8

1
0

6
0
0
-2

0
0
0
0

6
0
0
-3

5
0
1
0

0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
P

a
y

a
b

le
D

T
G

en
fu

n
d

FU
N

D
T

O
T

A
L

7
,3

3
1

.3
3

7
,3

3
1

.3
3

0

FU
N

D
T

O
T

A
L

7
,3

3
1

.3
3

7
,3

3
1
.3

3

0

F
U

N
D

JO
U

R
N

A
L

E
N

T
R

IE
S

T
O

B
E

C
R

E
A

T
E

D

2
0
1
8

1
0

D
E

B
IT

C
R

E
D

IT

1
1
4
,2

4
6
.5

4

2
0
1
8

1
0

4
0
4
/0

2
/2

0
1
8

3
,4

0
8

.0
3

3
,4

0
8
.0

3

3
,4

0
8

.0
3

3
,4

0
8
.0

3

(



C
0
3

/2
9
/2

0
1
B

1
6

:1
2

G
S

O
5
ly

o
u

F
U

N
D

T
o
w

n
o
f

M
o
u
n
t

D
e
s
e
rt

A
/P

C
A

S
H

D
IS

B
U

R
S

E
M

E
N

T
S

JO
U

R
N

A
L

D
U

E
T

O
D

U
E

FR
O

M

p
is

a
p
c
s
h
d
s
b

JO
U

R
N

A
L

E
N

T
R

IE
S

T
O

B
E

C
R

E
A

T
E

D

1
0
0

G
e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n

d
1
1
,3

0
6
5
1

zo
o

S
p
e
c
ia

l
R

e
v

e
n

u
e

5
6

7
.1

5
3

0
0

c
a
p
it

a
l

P
r
o
je

c
ts

3
,4

0
8

.0
3

6
0
0

M
a
ri

n
a

7
,3

3
1

.3
3

T
O

T
A

L

*
*

E
N

D
O

F
R

E
P

O
R

T
-

G
e
n

e
ra

te
d

b
y

L
is

a
Y

o
u
n
g

*
*

1
1

,3
0

6
.5

1
1
1
,3

0
6
.5

1





C
0

T
O

W
N

O
F

M
O

U
N

T
D

ES
ER

T
B

M
V

,
ST

A
T

E
&

PR
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

S
PA

Y
A

B
L

E
W

A
R

R
A

N
T

W
A

R
R

A
N

T
A

P#
18

57

C

C
H

EC
K

D
A

TE
:

M
ar

ch
21

,
2
0
1
8

C
H

EC
K

N
U

M
B

E
R

:

C
H

EC
K

N
U

M
B

E
R

:

EF
T

N
U

M
B

E
R

:

EF
T

or
CK

N
U

M
B

E
R

:

3
0
8
7
4
9

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

th
ro

u
g
h

30
87

49

th
ro

u
g
h

N
/A

th
ro

u
g

h
N

/A

th
ro

ug
h

N
/A

C
he

ck
p
ay

m
en

ts

E
le

ct
ro

ni
c

p
ay

m
en

ts

A
C

H
P

ay
m

en
ts

V
oi

de
d

C
he

ck
s

S
el

ec
tm

en
:

TO
TA

L
D

IS
B

U
R

SE
M

E
N

T
S:

S

T
hi

s
is

to
ce

rt
if

y
th

at
th

er
e

is
d
u
e

an
d

ch
ar

g
ea

b
le

to
th

e
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
io

n
s

li
st

ed
ab

o
v

e

th
e

su
m

se
t

ag
ai

ns
t

ea
ch

n
am

e
an

d
yo

u
ar

e
d
ir

ec
te

d
to

pa
y

u
n

to
th

e
p
ar

ti
es

n
am

ed
in

th
is

sc
h
ed

u
le

.

M
ar

th
a

T
D

ud
m

an

S
3
,2

7
0
.9

8

S S
-

3
,2

7
0

.9
8

S
-

Jo
hn

B
M

ac
au

le
y,

C
ha

ir
m

an

M
at

th
ew

i
H

ar
t,

V
ic

e
C

ha
ir

m
an

Ja
m

es
F

M
o

o
er

s



T
O

W
N

O
F

M
O

U
N

T
D

E
SE

R
T

PA
Y

R
O

L
L

W
A

R
R

A
N

T

W
A

R
R

A
N

T
P

R
#

18
21

C
H

EC
K

D
A

TE
:

M
ar

ch
23

,
20

18

A
D

V
IC

E
N

U
M

B
E

R
S:

82
77

th
ro

u
g

h
83

23

C
H

EC
K

N
U

M
B

E
R

S:
63

69
5

th
ro

u
g

h
63

71
3

TO
TA

L
D

IS
B

U
R

SE
M

E
N

T
S:

$
1
0
0
,5

2
8
.1

4

T
hi

s
is

to
ce

rt
if

y
th

at
th

er
e

is
du

e
an

d
ch

ar
g
ea

b
le

to
th

e
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
io

n
s

li
st

ed
ab

ov
e

th
e

su
m

se
t

ag
ai

n
st

ea
ch

na
m

e
an

d
yo

u
ar

e
d
ir

ec
te

d
to

pa
y

un
to

th
e

p
ar

ti
es

na
m

ed
in

th
is

sc
h
ed

u
le

.

S
el

ec
tm

en
:

io
h

n
B

M
ac

au
le

y,
C

ha
ir

m
an

M
ar

th
a

T
D

ud
m

an

M
at

th
ew

J
H

ar
t,

V
ic

e
C

ha
ir

m
an

Ja
m

es
F

M
o

o
er

s



Kathi Mahar

cm: John Macauley <jbmacauley3@gmailcom>
Tuesday, March 20, 2018 2:14 PM

To: Kathi Mahar
Cc: Martha Dudman (martha.dudman@gmail.com); Matt Hart; Rick Mooers
Subject: Re: Warrant AP#1857 & PR#1821 Approval Request

Approved.

On Tue. Mar 20, 2018 at 2:07 PM Kathi Mahar<treasuren’amtdesertora> wrote:

Good afternoon!

Attached are the following warrants for your approval:

Accounts Payable #1857 total of $ 3,270.98

Payroll #1821 total of Sl00,528.14

lease indicate your authodzation to release the funds for these warrants by approving or rejecting.

I will “reply to all” when the first approval conies in so that you know that we have the one required
email approval.

Thank you!

Xathu

Kathryn A Mahar. Treasurer

Thwn of Mount Desert

(207) 276-5531 IT) (207) 276-3232 (F)

1



T
O

W
N

O
F

M
O

U
N

T
D

ES
ER

T
B

M
V

,
ST

A
T

E
&

PR
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

S
PA

Y
A

B
L

E
W

A
R

R
A

N
T

W
A

R
R

A
N

T
A

P
#

18
58

C
H

EC
K

D
A

TE
:

M
ar

ch
28

,
20

18

C
H

EC
K

N
U

M
B

E
R

:
30

87
51

C
H

EC
K

N
U

M
B

E
R

:
N

/A

[F
T

N
U

M
B

E
R

:
N

/A

EF
T

or
CK

N
U

M
B

E
R

:
N

/A

th
ro

u
g

h
30

87
53

th
ro

u
g

h
N

/A

th
ro

u
g

h
N

/A

th
ro

u
g

h
N

/A

$
4
,4

6
3
.3

6
C

he
ck

p
ay

m
en

ts

S
-

S
-

S

E
le

ct
ro

ni
c

p
ay

m
en

ts

A
C

H
P

ay
m

en
ts

V
oi

de
d

C
he

ck
s

TO
TA

L
D

IS
B

U
R

SE
M

E
N

T
S:

$
4
,4

6
3
.3

6

T
hi

s
is

to
ce

rt
if

y
th

at
th

er
e

is
du

e
an

d
ch

ar
g
ea

b
le

to
th

e
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
io

n
s

li
st

ed
ab

o
v

e

S
el

ec
tm

en
:

th
e

su
m

se
t

ag
ai

ns
t

ea
ch

n
am

e
an

d
yo

u
ar

e
d
ir

ec
te

d
to

pa
y

u
n

to
th

e
p
ar

ti
es

n
am

ed
in

th
is

sc
h
ed

u
le

.

C

Jo
hn

B
M

ac
au

le
y,

C
ha

ir
m

an

0

M
ar

th
a

T
D

ud
m

an

Ja
m

es
F

M
oo

er
s

0

M
at

th
ew

J
H

ar
t,

V
ic

e
C

ha
ir

m
an



Kathi Mahar

Matthew Hart <matt@theneighborhoodhouse.com>
Monday, March 26, 2018 1:25 PM
Kathi Mahar

Subject: Re: Warrant AP#1858 State Fees/Payroll Benefits Approval Request

Hi Again Kathi

I approve AP Warrant #1858.

Thanks,
Ma tt

Matthew Hart

From: Kathi Mahar <treasurermtdesert.org>
Date: Monday, March 26, 2018 at 12:36 PM
To: John Macauley <jbmacauley3gmail.com>, “Martha Dudman (martha.dudman@gmail.com)
<martha.dudmangmail.com>, Matt Hart cmatttheneighborhoodhouse.com>, Rick Mooers
<rmaoersmtdesert.org>(J bject: Warrant AP#1858 State Fees/Payroll Benefits Approval Request

Good afternoon!

Attached is Accounts Payable Warrant #1858 (for Payroll and/or State Fees) in the amount of $4,463.36 for your
approval.

Please indicate your authorization to release the funds for this warrant by approving or rejecting.

I will “reply to all” when the first approval comes in so that you know that we have the one required email approval.

Thank you!

Xathi

Kathryn A Mahar, Treasurer
Town of Mount Desert
(207) 276-5531 (T) (207) 276-3232 (F)

1



Mount Desert School Department Report# 12159

PAYRbLL WARRANT REGISTER
Include Authorization Codes

Batch: .
Check Dales: (Earliest) - (Latest)

Cash Account Number:
Minimum Chock Amount: $0.00

Sorted By: Check Number
[ccck Ii Check Date Code Nanie Chic Gip Gross Pay Nd Pay Direct Deposit Cliecic Anil Void

03/30/2018 iRS INTERNAL REVNUESERVlC 11,406.33 11,406.33 0.00 0.00
03/30/2018 STAT TREASURER, SATEOF MAIN 3,088.00 3,088.00 0.00 0.00

42497 03/30/20(8 280 SUSAN S. ARIPOTCH I 160.00 147.76 0.00 147.76
42498 03/30,2018 211 KIMBERLY 5. CRA1GHEAD I 74.69 68,98 0.00 68,98
42499 03/30/2018 452 LUCAS DUNDAJ{ I 1,281.00 1,163.18 0.00 1,163.18
42500 03/30/2018 (0 KATHERINE). FERNAW I 80.00 73.88 0.00 73.88
42501 03/30/2018 286 NICOLE F. GRAS I 80.00 73.88 0.00 73.88
42502 03/30/2018 455 ANGELINA T. JI,STiCE I 2’iO.OO 221.64 0.00 221.64
42503 03/30/2018 183 l’ERRi LANPHE I 240.00 221.64 0,00 221.64
42504 03/30/20(8 429 lAN SCIIWART4 I 80.00 73.88 0.00 73.88
42505 03/30(2018 345 CARoLL snisñ’ 1 2,971.57 2,308.81 0.00 2,308,81
12506 03/30/2018 322 DEBORAH A. TESRREAuUr I 80.00 43.88 0.00 43.88
42507 03/30/20(8 149 MARL4H 0. BAldER I 852,26 756.38 756.38 0,00
42508 03/30/2018 311 LAURA-JEAN B3AL 1 2,072.88 1,675.64 1,675.64 0.00
42509 03/30/2018 II KELLY S. BEAUI,tIEU I 2,269.07 1,636.91 1,636.91 0.00
42510 03/30/2018 266 JULIANNA R. BINNOCH I 2,258.42 1,778.74 1,778,74 0.00
42511 03/30/20(8 333 RHODAJ. BURK I 1(20.77 862.68 862.68 0.00
42512 03/30/2018 3(4 ANDREWJ,CARISON I 2,160.73 1,632.95 1,632.95 0.00
42513 03/30)2018 18 JANICEP. CARRLL I 9:2.08 811.48 811.48 0.00
42514 03/30/2018 248 ROBERT P. C[lALlN I 1,151.92 974.39 974.39 0.00
42515 03/30/2018 337 AMBER C. GIA RON I 1,886.65 1,539.00 1,539.00 0.00
42516 03/30/2018 21 LARRY A. COLE I 1,152.13 524.63 524.63 0.00
42517 03/30/2018 26 BRIAN R. COTE 1 2,290.96 1,650.36 1,650.36 0.00
42518 03/30/2018 91 JUDrIS CULLS 1 1,739.80 1.481,62 1,481.62 0.00
42519 03/30/2018 69 EMILY N. DAMO I 1,314.56 1,094.21 1,094.21 0.00
42520 03/30/2018 308 Gloria A. Delsandiy I 3237.42 2,533.16 2,53316 0.00
42521 03/30/2018 229 JENNIFER G. D9JBAR I 1440.73 (.108.36 1,108.36 0.00
42522 03/30/2018 43 SARAH R. DUNBØR I 2,191.14 1,855.44 1,855.44 0.00
42523 03)30/2018 52 WANDA). FERN4LLD I 2.11380 1,512.31 (.512.31 0.00
42524 03/30/2018 57 JASON \V. FOUNTAINE I 2.20408 1,620.05 1,620.05 0.00
42525 03/3012018 332 MARiNA P. FREDERiCK I 1,297.80 968.13 968.13 0.00
42526 03/30/20 18 329 ALEXANDER GAIRREU I 1,536.88 1,238.42 1,238.42 0.00
42527 03/30/20(8 146 CECILIA R.GARIII’Y I 1,572.88 1,204.84 1,204.84 0.00
42528 03/30,2018 63 IIEA’I’HIZR M. GRAVES I 2,045.11 1,436.44 1,436.44 0,00
42529 03/30/2018 65 GAYLEM. GRAYI I 2,520.11 1,967.47 1,967.47 0.00
42530 03/3012018 331 RUSSELL W.GRP1Y I 1,080.00 9(7.80 9(7.80 0.00
42531 03/30/2018 92 ABIGAIL A. HARSON I 809.45 735,79 735.79 0.00
42532 03/30/2018 90 REBECCA A. HE!’IISER I 1,970.88 1,571.08 1,571.08 0.00
42533 03/30/2018 147 WILLIAM L. HODKINS I 974.16 799.29 799.29 0.00
42534 03/30/20 18 234 KR1SI’IN D. 1101,11? 1 873.08 793.63 793.63 0.00
‘12535 0330/2018 313 ANDREA W. IIOYJELL I 951.08 812.12 812.12 0.00
42536 03/30/2018 293 Amy I.. James I 2,258.42 1,608.99 1,608.99 0.00
42537 03/30,2018 312 SErIIANY C. I 942.78 830.3! 830.31 0.00
42538 03/30/2018 291 PATRICIA A. KEL[EY I 1,183.77 920.27 920.27 0.00
42539 03(30/20(8 335 CYN’I’HIA A. LAtvt]BERT I 1,050.30 860.04 860.04 0.00
42540 03/30/20(8 135 SAMUELD, LEONARDI I 1,443.20 1,088.96 1,088.96 0.00
42541 03/30/20(8 277 4 JOHN U. MACAIR EY 1 320.00 277.75 277.75 0,00
42542 03/30/20(8 321 MAX 5, MASON I 1,092.66 883.70 881.70 0,00
42543 03/30/20(8 292 TARA MCKERNAN 3 2,005.42 1,598.65 1,598.65 0.00
42544 03/30/2018 289 ELiZABETH M. MNOfl I 947,16 833.88 833.88 0.00
42545 03/300018 193 HARVEY BRUCE f4ORWOOD I 1,108.18 939.00 939.00 0.00
42546 03/30/2018 237 JUSTIN B. NORWOD I 1,874.73 1,472.18 1,472.18 0.00
42547 03/30/2018 238 WENDELL L OPPçWALL I 1,252.34 763,21 763.21 0.00
42548 03/30/2018 240 JEANNE C. OTT I 1,506.84 1,027.39 1,027.39 0.00

3/28/2018 11:44:34AM Page 1 of 3



Mount Desert School Department Report# 12159

PAYRbLL WARRANT REGISTER
J Check II Cheek Date Code Name Chk Grp - Gross Pay Net Poy Diract Deposit Check Am! Void

42549 03/30/2018 301 ‘l’eny r. ratI I 88179 651.92 651.92 0.00
42550 03/30/2018 138 AMY V. PHILBROOK I 2,19014 1,704.93 1,704.93 0.00
42551 03/30/2018 275 JOELLE A. RuDpv I 2,400.11 1,888.69 1,888.69 0.00
42552 03/30/2018 74 LEON FL SARGENT 1 1,803.20 1,331.88 1,3)1.88 0.00
42553 03/30/2018 120 KAREN L. SHA4PE I 2,525.38 1,799.82 1,799.82 0.00
42554 03/30/2018 334 EMILY P. S1’APLIES 1 884.89 699.71 699,71 0.00
42555 03/30/2018 404 KERRY L TAVI4JR I 2,162.26 1,582.69 1,582.69 0.00
42556 03130/2018 448 IACQULLINH A.{WIIEA’row I 2,079.42 1,5(6.05 1,516,05 0.00
42557 03/30/2013 307 LAUREN M, WHITE I 930.32 732.97 732.97 0.00
42558 03/30/2018 AFLAC AFI.AC 127.42 127.42 0.00 127.42
42559 03/30/2018 UCOS ANTHEM scms 12,144,50 12,144.50 0.00 12,144.50
42560 03/30/2018 HMD HORACE MANNCOMPANIES 164.60 164.60 0.00 164.60
4256! 03130/2018 HML HORACE MANNL!FE INSURA 23.40 23.40 0.00 23.40
42562 03/30/2018 MEA MAlNI EDUCAMION ASSOCIA 1,899.45 1,899,45 0,00 1,899.45
42563 03/30/2018 MSRS MAINE PEltS j 24,474.94 24,474.94 0.00 24,474.94
42564 03/30/2018 MET MErRQI’OUTAt LIFE tNSUR 2,325.00 2,325.00 0.00 2,325.00
42565 03130/2018 DELTA DUN NORTHEAST DELTA DENTAL 1,160.44 1,160.44 0.00 1,160.44
42566 03130/2018 PRIM PRIMERICA F[N.fNC1ALSVC5. 555.00 555.00 0.00 555.00
42567 03/30fl0l8 FEDIIEALT!ITREASURER OFTATh 116.48 116.48 0.00 116.48

133,616.96 124,387.40 62,504.31 47,388.76

Check Authorization Summary

‘I’ypc Description Count Anwun I
Employee Ch4ks 10 4,397.53

Voi1cd Checks 0 0,00
Dfret Deposits (Fully Distributed) SI 62,504.3!
ACH Employee Credits 51 62,504.3!
ACIj Employee Debits (Voids) 0 0.00

Deduction Cheeks 10 42,991.23
Voijed Checks 0 0.00
Ad Vendor Credits 0 0.00
Ad Vendorflebils (Voids) 0 0.00

Taxes HF S I’aymenl - Debit 2 14,494.33

3/28/2018 11:44:34AM Page 2 of 3



Report #12159Mount Desert School Department
PAYR6LL WARRANT REGISTER

Check # Check Date Code f ChkCrp Cross Pay Net Pay Direct Depocli Check AmI D
WARRANT #

DATE: NAP 3 U I

/ae i______
SUPERINTENDENT

FINANCE OFFICER

FINANCE OFFICER

FINANCE OFFICER

FINANCE OFFICER

FINANCE OFFICER

FINANCE OFFICER

FINANCE OFFICER

Name

0

0
124387.40
57534.82 payroll A/P

181922.22J
3128/201811:44;34AM PageD of 3



4 Checks Listed

Report# 12163

Batch: 2713
Check Edit #: N/A

Sod By: Vendor Name
Include DTF Info: No

18140 Payablc Payment MAINE PERS
03/30/2018 Posted P0 BOX 349

AUGUSTA ME 033320349
In voice 1/ Invoice Dale Ainouiil Discount

MOES GLI1EACIjER 03/30/2018 212.90 0.00

Check ‘totals: 212.90 0.00

IS 141 Payable Payment MAINE PERS
03/J0/20i8 Posted P0 BOX 349

AUGUSTA ME 043320349
Arnonni Discount

623.48 0.00

Chccl Totals: 1,623.48 0.00

Payable Payment MAINE PERS
Posted ‘0 BOX 349

AUGUSTA ME 043320349
Amount Discount

8648 0.00

Mount besert School Department
Check Register

8161

Batch if Control Total Status Created By Date Created Last Updated By Date Last Updated2713 57,534.82 Posted Bria 03/2812038 Bria 03/28/2018
Vendor Code! Name Check Number Check Type Check Fleader Information

Check Edit # Check Dale Status
1200 ANTHEM BC& 85 18139 Payable Payment

6000 MAINE PERS
8158

03/30/2018 Posted
Payable # Reference L InvoIce ft Invoice Date
12715 ANTHEM BC & BS.MARCHIS MOES MARCH18 M00313W2018

Check Totals:

Payable ft Reference
12712 CLI TEACHER FEB18 1V0915.

Amount Discount Payment
55,611.96 0.00 55,611.96

55,611.96 0.00 55,611.96

6000 MAINE PERS
8159

Payable ft Reference invoice II invoice Date
12714 MAINEPERS-PLO RHMARI8 MDES P1.0 REF MARO3/3012018

6000 MAINE PERS
8160

18142

03/30/2018

Payable ft Reference Tnvolce U invoice Date
12713 MAINE PERS-GU PU) FEB18 POOI6A GLI PLO FEOl 03/30/2018

Payment

212.90

212.90

Payment

1,623.48

1,623,48

Paynicilt

86.48

Check Totals:

Batch 2713 Totals:

86.48 0.00 86.48

57,534.82 0.00 57,534.82

3/28/2018 11:56:02AM
Page 1 of 1




